BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Ltd.

May 16, 2024

To,

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street
Mumbai - 400 001

Maharashtra, India

Sub: Outcome of the meeting of the Board of Directors of BIP India Infra Projects Management Services
Private Limited (acting in its capacity as Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure Trust) held on
May 16, 2024
Ref: (1) Data Infrastructure Trust (Scrip Code: 543225, 725514, 975310; ISIN: INEOBWS14017 and
INEOBWS08019)
(2) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014
(“SEBI InvIT Regulations”) read with SEBI Master Circular bearing reference nos. SEBI/HO/DDHS-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023

Dear Sir/Madam,

The Board of Directors of BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited (“Company”), acting in
its capacity as Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure Trust (“Trust”), in its meeting held today i.e. on
Thursday, May 16, 2024, inter alia, have:

a. Approved and adopted the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Information of the Trust for the
year ended March 31, 2024 and the Annual Standalone and Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter,
half year and financial year ended March 31, 2024 alongwith the Auditor’s Reports thereon (“Financial
Information”), in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 23 of the SEBI InvIT Regulations read with
SEBI Master circular bearing reference no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 6, 2023,
Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
Listing Regulations”) read with SEBI circular bearing reference no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS_Div1/P/CIR/
2022/0000000103 dated July 29, 2022; and

b. Declared a total distribution of Rs. 2.3826 per unit, as Return on Capital.

Please note that Monday, May 27, 2024 has been fixed as the Record Date for the purpose of the payment of
this distribution to the Unitholders which will be paid on or before Thursday, May 30, 2024.

Further, please note that the financial information of the Investment Manager is not disclosed as there is no
erosion in the net worth as compared to the net worth as per the last disclosed financial statements.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 52(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulation read with SEBI Circular dated July
29, 2022, we are enclosing the statement on utilization of issue proceeds of Non-Convertible Debentures
issued by the Trust for the quarter ended March 31, 2024.

The Valuation Report dated May 16, 2024, as prepared by M/s. BDO Valuation Advisory LLP, Independent
Valuer bearing IBBI Registration Number IBBI/RV-E/02/2019/103, for the period ended March 31, 2024, in
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 21 of the SEBI InvIT Regulations, is also enclosed.
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BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Ltd.

Further, pursuant to Regulation 10 of the SEBI InvIT Regulations, the Net Asset Value is disclosed as part of the
Financial Information of the Trust enclosed herewith.

Additionally, please note the following changes in Board Composition noted and approved by the Board of

Directors at the aforesaid meeting:

- Mr. Chetan Rameshchandra Desai (holding Director Identification No.: 03595319) has been appointed as an
Independent Director w.e.f. May 17, 2024;

- Mr. Emmanuel David Gootam (holding Director Identification No.: 09771151) has been appointed as an
Independent Director w.e.f. May 17, 2024;

- Ms. Helly Ajmera (holding Director Identification No.: 10240609) has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director w.e.f. May 17, 2024; and

- Mr. Jason Chan Sian Chuan (holding Director Identification No.: 02265678) has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director w.e.f. May 17, 2024.

The meeting commenced at 02:00 p.m. and concluded at 05:09 p.m.

Further, the said intimation is also available on the website of the Trust i.e. www.datainfratrust.com.

You are requested to kindly take the same on record.
Thanking you,

For Data Infrastructure Trust
BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited 2
(acting in its capacity as the Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure Trust)

Digitally signed by
FARAH FARAH TEHMTON IRANI

TEHMTON I RAN I Date: 2024.05.16 17:13:41
+05'30'

Farah Irani
Compliance Officer

CC:
Axis Trustee Services Limited Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
(“Trustee of the Trust”) (“Debenture Trustee”)
Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound, Unit No. 901, 9% Floor, Tower — B, Peninsula Business
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbai-
Worli, Mumbai - 400 025, Maharashtra, India 400013, Maharashtra, India
Registered Office:

Unit ), 9th Floor, Tower 4,
Equinox Business Park,
LBS Marg, Kurla (W), Mumbai - 400 070

CIN: U74999MH20T7FTC303003 Q, +91 (22) 69075213 © compliance@bipinfra.com




- Chartered Accountant
De I Oltte One Ifl;ernationual Cenier,
- Tower 3, 277-32" Floor,
HaSkII‘IS & SE"S LLP Senapati Bapat Marg,
Elphinstone Road (West)

Mumbai, 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON AUDIT OF ANNUAL STANDALONE FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AND REVIEW OF QUARTERLY AND HALF YEARLY STANDALONE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BIP INDIA INFRA PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE
LIMITED

(ACTING IN CAPACITY AS THE INVESTMENT MANAGER OF DATA INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST
{FORMERLY KNOWN AS TOWER INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST)

Opinion and Conclusion

We have (a) audited the Annual Standalone Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2024 and (b}
reviewed the Financial Information for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024 (refer ‘Other Matters’
section below), which were subject to limited review by us, both included in the accompanying “Statement of
Standalone Financial Information for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024” {*the Statement”) of
DATA INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TOWER INFRASTUCTURE TRUST) {“the Trust”),
consisting of the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures
as required by SEBI Circular number SEBI/HO/DDHS-PaD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 {“SEBI Circular”},
(“the Statement”), being submitted by the Trust pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 and pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 52 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time read with the
SEBI Circular (“the InviT Regulations”).

(a) Opinion on Annual Standalone Financial Information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Standalone Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2024:

i. is presented in accordance with the requirements of InviT Regulations in manner so required; and

ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the
Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with the InviT Regulations, of the standalone net profit {including other comprehensive

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27 - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013,
Maharashtra, India {LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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income), its net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, total returns at fair value and net distributable
cash flows for the year ended on that date and other financial information of the Trust.

(b} Conclusion on Unaudited Standalone Financial Information for the quarter and half year ended
March 31, 2024

With respect to the Standalone Financial Information for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024, based
on our review conducted as stated in paragraph (b) of ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities’ section below, nothing has come
to our attention that causes us to believe that the Standalone Financial Information for the quarter and half year
ended March 31, 2024, prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the
Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of the
InvIT Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

Basis for Opinion on the Audited Annual Standalone Financial Information for the year ended March
31, 2024

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in paragraph (a} of
the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities’ section below. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) and we have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 5 of the Statement, which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” to
comply with InvIT Regulations. Our opinion and conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Statement

This Statement which includes the Standalone Financial Information is the responsibility of the Board of Directors
of the Investment Manager (the “Board”) and has been approved by them for the issuance. The Statement has
been compiled from the related audited standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. This
responsibility includes the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Information for the year
ended March 31, 2024 that give a true and fair view of the net profit {including other comprehensive income), its
net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, its total returns at fair value and its net distributable cash flows for
the year ended on that date and other financial information of the Trust in accordance with the requirements of
the InviT Regulations; recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards as
defined in Rule 2(1){a} of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations.
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This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of the
Trust and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Standalone Financial Information that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Information, the Board is responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board is also responsible for overseeing the Trust’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

(a) Audit of the Annual Standalone Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2024

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Information for the
year ended March 31, 2024 as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
Standalone Financial Information.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Standalone Financial Information,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Trust’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Board.

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board in terms of the
requirements specified under the InvIT Regulations.
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*  (Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Trust to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

o  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Standalone Financial Information,
including the disclosures, and whether the Annual Standalone Financial Information represents the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Annual Standalone Financial Information that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowtedgeable user of the Annual
Standalone Financial Information may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the Annual Standalone Financial Information.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

(b) Review of the Standalone Financial Information for the quarter and half year ended March 31,
2024

We conducted our review of the Standalone Financial Information for the quarter and half year ended March 31,
2024 in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (“SRE”} 2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the ICAI. A review of interim financial
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Company’s personnel responsible for financial and
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope
than an audit conducted in accordance with SAs issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Other Matters

¢ The Statement includes the information for the half year ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figure
between audited figures in respect of the year ended March 31, 2024 and the published year to date
figures up to half year ended September 30, 2023 which were subject to limited review by us.

“1 Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter.
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e The unaudited standalone financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 are balancing figures
between the audited figures for the year ended March 31, 2023 and the unaudited / unreviewed figures
for the nine months December 31, 2022,

QOur report on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter.

s The unaudited consolidated financial resuits for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 are balancing
figures between the audited figures for the year ended March 31, 2024 and the published year to
date figures up to nine months ended December 31, 2023 which were subject to limited review by
us.

Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

P
Mohammed Bengali
Partner
Membership No. 105828
UDIN: 24105828BKFIG9803
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2024
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Data Infrastructure Trust
Principal place of Business: Unit 1, 9" Floor, Tower 4, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg, Kurla (W), Mumbal 400070, Maharashtra, India.

Phone : 022 63075212; Email: secretarial @summitdigitel.com; Website: www datainfratrust com
{SEB| Registration Number: IN/inviT/18-19/0009)

ial informatlon for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. in Million except per share data and ratios)

Particulars Quarter ended Hal year ended Year ended
March 31, December 31, March 31, March 31, September March 31, March 31, | March 31, 2023
2024 2023 023 2024 30, 2023 2023 2024
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited
frefernote 1 | (rafer note 1) | (refernote1 | (refer note 1} | (refer note 1) | {refer note 1)
and 3) and 3)
INCOME AND GAINS
1 Revenue from operations 10,249 10,425 10,098 20,674 20,782 20.354 41,456 40,600
2 Dividend income from - 50 E - 50 - 50
subsidiarles
3 Interest income 2 1 2 3 1 2 L 2
4 Gther income - 1,561 0 1,561 - 0 1,561 21
5 Total income and gains 10,251 11,987 10,150 22,238 20,783 20,806 43,021 40,673
(1424344)
[ EXPENSES AND LOSSES
@) Investment Manager fees {refer 7 7 7 14 14 14 28 23
note 1I{B))
(b} Trustee fee 1] 1 L] 1 1 1 2 2
(3] Project Manager fees 6 [ 6 12 12 12 24 24
[d} Audit fees 11 & 6 17 16 12 33 31
] Finance Cests 237 177 - 414 48 - 462 -
[} Legal and professional fees 130 11 6 141 29 11 170 16
{g) Valuation fees 2 - 1 2 1 1 3 1
(h} Annual Listing fee o 0 - 0 1 - 1 2
{i) Rating fee - 5 . S 5 1 10 1
)] Other expenses (refer note 10} 125 110 233 235 211 327 446 526
Total expenses and losses 518 323 259 841 338 379 1,179 6531
7 Profit before tax (5-6) 9,733 11,664 9,891 21,397 20,445 20,027 41,842 40,042
8 Tax Expenses
fa) i) Current tax 2 - 1 2 - 1 2 10
(5] 11} Income tax for earller years {9) - - {9) - - (9} -
Total tax expenses 7 - 1 {7) - 1 (7} 10
] Profit after tax {7-8) 9,740 11,664 9,890 21,404 20,445 20,026 41,8489 40,032
10 Other comprehensive income - = o S - - - o
Total comprehensive income for 9,740 11,664 9,890 21,404 20,445 20,026 41,849 40,032
11
the period / year (9+10)
12 Earnings per unit
- Basic {in Rupees) 374 4.48 3.80 8.22 7.85 7.69 16.08 15.38
- Diluted {in Rupeas) 3.74 4.48 3.80 8.22 7.85 7.69 16.08 15.38




Principal place of Business: Unit 1, 9™ Floor, Tower 4, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg, Kurla (W), Mumbai 400070, Maharashtra, India.

Data Infrastructure Trust

Phone : 022 69075212; Email: secretarial@summitdigitel.com; Website: www.datainfratrust.com
{SEBI Registration Number: IN/InviT/18-19/0009)

I. Statement of Standalene financial information for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. In Million except per share data and ratios)

Particulars Quarter ended Half year ended Year ended
March 31, December 31, March 31, March 31, September March 31, March 31, | March 31, 2023
2024 2023 2023 2024 30, 2023 2023 2024
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited
(refernote 1 | {refer note 1} | (refer note 1 | (refer note 1) { (refer note 1) | (refer note 1)
and 3} and 3)
13 Unit Capital 261,017 261,152 261,152 261,017 261,152 261,152 261,017 261,152
14 Other equity 22,474 24,715 27,285 22,474 22,551 27,285 22,474 27,285
15 Net worth [refer note 12) PLEWE)] 286,107 288,677 283,731 283,943 288,677 283,731 288,677
16 Paid up debt capital {refer note 12,378 9,025 - 12,378 8,848 . 12,378 -
11{a))
17 Debenture Redemption Reserve . NA NA NA NA NA - NA
18 Debt equity ratio (refer note 0.04 0.03 NA 0.04 0.03 NA 0.04 NA
11{a))
T Debt service coverage ratio 42 67 NA 53 axr NA 92 NA
(DSCR) {refer note 11{b}}
20 Interest service coverage ratio 42 67 NA 53 427 NA 92 NA
(ISCR} {refer note 11{c}}
1 Current ratio {refer note 11{d}) 3 2 8 3 2 8 3 8
22 Long term debt to working 0.20 NA NA 0.20 NA NA 0.20 NA
capital (refer note 11{e})
o Bad debts to account recelvable NA NA NA NA NA NA NA, NA
ratio
24 Current liability ratio {refer note 0.59 0.78 057 0.59 0.81 057 0.59 057
1[0
25 Total debts to total assets (refer 0.04 0.03 NA 0.04 0.03 NA 0.04 NA
note 11(g}}
26 Debtors turnover (in times) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
27 inventory turnaver NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
28 Operating margin (%) {refer note 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
11{h})
o Net profit margin {%) (refer note 5% 97% 97% 96% 98% 98% 7% 98%
11{1)
N Asset Coverage (refer note 11(J}} 24 33 NA 24 33 NA 24 NA




Data Infrastructure Trust

Maharashtra, India.

Principal place of Business: Unit 1, g* Floor, Tower 4, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg, Kurla {W}, Mumbai 400070,

Phone ; 022 69075212; Email: secretarial @ summitdigitel.com; Website: www.datainfratrust.com
{SEBI Registration Number: IN/InvIT/18-19/0009)

Standalone statement of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in Million})
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Audited Audited
ASSETS
INON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets:
Investments 14,979 14,979
Loans 259,373 250,000
Other financial assets 68 -
Income-tax assets {net} 9 -
Total non-current assets 274,429 264,979
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 88 28
Other financial assets 1 -
Other current assets 25,162 30,605
Total current assets 25,251 30,633
Total assets 299,680 295,612
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Unit capital 261,017 261,152
Contribution 240 240
Other equity 22,474 27,285
Total equity 283,731 288,677
LIABILITIES
Non - current liabllities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3,179 -
Other financial liabilities 3,397 2,954
Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,576 2,954
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings 9,199 -
Trade Payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - -
enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 100 15
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities - 3,962
Other current liabilities 73 ]
Current Tax Liabilities {Net) 1 -
Total current liabilities 9,373 3,981
Total liabilities 15,949 6,935
Total equity and liabilities 299,680 295,612




DATA INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST
Principal place of Business: Unit 1, gt floor, Tower 4, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg, Kurla (W), Mumbai 400070, Maharashtra, India.
Phone : 022 69075212; Email: secretarial@summitdigitel.com; Website: www.datainfratrust.com
(SEBI Registration Number: IN/InvIT/18-19/0009})
Standalone Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Rs. in Million})
Particulars Year ended March 31,| Year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Audited Audited
A |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES;
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 41,842 40,042
Adjustments for :
Fair value foss on financial instruments 443 525
Gain on settlement of contingent consideration {refer note: 7b) {1,561) .
Finance Costs 462 -
Interest on fixed deposit {4) (Z)I
Interest income on loan given to subsidiaries (41,456) (40,600)
Interest received 46,904 30,557
Operating profit before working capital changes 46,630 30,522
Adjustments for :
{Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets and other assets {S} 16
Increase / {(Decrease) in trade payables 85 (9l|
increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 69 {207)
Cash generated from aperating activities 46,779 30,322
Income taxes paid (1) (10)]
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 46,778 30,312
B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Contingent Consideration paid for acquisition of subsidiary {refer note 7b) (2,401)
Loans given [9,525)
Loans repald 153 -
{Investment) / redemption of bank deposits {net) (68) 16
Interest received on deposits 3 2
Net cash flow {used in) / generated from investing activities (B} {11,838) 18
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Borrowings {Net of upfront fees, premium and discount) 11,978 -
Payment of Distribution to unitholders - Return on Capital (46,660) (30,568)
Payment of Distribution to unitholders - Return of Capital {135) -
Finance Cost paid {63) 5
Provision for unit issuance costs written back 13
Net cash flow {used in)/ from financing activities (C) (34,880) {30,555}
Net increase/ {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C} 60 (225}
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 28 253
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 88 28
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Data Infrastructure Trust
Notes to standalone information for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024

The standalone financial information has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles preseribed under Indian Accounting
Standard ("Ind AS") as defined in SEBI {Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014, as amended and the circulars issued thereunder ("SEBI InvIT
Regulations”™}, and read with Regulation 23 of the SEBI InviT Regulations, as amended from time to time read with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD
2/PfCIRS2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 {"SEBI Master Circular®) and Regulation 52 of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements] Regulations,
2015 (*Regulation 52"), Chapter | of SEBI Circular bearing reference SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS_Divl/P/CIR/2022/0000000103 dated July 29, 2022, as amended and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI InviT Regulations (refer note 5 below on presentation of
"Unit Capital” as "Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation). The above financial information has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager of the Trust, at their meetings held on May 16, 2024. The
financial information for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024 and half year ended September 30, 2023 have been subjected to a limited review and
financial information for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been subjected to audit by the auditors of the Trust.

Data InvIT is registered as a contributory irrevocable trust set up under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on January 31, 2019 and registered as an infrastructure
investment trust under the SEBI InviT Regulations oo March 19, 2019 having registration nurber INfInvIT/18-19/0009. Units of the Yrust have been listed on
BSE Limited on September 1, 2020. Pursuant to the approval granted by SEBI and upon issuance of fresh Certificate of Registration, the name of the Trust has
changed from 'Tower Infrastructure Trust' to ‘Data Infrastructure Trust' w.e.f. October 08, 2021,

Sponsors of the Trust are BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd., a company registered in Singapore and Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited, a cornpany
incorporated in India. Pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 22(7} of the SEBI lnviT Regulations and receipt of approval from at least 75% of the unit
holders by value [excluding the value of units held by parties related to the transaction), Project Holdings Nine [DIFC) Limited has been inducted as a Sponsor
to the Trust. Further, the Deed of Accession dated May 16, 2024 has been executed to induct the said company as a Sponsor to the Trust,

The Trustee to the Trust is Axis Trustee Services Limited ("Trustee").

The Trust activities comprise of owning and investing in Infrastructure assets to generate cashflow for distribution to the beneficiaries. Accordingly, the Trust
has a single segment as per the requirements of Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments. The Trust has invested in the subsidiaries which has all the business
operations in India. Hence, there is only one geographic segment.

W.e.f. December 12, 2023, BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited ("BIP India / Investment Manager”} has been appointed as the
Investment Manager of the Trust basis the approval from SEBI vide letter dated December 11, 2023. Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited
["BHMPL / erstwhile Investment Manager") had resigned as the Investment Manager of the Trust vide letter dated September 29, 2023 but continued in its
capacity till close of business hours on December 11, 2023.

As on March 31, 2024, the Trust has two directly held Special Purpose Vehicles [$PV) i.e. Summit Digitel Infrastrastructure Limited (formerly known as Summit
Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited){"SDIL") and Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited ("RDIPL"). The Trust has one Holding Company i.e. Crest Digitel
Private Limited [formerly known as Space Teleinfra Private Limited) ("CDPL / Hold Co") with one 5PV i.e. Crest Virtual Network Private Limited (formerly known
as Kinetic Road Assets Private Limited) {"CVNPL"}.

Pursuant to the first-time applicability of Regulation 52 from the quarter ended September 30, 2023, the Trust is required to publish quarterly financial results
along with the relevant comparative periods,

The unaudited standalone financial resuits for the half year ended March 31, 2024 are the balancing figures between audited figures for the year ended March
31, 2024 and the unaudited figures for the half year ended September 30, 2023 which were subjected to limited review,

The unaudited standalone financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 are the balancing figures between audited figures for the year ended March
31, 2024 and the unaudited figures for the nine months ended December 31, 2023 which were subjected to limited review.

The unaudited standalone financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 are the balancing figures between audited figures for the year ended March
31, 2023 and the unaudited / unreviewed figures for the nine months ended December 31, 2022,

At the meetings held on February 9, 2024, the standalone financial results relating 1o the nine months ended December 31, 2022 has been approved by the
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of Investment Manager of the Trust but have not been subjected to audit / limited review by the auditors.

Investors can view the standalone financial information of the Trust on the Trust's website (www.datainfratrust.com} or on the website of BSE Limited
[www.bseindia.com).

Under the provisions of the SEBI InviT Regulations, the Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable cash flows of the
Trust for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Trust to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions
Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument which contains equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial
Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEB! Master Circular issued under the SEB! InviT Regulations, the Unithclders’ funds have been
presented as “Equity” dealing with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being
classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when the distributions are approved by
Data InviT Committee (till December 11, 2023) and the Board of Directors of the Investrnent Manager,
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6 The Data InviT Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the erstwhile Investment Manager has made four distributions aggregating Rs. 34,680 million
during the period til December 11, 2023, as follows:

Date of Declaratio Return on Capital | Return of Capital | Total Distribution | Date of payment to
ate celaration {per Unit) {per Unit} {per Unit) unitholders
May 19, 2023 2.209 - 2209 May 30 and 31, 2023
August 21, 2023 3.6227 - 3.6227 August 31, 2023
September 8, 2023 3.8417 . 38417 September 20, 2023
November 20, 2023 3.6496 - 3.6496 |December 01, 2023

The Board of Directors of BIP india has made two distributions aggregating Rs. 12,115 million during the period post December 12, 2023 to March 31, 2024 as
follows:

Return on Capital | Return of Capital | Total Distribution Date of payment to
Date of Declaration {per Unit} {per Unit) {per Unit) unitholders
February 9, 2024 4.2182 - 4.2182 February 22, 2024
March 5, 2024 0.3842 0.0519 0.4361 |March 18, 2024

Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of BIP Indla have declared a distribution {return on capital} of Rs. 2.3826 per unit on May 16,
2024,

7 {a) On August 31, 2020, the Trust acquired balance 49% of the equity shares of SDIL from Reliance Industries Limited (“RIL”) by entering into a Shareholder and
Optlon Agreement (“SHOA") (entered as part of the aforesaid acquisition by Trust}. As per the SHOA , RIL shall be entitied (but not obligated) to require the Frust
to sell to RIL {or RIL nominee, if applicable}, the shares of SDIL at lower of Rs. 2,150 million or fair market value of shares. This call option liability was recognised
on the date of acquisition by Trust amounting to Rs. 2,020 million with a corresponding debit to Retained earnings. The estimated fair value of written call option
as at March 31, 2024 is Rs. 3,397 million (as at December 31, 2023: Rs. 3,285 million, as at September 30, 2023: Rs. 3,171 million, as at March 31, 2023: Rs. 2,954
million).

(b} Summary of acquisition -
On March 10, 2022, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares in COPL, a company engaged In business of building, maintaining, !easing, renting and otherwise
dealing in infrastructure for telecom sector for total purchase price of Rs, 12,829 million. The Trust entered into a Share Purchase Agreement ("SPA”) providing the
Trust the right to direct the relevant activities of CDPL, thereby providing the Trust with full control. Accordingly, eHective March 10, 2022, CDPL became
Subsidiary (5PV) of the Trust.

The Trust was carrying a contingent consideration liability of Rs. 3,741 million and deferred working capital refunds of fs. 221 million as at September 30, 2023.
The aggregate carrying value of contingent consideration liability and deferred working capital refunds was Rs. 3,962 million as 3t March 31, 2023 on account of
the purchase price payable for the aforesaid acquisition. During the quarter ended December 31, 2023, the payable due to the sellers of COPL was finalised at an
amount of Rs. 2,401 million which was paid in January 2024, The settlement of the contingent consideration has resulted in a gain of Rs. 1,561 million which has
been disclosed as Other income.

{c) On September 8, 2023, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares of RDIPL for a total consideration of Rs. 0.1 million. Accordingly, RDIPL became Subsidiary {SPV)
of the Trust.

(d) On September 21, 2023, CDPL acquired 100% equity shares of CYVNPL for a total consideration of Rs. 0.7 million. Accordingly, CVNPL has become a SPV of the
Trust and CDPL became a Hold Co.

8 The details of outstanding 8.40% Unsecured Rated Listed Redeemable Non Convertible Debenture with maturity date December 18, 2026 issued by the Trust is
mentioned below:

Date of Allotment FDate of Listing No. of NCDs issued |Face Value of NCDsfTotal amount Issued|Amount outstanding|interest rate and
issued (per NCD) {in](Rs. In milllon}) as on March 31, 2024 |frequency of interest
Rs.) [Rs. In million} payment

lanuary 8, 2024 lanuary 9, 2024 32,000 100,000 3,200 3,200 |8.4% p.a., Quarterly

9 On August 30, 2023, CRISIL Ratings Limited assigned "CRISIL A1+" rating to the Commaercial Paper issued by Trust. Further, on November 30, 2023, CRISIL Ratings
Limited assigned "CRISIL AAA; Stable” to the NCD issued by the Trust, re-affirmed Trust's corporate credit rating as “CRISIL AAA; Stable” and re-affirmed "CRISIL
Al+" to the Commercial Paper issued by Trust.

On December 08, 2023, CARE Ratings Limited re-affirmed Trust's issuer rating as "CARE AAA; Stable”.

In January, 2024, post announcement of acquisition of Indian Business of American Tower Corporation (ATC) (refer note IE}, CRISIL Ratings Limited placed the
Corporate Credit Rating and NCD rating on Rating Watch with Developing Implications "CRISIL AAA (RWD)” and CARE Ratings Limited placed the issuer rating on
Rating Watch with Developing implications "CARE AAA (RWD)".

Further, on April 26, 2024, CRISIL Ratings Limited has re-affirmed NCD and Trust's corporate credit rating as “CRISIL AAA {RWD) and “CRISIL Al1+" for the
Commercial Paper issued by the Trust. CARE has also re-affirmed the Trust's Issuer rating as CARE AAA [RWD) on Agril 10, 2024.

W
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Notes to standalone information for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024

10 Other expenses mainly includes fair value loss on financial instrument, bank charges and other miscellaneous expenses.

11 Formula for computation of ratios are as follows :
{a} Debt-equity ratio:
Total Debt
Total Equity
(i) Total Debt/ Pald up Debt capital represents Borrowings.
{ii) Equity includes Unit Capital, Contribution and Other Equity

[b) Debt service coverage ratlo [DSCR):

Earning before Interest, Depreciation and Tax (Net Operating Income}
Interest Expenses

(<) Interest service coverage ratio {ISCR}:
Earning before Interest, Depreciation and Tax (Net Operating Income)
Interest Expenses

{d) Current ratio
Current Assets
Current Liabilities

{e} Long term debt to working capital
Nan Current borcowings
Working Capital

{i) Working Capital is calculated as Current Assets less Current Liabilities.
{ii} In case the ratio Is less than zero, it is shown as NIL,

(f] Current liability ratio
Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

(g} Total debts to total assets
Total Debts
Total Assets
Total Debt represents Non-Current Borrowings, Short-term borrowings.

[h) Operating margin (%)
Operating Margln
Revenue from operations

QOperating margin is calculated as Revenue from operations Less Investment Manager fees, Trustee Fees and Project Management Fees.

[1} Net profit margin (%)
Net Profit after tax
Revenue from operations

{) Asset Coverage

Total Assets- Intanglble Assets - Current liabilities - Short term borrowings
Total Debt
Ratios for the previous periods/ year have been aligned with the formula defined in the current quarter.

12 Net Worth: Total Equity excluding other comprehensive income.
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1l. Additional Disclosures as required by Clause 4.6 of Chapter 4, Section A of the SEB) Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115:

A, Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) of Data Infrastructure Trust* {Rs. in Millian)
Description Half year ended Half year ended Half year ended |Year ended March Year ended
March 31, 2024 | September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 31,2024 March 31,2023
{Unaudited} (Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Audited) {Audited)
Cash flows received from SPV / HoldCo in the form of interest / accrued 21,677 25,227 16,224 46,904 30.557
interest
Cash flows received from SPV / HoldCo in the form of dividend / buy-back of] - - S0 - 50
equity shares / capital reduction of equity shares
Any other income accruing at the Trust level and not captured above, 3 1 23 4 23
lincluding but not limited to Interest freturn on surplus cash invested by the
Trust
Add: Cash flows/ Proceeds from the SPV / HoldCo towards the repayment of 153 153
the debt issued to the SPV by the Trust (refer note 1 and 2)
Total cash flow at the Trust level {A) 21,833 25,228 16,297 47,061 30,630
Less: issue expenses payable by Trust including as reimbursements towards - - - - -
expenses of Trust met by the Sponsors
Less: annual expenses of the Trust Including audit fees, project manager fees, {201} {73) {44) (274} {105}
investment management fees, stock exchange fees, other statutory fees,
depasitory fees, legal expenses, credit rating fees and valuer fees
Less: income tax (if applicable) at the standalone Trust level and payment of] {1) - {10} (1) (10}
other statutory dues
Less: Repayment of extermal debt (including interest} / red bl - - . . B
preference shares f debentures, etc,, if deemed necessary by the Investment
Manager
Less: net cash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement under loan - - - - -
agreements, if any
Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets - - . - -
adjusted for the following:
- related debis settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; - - - -
- directly attributable transaction costs; - - -
- proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a)
of the SEBI InvIT Regulations
Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets - - - -
not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are
not intended to be invested subsequently
Less: Amount invested in any of the Portfolio Assets for service of debt or| - - - - -
interest
Less; Capital expenditure if any (including acquisition of other infrastructure {20) - (204 -
assets / 5PVs f HoldCo) (refer note 1}
Add: Proceeds from fresh issuance of units - - 5 8 5
Less: Reserve for debentures / loans / capex expenditure in the intervening - - - s s
period till next proposed distribution if deemed necessary by the investment
Manager Invested in permitted investments
Total cash {outflows) / ion at the Trust level {B) (222} (73) {54) {295) {115}
Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = [A+B) 21,611 25,155 16,243 46,766 30,515
{
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1)During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust has given unsecured loan of Rs. 20 million to 5PV (RDIPL) for its operations . Out of this, SPV has repaid Rs. 18 million during the
year.

2) additional information In respect of inflow / outflow of funds not included in the table above:
a.0uring the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust has raised money through issue of listed Commercial Papers carrying face value of Rs. 9,500 million with an issue price
aggregating Rs. 8,800 million. Further, the Trust has utilised these proceeds by giving an unsecured loan to its SPV (SDIL) amounting to Rs. 8,800 milllon in order to enable the SPY to

pay the outstanding interest on existing loan given by the Trust to the SPV,

b. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust issued 32,000 listed unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 100,000 each amounting to Rs. 3,200 mitign. The
Trust has utilised the proceeds of the NCD as follows:

Particulars Amount

(Rs. in Million)
Payment of contingent consideration for acquisition of CDPL {(Hold Co) {refer note 12b) 2,401
Unsecured Ican given to COPL (Hold Co} # 705
Fixed Deposits placed {marked as lien for Interest Servicing as per borrowing agreement} 68
Transaction expenses of the issue and general corporate purpose 25
Total 3,200

it Qut of the loan given to COPL, Rs. 135 million was repaid during the year.

* The current statement of NOCF has been prepared in accordance with the format provided in Paragraph F of Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-

2/P/CIR/2023/115 for Infrastructure Investment Trusts dated July 06, 2023. A new format for NOCF has been provided by SEB1 via circular : SEBI/HQ/DDHS/DDHS-
PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 which will be effective from Aprll 01, 2024,
{Rs. in Million)
Description
Half year ended Half year ended Half year ended |Year ended March Year ended
March 31, 2024 | September 30,2023 | March 31, 2023 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Net Distributable Cash Flows as per above 21,611 25,155 16,243 486,766 10,515
Opening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 581 28 36 28 253
Total Net Distributable Cash Flows 22,192 25,183 16,279 46,794 30,768
The Net Distributakle Cash Flows (NDCFs) as abave is distributed as foll in the respective ]

{Rs. in Million)
Date of distribution payment Return on Capital | Return of Capital | Total Distributlon

(A} ie) (A+8)

May 30, 2023 and May 31, 2023 5,750 - 5,750
August 31, 2023 9,430 - 9,430
September 20, 2023 10,000 - 10,000
December 01, 2023 9,500 - 9,500
February 22, 2024 10,980 - 10,980
March 18, 2024 1,000 135 1,135
Total 46,660 135 46,795
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B. Feas to ot and Project M.
I. Pursuant to Ir Mar Ag: i, the Ir M, Is 0 an fee of Rs. 24 million per annum exclusive of GST.
Investment Manager is also enlltled to reimbursement of any cost incurred In relation to activity pertaining to Trust such as administration of the Trust, appointment of staff,
director, transaction expenses incurred with respectto i i ing and d g off the investment of the Trust.

M Lfield

W.e.f. Decernber 12, 2023, BIP Indla has been appuinted as the | of the Trust basls the approval from SEBI vide letter dated D ber 11, 2023, B
India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited ("BIIMPL / erstwhile Investment Manager”) Is the erstwhile investment Manager of the Trust. BIIMPL had resigned as the

Investment Manager of the Trust vide letter dated September 29, 2023 but tnued in its y 1ill close of busii hours on [k ber 11, 2023.

Il. Pursuant to Project A Agl

the Project ger of SDILis entitled to a project management fee of Rs. 20 million per annum exclusive of GST.

C. Statement of Earnings per unit

Particulars Half year ended Half year ended Half year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Saptember 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Profit after tax for the period / year [Rs. In Million) 21,404 20,445 20,026 41,849 40,032
(Weighted 2 ber of units g for comp I 2,603 2,603 2,603 2,603 2,603
of basic and diluted earaings per unit {No. in Million}
Earnings per unit n Rs. {Basic and Diluted) 822 7.85 1.69 16.08 15.38
Particulars Quarter yesr endad Quarter year ended | Quarter yesr ended
March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Profit after tax for the period / year |Rs. in Millinn) 9,740 11,664 9,890
hted ge number of units g for ¢ 2,603 2,603 2,603
of haslc and diluted earnings per unit {No. in Millionl
|Earnings per unit in Rs. {Basic and Diluted) 3.74 448 330
0. Contingent llabilities:
In respect of March 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023, refer note 7 for contingent ¢ athon in relation to acquisition of COPL There are ne contingent liabilities as at March
31, 2024.
E. Commitments:
Board of Directors of BIP India, acting in its capacity as Invesiment Manager of Data InviT, at its meeting held on January 4, 2024 has approved the acquisition of 100% interest
in American Tower Corporation’s Indian tower business entity i.e ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited {*ATC India") for an enterprise value of INR 165 billlon {~USD 2
billlen) {subject to pra-closing terms). Trust has signed a binding agreement ¢n January 4, 2024 and the completion of the acquisition will be subject to approval of unitholders,
various regulatory approvals and other pre closing terms {March 31, 2023 : Rs. Nil; September 30, 2023: Rs. NIL)
F. Statement of Related Party Disclosures
I List of Additional Related Partles as par regulation 2{1) {1v) of SEBI InwiT Regulations
1 List of Related Parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures”
List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:
Namae of Related Party
which exer nir:
Hrookfield Corporation {Farmerly known as Brookfield Asset Management Inc.) URimate Parent
BIF IV India Holdings Pte. Ltd. Intermediate Parent
BIF IV Jarvis India Pte, Ltd., Singapore Immediate Parent
Subsidiary {5PVs}
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited
Crest Digitel Private Limited {upto September 20, 2023}
Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Umited {w.e.f. September 08, 2023)
Crest Virlual Network Private Umited (w.e.f. September 21, 2023)
Subsidiary (Hold Co}
Crest Digitel Private Limited (w.e.f. September 21, 2023)
I Ustof additional related parties as per cegulation 2(1)izv) of the SEBI InvIY Regulations
A Related Partles 1o Data Infrastructure Trust with whom transactions have taken place and relationships

BIF IV Jarvis India Pre. Lid, Singapore
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited

BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited

Parent / Co-Spensor

investment Manager {till December 11, 2023){"Erstwhile Investment Manager") {refer
note 2)

Invesiment Manager [w.e.f December 12, 2023) {refer note 2)

Axis Trustee Services Limited Trustee
Jarvis Data-Inira Project Manager Private Limited Project Manager (COPL, RDIPL and CYNPL}
Rellance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited Co-Sponsor

lo infrastructure Management Services Limited

Project Manager (SDIL)
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Promoters to the Parties specified in HjA) above with whom transactions have taken place and relationships
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of Trustee®

* Axis Bank Limited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited {"Trustee”), trustee to Data
Infrastructure Trust, is considered as a related party of the Trust in line with the SEBI InvIT Regulations
based on recent directions from SEBL

Directors of the Parties specified in H{A} above

Directors of BIF IV Jarvis India Pte Ltd,, Singapore

Liew Yee Foong

Ho Yeh Hwa

Velden Neo Jun Xiong (appointed w.e f. August 13, 2021 and resigned w.e.f April 29, 2022)
Tang Qichen {resigned w.e.f. October 12, 2022}

Tan Aik Thye Derek {w.e.f, April 29, 2022)

Maurice Rebert Hendrick Barnes (w.e.f. October 5, 2022)

Tay Zhi Yun (w.ef. October 12, 2022}

Talisa Poh Pel Lynn {w.e.f, October 12, 2022)

Directors of Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited {1ill December 11, 2023)
Sridhar Rengan

Prateek Shroff {w.e.f. May 26, 2023)

Radhika Vijay Haribhakti (w.e.f. June 1, 2023)

Jagdish Ganapathi Kini {w.e.f. June 1, 2023}

Rinki Ganguli {w.e.f. June 1, 2023)

Arun Balakrishnan {w.e.f. June 1, 2023)

Narendra Aneja [resigned w.e.l. May 31, 2023)

Pooja Aggarwal (appointed w.e.f. September 30, 2021 and resigned w.e.f. April 6, 2022)
Chetan Rameshchandra Desai {resigned w.e.f. May 31, 2023}

Swati Mandava (w.e.f. June 28, 2022 and resigned w.e.f. May 25, 2023 )

Diractors of BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited (w.e.f. December 12, 2023)
Dhananjay Joshi

Poaoja Aggarwal

Prateek Shroff

Sunil Srivastav

Jagdish Ganapathi Xini

Radhika Haribhakt|

Directors of Axis Trustee Services Limited

Deepa Rath
Rajesh Kumar Dahiya (resigned w.e.f. January 15, 2024)
G h Sankaran {resigned w.e.f. January 15, 2024)

Prashant Joshi {w.e.f. lanuary 15, 2024)
Sumit Bali (w.e.f. January 16, 2024}

DH s of Jio Infi e Manag t Services Limited
Damodaran Satish Kumar {w.e.f. November 6, 2023)

Nikhil Chakrapani Suryanarayana Kavipurapu

Rahul Mukherjee (w.e.f. August S, 2022)

Harlharan Mahadevan {resigned w.e.f. August 5, 2022)

Sudhakar Saraswatula {resigned w.e.f. November 10, 2023)

Divector of Jarvis Data-Infra Praject Manager Private Limited
Darshan Bhupendra Vora
Gaurav Manoj Chowdhary

Directoers of Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited
Sethuraman Kandasamy (w.e.f, August 25, 2023)

V Mohana (w.e.f. August 25, 2023}

Blmal Manu Tanna {w.e.f. August 25, 2023}

Hital Rasikla' Meswani (resigned w.e.f. August 26, 2023)

Vinod Mansukhlal Ambani {resigned w.e.l. August 26, 2023)
Mahendra Nath Bajpal {resigned w.e.f. August 26, 2023)

Savithri Parekh {resigned w.e.f. August 26, 2023}

Dhiren Vrajlal Dalal {resigned w.e.f. March 30, 2023}

Balasubrmantan Chandrasekaran (resigned w.e.f. March 30, 2023) -
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N infs ion for v, half yyar and yeor ended March 31, 2024

m ulation 1 SEBI InvT Regulstions

Digital Fibre Infrastructure Trust
India Inf Trust {till 11,2023)

IV Transactions during the pariod/ yrar with related parties :

Cammon Sponsar

Cammon Investment Manager

{Rs. in Million)

Half yuas andad | Malf year endad | Half year anded |  Year ended Year ended
Particulars Relationship March 31, 2024 | Segtember 30, | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
2023

Trustes Fras
Auis Trustee Services Umited Trustee 1 1 1 2 2
Investment Managumant Fees
BIP india Infra Projects Management Services Privite Limited Investment Manager 9 o 9 .

kfield India Inf ager Private Limited Erstwhile Investment 5 14 14 19 28

Manager
Relmbursement of Expanses
BIP kndla Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited Investment Manager 114 - - 14
Brookfleld Indla Infrastructure Manager Private Limited Erstwhile Investment 2 2 3 4 6
Manager
Project Manager Fees
Ko Infrastructure Management Services Limited Project Manager 12 12 12 29 24
(son)

Leans Given
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limlted {refer note HA{2a}) Subsidiary [5PV) - 8,800 - 8,300 -
Crest Digitel Private Limited [refer note HA{2b]) Subsidiary (Hoid Co) 708 - . 705 -
Roam Digitel infrastructure Private Limited {refer note MA{1}) Subsidiary (SP¥) 20 - - 20 -
Loans Repald
Crest Digitel Private LUimited (refer aote IA{2b}} Subsidiary (Hold Co) 135 - - 135
Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited (refer note 11A{1}} Subsidiary {SP¥} 18 . - 18 -
Interest Income
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary {SPV} 20,653 20,782 20,354 41,435 40,600
Crest Digitel Private Limited Subsidiary (Hold Co} 20 - - 20 -
Roam Digltel Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiary [SPV) 1 . - 1
Investment In:
Roam Digitel In{rastructure Private Uimited Subsidiary (SPV) . ] - L] -
Dividend fncome
Crest Digitel Private Limited Subsidlary (Hold Co) - . 50 - 50
Rent Expansa
Summit Digite! Infrastrycture Limited Subtidiary (SPV) 1 [} 0 1 [}
Distribution to Unithelders
BIF IV Jarvis India P1e. Ltd. Co-Sponsor 14,117 20,602 13,870 34,720 26,888
Axis Bank Limited Promaoter of Trustee 223 - - 223 o
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Not ndalone information for the qua. H year r gnded March 31, 2024
¥ Balances as at end of the year/ pariod: {Rs. in Million}
Particulars Relaticnship As at March 31, | As at September | As st March 31,
2024 30, 2023 2023
Unit Caplhtal of the Trumt
BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd. Co-Sponsor 152,018 195,448 229,227
Coniributlon to Corpus
Rellance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited Co-Sponsor 240 40 490
Investments
In Summit Digitel Infrastructure Umited Subsidiary {SPV) 1,150 2,150 2,150
- 2,150,000,000 Equity shares [Previous year: 2,150,000,000) of
Re. | each
Investmant In shares of Crest Digitel Private Limited Subsidiary (Hold Ca}
- in 3,710,000 Equity Shares {As at March 31, 2024 3,710,000 9,119 9,219 9,219
Equity Shares, As at March 31, 2023 : 3,710,000 Equity Shares) of
Rs, 10 each
- 1,792,270 {As ot March 31, 2024; Nil) 0% Cptionally Convertible| 3610
Redeemable Preference Shares (CCAPS)
- ingH ion Lo acquire Convertible . 3,610 3,610
Redeemable Praference Shares {"OCRPST)
In Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiary {3FV] [} [
- 100,000 Equity shares {Previous year : Nil) of Re. 1 each
Interait Recaivabla on loan ghean ;
Surmmit Digitel Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary {5PV] 25,154 26,161 30,605
Crest Digite] Private Umited Subsidiary (Hold Co) 4 .
foam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiary (SFV] ]
toans given
Summit Digite! Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary {SPV} 258,800 258,800 250,000
Crest Digitel Private Limited Subsidiary (Hold Co} 570 - .
Roam Digitel infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiary {SPV] 3 = .
Other Payables
Summit Dightel Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary {SPV} 1 1] 9
Brookfield India Infrasteucture Manager Private Limited Erstwhile Investment - 3 2
Manager
BIP Indla Inira Projects Management Services Private Limited {net| Investment Manager 4 - B
off advances)

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI Circulars No.OR/IMD/OF/114/2016 dated Octobar 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/OF/127/1016 dated November 19, 2016 Issued undar the SEBI inviT Regulations:

G. Standalone Staternent of Net Assets at Falr Value {Rs. In Million]
As at March 31, 2024 As st March 31, 2023
Particulars Book Value Falr Value* Book Value Falr Value*
A, Assets 299,680 333,107 295,612 348,312
B. Liabllities (a5 reflected in the balance sheet) 15,949 15,949 6,935 6,935
C. Nat Assets (A-B) 383,731 313,158 283,677 333,378
D. MHumber of units {In Milllon) 2,603 2,603 2,603 2,603
E. NAY(C/D) 109.00 124.15 110.50 130.34

“Total Assets Includes the Falr Value of tha assets attributable 1o the Trust as #t teporting date. Assets are valued as per valuation report isswed by independent valuer appointed under the

InviT Regulations and relied on by the Statutory Auditors.
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Notes to stand. In|

ion uarter, hat

ar and yesr ended March 31, 2024

Project wise breskup of falr value of assets us nt March 31, 2024:

. {Rs. in Millis)
Project March 31, 3024 March 31, 2023
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited 11,252 332,138
Crest Digiel Private Limited 16,630 14,147
Roam Digitel Private Limited® 1 .
Crest Vimual Network Private Limited® 3 =
Subtotal 338,936 35,285
Assets {In Trust) {refer Note S, 6, 7 and 8 except Interest accrued on Trust Loan) 171 28
Total Assets 139,107 346,213
* The Trust has acquired Roam Digitel Private Limited w.e.f. September D8, 2023
* COPL acquired Crest Virtual Network Private Limited w.e.f September 21, 2023,
Detailed Project wise besakup of fair valus of assets o3 8t March 31, 2024;

{fs. in Mitlon)
Particulars. SDIL (A} coPL (8] RDAPL (C} CVNPLID] e Trust {F) Total {E+F}
[E)={AsB+CoD)
A Enterprise Value {EV) as per 618,082 18,114 - 636,196 636,196
independent Ragistered Valuer's report
B, Net Debt {299,215} {1,679 - {300,894)} - {300,894
£, Net liabilitles not considered In valuation 3,311} - - - (3,311) - {3,311}
0. Cash and Bank Batance and Other assets of Trust 5,696 245 1 3 6,945 171 7.116
E. Net Assets {A+84C+0) 322,252 16,680 b § 3 338,935 171 339,107
Detailed Project wise breakup of fair value of assets a5 at March 31, 2023:
{Rs. in Milion)
Total of SPvs
Particulars SDIL (&) ChPL (B} 1CetAsh) Trust (D) Total {C+D)

A. Enterprise Value [EV] as per 622,932 15,415 638,347 638,347
Indepandent Registered Valuer's report
B. Net Debt [294,217) {3,158} {295,375 [195,375]
. Net llabilities not consldered in valuation §2.346)| {3504 {2,696) 2,696
D, Cash and Bank Balance and Other assets of Trust 5,169 240 6,009 8 8,037
£, Net Assets (A+DAL+D) 332,138 14,147 346,285 T 346,313

Sansithvity Analysls

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined bissed on reasonably possible changes of the discount rate, while helding all ather assumptions constant. The result of

sensitivity anatysis s given below:

Partleulars

Discount rate

a. Discount rata - 50 basis points MAV {Rs. Per unit}
b. Discoum rate - 50 basis points NAV impact {%)
&. Diseount rate + 50 basis points NAV [Rs. Per unit)
d. Dlscount rate + 50 basis points NAV impact [%)

Due to the use of discounted cath flaw method to determine the falr value of net assets, Uis consldered as Level 3 In the falr value i

value measurements®,

Standalons Statement of Total Raturn at Falr Valus

Ag 3t March 31,  As at March 3_1:

2024 2013
135.86 142.37
9.56% 9.20%
11298 11924
[8.69%) {8.55%)
hy a3 per the reg)

I of Ind A5 113 * Fair

{Rs. in Miltion)

Particulars

Vear ended

Year anded

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Total Comprehensive Income (As per Statement of Profit and Loss) 41,843 40,032
Add/iLess): Other changes In fair value {e.g. Property, Plant and Equipment) net recognized in Total Comprehenslve income =
Total Retum 41349 40,032

“0° represeats the amaunt below the denomination threshald.

For and on the behalf of the Board of Directar of

BIF India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited

Date: May 16, 2024
Placa: Mumbal

{acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data Infrastrusture Trust)
%

i

Inder Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 16, 1024
Place: California

Ghan’

Farah Irand
Compllance Officer

Date: May 16, 2024
Place; Mumbal

?




- Chartered A tants
DG'OItte On: Iﬁ;Zrna:ifJonuar: anter,
- Tower 3, 277-32” Floor,
HaSklnS & Seus LLP Senapati Bapat Marg,
Elphinstone Road {West)

Mumbai, 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON AUDIT OF ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AND REVIEW OF QUARTERLY AND HALF YEARLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BIP INDIA INFRA PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE
LIMITED

ACTING IN CAPACITY AS THE INVESTMENT MANAGER OF DATA INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS TOWER INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST)

Opinion and Conclusion

We have (a) audited the Annual Consolidated Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2024 and (b)
reviewed the Consolidated Financial Information for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024 {refer
‘Other Matters’ section below), which were subject to limited review by us, both included in the accompanying
“Statement of Consalidated Financial Information for the quarter, half year and financial year ended March 31,
2024" of DATA INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TOWER INFRASTUCTURE TRUST)
(“the Trust”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) consisting of the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss, explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures as required in SEBI Master Circular
Number SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 (“SEBI Circular”}, {“the Statement”), being
submitted by the Trust pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI {Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 and pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI Circular {“the
invIT Regulations”).

{a) Opinion on Annual Consolidated Financial Information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, Consolidated
Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2024:

i. includes the results of the following entities:

Sr. Particulars
No.

Parent

Data Infrastructure Trust

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27t - 32™ Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road {(West), Mumbai - 400
013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Sr. Particulars

No.
Subsidiaries

1 Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited {formerly known as Summit Digitel
Infrastructure Private Limited)

2 Crest Digitel Private Limited (formerly known as Space Teleinfra Private
Limited)

3 Roam Digitel Private limited (w.e.f. September 8, 2023)

4 Crest Virtual Network Private Limited {w.e.f. September 21, 2023)

ii. is presented in accordance with the InviT Regulations in the manner so required; and

iii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down
in the Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the
extent not inconsistent with the inviT Regulations, of the consolidated net profit (including other
comprehensive income), its net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, total returns at fair value
and net distributable cash flows for the year ended on that date and other financial information of
the Trust.

{b) Conclusion on Unaudited Consolidated Financial Information for the quarter and half year ended
March 31, 2024

With respect to the Consolidated Financial Information for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024,
based on our review conducted as stated in paragraph (b) of ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities’ section below,
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Financial Information for the quarter and
half year ended March 31, 2024, prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles
laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to
the extent not inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations, has not disclosed the information required to be
disclosed in terms of the InvIT Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it
contains any material misstatement.

Basis for Opinion on the Audited Consolidated Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2024

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl}. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
paragraph (a) of the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities’ section below. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 7 of the Statement, which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” to
comply with InviT Regulations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Statement

This Statement, which includes the Consolidated Financial Information, is the responsibility of the Board of
Directors of the Investment Manager (the “Board”) and has been approved by them for the issuance. The
Statement has been compiled from the related audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024, This responsibility includes the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial
Information for the year ended March 31, 2024 that give a true and fair view of the net profit (including other
comprehensive income), its net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, its total returns at fair value and its net
distributable cash flows for the year ended on that date and other financial information of the Group in
accordance with the requirements of the InvIT Regulations; recognition and measurement principles laid down
in Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1){a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent
with the InvIT Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Information that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial information by the Board of the Investment Manager, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Information, the respective Board of Directors of the Investment Manager
and Board of Directors of the subsidiaries of the Trust are responsible for assessing the ability of the Trust and
the subsidiaries to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and Board
of Directors of the subsidiaries either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and the subsidiaries included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditors’ Responsibilities
{a) Audit of the Annual Consolidated Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2024

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial information for the
year ended March 31, 2024 as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin the aggregate,
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they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
Consolidated Financial information.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Consolidated Financial Information,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Board.

. Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board in terms of the
requirements specified under the InvIT regulations.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Consolidated Financial Information,
including the disclosures, and whether the Annual Consolidated Financial Information represents the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Annual Consolidated Financial Information that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Annual
Consolidated Financial Information may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Annual Consolidated Financial Information.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Trust and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial information of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

(b) Review of the Consolidated Financial Information for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024

We conducted our review of the Consolidated Financial Information for the quarter and half year ended March
31, 2024 in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (“SRE”) 2410 on ‘Review of Interim Financial
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the ICAI. A review of interim financial
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Company’s personnel responsible for financial and
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope
than an audit conducted in accordance with SAs issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI)
and conseguently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Other Matters

e The Statement includes the information for the half year ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing
figure between audited figures in respect of the year ended March 31, 2024 and the published year to
date figures up to the half year ended September 30, 2023 which were subject to limited review by us.

Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter,

¢ The unaudited consolidated financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 are balancing figures
between the audited figures for the year ended March 31, 2023 and the unaudited / unreviewed figures
for the nine months December 31, 2022,

Qur report on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter.

e The unaudited consolidated financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 are balancing figures
between the audited figures in respect of the year ended March 31, 2024 and the published year to date
figures up to the nine months December 31, 2023 which were subject to limited review by us.

Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter.

s We did not audit the financial information of a subsidiary included in the consolidated financial results,
whose financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 3 million as at March 31, 2024 and total revenues
of Rs. Nil, Rs. Nil and Rs. Nil for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024 respectively, total
net {loss) after tax of Rs. O million, Rs. 0 million and Rs. 0 million for the quarter, half year and year ended
March 31, 2024 respectively and total comprehensive loss of Rs. 0 million, Rs. 0 million and Rs. 0 million
for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024 respectively and net cash inflows of Rs. 2 million
for the year ended March 31, 2024, as considered in the Statement. The financial information for the
year ended March 31, 2024 has been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion and conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditor
and the procedures performed by us as stated under Auditor's Responsibilities section above. The
financial information for quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024 is unaudited and have been
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furnished to us by the Management and our opinion and conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary is based solely on such
unaudited financial information for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024, In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the Board of Directors of Investment
Manager, this financial information is not material to the Group.

Our report on the Statement is not maodified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance
on the work done along with the report of the other auditor and reliance on the financial information
certified by the Board of the Directors of the Investment Manager.

e The consolidated financial results includes the unaudited financial information of a subsidiary, whose
financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 1 million as at March 31, 2024 and total revenues of R5. 0
million, Rs O million and Rs. O million for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024
respectively, total net loss after tax of Rs. 0 million, Rs. 0 million and Rs. 2 million for the quarter, half
year and year ended March 31, 2024 respectively and total comprehensive loss of Rs. 0 million, Rs. O
million and Rs. 2 million for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024 respectively and net
cash inflows of Rs. 1 million for the year ended March 31, 2024, as considered in the Statement. This
financial information is unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
and conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of this subsidiary is based solely on such unaudited financial information, In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager, this
financial information is not material to the Group.

Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance
on the financial information certified by the Board of the Directors of the Investment Manager.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

L

pi-

Mohammed Bengali

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No, 105828
Date: May 16, 2024 UDIN: 24105828BKF1116937



Data Infrastructure Trust
Principal place of Business: Unit 1, 97 Flsar, Tower 4, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg, Kurla (W), Mumbai 400070, Maharashtra, India.
Phene : 022 69075252; Emall: secretarlal@summitdigitel.com; Website: www.datainfratrust.com
{SEBI Registration Number: IN/InviT/18-19/0009)

1. Statement of C lidated flnanclal inf ton for the quarter, half year and financial year ended March 31, 2024
{Rs. in Million except per share data and ratios)
I Particulars Guarter ended Half year ended Year ended
March 31, December31, | March 31, March 31, September 30, March 31, Marth 31, | March 31,
PR 2024 2023 2023 2024 023 2023 2024 2023
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited
[refernote 1 | (vefer note 1} | (refernotel | {refer note 1) | (refer note 1) | (refer notel)
and 6 and 6}
INCOME AND GAINS
1 [Revenue from operations 34,509 34,099 27,136 68,608 60,167 53,565 128,775 110,998
2 [Interest [ncome 75 55 157 130 2,404 330 2,534 415
Gain on Sale of Mutval Fund {including 173 180 106 353 282 215 635 379
E net gain on fair valuation)
4 [Other income 1 1,552 23| 1,553 12 632 1,565 654
5 |Totalincome and gains [1+2+3+4) 34,758 35,886 27,422 70,644 62,865 54,742 133,509 111,446
6 |EXPENSES AND LOSSES
{a) |Investment Manager fees 1 7 7 14 14 14 28 28
[b} [Trustee fees 0 1 0 1 1 1 2 2
(c) |Project Manager fees 6 B 12 12 11 24 24
{d) [Audit fees 14 3 25 23 23 37 46 63
{e) |Network operating expenses 20,971 20,57 15,649 41,550 35,696 30,542 77,246 66,238
{f) |Employee benefits expense 33 M5 332 €81 654 (523J 1,335 1,156
(g} [Finance costs 6,31 6,333 4,190 12,649 12,352 9,628 25,001 20,811
{h} [valuation fee 2 J 1 2 1 1 3 1
{i} |Annual Listing fee 0 0 o 0 1 0 1 2
{i} |Rating fee 7 22 3 29 [ 25 35 38
(k) [Insurance and Security Fees 2 3 2 5 6 [ 11 13
(I} |Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,305 4,483 3,706 8,783 8,259 7,533 17,047 15,058
(m} |Legal and professional fees 190 473 71 663 103 130 766 Fik!
[n) |Other expenses 212 264 32 476 394 495 a7 851
Total expenses and losses 32,368 32,525 24,318] 64,893 57,522 49,051 122,415 104,518|
7 |Profit for the perlod / year before taxes 2,390 3,361 3,104 $,751 5,342 5,691 11,004 7,928
[5-6}
B |Tax Expenses
{a) [Current Tax 23 53)] 36 {25) k4 62 74 118
[b) [Related to earlier years %) - {7) {9) (14) {7} {23) i)
{c} |Deferred Tax (42 (42} 1141} (84} 165] 149} {149) 115
Total tax expenses (23) {95) (112) (118} 20 {94} (98) {39)
9 |Profit for the perlod / year after taxes (7| 2,413 3,456 3,216 5,869 5,323 5,785 11,192 7,967
9)

10 [Other comprehensive income

(a) [items which wlll not be reclassifled to
statement of profit and loss

Remeasurements of the net defined (0) o) 2 (o o) 2 (o) 1
benefit plans
Income tax relating to items that will not 0 - 0 o - - o
be reclassified to Statement of Profit and
{b) [items that wilt be reclassified to
statement of profit and loss

Cost of hedging :
Changes in the fair value during the [369) 328 {104} {41) (433) {144} {474} 1375}
period f year in relation to time-period /
forward elements related hedged items

Cash flow hedges: =
Fair value [loss)/ gain arising on hedging| [46) 15 (36} (31) {55 {11} {86) 160
instrument during the period / year

Income tax relating to Items that will be = - - - - . E
classified to Statement of Profit and Loss
11 |Other comprehensive (foss} / income for {a15) 343 nse) (72| (288} {153) (560)] (21a)]
the perlod / year
12 [Total comprehensive income for the 1,998 3,799 3,078 5797 4,835 5,632 10,632 7,753
period / year {9-11)
Attributable Io_ﬂholders ﬁ”s 3,799 3,078 5,797 4,835 5,632

1
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Infrastructure Trust

Principal place of Business: Unit 1, 5™ Floor, Tower 4, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg, Kurla (W}, Mumbai 400070, Maharashtra, India.
Phone ; 022 69075252; Email; secretarial@summitdigitel.com; Website: www.datainfratrust.com
{SEBI Registration Number: IN/inviT/18-19/0009)

1. Statement of Consolidated financlal information for the quarter, halif year and financial year ended March 31, 2024
{Rs. in Million except per share data and ratios)

Particulars Quarter ended Half year ended Year ended
March 31, December 31, March 31, March 31, September 30, March 31, March 31, | March 31,
2024 2023 2023 2024 2023 2023 2024 2023
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited
{refer note 1 | {refer note 1) | (refernote 1 | {refernote 1) | {refernote 1] | [refer note 1)
ands) and 5}
14 | Eamnings per unit
Baslc [In Rupees} 0.93 1.33 1.24 2.25 2.04 2.22 4,30 3.06
- Diluted {in Rupees) 0.93 1.33 1.24 2.25 2.04 2.22 4.30 3.06)
15 |Unit Capital 261,017 251,152 261,152 261,017 261,152 261,152 261,017 261,152
16 |Other Equity {127.560) {117,581) {91,533) {127,560} (111,879) {91,533} (127,560) {91,533)
17 |Nat Worth {refer note 16) 135,404 145,103 171,006 135,404 151,147 171,006 135,404 171,006
18 |Pald up Debt Capital {refer note 15[a)) 313,667 309,839 196,441 313,667 308,511 296,441 313,667 296,441
Debenture Redemption Reserve {refer = 4 - .
19
note 13)
20 |Debt Equity Ratio [refer note 15(a)} 2.32] 2.15 1.73 2.32 2.05 1.73 232 175
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) 2,13 2.25 274 2.16) 2.10 2.39 213 210
= {refer note 15{b))
Interest Service Coverage Ratio (ISCR} 213 2.24 2.63] 2.15 210 237 213 2.10
2 {refer note 15(c)}
23 | Current ratio {refer note 15(d)) 0.50 0.56 0.51 0.50 0.61 0.51 0.50 0.51
e Long term deht to working capital {refer o - S - . .
note 15(e)) =
25 Bad debts to account receivable ratio o - - o -
{refer note 15(f}) -
45 | Current lability ratio [refer note 15{g}} 012 0.12 0.10 0.12 013 0.10 0.12 0.10
Total debts to total assets {refer note 063 0.61 0.58 0.63 0.60 0,58 0.63 0.58
27
15(h})
1 Debtars turnover {In times} (refer note a7 34 3 63 a1 45 92 g4}
15(ik}
29 | Inventory turmover NA/ NA NA NA NA/ NA NA NA|
30 | Operating margin {%] {refer note 15(j}} 39% 40% 42% 39% 41%) 43% 40% 40%
31 | Net profit margin (%) (refer note 15(k}} 7% 10% 1% % 9% 11% 9% i1
32 | Asset Coverage {refer note 15(1)) 151 1,54 1.65 1.51 1,56 1.65 151 165




Data Infrastructure Trust

Consolidated statement of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024

Principal place of Business: Unit 1, 9th Floor, Tower 4, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg, Kurla {W), Mumbai 400070,
Phone ; 022 69075252; Email: secretarial@summitdigitel.com; Website: www.datainfratrust.com
(SEBI Registration Number: IN/InvIT/18-19/0009})

{Rs. in Million)
|Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{Audited) (Audited)
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 442,796 407,069
Right of use assets 1,665 1,173
Capital work in progress 517 439
Goodwill on acquisition 7,990 7,990
Other Intangible assets 4,293 4,833
Intangible assets under development 0 5
Financial assets:
Other financial assets 8,105 7,114
|Deferred tax asset 15 1
Other non-current assets 10,134 67,007
Total non-current assets 475,515 495,681
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets:
Trade receivables 1,013 1,783
Cash and cash equivalents 6,458 5,760
Other bank balances 130 208
Other financial assets 11,065 5,713
Other current assets 2,404 4,167
Total current assets 21,070 17,631
Total assets 496,585 513,312
JEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Unit capital 261,017 261,152
Contribution 240 240
Other equity {127,560} (91,533)
Total equity 133,697 169,859
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 282,503 275,213
Lease liabilities 1,357 850
Other financial liabilities 20,211 17,575
Provisions 15,649 13,716
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 1,067 1,202
Other non current liabilities 226 422
Total non-current liabilities 321,013 308,978
Bu Wy




Data Infrastructure Trust
Principal place of Business: Unit 1, 9th Floor, Tower 4, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg, Kurla {W), Mumbai 400070,
Phane : 022 69075252; Email: secretarial @summitdigitel.com; Website: www.datainfratrust.com
(SEBI Registration Number: INfInviT/18-19/0009)
Consolidated statement of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024
{Rs. in Million}
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{Audited) {Audited)
Current liabilities
tFinancial liabilities
Short - term berrowings 29,541 20,162
Lease liabilities 266 216
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 26 1
small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 7,468 4,638
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 2,399 7,842
Other current liabilities 2,185 1,611
Current Tax liabilities 1 -
Provisions 9 5
Total Current iiabilities 41,875 34,475
Total liabilities 362,388 343,453
Total equity and liabilities 496,585 513,312
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Data Infrastructure Trust
Principal place of Business: Unit 1, 9th Floor, Tower 4, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg, Kurla (W), Mumbai 400070, Maharashtra, India.
Phene : 022 69075252; Email: secretarial@summitdigitel.com; Website: www.datainfratrust.com
(SEBI Registration Number: IN/InvIT/18-19/0009)

Consolidated statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. in Million}

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{Audited) {Audited)
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 11,094 7.928
Adjusted for:
Fair value loss on financial instruments 443 525
Gain on settlement of contingent consideration {refer note: 5{b}} {1,561} -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17,047 15,058
Gain on sale of mutual funds {(including net gain on fair valuation) - {16)
Gain on buyback of senior secured notes - {590)
Interestincome on fixed deposits and security deposits (232) {318)
Interest Income on capital advance (2,275) (69}
Ineffectiveness on derivative contracts designated as cashflow hedge 2 (9
Provision for doubtful debts 2 5
Liabilities / Provision no longer required written back - {32)
Exchange loss (attributable to finance cost) 571 3,087
Modification of derivative contracts - 7
Lass on sale of assets 10 16
Finance costs 24,424 17,727
Operating profit before working capital changes 49,525 43,319
Adjusted for :
Trade receivables, other financial assets and other assets 4,400 213
Trade payables, other financial liabilities and other liabilties 4,844 {20)f
9,244 193
Cash generated from operating activities 58,769 43,512
Income taxes (paid] / refund (net) (452) 52
Net Cash flow genarated from operations [A) 58,317 43,564

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Contingent Consideration paid for acquisition of subsidiary {refer note 5b} (2,401)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work in (3,025) (71,617)
progress, capital advance and intangible assets under development)}
Sale of investments - 1,368
nvestments in bank deposits {53) (6)
Interest received 2,535 287 |
Net Cash flow used in Investing activities (B) {2,944) (69.968)]
€ CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payment of lease liabilities (305) {165}
Proceeds from long term borrowIngs 37,632 136,844 I
Repayment of long term borrowings (22,266) (63,087)
Proceeds from short term borrowings - 2,250
Repayment of short term borrowings - (2,250)
Finance costs paid {22,936) {17,073)
Payment of distribution to unitholders - Return on Capital [46,660) {30,568)
Payment of distribution to unitholders - Return of Capital (135}
Provision for unit Issuance costs written back - 13
Net Cash flow (usedin) / generated from financing activities [C) {54,670} 25,964
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C] 703 {aa0})|
Qpening halance of cash and cash equivalents 5,754 6,180
Add: Effect of unrealised fair value gain on mutual funds 1 14
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,458 5,754
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Data Infrastructure Trust [formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Information for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024

The consolidated financial information of Data Infrastructure Trust {"Data InviT/ Trust") and its subsidiaries (a) Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited
{formerly known as Summit Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited)("SDIL*), (b} Crest Digitel Private Limited {formerly known as Space Teleinfra Private
Limited ("CDPL"}, (¢} Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited ("RDIPL") and {d] Crest Virtual Network Private limited (formerly known as Kinetit Road
Assets Private Limited) ("CYNPL") {collectively, the Group) has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles prescribed
under Indian Accounting Standard ("Ind AS"} as defined in SEBI {infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014, as amended and the tirculars issued
thereunder ("SEBI InvIT Regulations™), and read with Regulation 23 of the SEBI InvIT Regulations, as amended from time to time read with SEBI Master
Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 {"SEBI Circular”) and Regulation 52 of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Regulation 52"}, Chapter | of SEBI Circular bearing reference SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS_Divl/P/CIR/2022/0000000103 dated
July 29, 2022, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI InviT Regulations [refer
note 7 below on presentation of "Unit Capital” as "Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation). The
above financial information has been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager of the Trust, at
their meetings held on May 16, 2024 respectively. The financial information for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2024 and half year ended
September 30, 2023 have been subjected to a limited review and financial information for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been subjected to audit by
the auditors of the Trust,

Data InvIT is registered as a contributory irrevocable trust set up under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on January 31, 2019 and registered as an infrastructure
investment trust under the SEBI lovIT Regulations on March 19, 2019 having registration number IN/InvIT/18-19/0009. Units of the Trust have been listed
on BSE Limited on September 1, 2020. Pursuant to the approval granted by SEBI and upon issuance of fresh Certificate of Registration, the name of the
Trust has changed from 'Tower Infrastructure Trust' to 'Data Infrastructure Trust’ w.e.f. Oclober 08, 2021.

Sponsors of the Trust are BIF 1V Jarvis India Pte. Ltd,, a company registered in Singapore and Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in India. Pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 22(7} of the SEBI InvIT Regulations and receipt of approval from at feast 75% of
the unit holders by value {excluding the value of units held by parties related 10 the transaction), Project Holdings Nine {DIFC) Limited has been inducted as
aSponsor to the Trust. Further, the Deed of Accession dated May 16, 2024 has been executed to induct the said company as a Sponsor to the Trust.

The Trustee to the Trust is Axis Trustee Services Limited ("Trustee").

W.e.f. December 12, 2023, BIP India Infra Projects Management Servites Private Limited {"BIP India / Investrent Manager”) has been appointed as the
Investment Manager of the Trust basis the approval from SEBI vide letter dated December 11, 2023. Brookfield India infrastructure Manager Private
Limited {"BIMPL / erstwhile Investment Manager} had resigned as the Investment Manager of the Trust vide letter dated September 29, 2023 but
continued in its capacity till close of business hours on December 11, 2023,

As on March 31, 2024, the Trust has two directly held Special Purpose Vehicles {SPV) i.e. Summit Digitel Infrastrastructure Limited (formerly known as
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited}{"SDIL") and Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited {"RDIPL"}. The Trust has one Holding Company i.e.
Crest Digitel Private Limited {formerly known as Space Teleinfra Private Limited) {"CDPL / Hold Co™} with one SPV i.e. Crest Virtual Network Private Limited
{formerly known as Kinetic Road Assets Private Limited) {"CVNPL").

The Group is primarily engaged in setting up, operating and maintaining passive tower infrastructure and related assets and providing passive tower
infrastructure related services. Accordingly, Group has the single segment as per the requirements of ind AS 108 - Operating Segrments. All assets are
located in India and revenue of the Group s earmed in India hence, there is single geographic segment. Substantially alk of the revenues of the Group are
from a single customer

Investors can view the consolidated financial information of the Trust on the Trust's website (www.datainfratrust.com) or on the website of BSE Limited
{www.bseindia.com).

(a) On August 31, 2020, the Trust acquired balance 49% of the equity shares of SDIL from Reliance Industries Limited [“RIL") by entering into a Shareholder
and Dption Agreement ["SHOA™) {entered as part of the aforesaid acquisition by Trust}. As per the SHOA , RIL shall be entitled (but not obligated} to require
the Trust to sell to RIL (or RIL nominee, if applicable), the shares of SDIL at lower of Rs. 2,150 million or fair market value of shares. This call option liability
was recognised on the date of acquisition by Trust amounting to Rs. 2,020 million with a corresponding debit to Retained earnings. The estimated fair value
of written call option as at March 31, 2024 is Rs, 3,397 miflion [as at December 31, 2023: Rs. 3,285 million, as at Seplember 30, 2023: Rs. 3,171 million, as at
March 31, 2023: Rs_ 2,954 million).

{b} Summary of acquisition

On March 10, 2022, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares in CDPL, a company engaged in business of building, maintaining, leasing, renting and otherwise
dealing in infrastructure for telecom sector for total purchase price of Rs. 12,829 million. The Trust entered into a Share Purchase Agreement ("SPA")
providing the Trust the right to direct the refevant actiaties of CDPL, thereby providing the Trust with full control. Accordingly, effective March 10, 2022,
CDPL became Subsidiary (SPV) of the Trust

The aggregate carrying value of contingent consideration liability of Rs. 3,741 million and deferred working capital refunds of 5. 221 million was Rs. 3,962
million as at March 31, 2023 [as at September 30, 2023: Rs. 3,962 million) on account of the purchase price payable for the aforesaid acquisition. In
December 2023, the payable due to the sellers of CDPL was finalised at an amount of Rs. 2,401 million which was paid in January 2024. The settlement of
the contingent consideration has resulted in a gain of Rs. 1,561 million which has been disclosed as Other income.




Data Infrastructure Trust {formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Infarmation for the quanter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024

(c) On September B, 2023, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares of RDIPL for a total consideration of &s. 0.1 million Accordingly, RDIPL became Subsidiary
{SPV) of the Trust,

{d) On September 21, 2023, CDPL acquired 100% equity shares of CYNPL for a total consideration of Rs. 0.7 million. Accordingly, CVNPL has become a SPV of
the Trust and CDPL became a Hold Co.

o

Pursuant to the first-time applicability of Regulation 52 from the quarter ended September 30, 2023, the Trust is required to publish quarterly financial
results along with the relevant comparative periods.

The unaudited consolidated financial results for the half year ended March 31, 2024 are the balancing figures between audited figures for the year ended
March 31, 2024 and the unaudited figures for the half year ended September 30, 2023 which were subjected to limited review

The unaudited consolidated financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 are the balancing figures between audited figures for the year ended
March 31, 2024 and the unaudited figures for the nine months ended December 31, 2023 which were subjected to limited review.

The unaudited consokidated financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 are the balancing figures between audited figures for the year ended
March 31, 2023 and the unaudited / unreviewed figures for the nine months ended December 31, 2022,

At the meetings held on February 9, 2024, the consclidated financial results relating to the nine months ended December 31, 2022 has been approved by
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of Investment Manager of the Trust but have not been subjected to audit / limited review by the auditors.

~l

Under the provisions of the SEB{ InvIT Regulations, the Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable cash flows of
the Trust for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Trust to pay to its Unithelders cash
distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is 2 compound financial instrument which contains equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 -
Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEB) Master Circular issued under the SEBI invIT Regulations, the Unitholders’ funds have
been presented as "Equity” dealing with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements Consistent with Unit Capital
being classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity when the distributions are
approved by Data InvIT Committee (till December 11, 2023} and the Board of Birecters of the Investment Manager.

8 The Data InviT Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the erstwhile Investment Manager has made four distributions aggregating fis. 34,680
million during the period till December 11, 2023, as follows:

. Return on Capital Retu':n of Total Distribution Date of payment to
Date of Declaration Capital
{per Unit) i | (per Unit) unitholders
May 19, 2023 2.209 = 2.209 May 30 and 31, 2023
August 21, 2023 3.6227 - 3.6227 August 31, 2023
September 8, 2023 3.8417 - 3.8417 September 20, 2023
November 20, 2023 3.6496 o 3.6496 December 01, 2023
The Board of Directors of BIP India has made two distributions aggregating Rs. 12,115 million during the peried post December 12, 2023 to March 31, 2024
as follows:
Date of Declaration Return on Capital R::;:‘: Total Dlslrll?ution Date of payment to
{per Unit) il {per Unit) unitholders
February 9, 2024 4.2182 & 4.2182 February 22, 2024
March 5, 2024 0.3842 0.051% 0.4361 March 18, 2024

9 The details of outstanding Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures {"NCDs"} issued by SDILis mentioned below:

Sr. No. Date of allotment  |Date of listing No. of NCDs|Face value of NCDs|Tetal Amount Interest rate and
issued {per NCD) (in Rs.)  |amount outstanding as|frequency of interest
issued (Rs. injon March 31,|payment
million) 2024 ({Rs. in
million)
1 January 30, 2024 February 01, 2024 65,000 1,600,000 6,500 6,500 |8.06% p.a
Quarterly
2 November 01, 2023 |November 02, 2023 52,500 1,00,000 5,250 5,250 [8.19% p.a.
Quarterly
3 November 02, 2022 |November 04, 2022 12,000 10,00,000 12,000 12,000 |8.44% p.a.
Quarterly
4 May 31, 2022 June 02, 2022 10,000 10,00,000 10,000 10,000 |8.05% p.a.
Quarterly
5 November 22, 2021 |Novermber 23, 2021 10,000 10,00,000 10,000 10,000 |7.62% p.a.
Quarterly
6 September 28, 2021 |Septernber 30, 2021 6,500 10,00,000 6,500 6,500 |7.40% p.a.
Quarterly
7 June 17, 2021 June 17, 2021 15,000 10,00,000 15,000 15,000 |6.59% p.a.
Quarterly

The security cover on the above mentioned NCDs exceeds 100 % of the principal and interest amount on the said NCDs.
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Data Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)
Nates to Consolidated Financial Information for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024

The above NCDs are inter alia secured by first ranking parl passu charge by way of hypothecation on the following assets:
{a} All movable Property, plant and equipments [present and future} of S01L;

{b) All current assets {present and future) of the SDIL; and

{c} AN rights of the borrower under the Material Documents.

10 The details of outstanding 8.40% Unsecured Rated Listed Redeemable Non Convertible Debenture with maturity date December 18, 2026 issued by the Trust
is mentioned below:

Sr. No. Date of Allotment  |Date of Listing No. of NCDs|Face Value of NCDs|Total Amount Interest rate and
issued issued (per NCD) (i ding as|frequency of interest
Rs.) issued (Rs. injon March 31,jpayment

million) 2024
(Rs. in million})
1 January 8, 2024 January 9, 2024 32,000 100,000 3,200 [ 3,200 |8.4% p.a., Quarterly

11 On August 30, 2023, CRISIL Ratings Limited assigned "CRISIL A1+" rating to the Commercial Paper issued by Trust. Further, on November 30, 2023, CRISIL
Ratings Limited assigned “CRISIL AAA; Stable” to the NCD issued by the Trust, re-affirmed Trust's corporate credit rating as "CRISIL AAA; Stable” and re-
affirmed "CRISIL A1+" to the Commercial Paper issued by Trust.

On December 08, 2023, CARE Ratings Limited re-affirmed Trust's issuer rating as "CARE AAA; Stable”.

In January, 2024, post announcement of acquisition of Indian Business of American Tower Corporation {ATC] {refer note I{F}), CRISIL Ratings Limited placed
the Corporate Credit Rating and NCD rating on Rating Watch with Developing implications “CRISIL AAA (RWD)” and CARE Ratings Limited placed the issuer
rating on Rating Watch with Developing Implications "CARE AAA (RWD)".

Further, on April 26, 7024, CRISIL Ratings Limited has re-affirmed NCD and Trust's corporate credit rating as “CRISIL AAA (RWD) and "CRISIL Al+” for the
Commerclal Paper issued by the Trust. CARE has also re-affirmed the Trust’s issuer rating as CARE AAA (RWD) on April 10, 2024.

12 The Group had outstanding 50,000,000 Cumulative, Participating, Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 500,000,000
as on April 1, 2020, With effect from August 21, 2020, the terims of the Cumulative, Participating, Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each
were amended to Redeemable, Non-Participating, Non-Cumulative, Non-Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The preference shares are
mandatorily redeemable at par for an amount equal to the aggregate par value at the end of 20 years from the date of issuance i.e. March 31, 2039,
Accordingly, the Preference Shares have been reclassified as a liability and have been recognised at the present value of redemption of Rs. 159 million as on
March 31, 2024 {As 147 million as on March 31, 2023).

13 Debenture Redemption Reserve {DRR) is not required to be created due to absence of profits available for payment of dividend. SDIL has accumulated losses
as at March 31, 2024.

14 Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2024, SDIL issued 60,000 NCD's in the denomination of Rs. 100,000 each aggregating Rs. 6,000 million. These NCD's
carry a coupon rate of 7.89% payable quarterly and are listed on Debt Segment of National 5tock Exchange of Indla Limited w.e.f. May 03, 2024, Further the
Board of Directors of BIP India has declared a distributlon {return on capital) of Rs. 2.3826 per unit on May 16, 2024.

15 Formula for computation of ratios are as follows :
{a) Debt-equity ratio:
Total Debt
Shareholder's Equity
{i} Total Debt/ Paid up Debt capital represents Non - current Borrowings, Short - term borrowings and lease liabilities.
(W} Equity Includes Equity Share Capital and Other Equity
{iil) In case the ratio is [ess than gero, it is shown as NIL.

(b} Debt service coverage ratio {DSCR):

Earning before Interest, Depreciation and Tax (Net Operating Income)
{Interest + Principal Repayment of Borrowings + Lease Payments)
{i} Principal repayments excludes repayments in nature of refinancing as these are not repaid out of the profits for the year,

{c) Interest service coverage ratlo (ISCR):
Earning before Interest, Depreciation and Tax {Net Operating Incoma)
Interest Expenses




Data Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Infermation for the quarter, hatf year and year ended March 31, 2024
{d} Current ratio

Current Assets
Current Liabilities

{e) Long term debt to working capital
Non Current bor
Working Capital

3

(i) Working Capital is calculated as Current Assets less Current Liabilities.
{ii} in case the ratio is less than zero, it is shown as NIL.

{f} Bad debts to account recelvable ratio
Bad debts
Trade Receivables

{I) The Group does not have Bad debts for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024.
{It) Bad debts excludes provision for doubtful debts.

(g} Current liabliity ratlo
Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

{h) Total debts to total assets
Total Debts
Total Assets
(i} Total Debt represents Non-Current Borrowings, Shert - term borrowings and lease liabilities.

{i} Debtors turnover {In times)
Revenue from operations
Average Trade receivables

{i) Average trade receivable is calculated as {Opening Trade receivable + Closing Trade Receivable) / 2

(i) Operating margin (%)
Operating Margin
Revenue from operations

Operating margin is calculated as Revenue from operations less Network gperating expenses, Investment Manager Fees, Trustee Fees and Project

[k} Net profit margin (%)
Net Profit after tax
Revenue from operations

{I} Asset Coverage Ratio
Total Assets- Intangible Assets - Current liabilities - Short term borrowings
Total Debt
Ratios for the previous periods/ year have been aligned with the formula defined in the current quarter.

16 Net Worth: Total Equity excluding other comprehensive income.




Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes to Consalldated Financlal Information for the half year and financial year ended March 31, 2024

1. Additional Disclosures as required by Clause 4.6 of Chapter 4, Section A of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115:
A. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs] of Summit Digitel Infrasteucture Limited {*SDIL")

{Rs. in Million)

Half year Year Year ended
Description Half year ended ended Half year ended | ended March 31,
March 31, 2024| September 30, | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023
2023 2024
{Unsudited) | {Unaudited) (Unaudited) | (Audited) | {Audited)
Loss after tax as per profit and loss account {standalone) {A) (15,197) {15,180) {14,225)] {30,377) (31,909)
Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per profit and loss account. In case of impairment 8,204 7,747 7,195 15951 14,161
reversal, same needs to be deducted from profit and loss.
Add: Interest on loan to the PV from the Trust as per the profit and loss account 20,653 20,782 20,353 41,435 40,600
Add [ less: Loss [ galn on sale of Infrastructure assets - - - - -
Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the - - - - -
following:
¢ related debts settfed or due to be settled from sale proceeds; - - - - E
« directly attributable transaction costs; - - - -
* proceeds reinvested or pl d to be rei d as per Regulation 18{7)(a) of the SEBI InvIT - . - -
Regulations
Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed - - - - -
pursuant to an earller plan to re-Invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be Invested
subsequently, net of any profit / {loss) recognised in profit and loss account
Less: Capital expenditure, if any (1,046 (1,011) (63,074) (2,057} (70,646}
Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any {13) {20) 408 33} 1,351
Add [ less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income chasged / credited to profit - - - - -
and loss account, including but not limited to
+ any decreasefincrease in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss {2) 1 {2} {1) {14)
account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value;
* provisions; . - - -
= deferred taxes; 8 = - . .
« any other non-cash item, lease rents recognised on a straight-line basis, etc, {21) 592 {301} 74 | 2,41
Add [ less: Working capital changes 5,773 4,653 1,936 10,426 1,592
Add / less: Provisions made in earlier period and expensed In the current period - - - - -
Less: Any cash paid to the lease awners not accounted for in the working capital changes or the {38) (35) (30) {73) {54)
profit and loss account
Add: Additional borrowings {including debentures / other securities} (external as well as 11,751 21,925 89,604 33,676 138,173
jborrowings from Trust)
Less: Repayment of external debt {principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, ete. {11,794} (10,212) {26,739)| {22,006) (65,239}
[Exciuding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with reserve requirements {including but
not limited to DSRA) under loan agreements.
Less: Cash reserved to make due payments to secured lenders and any other transferrable
debentures issued by SDIL
Add / less: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of preference shares / redemption of any - - - - -
{preference shares
Add: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of equity shares - - - - -
Add/ less: Amounts added or retained to make the distributable cash flows in accordance with 1,261 {1,720) {45%9)
the Transaction Documents or the loan agreements
Total Adjustments {8} 34,728 42,702 29,352 77,430 62,398
Net Distributable Cash Flows [C) = [A+B)** 19,531 27,522 15,127 47,053 30,488

** The difference between 5PV NOCF and the cash flaws/ Proceeds received by Trust from SPV is primarily on account of utilisation of opening funds at the 5PV level.

B




Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes to Consolidated Financial Information for the half year and financial year ended March 31, 2024

B. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of Crest Digitel Private Limited (w.e.f. March 10, 2022} {("CDPL")

{Rs. in Million)
Half year Half year Year Year ended
Description ended March ended Half year ended| ended March 31,
31, 2024 September 30, | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023
2023 2024
{Unaudited) | {Unaudited) {Unaudited) | (Audited) | {Audited)

Loss after tax as per profit and loss account (standalone) (A) {136) 259 193 123 276
Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per profit and loss account. in case of impairment 314 244 91 558 365
reversal, same needs to be deducted from profit and loss.
Add: Interest on loan to the SPV / HoldCo from the Trust as per the profit and loss account 20 - - 20 -
Add / less: Loss / gain on sale of infrastructure assets - - - - -
Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the - - - - -
following:
« related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; - s - 5 .
= directly attributable transaction costs, - - B .
« proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the SEBI InviT - - - - -
Regulations
Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed - - - - -
pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested
subsequently, net of any profit / {loss) recognised in profit and loss account
Less: Capital expenditure, if any (482) {4BB) (529} [968) {980}
Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment cbjective, if any 7 38 71 45 (5)
Add / less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income charged / credited to profit - - - - -
and loss account, including but not lirited to
+ any decreasefincrease in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss - - - - -
account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value;
* provisions; - - - - -
» deferred taxes; (17} 3 - (14) {3)
« any other non-cash item, lease rents recognised on a straight-line basis, etc. - - - - -
Add / less: Working capital changes {413) {178) {158) {591) [464)
Add / less: Provisions made in earlier period and expensed in the current period - - - - -
Less: Any cash paid to the lease owners not accounted for in the working capital changes or the {137 [95) 10 (232) {111)
profit and loss account
Add: Additional borrowings (including debentures / other securities) (external as well as 1,124 360 194 1,484 921
borrowings from Trust)
Less: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc. {156) {104) (48) {260) (96)
{Excluding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with reserve requirements {including but
not limited to DSRA) under loan agreements.
Less: Cash reserved to make due payments to secured lenders and any other transferrable - - - - -
debentures issued by COPL
Add / less: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of preference shares / redemption of any - e e B
preference shares
Add: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of equity shares - - - - -
Add/ less: Amounts added or retained to make the distributable cash flows in accordance with - - - -
the Transaction Documents or the loan agreements
Total Adjustments (B} 260 (218} (369) a2 (371)
Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B)* 124 41 {176) 165 {96)

Note - CDPL was acquired on March 10, 2022, Hence related distribution has been done within 1 year of the acquisiton.
* The difference between SPV NDCF and the cash flows/ Proceeds received by Trust from SPV is primarily on account of utilisation of opening funds at the SPV level.
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Data Infrastructure Trust
Notes to Consalidated Financlal Information for the half year and financlal year ended March 31, 1024

C. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows [NDCFs) of Roam Digitel infrastructure Private Limited {w.e.f. September 08, 2023) ("RDIPL")
{Rs. in Million)

Half year Year Year ended
Description Half year ended ended Half yearended | ended March 31
March 31, 2024 | September 30, | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023 ’
2023 2024
{Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited) | (Audited) | {Audited}
Loss after tax as per profit and Joss account {standalone} (A) 12) - - 12) .
Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per profit and loss account. In case of impairment - - - -
reversal, same needs to be deducted from profit and loss,
Add: Interest on loan ta the SPV fram the Trust as per the profit and loss account 1 . - 1
Add / less: Loss f gain on sale of infrastructure assets - - - -
Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the - . - -
following:
» related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; . - - - -
« directly attributable transaction costs; - - B -

» proceeds reinvested or planned to be relnvested as per Regulation 18(7)([a) of the SEBI InvIT - - - - -
Regulations
Add: Net proceeds [after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed - - - - =
pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested
subsequently, net of any profit / (loss) recognised in profit and loss account

Less: Capital expenditure, if any - - - - -
Less: Investments made in accordante with the investment abjective, if any - . - B -
Add / less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income charged / credited to profit - . - -
and loss account, including but not limited to
« any decrease/increase In carrying amount of an asset or a liabllity recognised in profit and loss - -
account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value;
* provisions; . - - -
= deferred taxes; - - -
» any other non-cash item, lease rents recognised on a straight-line basis, etc. - - - - .
Add / less: Working capital changes 0 - 0
Add / less: Provisions made in earlier period and expensed in the current period - . - - -
Less: Any cash paid to the lease owners not accounted for in the working capitat changes or the - - -
profit and loss account
Add: Additional borrowings {including debentures / other securities) {external as well as 20 - 20
borrowings from Trust)
Less: Repayment of external debt {principal} / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc. . . - - -
{Excluding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with reserve requirements {including but
not limited to DSRA} under loan agreements.

Less: Cash reserved to make due payments to secured lenders and any other transferrable o = = - .
debentures issued by COPL
Add / less: Praceeds from any fresh issuance of preference shares / redemption of any - - " -
preference shares
Add: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of equity shares - - B - -
Add/ less: Amounts added or retained to make the distributable cash flows in accordance with - - - E
the Transaction Documents or the loan agreements
Total Adjustments {B) 21 - E 21 -
Net Distributable Cash Flows (C] = {A+B)* 19 - - 19 -

Note - RDIPL |s yet to start commercial operations.




Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Information for the half year and flnancial year ended March 31, 2024

0. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows [NDCFs) of Crest Virtual Network Private Limited {(w.e.f. September 21, 2023) {"CVNPL")
{R&. in Million)

Half year Year

Half year ended ended Half year ended| ended Year ended

Description Masch 31, 2024| September 30, | Mareh 31, 2023 | Mareh 31, M';;L”'
2023 2024
(Unaudited) { (Unaudited) {Unaudited) | (Audited] | (Audited]
Loss after tax as per profit and loss account {standalone) {A) (1) (o) - (1 5
Add: Depreciation and amartisation as per profit and loss account. In case of impairment - - - - -

reversal, same needs to be deducted fram profit and loss.
Add: Interest on loan to the SPV from the Trust as per the profit and loss account o e - . E

Add [ less: Loss / gain on sale of infrastructure assets - 5 = = %
Add: Net proceeds [after applicable 1axes) from sale of Infrastructure assets adjusted for the - -

following:

= related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceads; s & g

« directly attributable transaction costs; S - . =

» proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7){a) of the SEB! InvIT - - - - -
Regulations
Add: Net proceeds lafter applicable taxes) from sale of Infrastructure assets not distributed - -
pursuant ta an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested
subsequently, net of any profit / (lass) recagnised in profit and loss account

Less: Capital expenditure, if any - - -
Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any - B - - -
Add [ less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income charged / credited vo profit . - -
and loss account, including but not limited to
* any decreasefincrease in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss - S B s E
account on measurement of the asset or the liability at falr value;
* provisians; - - -

 deferred taxes; . 5 3 =

= any other non-cash item, lease rents recognised on a straight-line basis, ete. - 5 . -

Add [ less: Working capital changes [1] 0 . ]

Add / less: Provisions made in earlier period and expensed in the current period - . - . 5

Less: Any cash paid to the lease owners not accounted for in the working capital changes or the - . - -
profit and loss account
Add: Additional borrowings {including debentures / other securities) {external as well as e S & i -
borrowlngs from Trust)
Less: Repayment of external debt {principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, ete. - - - - -
{Excluding refinancing} / net cash set aside to comply with reserve requirements (inciuding but
not limited to DSRA} under loan agreements.

Less: Cash reserved to make due payments to secured lenders and any other transferrable - - - - -
debentures issued by COPL

Add / less: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of preference shares / redemption of any . - S . 5
preference shares
Add: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of equity shares 3 - 5 3

Add/ less: Amounts added or retained to make the distributabie cash flows In accordance with - - - -
the Transaction Documents or the lpan agreements
Total Adjustments {B) 3 1} - 3 -
Net Distributable Cash Flows (C} = {A+B}* 2 0) - 2 -

Note - There is no operating income in CYNPL for the turrent period. CYNPL was acquired on September 21, 2023. Hence related distribution will be done within 1 year of the
acqulsiton.




Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Information for the half year and financial year ended March 31, 2024

E. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs} of Data Infrastructure Trust®

{Rs. In Million)

Description

Half year ended
March 31, 2024

Half year
ended
September 30,
2023

Half year ended
March 31, 2023

Year
ended
March 31,
2024

Year ended
March 31,
2023

{Unaudited}

{Unaudited)

{Unaudited)

{Audited)

(Audited}

Cash flows received from SPV /HoldCo in the form of interest / accrued interest

Cash flows received from SPV /HoldCo in the form of dividend / buy-back of equity shares /
capltal reduction of equity shares

Any other income accruing at the Trust level and not captured above, including but not limited to
interest freturn on surplus cash invested by the Frust

Add: Cash flows/ Proceeds from the SPV / HoldCo towards the repayment of the debt issued to
the SPV by the Trust (refer note 3 and 2}

21,677

153

25,227

16,224
50

23

46,904

153

30,557
50

23

Total cash flow at the Trust level (A)

21,833

25,228

16,298

47,061

30,630

Less: issue expenses payable by Trust including as reimbursements towards expenses of Trust
met by the Sponsors

Less: annual expanses of the Trust including audit fees, project manager fees, investment
imanagement fees, stock exchange fees, other statutory fees, depository fees, legal
credit rating fees and valuer fees

Less: income tax (if applicable) at the standalone Trust level and payment of other statutory dues

Less: Repayment of external debt (including interest) / redeemable preference shares /
debentures, etc., if deemed necessary by the investment Manager

Less: net cash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement under loan agreements, If any

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the
following:

- related debts settled or due to be settled fram sale proceeds;

- directly attributable transaction costs;

- proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18{7){a} of the SEBI InvIT
Regulations

Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed
pursuant 1o an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not Intended to be invested
subsequently

Less: Amount invested in any of the Portfolio Assets for service of debt or interest

Less: Capital expenditure if any [Including acquisition of ather infrastructure assets f SPys f
HoldCo) [refer note 1)

Add: Proceeds from fresh issuance of units

Less: Reserve for debentures f loans / capex expenditure in the intervening period till next
proposed distribution if deemed necessary by the Investment Manager invested in permitted
Investments

{201)

(1

{20)

{73)

(a4)

{10)

{274)

(1

(20)

{105}

(10)

Total cash {outflows}/ retentlon at the Trust level (B)

(222))

(73}

54

Net Distributable Cash Flows H = {A+B)*

21,611 |

25,155

16,243

295)

{115}

46,766] 30,515




Data infrastructure Trust

Notes to Cansalidated Financial information for the half year and financial year ended March 31, 2024

1}During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust has given unsecured loan of Rs. 20 million to SPV (RDIPL} for its operations . Out of this, SPV has repaid Rs. 18 million
during the year,

2} Additional infermation in respect of inflow / outflow of funds not included in the table above:
a During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust has raised money through issue of listed Commercial Papers carrying face value of Rs. 9,500 million with an issue price
aggregating Rs. 8,800 million, Further, the Trust has utilised these proceeds by giving an unsecured loan to its SPV {SDIL) amounting to Rs. 8,800 million in order to enable the

SPV to pay the outstanding interest on existing loan given by the Trust to the SPV.

b. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust Issued 32,000 lsted unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs, 100,000 each amounting to Rs. 3,200
million. The Trust has vtilised the proceeds of the NCD as follows:

|Particulars Amount {Rs. in Miltion)

Payment of contingent cansideration for acquisition of COPL {Hold Co) [refer note 20{i)) 2,401
Unsecured loan given to COPL {Hold Co)" 705
Fixed Deposits placed (marked as lien for Interest Servicing as per borrowing agreement) 68
Transaction expenses of the issue and general corporate purpose 26
Total 3,200

# Out of the loan given to CDPL, Rs, 135 million was repaid during the year.

* The current statement of NDCF has been prepared in accordance with the format provided in Paragraph F of Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master Circular No, SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/R{CIR/2023/115 for Infrastructure Investment Trusts dated July 06, 2023. A new format for NDCF has been provided by SEBI wia circular : SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-
PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 which will be effective from April 01, 2024,

{Rs. in Million)

Half year
ended Year Year ended
Description Half year ended| September 30, | Half year ended| ended March 31
March 31,2024| 2023 (Refer | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023 ’
note (a) 2024
belaw)
Net Distributable Cash Flows as per above 21,611 25,155 16,243 46,766 30,515
Opening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 581 28 36 28 253
Total Net Distributable Cash Flows 22,192 25,183 16,279 46,794 30,768




Data Infi Trust |f 1y known a3 Tower Infrastructure Trust)

Notes to € lidated Fli 121 Inf lon for the quartes, half year and year ended March 31, 2023

The Nat Distributable Cash Flows [NDCFs) as above s distributed as follows in the respectiva manner:
{Rs. tn Million)

Date of distribution payment Raturm on Capital | Return of Capital (B) [Total Distribution
() [A+B)

May 30, 2023 and May 31, 2023 5,750 - 5,750

August 31, 2023 9,430 - 9,430

September 20, 2023 10,000 - 10,000

December 01, 2023 2.500 - 9,500

February 22, 2014 10,980 . 10,980

March 18, 2024 1,000 135 1,135

Total 46,660 135 46,795

D. Fees payable o | M and Project

L. Pursuant to Investment Management Agreement, the i ger is entitled 10 an Investment Management fee of Rs 24 million per annum exclusive of GST. Ir i ger is also
entitled to reimbursement of any cost incurred in relation to activity pertaining to Trust such as admi ion of Trust, i of staff, di , transaction expenses incurred with respect to
investing, monitaring and disposing off the Investment of the Trust.

H, P 10 Project Manag: Agr the Project for SDIL is entitled to a project management fee of Rs. 20 million per annum exclusive of GST.

1. Pursuant to Project Managi Agi the Project M far CDPLIs entitled to a project management fee ol Rs. 0.2 million per annum exclusive of GST.

V. Pursuant to Project Manag; Ag) the Project Manager for RDIPL is entitled to a project management fee of Rs. 0.1 million per annum exclusive of GST. However in the current year, since
there is no operation, RDIPL has a waiver on such fees.

V. Pursyant to Project gernent Agr t, the Project M. for CVNPL Is entitled to a project management fee of Rs. 0.5 million per annum exclusive of GST, Howeaver In the current year, since
there ls no operation, CYNPL has a walver on such lees.

E. Statement of Esrnings per unit

Particulars Half year ended Half year ended Half year ended Year ended Year ended March

March 31, 2024 | September 30, 2023 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2024 31,2023

Profit after tax for the period / year (Rs. in Million) 5,869 5,323 5,785 11,192 7,967

Welighted average number of units outstanding for 2,603 2,601 2,603 2,603 2,603

computation of basic and diluted earnings per unit (No. in

Million)

Earnings per unit in Rs (Basic and Diluted) 2,25 .04 2.22 4.30 3.06
|Particulars Quarter ended Quarter ended Guarter ended

March 31,2024 | December 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023

Prafit after tax for the peried / year {Rs. in Million) 2,413 3,456 3,216

'Weighted average number of units outstanding for 2,603 1,603 2,603

Earnings per unit in R [Basic and Dlluted) 0.93 1.33 1.24

F. Contingent Liabilities:
{I) In respect of March 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023, refer note § for contingent consideration In relation 1o acquisition of COPL. There are no contingent llabilivies as at March 31, 2024,
{ii) Other Contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2024 is Rs, 7,526 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 6,078 million ; September 30, 2023: Rs. 6,174 million).

Mote: During the previous year, the Group received demand orders for financial year 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 of Rs. 1,057 million and Rs. 1,073 million respectively from Bihar 557 Authority
disallowing the input tax credits utilised by the Group. The Group had disputed the aforesaid disall e, Against the d d for the year 2019-2020, the Group had filed a writ petition before the
Patna High court and the same was dismissed in the current year, During the current year, the Group has filed Special Leave Petition {"SLP") before Supreme court. Against the demand for the year
financlal year 2020-2021, the Graup had filed an appeal before the Appellate avthority which was rejected In the current year. The Group wil fi'e appeal before second appellate authority cnce the same
is constituted.

During the current year, the Group has received demand order of Rs 616 million and 533 million for financial year 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 respectively from Bihar GST authoritles disallowing the input
tax credit utilised by the Group. The Group has filed appeal before first appeltate authority for beth the years on January 30, 2024 and January 27, 2024 respectively.

Further the Group has also recelved demand orders of Rs. 1,694 millien and Rs. 2,253 million for the flnanclal year 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 respectively fram Uttar Pradesh GST Authority disal'owing
the Input tax credit utilised by the Group. The Group has filed an appeal before the first Appeliate authority for both the years on August 11, 2023,

Ouring the current year, the Group has received order from Tamll Nadu GST authorities for financial year 2019-2020, 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 disaltowing the input tax credit utilised by the Group. The
total demand is Rs 288 mlllion. The company has filed an appeal before the first appellate authority on August 29, 2023,

The Group has reviewed the aforesaid orders ans does not foresee any provision required in this respect at this stage. The Group is indemnified by a party for thése demands except for Rs. 1,134 million
{previous year Rs 107 mlllion),

b) Municipal Tax;
The Group based on its assessment of the applicabllity and tenability of certain municipal taxes, which Is an industry wide phenomenon, dees not consider the impact of such levies to be material,

Further, [n the event these levles are confirmed by the respective authorities, the Group would recover these amounts from its customers In accordance with the termi of Mister Service Agreement.




Data Infrastructure Trust {formerly known as Towaer Infrastructure Trust)

Notes to G lidated Fl dal Inf for the g , half year and year ended March 31, 2024
6. Commitonants:
Particulars As at Asat As at
March 31, 2024 Septembar 30,2023  March 33, 2023
Estimated t of contracts g to be executed on Capital account not provided for {net of capital advance) 145 312 204
Other Commitments related to bank guarantee 370 35%6
Board of Directors of BIP Indla, acting in its capacity as Manager of Daia InvIT, at its meeting held on January 4, 2024 has approved the acquisition of 100% interest in American Tawer

Corporation’s Indiar tower business entity & ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited {"ATC India®} for an enterprise value of INR 165 billlon {~USD 2 billion) {subject to pre-closing terms). Trust has
signed a binding agreement on January 4, 2024 and the completion of the acquisition will be subject to approval of unitholders, various regulatory appravals and other pre closing terms (March 31, 2023
« Rs. Nil; September 30, 2023: Rs. NIL).

The Group's network operating expenses include repairs and maintenance far which the Group has entered into an operations and malntenance agreement for 30 years. Costs are recognised as services
are rendered by service provider.

H. STATEMENT OF RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

1 List of Related Partles as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures”
Ust of related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships =

) Name of Related Party

Entities which exercise control an the Trust

Braokfield Corparation {Formerly known as Brookfield Asiet Maragement I | Ultimate Parent

BIF IV Indla Holdings Pte. Lid, Intermediate Parent
BIf IV Jarvis India Pte Ltd., Singapoie Immediate Parent
Membaers of same group

Equinox Business Parks Private Limited

Pipeline infrastructure Limited

Kairas Propertiei Private Umited {formerly known as Vrih's Propertles Private Limited)
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

Sthlass Chennal Private Limited

Schloss Bangatore Private Limited

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Good Time Real Estate Development Private Limited
Kinetic Holding 1 Pre Limited

IFFL Flims Private Umited

Aerobode One Private Limited

Arliga Ecoworld Infrastructure Private Limited

U lonal s Parties as per regulation 2{1]{zv] 1 InwiT Regulation

BIF IV Jarvis india Pte. Ltd., Singapore dlate Parent [ Co-Sp:
Brookfleld Indla Infrastructure Marager Private Limited Investment Manager (t% Cecember 11, 2023)
" hile ) h ger”] {refer note 2)
BIP IndFa Infra Projects Management Services Private Umited Manager {w.e.f ber 12, 2023] [refer note 2)
Axls Trustee Services Limited Trustee
Jio Infrastructure Management Services Limited Project Manager [SDIL}
Jarvis Data-Infra Project Manager Private Limited Project Manager (CDPL, RDIPL and CYNPL)
Reliance Industrlal Investments and Holdings Limited Co-Spansor
Prom & Partles specified tn 1| Li n ns ha ken place and relationships
Rellance Industries Limited Promoter of Co-Sponsar {till March 31, 2023)
{"Erstwhile Promotor of Co-Sponsor™)
Axls Bank Limited Promotor of Trustee®

* Axis Rank Umited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited (“Trustee®), trustee to Data
Infrastructure Trust, is considered as a related party of the Trust In line with the SEBI InviT
Regulations based on recent directions from SEBI,




Data Infrastructure Trust [formesly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust}

Notes to C lidated Financial Infi san for the q , half year and year ended March 31, 2024

€. Ditector of the Parties specified in I[A) above

Directors of BIF IV Jarvis india Pte Limited, Singapore

Liew Yee Foong

Ho Yeh Hwa

velden Neo Jun Xiong (appotnted w.e.f. August 13, 2021 and resigned w.e.f April 29, 2022)
Tang Qichen (resigned w.e f. October 12, 2022}

Tan Aik Thye Derek {w.e.f. April 29, 2022)

Mavrice Robert Hendrick Barnes [w.e.f. October 5, 2022}

Tay Zhi Yun {w.e.f. October 12, 2022}

Talisa Poh Pei Lynn {w.e f. October 12, 2022}

Diractors of Grookdield india Inf, ger Private Limited [tll Dacamber 11, 2023]
Seidhar Rengan

Chetan Rameshchandra Desal {resigned w.e.f. May 31, 2023)

Narendra Angja iresigned w.e.f. May 31, 2023)

Pooja Aggarwal [appointed w.e f. September 30, 2021 and resigned w.e.f. April 5, 2022}
Swati Mandava [w.e.f. June 28, 2022 and resigned w.e.f. May 25, 2023 |

Prateek Shroff (w.e.f May 26, 2023)

Radhika Vijay Hatibhakti [w.e.f. lume 1,2023}

Jagdish Ganapathi Kini {w.e.f. June 1, 2023)

Rinki Gangufl {w.e.f. June 1, 2023)

Arun Balakrishnan {w.e.l. June 1, 2023}

Girectors of BIP India Infra Projects Managemant Sarvicas Private Limited (w.e.f. Dacambar 12, 2023)
Dhananjay lashi

Paoja Aggarwal

Prateek Shroff

Sunil Srivastav

Jagdith Ganapathi Kini

Radhika Har'bhakti

Directors of Auis Trustes Services Limlied

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya {resigned w.e.f. lanuary 15, 2024}
Ganesh Sankaran {resigned w.e.l. January 15, 2024)
Sumit Bali {w.e.f. January 16, 2024)

Deepa Rath

Prashant loshi {w.e.(. January 16, 2024)

Director of Jla Infrastructure Management Services Limited
Damodaran Satish Kumar {appointed w.e.f. November &, 2023)
Nikhll Chakrapani Suryanarayana Kavipurapu

Hariharan Mahadevan [upto August 5, 2022)

Rahul Mukherjee {w.e.f. August 5, 2022)

Sudhakar Sar la iresigned w.e.f. Ni ber 10, 2023)

Director of Jarvis Data-Infra Prefect Manager Private Limited
Darshan Bhupendra Vora
Gaurav Manoj Chowdhary

Director of Reli industrial and Holdings Limited
Hital Rasiklal Meswani {resigned w.e.f. August 26, 2023)

Vinod Mansukhlal Ambanl {resigned w.e.f. August 26, 2023)
Mahendra Nath Bajpal {resigned w.e.f. August 26, 2023)

Savithri Parekh (resigned w.e.f. August 26, 2023}

Dhiren Vrajtal Dafal {resigned w.e.f. March 30, 2023)
Balasubrmanian Chandrasekaran [resigned w.e.f. March 30, 2023}
Sethuraman Kandasamy (w.e.f, August 25, 2023}

¥V Mohana [w.e.l. August 25, 2023)

Bimal Manu Tanna {w.e.f. August 25, 2023}




Data Infrastructure Trust [formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)

Notes 1o C lidated Fi dal In lon for the q half year and year ended March 31, 2024

1t Uist of Additionsl Rel 1l 19 of £8) InviT Regulations

Digital Fibre Infrastrycture Trust Common Sponsor

indla Infrastructure Trust (till December 11, 2023) Common Investment Manager

V. Transactions during the year with ralated parties

[Rs. in Million}
Particulars Ralationship Half year ended Half year ended | HaH year ended Year ended Year ended March
March 31, 2024 | September 30, 2023 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 31,2023
Trustes Fee
Axis Trustes Services Limited Trustee 1 1 1 H 2
Investment Management Feas
BrookReld india Infrastructure Erstwhile 5 14 18 19 28
Manager Private Limited Investment
Manager
BIP Indla Infra Profects Management Investment 9 & - 9 -
Services Private Limited Manager
Aeimbursement of Expenses
Braokfield India infrastructure Erstwhile 4 2 3 3 6
Manager Private Limited Investment
Manager
BIP Indla Infra Projects Il 14 - . 14 -
Services Private Limited Manager i
Project Manager Fees
Jio Infrastructure Management Project Manager 12 12 12 24 24
Services Limited {SDIL}
Jarvis Data-Infra Project Manager Project Manager 1 1 1 2 2
Private Limlted {CDPL}
Distribution to Unitholders
BIF IV [arvis India Pte. Lid. Co-Sponsor 14,117 20,603 13,870 34,720 25,888
Auxis Bank Limited Promoter of 223 - 23 -
Trustee
Repayment of Non-Convertible
Debentures
Rellance Industries Limited Promator of Co- o o 15,860 53.360
Sponsor
Ceposit pald
£quinox Business Parks Private Umited Members of same - - 5 : 10
group
Deposit received
Good Time Real Estate Development | Members of same o - 2 2 2
Private Limited group
Loans Taken
Axls Bank Limited Promoter of L] 2,875 12,000 2875 25,288
Trustee
Loans Repald
Axls Bank Limited Fromoter of 4,022 2,441 1,182 6463 1,182
Trustee
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of 1,948 2,151 1,283 4099 2,110
Trustee
Rellance industries Umlted Promaoter of Co- - S 337 - 1,678
Sponsor
[Arranger Fees
Axls Bank Limlted Promater of L] - 60 o 68
Trustee
NCD Allotment
Auxis Bank Limited Promoter of - . 12,000 . 15000
Trustee
Fixed Deposit Placed
Axls Bank Limlted Promoter of 9,188 13,482 25,031 22,670 28,031
Trustee




Data Infrastructure Trust {formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)

Notes to lidated Fii 1al (nf jon for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024
{Rs, In Million)
Particulars Relationship Half yaar ended Half year ended | Half year anded Year ended Year ended March
March 31,2024 | September 30, 2023 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 31, 2023
fixed Deposit Matured
Axis Bank Lmited Promoter of 8,727 13,480 25,031 22,207 28,031
Trustee
Interast iIncoma on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of EL 24 85 54 89
Trustee
Bank Charges
Aotis Bank Limited Promater of 1] o o
Trustee
Other Income
Good Time Real Estate Development | Members of same 2 - 2
Private Limited Eroup
BIF India Infra Projects Management investment o = - 0 a
Services Private Limited Manager
Expenses Incurred
Equinox Business Parks Private Members of same 27 27 n 54 38
Limited group
Kairos Properties Private Limited Members of same 1 4 5 5 9
(formerty known as Vrihis Properties group
Private Limited}
Aerobode One Private Umited Members of same 4] - [}
group
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited Members of same 1 1] 0 1 1
group
Schloss Udalpur Private Limited Members of same 1 0 0 1 1
group
Schloss Chennai Private Limited Members of same 1] 1 1 1 1
group
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited Members of same 0 1 [+] 1 1
group
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Members of same 1 1 1 2 12
group
IPFL Films Private Limited Members of same 0 0 -
group
| Arliga Ecoworld Infr e Private | Members of same 1 . 5 1
Limited group
Prepald Expense
Kairos Properties Private Limited Members of same 3 . - 3 -
{fermerly known as Viihis Properties group
Private Limited)
Aerobode One Private Limited Members of same 2 - ] -
group
Remunaration {Refar note 3, b and ¢}
Dhanan)ay Joshl Director of 12 26 38
investment
Manager (w.e.f.
December 12,
2023)
Director Sitting Feas {Refer notea, b
and ¢}
lagdish Ganapathi Kini Directors of 1 1 . 2 -
Investment
Suni Srivastav Manager fw.e . 1 1 - 2
December 12,
2023}
Purchase of Equity shares In CYNPL
Kinetic Holding 1 Pte Umited Members of same 1 1
roy,




Data Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust}

Notes to G Hidated F 3al Inl lon for the quarter, haf year and year ended March 31, 2024

Notes:

{a} Does not include provision towards gratuity and lesve encashment which is provided based on ial valuation on an overall 5PV basis.

{b) Remuneration includes gross salary and performance incentive pald in respective year which is related to the performance of preceding year,

{c) BIF India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited {81P India) has been appointed as Investment Manager of the Trust w.e.f. December 12, 2023, Mr. Dhananjay Joshl Is appointed as a
Director in BIP India w.e.f. December 12, 2023 with NIL remuneration, however, he Is also a Key Managerial Personnel in SDIL and getiing remuneratlon as part of contract of employment and
accordingly remuneration for the year April 01, 2023 1o March 31, 2024 is disclosed.

Mr. Sunil Srivastav and Jagdish Kini are common directors In BIP India and In SDIL and hence director sitting fees paid from SOIL for the peried April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 is disclosed

Compensation of Director of | M. {w.e.t. D ber 12, 2023):
{Rs. in Million}
Particutars Half yaar ended Half year ended Half year ended Year ended Year ended March
0 March 31, 2024 | Sef ber 30, 2023 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 33, 2023
i) Short term benefits n 22 - 43 -
iii) Post employment benefits {Refer Note ii below} - - - -
Notes:

i. This includes pravision towards short-term benefit employee expense.
Il. Post employment benefits are actuarlally determined on overall basis and hence not separately provided.

V. Bal a5 at end of the year/ period: {Rs. in Million}

Particulars Relationship As at March 31, | As at September | As at March 31, 2023
2024 30, 2023

Unit Capital of the Trust

BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd. Co-Sponsor 152,018 195,448 229,227

Contribution to Corpus

Rebl Industrial Ir and Holdings Limited Sponsor 2490 240 240

Term Loan

Auxis Bank Limited Promoter of Trustee 40,874 44,897 44,452

Fixed Deposit

Axis Bank Umited Promoler of Trustee 462 2,934 2

Bank Balance

Axis Bank Limited Promoter of Trustee a 1 4

interest accrued on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limitad Promoter of Trustee 1 2 0

[Arranger Fees payable

| Axis Bank Limited Promoter of Trustea /] - -

Borrowing - NCD's

Auis Bank Limited Promoter of Trustee 5,900 7,900

Deposit Recelvable

Equinox Business Parks Private Limited Members of same 24 24 24
Eroup

Schloss Chennai Private Limited Members of same 1] 0 0
group

flecelvable

Good Time Real Estate Develapment Private Limited Members of same = 3
group

BIP india Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited Investment Manager V] 1]

Security Deposit Refundable

Good Time Real Estate Development Private Limited Members of same 2 2 F
graup

Deferred Income

Good Time Real Estate Development Private Limited Members of same 2z 1 2

rou




Data Infra Trust (K rly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)
Notes to C ldated Financial Infi for the quartes, half year and year ended March 31, 2024
{Rs. In Million)
Particulars Relationship As at March 31, | As at September| As at March 31, 2023
il 30, 2023
Other Payable
Kalros Properties Private Limited (farmerly known as Vrihls Properties Private | Members of same 1 = 1
Limited) group
1Equinox Business Parks Private Limited Members of same 1 0 1
group
Schloss Chennal Private Limited Members of same a [} [+
group
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited Members of same 0 o o
group
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited Members of same - 1] 1]
group
Pipeling Infrastructure Limited Members of same 10 1 9
group
Aerobode One Private Limited Members of same 0 -
group
IPFL Films Private Umited Members of same /]
group
Arliga Ecoworld Infrastructure Private Limited Members of same 1 - -
group
Brookfeld India Inir; e ger Private Limited Erstwhile Investment 3 3
Manager
BIF India Infra Projects Management Services Private LUmited {net of advances)| Investment Manager 4 - -
Prepaid expense
Kairas Properties Private Limited (formerly known as Vrihis Properties Frivate | Members of same 3 3
Limlted) group
Aerobode One Private Umited Members of same 2 2 -
group
Raliance Industries Limited
0% Non- Convertible preference shares Erstwhile Pramotor - 147
of
Co-Sponsor




Data Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)

lidated Fl al

Notesto G

ion for the

1. Consolidated Statement of Met Assets at Fair Value

half year and year ended March 31, 2024

[Rs. In Million}

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Book Value Fair value* Book Value Falr Value*
A, Assets 496,585 686,046 513,312 682,831
8. Uabilities {as reflected In the balance sheet} 362,888 362,888 343,453 343,453
€. Net Assets (A-8) 133,697 313,158 169,853 339,378
D. Ne. of Units 2,603 2,603 2,603 2,603
D, NAV{C/D) £1.36 124.15 65.26 13038

“Total Assets inchudes the fair value of the assets attributable to the Trust as at
Regulations and relled on by the statutory auditors.

Detalled Project wite breakup of fair value of assets as at March 31, 2024:

March 31, 2023, Assets are valued as per

valuation report issued by ind o

luer d under the SEBI InvIT

val

ROIPL CVNPL Total of SPVs Consolidated
| L{B] (1}
Particulars SDIL (A} COPL{B) Iy ©) (E)e(c+D) Trust (D) Adjustments (E) Total {C+D+E)
A. Enterprise Value (EV] as per 618,082 18,114 - - 636,196 - - 636,196
Independent Registered Valuer's
|B. Cash and Bank Bal 5,696 245 1 3 6,945 171 7,116
C. Net llabllities considered in 38,718 2,949 = 4] 41,667 - 1,068 42,734
valuation
O. Nat Assats (A+B+C) 663,496 21,308 1 3 634,808 171 1,068 636,046
Datalied Project wise brezkup of falr value of assets as at March 31, 2023:
Total of SPVs Consolidated
DIL (A CDPL [B) Total {CHDE]
Particutars SDIL(A) (8) [C]=tAt8) Trust (D] Adjustments (E) otal {C+DHE)
|A. Enterprise Value {EV} as per 622,932 15,415 638,347 o - 638,347
Independent Registerad Valyer's
8. Cash and Bank Balance 5,769 240 65,009 28 6,037
€. Net liabilities considered In 35,261 1,982 37,143 1,204 38,447
valuation
D. Nat Assets [(AsB+C} 663,962 17,637 681,599 28 1,204 681,331
Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on ¢
reporting period, while holding all assumptions constant. The result of se:

Particulars

Discount rate

of the

a. Discount rate - 50 basis points NAV (Rs, Per upit)
b. Discount rate - 50 basis points NAV Impact (%)
¢. Discount rate + 50 basis points NAV (Rs. Per unit]
d. Discount rate + 50 basls polnts NAV impact (%)

n;itivitv anatysis is given below:

ge cost af capital accuring at the end of the

As at March 31, As at March 31, 2023
2024
135.86 142.37
9.56% 9.20%
11298 119.24
[8.89%) {8.55%)

Due to the use of discounted cash flow method to determine the fair value of net assets, it is considered as Level 3 In the fair value hierarchy as per the requirements of Ind A5 113 * Fair value

measurements®.

K. Cansolidated Statement of Total Return at Fair Value

{Rs. in Million}

Particulars Yearended  Year ended March
March 31, 2024 31,2023
Total Comprehensive lncome [As per of lidated financlal ion) 10,632 7,753
Addf{Less): Other changes in falr value not recognized In Total Comprehensive Income - -
Total Return 10,632 7,753

L “0” represents the

below the d inatl

For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
BIP india Infra Projacts Management Services Private Lmited
{acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data Infrastructore Trust)

—

L,

Dhananjay,
Managing
DIN- 09086270

Date: May 16, 2024
Place: Mumbai

el

Inder Mehta
Chief Finanzial Officer

Date- May 16, 2024
Place: Califarnla

Fon

Compllance Officer

Date: May 16, 2024
Place: Mumbai




= Chartered Accountants
De I (o) |tte One Internationual Center,
- Tower 3, 27"-32" Floor,
Haskins & Sells LLP Se:apatl Bapat Marg,r
Elphinstone Road (West)

Mumbai, 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Unitholders of Data Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Data Infrastructure Trust {formerly
known as Tower Infrastructure Trust) {“the Trust”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024, Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity, Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2024 and Standalone
Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value and Net Distributable Cash Flows for the year ended on that date
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including
any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with the SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 (together referred to as the "InvIT Regulations") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule
2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended), and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InviT Regulations, of the state
of affairs of the Trust as at March 31, 2024, and its profit including other comprehensive income, its changes
in unitholders’ equity, its cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024, its net assets at fair value as at
March 31, 2024, its total returns at fair value and net distributable cash flows for the year ended on that
date and other financial information of the Trust.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing {SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (ICAl). Our respansibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the ICAl and we have fulfilled our other ethical respansibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Regd. Office: One International Center, Towar 3, 27% - 32" Flgor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road {West), Mumbai -
400 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.2 (i) which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” to comply
with InvIT Regulations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

In accordance with InviT Regulations, the
Trust discloses Statement of Net Assets at
Fair Value which requires fair valuation of
net assets.

The fair value of net assets of the Trust is
determined by an independent valuer
using discounted cash flow method.

While there are several assumptions that
are required to determine the fair value of
net assets of the Trust, assumptions with
the highest degree of estimate,
subjectivity and impact on fair value are
the wvaluation methodology used in
determining the fair value, future
cashflows estimated by the Management,
discount rate and terminal growth rate.
Auditing this assumption required a high
degree of auditor judgment as the
estimates made by the Management and
the independent external valuer contain
significant measurement uncertainty.

Refer to Standalone Statement of Net
assets at fair value in the standalone
financial statements.

Sr. | Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
No.
1. | Fair Value of Net Assets of the Trust: Principal audit procedures performed among others:

Our audit procedures relating to the determination of
the fair value of net assets included the following,
among others: :

*  Tested design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the internal control related to
determination of fair value of assets and
review of Statement of
Net Assets at Fair Value

* Reviewed the independent external valuer's
valuation reports to obtain an understanding
of the source of information used by the
independent external valuer in determining
the fair valuation.

* Tested the reasonableness of the future cash
flows shared by Management with external
valuer by comparing it to source information
used in preparing the forecasts and with
historical forecasts and actual performance to
support any significant expected future
changes to the business.

= Evaluated the Trust's independent external
valuer’'s competence to perform the valuation.
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| Sr. | Key Audit Matter Zaditofs Response
No.

* Involved our internal fair valuation specialists
to independently determine fair value of the
Net Assets of the Trust as at the balance sheet
date, which included assessment of
reasonableness of the discount rate and
terminal growth rate used by Management in
valuation and the methodology to determine
the fair value.

* Compared the fair value determined by the
Trust with that determined by our internal fair
valuation  specialist to  assess the
reasonableness of the fair valuation.

* Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation in the Standalone Statement of
Net Assets at Fair Value and evaluated
adequacy of disclosures in the standalone
financial statements as per requirement of
InvIT Regulation.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

¢ BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited (‘Investment Manager’) acting in its
capacity as an Investment Manager of the Trust is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information and disclosures included in the Annual Report but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

*  Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

* In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

* If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Management of Investment Manager {“the Management”}, is responsible for the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
perfarmance including other comprehensive income, changes in unitholders’ equity, cash flows for the year
ended March 31, 2024, net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, total returns at fair value and net
distributable cash flows for the yar ended on that date of the Trust in accordance with the InvIT Regulations,
the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2{1){a)} of the Companies (indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with InvIT Regulations.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets
of the Trust and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the financial statements by the Investment Manager of the Trust, as aforesaid.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management and Board of Directors of the
Investment Manager are responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors of Investment Manager either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Investment Manager’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Trust’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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*  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalane financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to
cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit and as required by InvIT Regulations, we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
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b} The Standalone Balance sheet, and Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity, Standalone Statement of Cash
Flows, dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account of the Trust;

c} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations.

d} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Protection and
Education Fund by the Trust.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/ W100018)

Mohammed Bengali
Partner
Membership No. 105828
UDIN: 24105828BKFIIH6615
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024



Data Infrastructure Trust
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

[Rs. in Million)
Particulars Motes As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets:
Investments k] 14,979 14,979
Loans 4 255,373 250,000
Other Financial assets 5 68 -
Income-tax assets (net) 3 9 -
Total non-current assets 274,429 264,979
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 7 88 28
Cther financial assets 5 1 -
Other current assets B 25,162 30,605
Total current asseis 25,251 30,633
Total assets 299,680 295,612

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Unit capital 9 261,017 261,152
Contribution 9A 240 240
Other equity 10 22,474 27,285
Total equity 283,731 288,677
LIABILITIES
Non - current liabilitles
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 11 3,179 -
Other financial liabilities 12 3,397 2,954
Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,576 2,954
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities:
Short Term Borrowings 13 9,199
Trade Payables
- total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 14
enterprises
- total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro 14 100 15
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 12 - 3,962
Other current liabilities 15 73 4
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 16 1 -
Total current liabilities 9,373 3,981
Total liabilities 15,949 6,935
Total equity and liabilities 299,680 295,612
See accompanying notes to the Standalone Financial 1to 35
Statements
As per our repert of even date.
For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
Chartered Accountants BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited
Firm Regn No: 117366W/W-100018 {acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure

Trust)

Mohammed Bengali Dhananjay loshi Inder Mehta Farah lrani

Partner Managing Director Chief Financial Officer  Compliance Officer
DIN: 09096270

Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 15, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
Place: Mumbai P Place: Mumbai Place: California Place: Mumbai
s



Data Infrastructure Trust

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

— [Rs. in Million}
Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March31,2024 ~ March 31, 2023
INCOME
Revenue from operations 17 41,456 40,600
Dividend income from subsidiaries - 50
Interest income 18 4 2
Other Income 19 1,561 21
Total Income = 43,021 40,673
EXPENSES
Investment Manager fee 28 28
Trustee fee 2 2
Project Manager fee 24 24
Audit fees (refer note 24) 33 31
Finance costs 20 462 -
Valuation fee 3 1
Annual Listing fee 1 2
Rating fee 10 1
Legal and professional fees 170 16
Other expenses 21 446 526
Total expenses S 1,179 631
Profit before tax 41,842 40,082
Tax Expense
i) Current tax 2 10
it) Income tax for earlier years 9) -
Total Tax expenses {7) 10
Profit for the year ' 41,849 40,032
Other Comprehensive Income 5 .
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 41,849 - “40,032
EARNINGS PER UNIT 22
Basic per unit {in Rupees) 16.08 15.38
Diluted per unit {in Rupees) 16.08 15.38
See accompanying Notes to the Standalone Financiat 1to 35
Statements
As per our report of even date.
For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
For Deloltte Haskins & Sells LLP BIP India Infra Projects Managemaent Services Private Limited
Chartered Accountants {acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure Trust}

Firm Regn No: 117366W/W-100018

ot B S

Mchammed Bengali Dhananjay doshi Inder Mehta Farah Irani

Partner Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
DIN: 09096270

Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: California Place: Mumbai

N we




Data Infrastructure Trust

Standalone Statement of Changes In Unitholders' equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

[Rs. in Million}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
o March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{A)} Unit Capital
Balance at the beginning of the year 261,152 261,152
Issued during the year - -
Distribution during the year - Return of Capital (135) -
Balance at the end of the year 261,017 261,152
{B) Initial Contribution
Balance at the beginning of the year 240 240
Contribution during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 240 240
{C) Other Equity {Rs. in Million}
Particulars Reserves and Surplus; Total
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year i.e. April 1, 2022 17,808 17,808
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 40,032 40,032
Distribution during the year - Return on Capital * (30,568) {30,568)
Provision for unit issuance cost written back 13 13
Balance at the end of the year i.e. March 31, 2023 27,285 27,285
Balance at the beginning of the year i.e. April 1, 2023 27,285 27,285
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 41,849 41,849
Distribution during the year - Return on Capital” (46,660) (46,660)
Balance at the end of the year I.e. March 31, 2024 22,474 22,474

*The distributions made by the Data InvIT ta its unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCF) of the Data InvIT
under the SEBI InviT Regulations (Refer Note 30).

See accompanying Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 11035

As per our report of even date.

For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited
Chartered Accountants {acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data

S Infrastructure Trust) —

Mohammed Bengali Dhananjay Jos
Partner Managing Director
DIN: 09096270

Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
% |
%\.&Q&’J_ "’—H_‘_’__,—""'_F
Inder Mehta Farah Irani

Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer

Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 15, 2024
Place: California Place: Mumbai




Data Infrastructure Trust

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in Million)

‘Particulars

Year ended

Year ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss
Adjustments for :

Fair value loss on financial instruments

Gain on settlement of contingent consideration (refer note: 12b)
Finance Costs

Interest on fixed deposit

Interest income on loan given to subsidiaries

Interest received

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for :

{Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets and other assets
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables

Increase / {Decrease) in other current liabilities

Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Contingent Consideration paid for acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 12b)
Loans given

Loans repaid

{Investment) / redemption of bank deposits (net)

Interest received on deposits

Net Cash flow {used in) / generated from investing activities (B)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Borrowings {(Net of upfront fees, premium and discount)
{refer note 30)

Payment of Distribution to unitholders - Return on Capital
Payment of Distribution to unitholders - Return of Capital
Finance Cost paid

Provision for unit issuance costs written back

Net Cash flow used in financing activities (C)

Net increase / {decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {A+B+C)

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents {Refer Note 7)

phes LU

41,842 40,042
443 525
(1,561) .
462 ’
(4) (2)
(41,456) (40,600}
46,904 30,557
46,630 30,522
(5) 16
85 (9)
69 (207)
46,779 30,322
(1) (10)

46,778 30,312

{2,401)

(9,525) =
153 -
(68) 16

3 2

(11,838) 18
11,978 .

(46,660) (30,568)
{135) =
(63) =

: 13

{34,880) (30,555)

60 (225)

28 253

88 28




Data Infrastructure Trust

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Rs. in Million}
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 WMarch 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of

Balances with banks in current accounts 28 28
Fixed deposits with banks 60 -
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 7) 88 28

Changes in Liability arising from financing activities

{Rs. in Million)
As at Cash flow Non cash As at
. April 1, Amortised premium /|Amortised March 31, 2024
e 2023 discount prepaid finance
charges

Borrowings (refer note - - 11,978 399 1 12,378
11 and 13)
Total - 11,978 399 1 12,378

Notes:
1 The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in IND AS- 7
"Statement of Cash Flows".

See accompanying Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 1to 35
As per our report of even date.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
Chartered Accountants BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited

Firm Regn No: 117366W/W-100018 (acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure Trust)

§

2 ST

Mohammed Bengali Dhananjay Joshi
Partner Managing Director
DIN: 09096270
Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Inder Mehta Farah Irani

Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
Place: Place: Mumbai
California
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Data Infrastructure Trust
Notes to Standal FInancial Stat: ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DOHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023:

Standalone § of Net Assets at Fair Value: (Rs. in Mifion)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Book Value fair value® Book Value Falr Value*

A. Assets 2,99,680 3,39,107 2,95,612 346,313
B. Liabilities {as reflected in the balance sheet} 15,949 15,949 5,935 5,93%
C. Net Assets [A-B) 2,83, 131 3,23,158 2,088,677 3,39,378
D. Number of units {in Million} 2,603 2,603 2,603 2,603
C. NAV{C/D) 109.60 124.15 11090 130.38

*Total Assets includes the fair value of the assets attrbutable to the Trust as at reporting date. Assets are valued as per valuation repont issued by independent
valuer appointed under the SEB1 InvIT Regulations and relied on by the Statutory Auditors

Project wise breakup of fair value of assets as at March 31, 2024: {Rs_in Million}
Project Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited {"SDIL"} 3,22,252 3,32.138
Crest Digitel Private Umited {"COPL") 16,680 14,147
Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited* {"RDIPL"} 1 -
Crest Virtual Network Prvate Limaed” ("CYNPLY) 3 E
Subtotal 3,38,936 3,46,285
Assets (in Trust) {refer Note 5, 6, 7 and 8 except interest accrued on Trust Loan) 111 28
Total Assets 3,39,107 3,465,313

* The Trust has acquired Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited w.e.f. September 08, 2023
" COPL acquired Crest Virtual Network Private Limited w.e f, September 21, 2023

Detalled Project wise breakup of falr value of assets as at March 31, 2024:
{Rs. in Million)

Total of SPVs
A P RDIP VN t{F 1 [E+
Particulars SDIL (A) CDPL [B] DIPL {C) CVUNPL (D) {E}={A+B+C+D] Trust {F} Total [E+F)
A. Enterprise Value [EV] as per 518,082 18,114 6,36,196 o 6,356,198
Independent Registered Valuer's report
B. Net Debt {2,99,215) {1,679) - - {3,00,894} - (3.00,894)
C. Net liahilities not considered n {3.311) E = E {3,311} - (3,311]
valuation
D. Cash and Bank Balance and Other assets 6,696 245 1 3 6,945 171 7,116
of Trust
E. Net Assets [A+B+C+D} 3,232,252 16,680 1 3 3,38,936 171 3,39,107
Detailed Project wise breakup of fair value of assets as at March 31, 2023:
{Rs. in Million})
Total of SPVs
Partlculars SDIL {A) CcoPL (B} {Ch{A+B) Trust (D) Total [C+D)
A. Enterprise Value {EV) as per 6,22,932 15415 6,38,347 - 6,38,347
Independent Registered Valuer's report
8, Ngt Debt (2,94,217) {1,158) {2,95,375) . {2,95,375)
C. Nel liabilities not considered in {2,346} {350) {2,696) . {2,696)
D, Cash and Bank Balance and Other assets 5,769 240 6,009 28 6,037
of Trust
E. Net Assets (A+B+C+D) 3,32,138 14,147 3,46,285 28 3,456,313
Sensitivity Analysls
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the discount rate, while holding all other
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Discount rate
a. Discount rate - 50 basis points NAY (Rs. Per unit} 13586 14237
b. Discount rate - 50 basis points NAV impact (%) 9.56% 9.20%
¢. Discount rate + 50 basis paints NAV (Rs. Per unit} 11298 119.24
d. Diseount rate + 50 basis points NAV impact (%} (8.89%) {8.55%)

Due to the use of discounted cash llow method to determine the fair value of nel assets, it is considered as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as per the
requirements of Ind AS 113 " fair value measurements”.

Standal St; of Total Return at Falr Value: {Rs. in Million}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Total Comprehensive Income {As per Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss) 41,849 40,032
Add/{Less): Dther changes in fair value not recognized in Total Comprehensive Income - -
Total Return 41,849 40,032
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Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

21

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Data Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust) ("Data InviT/Trust™} was set up by Reliance Industrial Investments and
Holdings Limited {"Reliance Sponsor”} on January 31, 2019, as a contributory irrevocable trust under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act,
1882. The Trust was registered as an infrastructure investment trust under Securities and Exchange Board of India {Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 {“SEBI InvIT Regulations”) on March 19, 2019, having registration number IN/InvIT/18-19/0009. Pursuant to the
approval granted by the unitholders of the Trust, the Principal place of Business of the Trust has shifted to “Unit 1, Sth Floor, Tower 4, Equinox
Business Park, LBS Marg, Kurla (W), Mumbai-400070" w.¢.f. December 16, 2022.

Sponsors of the Trust are BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd,, a company registered in Singapore and Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in India.

The Trustee to the Trust is Axis Trustee Services Limited ("Trustee"}).

W.a.f. December 12, 2023, BIP india Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited ("8IP India / Investment Manager"} has been appointed
as the Investment Manager of the Trust basis the approval from SEBI vide letter dated December 11, 2023. Brookfield India Infrastructure
Manager Private Limited ("BIMPL / erstwhile Investment Manager"} is the erstwhile Investment Manager of the Trust. BIIMPL had resigned as
the Investment Manager of the Trust vide letter dated September 29, 2023 but continued in its capacity till close of business hours on December
11, 2023.

The investment objectives of the Trust are to carry on the activities of an infrastructure investment trust, as permissible under the SEB! InvIT
Regulations and to raise funds and making investments in accordance with the SEBI InvIT Regulations and indenture of Trust.
The units of Data InvIT are listed on BSE Limited w.e.f. September 1, 2020.

The Trust has acquired entire equity share capital of Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited (“SDIL") [formerly known as Summit Digitel
Infrastructure Private Limited] on August 31, 2020. SDIL is engaged in the business of setting up and maintaining passive tower infrastructure
and related assets, and providing passive tower Infrastructure services (“Tower Infrastructure Business”).

The Trust has acquired entire equity share capital of Crest Digitel Private Limited {"COPL"} [formerly known as Space Teleinfra Private Limited) as
on March 10, 2022, The transaction was funded by way of issuance of units on rights basis and preferential basis in compliance with the SEBI
InviT Regulations. COPL is engaged in the business of providing telecom infrastructure to mobile network operators for Outdeor Small Cells, In-
building solutions {IBS), and Roof Top Towers.

On September 8, 2023, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares of Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited {“RDIPL") for a total consideration
of Rs. 0.1 million. Accordingly, RDIPL became Subsidiary {SPV) of the Trust.

On September 21, 2023, CDPL acquired 100% equity shares of Crest Virtual Network Private Limited {formerly known as Kinetic Road Assets
Private Limited) ("CVYNPL") for a total consideration of Rs. 0.7 million. Accordingly, CYNPL has become a SPV of the Trust and CDPL became 3
Hold Co.

As on December 31, 2023, the Trust has two directly held Special Purpose Vehicles ($PV) i.e. SDIL and RDIPL. The Trust has one Holding Company
i.e, CDPL with one SPV i.e. CVNPL.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The standalone financial statements of the Trust comprises of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024; the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Unithotders’ Equity for the year ended
March 31, 2024 and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information. Additionally, it includes the Statement of Net
Assets at Falr Value as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value and Statement of Net Distrlbutable Cash Flows (NDCFs)
for year then ended and other additional financial disclosures as required under the SE8I InviT Regulations. The standalone financial statements
are authorized for issue in accordance with resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager on behalf of the Trust on
May 16, 2024. The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBL InviT Regulations, as
amended from time to time read with the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 {"SEB| Master Circular”); Indian
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2{1){a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 {’Ind AS’), to the extent not
Inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations (refer note 2.2(i) below on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments
under Ind AS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation), read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India.
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Data Infrastructure Trust
Notes to Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Statement of compliance to tnd AS:

The standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as
defined in Rule 2{1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {"Ind AS"), to the extent net inconsistent with the SEBI InviT
Regulations as more fully described above and note 2.2{i) to the standalone financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities {including
derivative instruments) that are measured at fair values,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest Million
{INR 000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{a

Current and Non-Current Classification:

The Trust presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/ Non-Current classification .

An asset is treated as Current when it is:

I Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

i Held primarily for trading;

ili Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
i Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
il Held primarily for trading;
iii It Is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
v There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting pericd.

The Trust classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,
The Trust has considered 12 months as its normal operating cycle.
{b) Finance Cost
Borrowing Costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of such assets. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantlal period of time to get ready for its intended use,
All other borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

{c) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow

of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate tan be made of the amount of the
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Taxation
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that It

relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
and equity.

Current tax
Current income-tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in

accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liabllity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

]

n

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at banks, cash on hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short term deposits as defined above.

Revenue recognition
The Trust earns revenue primarily from Investments.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Trust and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the Trust's right to receive the payment is established.

Finandial Instruments

i) Financlal Assets

A. Classificatlon of financial assets

financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: amortised cost, financial assets ‘at fair value through profit and loss’
{FVTPL), ‘Fair value through other comprehensive income’ {FVTOCI). The classification depends on the Trust's business mode! for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of cash flows.

B, Initial recognition and measurement:

Al financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition,
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

€. Subsequent measurement

a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost {AC)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount ocutstanding.

b] Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

¢} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

ii) Financial liabilities

A. Classification of debt or equity:

Debt or equity instruments issued by the Company are ciassified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial labllity and an equity instrument,

B. Initial recognition and measurement:
All fimancial liabilities are recognized initially at far value and in case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable cost. Fees
of recurring nature are directly recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

€. Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables including
creditors for capltal expenditure maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the
short maturity of these instruments.

D. Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the Derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financlal liability derecognised and the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
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Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{h} Earnings Per Unit (EPU)

Basic earnings per unit is computed using the net profit for the period attributable to the unitholders' and weighted average number of units
outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per unit is computed using the net profit for the period attributable to unitholder and weighted average number of units and
potential units outstanding during the period including unit options, convertible preference units and debentures, except where the result would
be anti-dilutive. Potential units that are converted during the period are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per unit, from the
beginning of the period or date of issuance of such potential units, to the date of conversion.

{i) Classification of Unitholders’ fund

Under the provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations, Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net
distributable cash flows of Trust for each financial period. Accardingly, a portion of the unitholders' funds contains a contractual obligation of
the Trust to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. The Unitholders’ funds could therefore have been classified as compound financial
instrument which contain both equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, In
accordance with SEBI Master Circular issued under the SEBI InvIT Regulations, the unitholders' funds have been classified as equity in order to
comply with the mandatory requirements of SEBI Master Circular dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial statements. In line with
the above, the distribution payable to unitholders is recognised as liability when the same is approved by the Investment Manager.

(i) Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in Subsidiary are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27- Separate Financial Statements.
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of
Investments In subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

{k) Net distributable cash flows to unit holders
The Trust recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unit Holders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been
created. As per the SEBI InvIT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager.
A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

{1} Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Trust incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

{m} Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits / loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and ltems of Income or expenses assoclated with Investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from regular revenue generating (cperating activities), investing and financing activities of the Trust are
segregated.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed In notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Trust or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not prabable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

{n
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Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{o) Falr value measurement

{p

{al

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a llability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

- in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- in the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or llability.

The principal market or the most advantageous market must be accessible

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

Valuation techniques used are those that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows,

Level 1: Quoted [unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3: Valuation technigues for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Trust assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Trust
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Units (CGU’s) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Trust's financial statements requires management to make judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Determination of Fair Value

Some of the Trust's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. Management of the Trust determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Trust uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Trust engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. Management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model.
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Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Investments {Rs. in Million)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments measured at Cost

tn Equity Shares of Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited (SDIL)* 2,150 2,150
{formerly known as Summit Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited) unquoted, fully paid-

up (2,150,000,000 Equity shares {Previous year: 2,150,000,000) of Re. 1 each)

In Crest Digitel Private Limited (CDPL}*
{formerly known as Space Teleinfra Private Limited) (refer note 12a)

-in 3,710,000 Equity Shares (Previous year: 3,710,000) of Rs 10 each 9,219 9,219
- 1,792,270 (Previous year: Nil} 0% Optionally Convertibie Redeemable Preference 3,610 -
Shares {"OCRPS"}
- contingent consideration to acquire Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference - 3,610
Shares ("OCRPS")
In Equity Shares of Roarn Digite! Infrastructure Private Limited {ROIPL)" Y -
{1,00,000 Equity shares (Previous year: Nil) of Re. 1 each) (refer note 24)
Total 14,979 14,979

*The Trust holds 100% equity ewnership in SDIL and CDPL as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
*The Trust holds 100% equity ownership in RDIPL as at March 31, 2024

Additional Information

Aggregated value of Unquoted 14,979 14,979
Aggregated value of Quoted o O

Note 3a:

On March 10, 2022, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares in CDPL, a company engaged in business of building, maintaining,
leasing, renting and otherwise dealing in infrastructure for telecom sector for total purchase price of Rs. 12,829 million. The
Trust entered into a Share Purchase Agreement ("SPA") providing the Trust the right to direct the relevant activities of COPL,
thereby providing the Trust with full control. Accordingly, effective March 10, 2022, CDPL became Subsidiary (SPV] of the
Trust.

Total purchase price includes upfront consideration paid in cash Rs.3,166 million, 52,800,000 units of the Trust aggregating Rs.
5,832 million issued on a preferential basis to the sellers of CDPL, deferred working capital refunds Rs. 221 million and a
contingent consideration linked to achievement of revenues for eligible contracts as specified in the SPA. The fair value of the
contingent consideration recorded at Rs 3,610 million as at the date of acquisition has been settled during the year through
purchase of OCRPS from the sellers of COPL by the Trust (refer note 12b).

Loans {Rs. in Million)

Particulars As at As at
I\g'l_a_r_c_!_l 31, 2_024 March 31, 2023

Loan to SPV's (unsecured, considered good)

- Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited (Refer note (i)} 258,800 250,000
- Crest Digitel Private Limited {Refer note {ii)) 570 -

- Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited (Refer nate (ii}) 3
Total 259,373 250,000
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Data Infrastructure Trust
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note —

i) Rs. 250,000 million of loan carrying interest rate of 9.5% p.a. given to SDIL {subsidiary) and under the terms of this loan, the
rate of interest increases to 15% p.a. after certain operational threshaolds are met. These thresholds were met in April, 2021
and, accordingly, the rate of interest has increased effective that date.

The interest and principal is payable by the borrower is subject to avallability of surplus cash.

If any amount due and receivable from the borrower is not received on the respective due date, interest shall accrue on the
unpaid sum from the respective due date up to the date of actual receipt at a rate of 0.5% p.a. and the applicable interest
rate, at the option of the Trust.

All outstanding amounts under the loan and all other obligations and liabilities of the borrower under the loan agreement
constitute subordinated obligations and will be subordinated to its Senior Qbligations in right of payment and upon
liquidation.

During the current year, the Trust has given an unsecured loan to SDIL amounting Rs 8,800 million at 15% rate of interest. The
terms of the loan are similar to existing loan agreement.

ii}) Rs. 570 million of loan carrying interest rate of 13.5% p.a. given to COPL {subsidiary). The interest and principal is payable by
the borrower subject to availability of surplus cash.

If any amount due and receivable from the borrower is not received on the respective due date, interest shall accrue on the
unpaid sum from the respective due date up to the date of actual receipt at a rate of 0.5% p.a. and the applicable interest
rate, at the option of the Trust.

All outstanding amounts under the loan and all other obligations and liabilities of the borrower under the loan agreement
constitute subordinated obligations and will be subordinated to its Senior Obligations in right of payment and upon
liquidation,

i} Rs. 3 million of loan carrying interest rate of 15% p.a. given to RDAPL (subsidiary).

The interest and principal is payable by the borrower is subject to availability of surplus cash.

If any amount due and receivable fram the borrower is not received on the respective due date, interest shall accrue on the
unpaid sum from the respective due date up to the date of actual receipt at a rate of 0.5% p.a. and the applicable interest
rate, at the option of the Trust.

All outstanding amounts under the loan and all other obligations and liabilities of the borrower under the loan agreement
constitute subordinated obligations and will be subordinated to its Senior Obligations in right of payment and upon
liquidation.

_5 Other Financial Assets {Rs. in Million}
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-Current Current Non-Cutrent Current

Bank deposits with more than 12 68 - -
months maturity

Accrued interest on fixed deposit - 1 - -
Total ) 68 1 - 3

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity of Rs. 68 million (Previous year Rs, Nil) is lien for interest Servicing as per
borrowing agreements with lenders. Further, deposits with bank of Rs. 0.32 million (Previous year Rs. Nil) have been marked
as lien for bank guarantees.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

6 Income-tax assets (net) {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance Income Tax {net of provisions Rs. 1 million (previous year: Rs. 10 million){refer g -
note below)
Total 9 -
Note:

Advance income tax {refer note above] and Current tax liability (refer note 16):
Balance at the start of the year - -
Income tax paid 1 10

Current tax expense {2} (10)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier year 9
Balance at the end of the year 8 -
7 Cash and cash equivalents [Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks in current accounts 28 28
Fixed deposits with banks 60 B
Total 88 28
8 Other current assets {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at

March 21, 2024 March 31, 2023

Accrued interest on loan {Refer note 4) 25,157 30,605
Prepaid expenses 4 1]
Other Receivables 1 -
Total 25,162 30,505
9  Unlt capltal {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up unit capital 261,017 261,152
2,603,000,000 units (March 31, 2023; 2,603,000,000 units)
Total 261,017 261,152

Note: refer note 2.2 (i)

9.1 Terms, rights and restrictions attached to units

The Trust has only one class of units. Each unit represents an undivided beneficia! interest in the Trust . Each holder of unit is
entitled to one vote per unit, The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the
Trust at least once in each financial year in accordance with the SEBI InvIT Regulations. The Investment Manager approves
distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of units held by the unitholders. The Trust declares and pays
distributions in Indian rupees. The distributions can be in the form of return of capital, return on capital and miscellaneous
income.

A Unitholder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the Trust Assets and is not entitled to transfer Trust Assets (or any part
thereof). A Unitholder's right is limited to the right to require due administration of Trust in accordance with the provision of
the Trust Deed and the Investment Management Agreement.

The unitholder{s} shall not have any personal liability or obligation with respect to the Trust.
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9.2 The details of unit holders holding more than 5% of unit capital:

Name of the As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Relationship

Unitholders No of Unit held Percentage No of Unit held Percentage
BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. |Sponsor 1,519,200,000 58.36 2,289,600,000 87.96
Ltd.
Anahera Investment Unitholder 616,000,000 23.67 181,000,000 6.95
Pte. Ltd.
BCI IRR India Holdings |Unitholder 241,400,000 9.27 - o
Inc.

On August 31, 2020, the Trust issued 2,521,500,000 units at an Issue Price of Rs. 100 per unit to the subscribers. BIF IV Jarvis
India Pte. Ltd. subscribed 89.79% of the units and is the immediate parent company.

During the year 2021-2022, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares in CDPL. The acquisition was funded through Issuance of
28,700,000 units of the Trust at an Issue Price of Rs. 110.46 per unit by way of rights issue and issuance of 52,800,000 units of
the Trust to the seller of COPL at an Issue Price of Rs. 110.46 per unit on a preferential basis.

9.3 Reconciliation of the units outstanding at the end of reporting year:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
{No. of units) Amount {No. of units) Amount
[Rs. In Million) (Rs. In Million})
Units at the beginning of the year 2,603,000,000 261,152 2,603,000,000 261,152
Issued during the year - S .
Distribution to unitholders - Return of B [135) - -
capital )
Units at the end of the year 2,603,000,000 261,017 2,603,000,000 261,152
9A Contribution [Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 240 240
Changes in contribution during the year - -
Total 240 240
10 Other equity {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Reserves and surplus

Retained earning

At the beginning of the year 27,285 17,808

Profit for the year 41,849 40,032

Distribution paid to the unitholders (46,660) {30,568)
Pravision for unit issuance cost written back - 13

Balance at the end of the year 22,474 27,285

Retained earnings are the profits earned by the Trust till date, less distribution paid to unitholders,
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11 Borrowing (Non-Current) {Rs. in Million)
Partlculars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture {Unsecured) 3,200
Less: Unamortised finance cost (net of premium) (21) -
Total 3,179 -

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures consist of:

8.40% payable quarterly, 32,000 redeemable, listed and rated non-canvertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 100,000 each
aggregating Rs. 3,200 million redeemable at single instalment at par on December 18, 2026. Further, there is a put/call option
exercisable by either party by giving a 60 day prior notice wherein debentures may be redeemed at par on June 19, 2026.

12 Other financial liabilities {Rs. in Million}

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Call option written on shares of 5DIL {refer note 12a 3,397 S 2,954 -
below)
Payable towards acquisition of COPL [refer note 12b - - - 3,962
below)
3,397 - 2,954 3,962

Note:

{a) On August 31, 2020, the Trust acquired balance 49% of the equity shares of SDIL from Reliance Industries Limited [RIL"} by
entering into a Shareholder and Option Agreement (entered as part of the aforesaid acquisition by Trust). As per the Shareholder
and Option Agreement , RIL shall be entitled {but not obligated} to require the Trust to sell to RiL {or RIL nominee, if applicable), the
shares of SDIL at lower of Rs. 2,150 million or fair market value of shares. This call option liability was recognised on the date of
acquisition by Trust amounting to Rs. 2,020 million with a corresponding debit to Retained earnings. The valuation of the option is
carried out by independent party as at balance sheet date.

{b) The aggregate carrying value of contingent conslderation liability {Rs. 3,741 million) and deferred working capltal refunds {Rs. 221
million} was Rs. 3,962 million payable to the sellers of CDPL as at March 31, 2023 on account of the purchase price for the acquisition
of COPL. In December 2023, the payable due to the sellers of CDPL was finalised at an amount of Rs. 2,401 million which was paid in
tanuary 2024, The settlement of the contingent consideration has resulted in a gain of Rs. 1,561 million which has been distlosed as
Other Income.

13 Short-term borrowings [Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Commercial Paper {Unsecured)(refer note below) 9,500 -
Less: Unamortised finance cost {201) -
Total 9,139 -

14

The Trust has raised money through issue of listed Commercial Papers carrying face value of Rs. 9,500 million with an issve price
aggregating Rs. 8,200 million at 7.95% payable on September 30, 2024,

Trade Payables {Rs. in Million)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total outstanding dues of creditors of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 29) - -

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 100 15
Total 100 15
Ageing of undisputed Trade Payables as at March 31, 2024 (Rs. in Million}
particulars Outstanding for following periods from the date of
transaction

Accruals  Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
(i} Micro and Small Enterprises 5 - - -
{ii) Others 100 0 - 100
Total 100 0 - 100
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Ageing of undisputed Trade Payables as at March 31, 2023

{Rs. in Million)

Outstanding for following periods from the date of

Particulars transaction
Accruals Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
{i} Micro and Small Enterprises . -
{ii} Others - 15
Total - 15
15 Cther current liabilities {Rs. in Million)

Partlculars

As at

As at

March 31, 2024 March 311, 2023

Statutory liabilities 73 4
Total 73 4
16 Current Tax llabilltles {net) {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for Tax {net of advance tax Rs. 1 million 1 -
{previous year: Rs. nil})
Total 1 -
17 Revenue from operatlons {Rs. in Million}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
nterest income on Ipan given to subsidiaries 41,456 40,600
Total 41,456 40,600
18 Interest Income {Rs. in Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Investment in fixed deposits 4 2
Income tax refund 0 -
Total 4 2
19 OtherIncome (Rs. in Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gain on settlement of contingent consideration (refer note: 12b) 1,561 -
Other Income - 21
Total 1,561 21
_20 Finance costs (Rs. in Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Interest on Borrowings 460 -
Other Borrowing Cost 2 -
Interest on delay payment of taxes 0 -
Total 462 -
21 Other expenses {Rs. in Million)
Partlculars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fair value loss on call option written on share of SDIL 443 394
Fair value loss on contingent consideration - 131
Rent expense 1 0
Rates and Taxes 1 -
Miscellaneous expenses 1 1
Debenture Trustee Fees 0 -
Total 446 526
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22 Eamings Per Unit [EPU) [Rs. in Millign except per share data)
Particulars Year ended March  Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
31,2024 2023 2022
i} Net Profit as per Staternent of Profit and Loss attributable to Unitholder 41,849 40,032 38,579
) Units Outstanding {Nos.) 2,603,000,000 2,603,000,000 2,603,000,000
il Weighted average number of units used as denominator for calculating EPU 2,603,000,000 2,603,000,000 2,527,252,055
iv) Earnings per unit
- For Basic (Rs.) 16.08 15.38 15.27
- For Diluted (Rs.) 16.08 15.38 15.27
23 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
| Ust of Related Parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures”
List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships :
i} Name of Related Party Relationship
Entities which exercise control on the Trust
srookfield Corporation [Formerly known as Brookfield Asset Management Inc.} Ultimate Parent
BIF IV India Holdings Pte. Ltd, Intermediate Parent
BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd., Singapore immediate Parent
idiary {SPVS
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited
Crast Digitel Private Limited {upto September 20, 2023}
Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited {w.e.f. September 08, 2023}
Crest Virtual Network Private Limited (w.e.f. September 21, 2023)
Subsidlary (Hold Co}
Crest Digitel Private Limlted {w.e.f. September 21, 2023)
Il Ust of Additional Related Farties as per vegulation 2{1}v) of the SEB| InviT Regulations
A Rslated Parties to Data Infrastructure Trust with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:
BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd., Singapore Immedlate Parent / Co-Sponsor
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited Investment Manager (till December 11, 2023) (Erstwhile Investment
Manager) {refer note 1}
BIP India infra Projects Management Services Private Limited Investment Manager (w.e.f December 12, 2023] (refer note 1)
Axls Trustee Services Limited Trustee
Jarvis Data-Infra Project Manager Private Limited Praject Manager [COPL, RDIPL and CVNPL)
Rellance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited Co-5ponsor
Jlo Infrastructure Management Services Limited Project Manager (SDIL)
B Promoters to the Partles specified in )i{A} above with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of Trustee*
* Axis Bank Limited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee
Services Limited {"Trustee”), trustee to Data Infrastructure
Trust, is considered as a related party of the Trust in line
with the SEB) InvIT Regulatlons based on recent directions
from SEB.
C Director of the Parties specified in IH{A} above

Directors of BIF IV Jarvls India Pte Ltd., Singapore

Liew Yee Foong

Ho Yeh Hwa

Velden Neo Jun Xiong {appointed w.e.l. August 13, 2021 and resigned w.e.f April 29, 2022)
Tang Qichen {resigned w.e.f. October 12, 2022)

Tan Aik Thye Derek {w.e.f. April 29, 2022)

Mauvrice Robert Hendrick Barnes (w.e.f. October 5, 2032}

Tay Zhi Yun (w.e.f. October 12, 2022}

Talisa Poh Pei Lynn {w.e.f. October 12, 2022)

Directors of Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited (till December 11, 2023)
Sridhar Rengan

Prateek Shroff {(w.e.f. May 26, 2023)

Radhika Vijay Haribhakti {w.e.f. June 1, 2023)

Jagdish Ganapathi Kinl (w.e.f. lune 1, 2023}

Rinki Ganguli (w.e.f. June 1, 2023)

Arun Balakrishnan {w.e.f. June 1, 2023}

Narendra Aneja {resigned w.e.f. May 31, 2023}

Pooja Aggarwal (appointed w.e.f. September 30, 2021 and resigned w.e.f. April 6, 2022}
Chetan Rameshchandra Desai {resigned w.e.f. May 31, 2023)

Swati Mandava {w.e.f. lune 28, 2022 and resigned w.e.f. May 25, 2023 )
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Directors of BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited {w.e.f. December 12, 2023)

Dhananjay Joshl
Pooja Aggarwal
Prateek Shroff
Sunil Srivastav
Jagdish kini
Radhika Haribhakti

Directors of Axis Trustee Services Limited

Deepa Rath

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya {resigned w.e.{_ January 15, 2024}
Ganesh Sankaran (resigned w.e.f. January 15, 2024}
Prashant Joshl {w.e.f. January 16, 2024)

Sumit Bali (w.e.f. January 16, 2024}

Director of Jio cture Manag Services Limited
Damodaran Satish Kumar (w.e.f. November 6, 2023)

Nikhil Chakrapani Suryanarayana Kavipurapu

Rahul Mukherjee {w.e.f. August 5, 2022}

Hariharan Mahadevan {resigned w.e.f. August 5, 2022}

Sudhakar Saraswatula {resigned w.e.f. November 10, 2023)

Director of Jarvis Data-Infra Project Manager Private Limited
Darshan Bhupendra Vora
Gaurav Mangj Chowdhary

Director of Rellance tndustrial Investments and Holdings Limited
Sethuraman Kandasamy (w.e.f. August 25, 2023)

V Mohana {w.e.f. August 25, 2023)

Bimal Manu Tanna {w.e.f. August 25, 2023)

Hital Rasiklal Meswani {resigned w.e.l. August 26, 2023)

vinod Mansukhlal Aambani {reslgned w.e.f. August 26, 2023)
Mahendra Nath Bajpai {resigned w.e.f. August 26, 2023}

Savithri Parekh (resigned w.e.f. August 26, 2023)

Dhiren Vrajlal Dalal [resigned w.e.f, March 30, 2023)

Balasubrmanian Chandrasekaran {resigned w.e.f. March 30, 2023)

List of Additional Related Partles as per regulation 19 of the SEBI laviT Regulations

Digital Fibre Infrastructure Trust
Indiz Infrastructure Trust {till Dacember 11, 2023)

Common Sponsor

Commaon Investment Manager

IV Transactions during the year with refated parties : {Rs. in Million}
St NojParticulars Relationship For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

1|Trustee Fee

Axls Trustee Services Limited Trustee 2 2
2|investment Management Fees

Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited Erstwhile Investment 19 28

Manager

BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited Investment Manager 9 =
3|Reimt t of Exp

Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited Erstwhile Investment 4 [

Manager

BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited Investment Manager 14 -
4|Project Manager Fees

lSio Infrastructure Mansgement Services Limited Project Manager 24 24

{sDIL)

5|Loans Given to subsidiaries

Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited (refer note I1A{2a)) Subsid ary (SPV) 8,800

Crest Digitel Private Limited (refer note NA{2b)} Subsidlary {Hold Co) 708 -

Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited {refer note IlA{1}} Subsidiary (SPV} 20 -
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Notes to Standalone Fi

ial Stat:

ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. in Milllon)

$r No|Particulars Relationship For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31 2024 March 31 2023
6|Repayment of loan from subsidiaries
Crest Digitel Private Limited (refer note 1A{2b)) Subsidiary {Hold Co} 135 =
Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited {refer note IA{1)} Subsidiary (SPV) 18 .
7 |Investment
Roam Dlglte! Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiary {SPV) [}
8|Interest Incame
5 it Digitet Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary (SPV) 41,435 40,600
Crest Digitel Private Limited Subsidiary {Hold Co} 0 -
Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiary (SPV} 1
9|Rent Expense
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary {SPV) 1 ]
10| Distribution to Unitholders
BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd. Co-Sponsor 34,720 26,888
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of Trustee 223 -
11|Dividend Income
Crest Digite! Private Limited Subsidiary {SPV) - 50
V  Balances as at end of the year: {Rs. in Million}
St Noiparticulars Relationship Mareh 31,2024 March 31,2023
1|interest Receivable on loans given
Sumrnit Digitel Infrastructure Limited Subsldlary {SPV) 25,154 30,605
Crest Digitel Private Limited Subsidiary (Hold Co) 4 -
Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiary {SPV) 0
2[Loans and Advances given
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited Subsldlary {SPV}) 258,800 250,000
Crest Digitel Private Limited Subsidiary [Hold Co) S70 -
Roam Digite! Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiary {SPV) 3 -
3|Other Payables
Summit Digitel infrastructure Limited Subsidiary [5PV) 1 0
Braokfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited Erstwhile Investment . 2
Manager
BIP Indla Infra Projects Management Services Private Lnvestment Manager 4
Limited
4|Unit Capital of the Trust
BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd. Co-Sponsor 152,018 229,227
5|Contribution to Corpus
Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited Co-Sponsor 240 240
6]Investments
In Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary {SPV) 2,150 2,150
- 2,150,000,000 Equity shares {Previous year: 2,150,000,000) of Re. 1 each
In Crest Digitel Private Limited Subsidiary {Hold Co)
- 3,710,000 Equity Shares {Previous year: 3,710,000) of Rs 10 each 9,219 9,219
- 1,792,270 {Previous year: Nil) 0% Optionally Convertible Redeemable 3,610 -
Preference Shares {"OCRPS")
- contingent consideration to acquire Optionally Convertible Redeemable 3,610
Preference Shares [“CCRPS")
In Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited Subsidiary (SPV) 0 -

- 100,000 Equity shares [Previous year ; Nil) of Re. 1 each
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24 Payment ta auditors: {Rs. in Million}

Particulars Year endad Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Statutory audit fees {includes Rs, 2.2 million (March 31, 2023 :Nil) for the previous year) 10 S
Certification fees -
Other audit services (refer note i) 3 26
0Out of pocket expenses 0 0
Total 33 31
Note:

i) Other audit services represents audit fees acerued/ paid for group reporting as per group referral instructions under PCAOB standards,

25 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
i) The Trust does not have any contingent liabilities as on March 31, 2024, In respect of March 31, 2023, refer note 12b for contingent consideration
in relation to acquisition of COPL
iy Board of Directors of BIP India, acting in its capacity as Investment Manager of Data InvIT, at its meeting held on January 4, 2024 has approved
the acquisition of 100% interest in American Tower Corporation’s Indlan tower business entity Le ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited ("ATC
India®) for an enterprise value of INR 165 billion (~USD 2 billion) {subject to pre-closing terms). Trust has signed a binding agreement on January 4,
2024 and the completion of the acquisition will be subject to approval of unitholders, various regulatory approvals and other pre closing terms

26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY:
The financlal instruments are categorized into three levels based on inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described below:
Leve! 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for ldentlcal assets or Habllitles;
Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Inputs which are significantly from unobservable market data.

i e IRs. in Mition)
Particulars Carrying Carrying Fair value herarchy
amount as at | amount as at Level of Input used in
March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023 level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets ] | -
At Amortised Cost |
Cash and Bank balances 88 28 - - E
Loan 259,373 250,000 . - -
Other Financial Assets 68 . -
Investments in subsidiaries {measured at 14,979 14,979 . -
cost)
Financlal Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings 12,378 .
Trade Payable 100 15 -
Other Financial Liabilities . 2 - = -
At falr value thraugh profit ar loss
Call Optian Written (refer note 12] 3,397 2,954 = - 3,397
(Previous Year - 2,954}
Payable towards acquisition of COPL {refer - 3,741 l
note 12b)

{Previous Year - 3,741}
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The following table presents the changes in level 3 items: (Rs. in Million)
Partitulars Contingent Call option written
consideration

Balance at the beginning of the year i.e, April 1, 2022 3,610 1,559
Fair value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 131 394
Balance at the end of the year i.e. March 31, 2023 3,741 2,953
Balance at the beginning of the year l.e. April 1, 2023 3,741 2,953
Falr value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss {1,561} 443
Setted during the year {refer note 12b} {2,180} -
Balance at the end of the year i.e. March 31, 2024 - 3,396
Valuation methodology:

All financial instruments are initially recognized and subsequently re-measured at fair value as described below:
a} The Trust considers that the carrying amount recognised in the financlal statements for financial assets and finandial liabifities measured at
amortised cost approximates their fair value,

b} The fair value of call option written to sell the shares of subsidlary Is measured using Black Scholes model. Key Inputs used in the measurement are:
{i) Stock Price: It is estimated based on the stock price as of the date of the transaction August 31,2020 of INR 2,150 million, as increased for the
interim period between August 31,2020 and March 31,2024 by the Cost of Equity as this would be expected return on the investment for the
acquirer.

{ii) Exercise Price: Rs. 2,150 million

{iii) Option Maturity: 30 years from August 31,2020 i.e., August 31,2050.

{iv) Risk free rate as on date of valuation : 7.1% {March 31, 2023 ; 7.4%} and cost of equity : 15.3%.

(v} The fair value on the date of acquisition of Rs. 2,020 million was recognised s a liability with a corresponding debit to equity as this is part of the
acquisition transaction described bn Corporate Information.

27 Capital management
The Trust adheres to a disciplined capital management framework which is underpinned by the following guiding principles:
i} Ensure financial Aexibility and diversify scurces of financing and their maturities to minimize liquidity risk while meeting investment requirements.

Wi} Leverage optimally = order to maximize unit holder return while maintaining strength and flexibility of the Balance Sheet.
The Trust monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The Trust's policy is to keep the gearing ratio optimum
after taking into account SEBI InvIT Regulations. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Trust may adjust the distribution to unitholders
{subject to the provisions of InvIT regulations which require distribution of at least 90% of the net distributable cash flows of the Trust to unit
halders), return capltal to unitholders or issue new units, The Trust includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and horrowings less cash and
cash equivalents.

Net Gearing Ratio
The net gearing ratio at the end of the year was as follows:
{Rs. In Millien}

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Debt [refer note (i} below) 12,378 -
Cash and cash equivalents {refer note 7) 188) {28}
Net debt (A) 12,290 {28)
Total Equity {8} 283,731 288,677
Net Gearing ratio {A/B)* 4.33% o

*As 5t March 31, 2023 the Trust has no barrowings, hence net gearing ratlo is not applicable,

Note:
{1l Debt is defined as long - term and shart - term berrawings as described in note 11 and 13
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Risk Management

The Trust's prinicipal financizal liabilities comprise of borrowings and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
meet any liabilities, for undertaking any investments/ acquisitions or meet any obligations of the Trust. The Trusts principal financial assets Include
investments, loans, cash and bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its operatians.

The Trust may be exposed to foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Ferelgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates
Exposures can arise on account of the various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee,

The following table shows foreign currency exposures in USS on financial liabilities at the end of the reparting pericd,

[Rs. in Million)
Particulars Farelgn Currency Exposure
As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
us$
Trade Payables 13 -
Net Exposure 13 -

The following table details the Trust's sensitivity to a 1% Increase and decrease against the relevant foreign currency. 1% represents management's

wofar ble possible change in foreign exchange rate.
{Rs. In Million}
Particulars Foreign Currency Sensitivity
As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023

1% Depreciation in INR {0} -
Impact on Prafit and Loss {0} 5
1% Apprediation in INR 0 -
Impact on Profit and Loss 0 -
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Trust's inability to meet its cash flow commitments on the due date. Trust's objective is to, at all times, maintain
optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collatera! requirements. Treasury monitors rolling forecasts of the Trust’s cash flow positien and
ensures that the Trust is able to meet its financial obligation at all times including contingencies,

The Trust closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a disciplined cash management system. Trust's liquidity is managed centrally with
operating units forecasting their cash and liquidity requirements.

Maturity profile of financial liabilities as on March 31, 2024
{Rs. in Million)

IParlIculars 0-1 Years 1-3 Years| 3-5 Years Above 5 years) Total
Borrowings 9,500 3,200 - - 12,700
Trade Payable 100 - - - 100
Other Financial - - - 3,397 3,397
Liablitles
Total 9,600 3,200 - 3,397 16,197
M ity profite of fi Tal llabllities as on March 31, 2023

{Rs. in Million}
Particulars 0-1 Years 1-3 Years| 3-5 Years Above 5 years Total
Trade Payable 15 - - - 15
Other Financial 3,962 . . 2,954 5,916
Liabilities
Total 3,977 - - 2,954 6,931
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to finandial loss.
The Trust is exposed to credit risk from its investing activities including loans to subsidiaries and deposits with banks. As at March 31, 2024 and
March 31, 2023, the credit risk is considered low since substantial transactions of the Trust are with its subsidiaries.

pRsLL?
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28 Segment Reporting
The Trust activities comprise of owning and investing in Infrastructure SPVs to generate cashflow for distribution to the beneficiaries. Based on
guiding prinziples given in Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment” this activity falls within a single operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of
Ind AS 108 have not separately been provided. The Trust has invested in the subsidiaries which has all the business operations in India. Hence,
there is only one geographic iegment.

23 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006;
There are no Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom Trust owes dues on
account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been made. The above information regarding
Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties has been identified on the basis of information available with the

ED]

Trust.

L t of Net Distributahble Cash Flows (NDCFs)*

[Rs. In Million}

Year ended

Year ended

Description

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Cash flows received from SPV fHoldCo in the form of interest / accrued interest

Cash flows received from SPV fHoldCa in the form of dividend / buy-back of equity shares / capital
reduction of equity shares

Any other income accruing at the Trust level and not captured above, including but not limited to

{interest freturn on surplus cash invested by the Trust

Add: Cash Nlows/ Proceeds from the 5PV / HoldCo towards the repayment of the debt issued to the
SPV by the Trust (refer note 1 and 2)

Total cash flow at the Trust Jevel {A}

46,504

153

30,557
50

23

47,061

30,630

Less: issue expenses payable by Trust including as reimbursements towards expenses of Trust met
by the Sponsors

Less: annual expenses of the Trust including audit fees, project manager fees, investment
management fees, stock exchange fees, other statutory fees, depository fees, legal expenses,
credit rating fees and valuer fees

Less: Income tax (if applicable) at the standalone Trust level and payment of other statutory dues

Less: Repayment of external debt lincluding interest] / redeemable preference shares /|
debentures, etc., if deemed necessary by the Investment Manager
Less: net cash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement under loan agreements, if any
Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes} from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the
following:

- related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds;

- directly attributable transaction costs;

- proceeds rei ted or pl d to be rei
Regulations

ted as per Regulation 18{7){a) of the InwiT

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes} from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed
pursuant to an earfier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested
subsequently

Less: Amount invested in any of the Portfolio Assets for service of debt or intarest

Less: Capital expenditure if any (including acquisition of other infrastructure assets [ SPVs /
HoldCoj {refer note 1)

Add: Proceeds from fresh issuance of units

Less: Reserve for debentures / loans / ctapex expenditure in the intervening period tilf next
proposed distribution i deemed nacessary by the Inwestrnent Manager invested in permitted
investments

{274}

1

(20}

{105)

{10}

Total cash {outflows) / 1 lon at the Trust level (B)

(295)

{115)

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B}

46,766

30,515
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1}During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust has given unsecured loan of Rs. 20 million to SPV {RDIPL) for its operations . Out of this, SPV has
repaid Rs. 18 million during the year.

2} Additional information in respect of Inflow / outflow of funds not included in the table above:
a.0uring the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust has raised money through issue of listed Commercial Papers carrying face value of Rs. 8,500
million with an issue price aggregating Rs. 8,800 million. Further, the Trust has utilised these proceeds by giving an unsecured loan to its 5PV (SDIL)

amounting to Rs. 8,800 milllon in order to enable the 5PV to pay the outstanding interest on existing loan given by the Trust to the SPY,

b. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust issued 32,000 listed unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs, 100,000 each
amounting te Rs. 3,200 million. The Trust has utilised the proceeds of the NCD as follows

Particulars Amaount

{Rs. In Million)
Payment of contingent consideration for acquisition of CDPL {Hold Co) (refer note 12b) 2,401
Unsecured loan given to COPL {Hold Co)" 705
Fived Deposits placed {marked as lien for Interest Servicing as per borrowing agreement) 68
Transaction expenses of the issue and general corporate purpose 26
Total 3,200

" Dut of the loan given to COPL, Rs. 135 million was repald during the year.

* The current statement of NDCF has been prepared in accordance with the format provided in Paragraph F of Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master
Circular No. SEBI/HOfDDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 for Infrastructure Investment Trusts dated July 06, 2023. A new format for NDCF has been
pravided by SEBI via circular : SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 which will be effective from April 01, 2024,

{Rs. in Million}

Description Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net Distributable cash flows as per above 46,766 30,515
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 28 253
Total Net Distributable Cash Flows 46,794 30,768

The Net Distributabfe Cash Flows {"NDCF™} as above is for the year ended March 31, 2024. An amount of Rs. 46,785 millions (March 31, 2023 : Rs,
30,568 million) has been distributed to unit holders as follows.

(Rs. in Million}

Particulars Return on Capital Return of Capital Total
March, 2024 46,660 135 46,795
March, 2023 30,568 - 30,568

Date of distribution payment Retum on Return of Total Distrlbution
Capital Capital
May 30 and 31, 2023 5,750 - 5,750
August 31, 2023 9,430 9,430
September 20, 2023 10,000 10,000
December 01, 2023 9,500 - 9,500
February 22, 2024 10,980 . 10,950
March 18, 2024 1,000 135 1,135
Total 11,980 135 46,795
31 Income taxes:

The Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) as above is distributed as follows In the respective manner:

[Rs. in Million)

in accordance with section 10 (23FC} of the Income Tax Act, the income of business trust in the form of interest received or receivable from project
5PV is exempt from income tax. Accordingly, the Trust is not required to provide any current tax liability. However, for the income directly earned
by the Trust, it will be required to provide for current tax ltability.

{Rs. In Million)

Particulars Year ended Year endad
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit before tax 41,842 40,042
Applicable tax rate 42, 74% 42.74%
Computed tax expense 17,883 17,114
Tax effect on

Interest received from SPV's considered as pass through {17,718} (17,352)
Dividend income received from COPL considered as pass through - {21)
Gain on settlement of contingent consideration (refer note 12{b)) (667} -
Expenses disallowed since interest income is exempt 504 269
Adjustments of tax relating to earlier years {3) -
Incame Tax expenses (7)) ml
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32 Additional regulatory Information required by Schedule i1

{I} Key Financial Ratios and analysis:

Year ended March 31, 2024
sr. Ratlo N 11 D i As on March 31,] As on March 31, 2023 |% Change Reason for variance
No. 2024
i} |Current Ratio Current Assets Current 3 8 -65%|Refer Note {i}
Liabilities
i} |Debt Equity Ratia |Total Debt Shareholder's 4% NA 100%|Refer Note i}
Equity
i} [Debt Service Earnings available for|Debt Service 675 NA) lmﬁlﬂefer Note {ii}
Coverage Ratio Debt service Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + depreciation+ Finance cost.
Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments. Principal repayments excludes
repayments in nature of refinancing as these are not repaid out of the profits for the year.
v} |Return on Equity  |Met Profit after taxes |Average 15% 1a% 4%
Shareholders
{Unitholder)
Equity
v] |Inventory Turnover |Cost of Gogds Sold  |Average NA NA NA MNA/
Inventory
vl) |Trade  receivable|Net Credit Sales Average Trade NA| NA/ NA NA|
Turnover |Gross Credit Sales - |Receivables
{in times} Sale Returns)
vii} |Trade payable|Purchases of services|Average Trade 13 12 5% NA|
Turnover and other expenses |Payables
{In times)
wili} [Net Capital|Net Sales (Total Sales |Working 3 2 71%| Refer Note (i}
Turnover - Sale Return) Capital
[Current Assets
- Current
ix) |Net Profit Net Profit Net Sates 101% 93% %
x) |Return on capital |Earning before Capltal 14% 14% %
employed interest and taxes  |Employed
iTangible Net
Worth + Total
Debt)
xi) |Return on|Return generated on|Average 12% 30%) -59%| Refer Note [iv)
Investment |Investments investments
xii} |Asset Coverage Net Assets {Total Total Debt 24 NA 100%|Increase on account of
Assets- Intangible issuance  of  debt
Assets) - {current instruments in current
liabilities - short term year
debts)
aill) |interest Service|{PBIT + Non Cash Interest 91 NA| 100%|Increase on account of|
Coverage Expenses} issuance of debt
instruments in current|
year
xiv) |[Net Worth Profit after tax Shareholder's 15% 14% 6%Increase on account of
fund + increase in Profit after
Retained tax
Earnings
Notes:
(i} The ratio has decreased during the year mainly on account of issuance of commercial paper during the year.
(i} The ratio has increased due to issuance of commercial paper and non convertible debenture during the year.
[t} The ratio has intreased due to decrease in working capital en account of issuance of commercial paper during the year. 6“ RUCE\
\
{iv) The ratio has decreased on account of fixed deposit balance at the end of the year. Iru_v‘ ?\-\
| = — I=
5 S0
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Year ended March 31, 2023
Sr. Ratio N o] | As on March 31,|As on March 31, 2022[% Change Reason for variance
No. 2023
i} |Current Ratio Current Assets Current 8 5 42%|The ratio has increased
Llabilities during the year mainly
on account of increase
in Interest accrued on
loan given to SDIL.
il} |Debt Equity Ratio  |Total Debt Shareholder's NA NA NA NA
Equity
It} |Debt Service Earnings avallable for|Debt Service NA] NA NA NA
Coverage Ratio Debt service
Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + depreciation+ Fihance cost.
Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments. Principal repayments excludes
repayments in nature of refinancing as these are not repaid out of the profits for the year.
tw} |Return om Equity  [Net Profit after taxes [Average 14% 14% -3% NA
Shareholders
{Unitholder}
Equity
v} |Inventory Turnover |Cost of Goods Sold  |Average Not applicable
Inventory
vi) |Trade  recelvable|Net Credit Sales|Average Trade NA NA| NA NA]
Turnover {Grass Credit Sales -|Receivables
{in times) Sale Returns)
vii} |Trade payable|Purchases of services|Average Trade 12 10 24%|increase  in  trade]
Turnover and other expenses |Payables payables as on March
{In times) 31,2023
vill) [Net Capital|Net Sales {Total Sales|Waorking 2 2 {34%)|The ratio has|
Turnover - Sale Return) Capital decreased on account
(Current Assets| of increase in working|
- Current capital due to interest
Liabilities) accrued on loan given
to SDIL
Ix) |Net Profit Net Profit Net Sales 98%) 99% [1;.3
x) |Return on capital|Earning before|Capital 14% 14% 0%
employed interest and taxes Employed
[Tangible Net
Worth + Total
Debt)
xi} |Return on|Return generated on|Average 30%) - 100%| Pertains to interest
Investment investments Investments income on fixed
deposlts
xil} |Asset Coverage Net Assets {Total Total Oebt NA A NA NA|
Assets- Intangible
Assets}) - [current
liabilities - shart term
debts)
xiil) |interest Service|{PBIT + Non Cash nterest NAJ NA/ NA NA
Coverage fxpenses}
xiv) |Net Worth Profit after tax Shareholder's 14%] 14% 0% -
fund +
Retained
lEamings

) The Trust does not hold any benami property and no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Trust for holding benami
property under the Benaml Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

{I} The Trust have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financlal [nstitution or government or any government autharity.
(W) The Trust has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

v

The Trust does not have any transactions recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
assessments under Incorme Tax Act, 1961,

PRILLP
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{Vl) The Trust has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency.

{vi) utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions - The borrowings obtained by the Trust from financial institutions have been
applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.

33 Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of BIP India have declared a distribution [return on capltal) of Rs, 2 3826 per
unit on May 16, 2024.Puriuant to the requirement of Regulation 22{7) of the SEBI InvIT Regulations and receipt of approval from at least 75% of the
unit holders by value {excluding the value of units held by parties related to the transaction), Project Holdings Nine (DIFC) Limited has been
inducted as a Sponsor to the Trust. Further, the Deed of Accession dated May 16, 2024 has been executed to induct the said company as a Sponsor
to the Trust.

34 “0” represents the amount below the denomination threshold,
35 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager of the Trust at their
respective meetings held on May 16, 2024.

For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
B1P india Infra Projects Management Services Private
{acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure Trust}

o ¥ W E]
Dhananjay J Inder Mehta Farah Irani
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
DIN: 09095270
Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024 Date; May 16, 2024
Place: Mumbai Place: California Place: Mumbai
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= Chartered Accountants
De|0|tte One International Center,
- Tower 3, 27"-32" Floor,
HaSkll‘IS & SE"S LLP Senapati Bapat Marg,
Elphinstone Road {West)

Mumbat, 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Unitholders of Data Infrastructure Trust (formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Data Infrastructure Trust
(formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust) {“the Trust”} and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity, Consolidated Cash Flow Staternent for the year then ended, Consolidated
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2024, Consolidated Statement of Total Returns at Fair
Value and Net Distributable Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditor and based on the separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued
thereunder read with the SEBI Master Circular Number SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July
06, 2023 {together referred to as the "InvIT Regulations") in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2{1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, to the extent not inconsistent with the InvIT Regulations, of the state of affairs of the Trust as at March
31, 2024, and its consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, its changes in unitholders’
equity, its cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024, its net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, its
total returns at fair value and its net distributable cash flows for the year ended on that date and other
financial information of the Trust.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) and other pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl).
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibility for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAl and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAY's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us and other auditor, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the consolidated financial statements.

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 27t - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai -
400 013, Maharashtra, India (LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2 B (n) which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” to comply
with InVIT Regulations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

In accordance with InviT Regulations, the
Trust discloses Statement of Net Assets at
Fair Value which requires fair valuation of
net assets.

The fair value of net assets of the Trust is
determined by an independent valuer
using discounted cash flow method.

While there are several assumptions that
are required to determine the fair value
of net assets of the Trust, assumptions
with the highest degree of estimate,
subjectivity and impact on fair value are
the waluation methodology used in
determining the fair value, future
cashflows estimated by the
Management, discount rate and terminal
growth rate. Auditing this assumption
required a high degree of auditor
judgment as the estimates made by the
Management and the independent
external wvaluer contain significant
measurement uncertainty.

Refer the Consolidated Statement of Net
assets at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements.

Sr. | Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
No.
1 Fair Value of Net Assets of the Trust: Principal audit procedures performed among others:

Our audit procedures relating to the determination of
the fair value of net assets included the following,
among others:

* Tested design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the internal control related to
determination of fair value of assets and review
of Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value

* Reviewed the independent external valuer's
valuation reports to obtain an understanding of
the source of information used by the
independent external vatuer in determining the
fair valuation.

* Tested the reasonableness of the future cash
flows shared by Management with external
valuer by comparing it to source information
used in preparing the forecasts and with
historical forecasts and actual performance to
support any significant expected future
changes to the business.

* Evaluated the Trust's independent external
valuer's competence to perform the valuation.
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Sr. Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
No.

* Involved our internal fair valuation
specialists to independently determine fair
value of the Net Assets of the Trust as at the
balance sheet date, which included
assessment of reasonableness of the
discount rate and terminal growth rate used
by management in valuation and the
methodology to determine the fair value.

* Compared the fair value determined by the
Trust with that determined by our internal
fair wvaluation specialist to assess the
reasonableness of the fair valuation.

* Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation in the Consolidated Statement
of Net Assets at Fair Value and evaluated
adequacy of disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements as per requirement of
InviT Regulation.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

BIP India Infra Project Management Services Private Limited {‘Investment Manager’) acting in its
capacity as an Investment Manager of the Trust is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information and disclosures included in the Annual Report but does not
include the consclidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




a

Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Management of Investment Manager {“the Management”), is respansible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in
unitholders’ equity, consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2024, consolidated
statement of net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2024, total returns at fair value and net distributable
cash flows for the year ended on that date of the Trust and its subsidiaries in accordance with the InvIT
Regulations, the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1){a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, to the extent not inconsistent with InviT Regulations.

The respective Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and of the subsidiaries included in the Group,
are respansible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Investment Manager of the Trust, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors of the
subsidiaries included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Trust’s and subsidiaries ability to
continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and
subsidiaries either intends to liquidate the Trust and subsidiaries or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and subsidiaries included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
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material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controfs relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenticn in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Trust and subsidiaries included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are



Deloitte
Haskins & SelisLLP

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
prectudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other matters

We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs. 3 millian as at March 31, 2024, total revenues of Rs. Nil and net cash inflow amounting to
Rs. 2 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements.
These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished to
us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs. 1 million as at March 31, 2024, total revenues of Rs. 0 million and net cash inflow
amounting to Rs. 1 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements are
unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this
subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. [n our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements are not
material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the report of the other auditor and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit and as required by InvIT Regulations, we report that:

a)

b)

¢)

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and of its subsidiaries dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of consolidated
financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards as defined in Rule 2(1){a) of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with the InviT Regulations.
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d) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to be transferred to the Investor
Protection and Education Fund by the Trust and its subsidiaries.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/ W100018)

4

Mohammed Bengali
Partner
Membership No. 105828
UDIN: 24105828BKFIlI6577

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2024



Data Infrastructure Trust

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

{Rs. in Million)

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 3 442,796 407,069
Right of use assets 4A 1,665 1,173
Capital work in progress 3 517 489
Goodwill on acquisition 3 7,990 7,990
Other Intangible assets 3 4,293 4,833
Intangible assets under development 3 0 S
Financial assets:

Other financial assets 5 8,105 7,114
Deferred tax asset {net) 6 15 1
Other non-current assets 7 10,134 67,007
Total non-current assets 475,515 495,681
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets:

Trade receivables 8 1,013 1,783
Cash and cash equivalents 9 6,458 5,760
Other bank balances 10 130 208
Other financial assets i1 11,065 5,713
Other current assets 12 2,404 4,167
Total current assets 21,070 17,631
Total assets 496,585 513,312
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Unit capital 13 261,017 261,152
Contribution 13A 240 240
Other equity 14 {127,560) (91,533)
Total equity 133,697 169,859
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 282,503 275,213
Lease liabilities 4B 1,357 850
Other financial liabilities 20 20,211 17,575
Provisions i7 15,649 13,716
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 1,067 1,202
Other non current liabilities 21 226 422
Total non-current liabilities 321,013 308,978
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Data Infrastructure Trust

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

{Rs. in Million)
Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Short - term borrowings 18 29,541 20,162
Lease liabilities 4B 266 216
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 19 26 1
small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 19 7,468 4,638
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 20 2,399 7,842
Other current liabilities 21 2,165 1,611
Current Tax liabilities 16 1
Pravisions 17 9 5
Total Current liabilities 41,875 34,475
Total liabilities 362,888 343,453
Total equity and liabilities 496,585 513,312
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial 1to 47
statements
As per our report of even date.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
Chartered Accountants BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited
Firm Regn No: 117366W/W-100018 (acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure
Trust)
+
S
f . E ‘ %Y\
Mohammed Bengali Dhananjay Joshi
Partner Managing Director

DIN: 09096270

Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

el P o’

inder Mehta Farahrani
Chref Financial Officer Compliance Officer
Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
Place: California Place: Mumbai
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Data Infrastructure Trust

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. in Million)
Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
INCOME
Revenue from operations 22 128,775 110,998
Interest Income 23 2,534 415
Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund (including net gain on fair 635 379
valuation)
Other income 24 1,565 654
Total income 133,509 112,446
EXPENSES
Investment Manager fee 28 28
Trustee fee 2 2
Project Manager fee 24 24
Audit fees 46 63
Network operating expenses 25 77,246 66,238
Employee benefits expense 26 1,335 1,156
Finance costs 27 25,001 20,821
Valuation fee 3 1
Annual Listing fee 1 2
Rating fee 35 38
Insurance and Security Fees 11 13
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 17,047 15,058
Legal and professional fees 766 213
Other expenses 29 870 861
Total expenses 122,415 104,518
Profit before tax 11,094 7,928
Tax expenses 6
i} Current tax 74 118
ii) Income tax for earlier years {23) 7)
iii) Deferred tax credit {149) {150}
Total tax expense {98) {39)
Profit for the year 11,192 7,967
Other comprehensive income
Items which will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans {0) 1
0
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
[ 1
Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Cash flow hedges:
Fair value (loss) fgain arising on hedging instrument during the year (86) 160
Cost of hedging
Changes in the fair value during the year in relation to time-period / {474) {375}
forward elements retated hedged items
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
{560) {215)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (A+8) {560) (214)
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,632
Attributable to unitholders 10,632
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Data infrastructure Trust

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. in Million)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Earnings per unit {EPU) 30
Basic per unit (in Rupees) 4,30 3.06
Diluted per unit {in Rupees)} 4.30 3.06
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial 1to 47
statements
As per ocur report of even date.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
Chartered Accountants BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited
Firm Regn No: 117366W/W-100018 (acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data

) Infrastructure Trust)

Mohammed Bengali Dhananjay Joshi
Partner Managing Director
DIN: 09096270

Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Koell %ouw _

..;.--—'—""""_'_'_'_'_
Inder Mehta Farah Irani
Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
Place: California Place: Mumbai




Data Infrastructure Trust

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Unitholders' equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Rs. in Million}

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{A) Unit capita)
Balance at the beginning of the year 261,152 261,152
Issued during the year B .
Distribution during the year - Return of Capital * (135} .
Balance at the end of the year 261,017 261,152
{B) Inittal contribution
Balance at the beginning of the year 240 240
Contribution during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 240 240
Other comprehensive income {Rs. in Million)
{C) |Other equity Reserves and surplus: Cash flow hedges Cost of hedging reserve Total
retained eamings
As on April 01, 2022 [67,799) {113} 818) {68,730)
Profit for the year 7,967 - - 7,967
Distribution during the year - Return on Capital © (30,568} o - (30,568)
Change in fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments - 94 - 94
Change in fair value of time value of option - - {757) (787
Amounts reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss - 66 382 448
Provisian for unit issuance cost written back 13 - - 13
OC) impact on remeasurement of defined benefit plans {0} - - {0}
Batante as at the end of the year i.e. March 31, 2023 (90,387) a7 {1,193} (91,532)
As on April 01, 2023 190,387) a7 (1,193} {91,532)
Profit for the year 11,192 - - 11,192
Distribution during the year - Return on Capital # [46,660) - - {46,660)
Change in fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments - [37) - (37)
Changes in the fair value in relation to time-periodf forward elements - - (814) 814)
related hedged items
Amounts reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss - 49) 340 291
OClimpact on remeasurement of defined benefit plans {0} - 5 (0)
Balance as at the end of the yeari.e. March 31, 2024 {125,854) [39) (1,667} (127,560)

* The distributions made by the Data InvIT to its unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) of the Data InviT under the SEBI InvIT Regulations {refer note
42].

See accompanying notes to the consclidated financial statements 11047
"0" represents the amount below the denomination threshold.

As per our report of even date.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
Chartered Accountants BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited
Firm Regn No: 117366W/W-100018 {acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure Trust}
'
M % ‘
-t o n A
_—-—"'—'—.— g a2
Mohammed Bengalt Dhananfsy Jofhi Inder Mehta Farah (rani
Partner Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer

DIN: 09096270

Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: California Piace: Mumbai




Data Infrastructure Trust

Consofidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. in Millign)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 11,094 7,928
Adjusted for:
Fair value loss on financial instruments 443 528
Gain on settlement of contingent consideration (refer note: 20(i)j {1,561) -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17,047 15,058
Gain an Sale of Mutual Fund (including net gain on fair valuation) - {18)
Gain on buyback of senior secured notes - {590}
Interest income on fixed deposits and security deposits {232) (318}
intarest income on capital advance {2.275) (69}
ineffectiveness on derivative contracts designated as cashflow hedge 2 (9)
Provision for doubtful debts 2 5
Liabilities / Provision no longer required written back - 132)
Exchange loss {attributable to finance cost) 571 3,087
Modification of derivative contracts - 7
Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress 10 16
Finance costs 24,424 17,727
Operating profit before working capital changes 49,525 43,319
Adjusted for :
Trade receivables, other financial assets and other assets 4,400 213
Trade payables, other financial liabilities and other liabilties 4,844 (20}
9,244 193
Cash generated from operating activities 58,769 43,512
Income taxes {paid} / refund (net} (452 52
Met Cash flow generated from operations (A} 58,317 43,564
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Contingent Consideration paid for acquisition of subsidiary irefer note 20{i}) {2,401) .
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {3,025) 171.647)
{including capital work in progress. capital advance and intangible assets
under development)
Sale of investments - 1,368
Investments in bank deposits {net} (53) (e}
Interest received 2,535 287
Net Cash flow used in investing activities {8) [2,944) (69,968}
€ CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payment of lease liabilities (305) {165)
Proceeds frem long term berrowings 37,632 136,844
Repayment of long term borrowings {22,266) {63,087
Proceeds from short term borrowings - 2,250
Repayment of short term borrowings - {2,250)
Finance costs paid (22,936) {17,073)
Payment of distribution to unitholders - Return on Capital {46,660) {30,568}
Payment of distribution to unitholders - Returs: of Capital {135) -
Provision for unit issuance costs written back - 13
Net Cash flow [used In) / generated from financing activitles (C) (54,670} 25,964
Net increase / {decrease] in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 703 [440)
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 5,754 6,180
Add; Effect of unrealised fair value gain on mutual funds 1 14
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 65,458 5,754
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Data Infrastructure Trust

Consolldated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

Reconclliation of cash and cash equi;aignts T ) i _;’-ea'r-‘e;aed_ B Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of
Balances with banks in current account 944 825
Fixed deposits with banks 730
Investments in Mutual Fundi 4,784 4,935
Bank Overdraft - (8)
Cash and cash equivalents {Refer note 9) 6,458 5,754
Changes in Liability arising from financing activities
{Rs. in Milliar)
Particulars As at Cash Flow Non Cash As at
Agril 01, 2023 Amortised Amortised  |Net Gain on buyback| March 31, 2024
Prepaid finance |  premium /
charges and discount
exchange loss
Barrawirgs (refer note - 15 and 18] 295,375 15,366 904 399 - 312 044
Total 295,375 15,366 904 399 - 312,044
{®s. 10 Mitan )
Particulars As at Cash Flow Non Cash As at
AprHl D1, 2022 Amortised Net Gain on buyback| March 31, 2023
Prepaid finance
charges and
unrezlised
Barrawings frefer note - 15 and 18) 218,844 73,764 3,357 | 590) 295,375
Total 218,844 | 73,764 3,357 {590} 255,375

Notes:
1 The abave Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Methed™ as set out in IND AS - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows”

See sccompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1o 47

At perour repaort of even date.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
Chartered Accountants BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Umited
Frrr Regn No: 11?356wa-100018 {acting in the tapacity of Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure Trust]

'l

Mohammed Bengall Dhananjay Joshi
Fartner Managing Director
DiN: 09096270
Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 1024
Plate: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
A — d"'"'.-'_._'_._'__ s
Inder Mehta Farah lrani
Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
Plate: Califorria Place: Mumbai




Data Infrastructure Trust
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financia! Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023:

{A) Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value: {Rs. in Millsion)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Book Value Fair Value* Book Value Fair Value*
A. Assets 496,585 686,047 513,312 682,831
B. Liabilities {as reflected in the balance sheet) 362,888 362,888 343,453 343,453
C. Net Assets (A-B) 133,697 323,159 169,859 339,378
D. No. of Units {in million}) 2,603 2,603 2,603 2,603
E. NAV{C/D}) 51.36 124.15 65.26 130.38

*Total Assets includes the fair value of the assets attributable to Trust as at March 31, 2024, Assets are valued as per valuation report issued by
independent valuer appointed under the SEBI InvIT Regulations and relied on by the statutony auditors.

Project wise breakup of fair value of assets as at March 31, 2024: {Rs. in Million)
Project

: As at M:rsc:til

]
March 31, 2024 2023
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited ("SDPL") 663,496 663,962
Crest Digitel Private Limited {"CDPL") 21,308 17,637
Roam Digite! Private Limited* {"RDIPL") 1 B
Crest Virtual Network Private Limited" {"CVNPL"} 3 g
Consolidation Adjustments 1,068 1,204
Subtotal 685,876 682,803
Assets (in Trust) L 171 28
Total Assets 686,047 682,831
* The Trust has acquired Roam Digitel Private Lirnited w.e.f. September 08, 2023
* COPL acquired Crest Virtual Network Private Limited w.e.f. September 21, 2023.
Data InvIT has also conducted valuation as per SEBI InvIT Regulations in September, 2023.
Detailed Project wise breakup of fair value of assets as at March 31, 2024:
Consolidated
RDIPL CVNPL | Total of SPVs Total
Particulars SDIL{A) |COPL{E Trust (D Adjustments
() ) © o | =i (o} = 5 (C+D+E)

A. Enterprise Value (EV) asper| 618,082 | 18,114 636,196 - 636,196
Independent Registered
Valuer's report
B. Cash and Bank Balance and 6,696 245 1 3 6,945 171 7,116
Other assets
C. Net liabilities considered in 38,718 2,949 0 41,667 1,068 42,734
valuation
D, Net Assets (A+B+C) 663,496 | 21,308 1 3 684,808 171 1,068 686,047

Detalled Project wise breakup

of fair value

of assets as at March 31, 2023;

Consolidated

Particulars SDIL (A} | COPL (B) e Adjustments | Total {C+D+E)
(=(as8) [ (D) )

A. Enterprise Value (EV) as per| 622,932 | 15,415 638,347 638,347
Independent Registered
aluer's report
8. Cash and Bank Balance 5,769 240 6,009 28 5,037
C. Net liabilities considered in 35,261 1,982 37,243 1,204 38,447
valuation
D. Net Assets (A+8+C) 663,962 | 17,637 681,599 28 1,204 682,831




Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the discount rate, while holding all other

assumptions constant. The result of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars As at March  As at March
31, 2024 31, 2023

Discount rate

a. Discount rate - 50 basis points NAV [Rs. Per unit) 135.86 142.37

b. Discount rate - 50 basis points NAV impact (%) 9.56% 9.20%

¢. Discount rate + 50 basis points NAV (Rs. Per unit) 112,98 119.24

d. Discount rate + 50 basis points NAV impact (%} (8.89%) {8.55%)

Due to the use of discounted cash flow method to determine the fair value of net assets, it is considered as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as

per the requirements of Ind AS 113 " Fair value measurements”.

{B) Consolidated Statement of Total Return at Fair Value

{Rs. in Millian}

Particulars

Yearended  Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,

2023
Total comprehensive incame [as per statement of profit and loss) 10,632 7,753
Add/{Less): Other changes in fair value not recognized in Total Comprehensive Income - -
Total return 10,632 7,753




Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes f g part of the Ci lidated Financial for year ended March 31, 2029
1 CORPORATE INFORMATION
Thec¢ lidated financial st 1t comprise financial statements of Data Infrastructure Trust {"TData InviT/Trust™) {formerly known as Tower Infrastructure Trust)

and its subsidiaries / Special Purpose Vehicle {SPVs) [a) Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited” {"SDIL), (b} Crest Digitel Private Limited [formerly known as Space
Teleinfra Private Limited ["CDPL"), (¢} Roam Digite! Infrastructure Private Limited ["RDIPL™} and [d} Crest Virtua! Network Private Limited {formerly known as Kinetic
Road Assets Private Limited] {"CVYNPL") [collectively, the Group) .

Trust was set up by Relrance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited {“Relance Sponsor’) on lanuary 31, 2019, as a contributory irrevocable trust under the
provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882, The Trust was registered as an infrastructure investment trust under Securities and Exchange Board of India {Infrastructure
Investment Trusts) Regulaticins, 2014 [“InviT Regulations™ on March 19, 2019, having registration number INfinvIT/18-19/0009. Pursuant to the approval granted by
SEBI and upon issuante of fresh Certificate of Registration, the name of the Trust hat changed from 'Tower Infrastructure Trust' to 'Data Infrastructure Trust' w.e.f.
QOctober 08, 2021.

Spensors of the Trust are BIF IV farvis India Pte. Ltd, a Campany registered in Singapore and Reliance Industrial Investrents and Holdings Limited, a Company
incorporated in India. Sponsors of the Trust are BIF IV Janvs India Pte. Ltd., a company registered in Singapore and Reliance Industrial Investrments and Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in India. Pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 22{7) of the SEBI InviT Regulations and receipt of approval from at least 75% of
the unit holders by value {ex:tluding the value of units held by parties related to the transaction], Project Holdings Mine {DIFC) Limited has been inducted as a
Sponsor to the Trust. Further, the Deed of Accession dated May 16, 2024 has been executed to induct the said company ar a Sponsor to the Trust.

The Trustee to the Trust is Axis Trustee Services Limited { Trustee”)

W e.f. December 12, 2023, BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited {"BIP India / investment Manager™) has been appointed as the Investmant
Manager of the Trust basis the approval from SEBI vide letter dated December 11, 2023. Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited [“BIIMPL / erstwhile
Investment Manager~} is the #rstwhile Investment Manager of the Trust. BIIMPL had resigned as the Investment Manager of the Trust vide letter dated September
29, 2023 but ¢continued in its Lapacity 19 close of business heurs on Decernber 11, 2023.

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING ANC PREPARATION OF CONSOLICATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated finsncial st: of Trust comprises the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Consolidated Staternent of Cash Flows, the Consolidated Staternent of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024 and notes to the Financia
Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory Information. Additionally, it includes the Consolidated Statement of Net
Assets at fair Value as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Total Returns at fair Value for year then ended and other additional financial disclosures as required
under the SEBIInvIT Reguwiations. The Consalidated Financial Staterments weve autherized for issue in accordance with resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of
the Investment Manager on behall of the Trust on May 16, 2024, The C idated Financial $ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
invIT Regulations, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI Master Cireular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/OIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 {*SEBI Circular”);
Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2{1){a} of the Companies {Indian A ing Standards) Rules, 2015 {"Ind AS'}, 16 the extent not inconsistent with the
SEBI InviT Regulations {Refer Note 13 on presentation of “Wnit Capital™ as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments.
Presentation}, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and ather accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Statement of compliance with Ind AS:

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, to the extent not inconsistent with the InviT
Regulations as more fully described above.

These financial statements have been prepared and p d on a historical cost ion, excapt for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies below. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly
issued Indian A ing Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Indian Accounting Standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in
use.

These financial statements are presentad in R$ million, and all values are rounded to the nearest Million (INR 000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consalidated Ind AS Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of the Trust and entities controlled by the Trust. Control is achieved when the Group:
- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its invoh with the i ; and

- has the ability to use its power 1o affects its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,

income and exp of a subsidiary acquired or di d of during the period are included in the lidated 5 of Profit and Loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiacy,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income 3r¢ attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-ontrolling interests. Total

cor hensive income of ies is attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance.

The financial statements are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intra-group balances and transactions including unrealised gain / toss from such transactions are

li d upon c lidation. Consolidated Fi ial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. When necessary, adjustments are made to the fi ial s of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

The Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of the trust i.e. year ended on March
31, 2024.

Changes in the Group's ownership interasts in existing subsidisdies that do not result in the Group losing the control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Greup's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any differencs batwaen the amaynt by which the nen-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or raceived is
recognised directly in aquity and attributed to ownars of the Group.
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‘When the Group loses ¢ontrol of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recagnised in Statement of Profit and Lass and is caleulated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and {ii] the previcus carrying am:unt of the assets {including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amaunts previcusly recognised in other tompreheniive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or Labilities of the subsidiary {i.e, reclassitied to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified /psrmitted by applicable Ind AS). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subtequent azceunting under Ind AS 109, or, when applicable, the cast on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or joint venture,

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING PCLICIES

{b)

Current and Non-Current Classification:

The Group p assets and liabilities in the Bal, Sheet based on Current/ Non-Current classification.

An asset is treated as Current when it is

i} Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

i) Held primarily for trading;

iii} Expected to b realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o seithe a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is treated as Current when

i} Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

ii} Held primarily for trading;

iii} Itis due to be settled within twehre months after the reporting period, or

i) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The Group has considered 12 manths as its normal operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets:

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumufated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price,
borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use

Subsequent coits are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as & separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow 1o the entity and the cost can be measured reliably,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a froperty, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lais when the asset is derecognised

{i) In case of Subsidiary SOIL -

Depreciation is provided using the straight line method as per the useful life of the assats esti d by the m g The asti d useful lives of the asssts,
which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule Il of the Act, are listed in the table below. Depreciation on addition/ deletion of
property, plant and equipment made during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from/ to the date of such addition/ deletion,

Assat Group Estimated wseful life {in years)
Compulers 3 years

Plant and Equipments® 7 to 30 years

Office Equiprents® 3 years

Furniture and Fixtures” S yoars

Freehold land is not depreciated, L hedd land and | hald imp 35 i3 depreciated over the period of lease,

* For these class of assets, based on an internal sssessment supported by a technical evaluation conducted, the management believes the useful life of the assets is
appropriate which is different than those prescribed under Part C of Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Based on internal 1t the re beeli the residual value of Plant and equipments is estimated to be 6% and 5% for other assets of the original cost
of those respective assets. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Praperty, Plant and Equi are revi d at each fi ial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving
amount of tha asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

{ii) In case of Substdiary COPL -
Depreciation is provided using the straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management. The estimated useful lives of the assets,

which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule 1l of the Act, are listed in the table below. Depreciation on addition/ deletion of
property, plant and equipment made during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from/ to the dateof such addition/ deletion The useful life is as follows:

Particulars of Property, plant and equipment Useful tife {in no. of years]

Plant and Equipment® 3-10

Office equiprnents K

Lease improvernents and furaiture 10

Vehicles £

Computars 3

*Far this ¢lass of asset, based on an internal assessment supported by a technical evaluation d d, the went bali the useful life of the assets is

appropriate which is diffarant from those prescribed under Part C of Schedule 1l of the Act.

Based on internal assessment the management believes the residual value of property, plant and equipment is estimated to be 5% assets of the original cost of those
respective assets. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equip are revi d at each fi ial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
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{e)

Intanglble assets

Intangible assets acquired are initially recognised at cost Following initial recogrition, intangible assetls are carried at ¢ost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment basses, if any. The intangible assets with a finite useful life are amaortised using straight kne method over their estimated useful lives. Costs
associated with maintaining sofiware programmes are recognised as an #xpense a3 incurred, Gans or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible
asset are determined #s the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the Zarrying amaount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Profit
and Loss. The estimated useful life is reviewed annually by the management,

| assets |Estimated Useful LHe [in no. of years) |
ICompulet Software and lkense |s-6 ]

Capital wark In progress and intangible assets under development:

Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets that are under construction/ development is sccaunted for as capital work in progress f intangible assets under
development until such assets are ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisitian ¢r constryctian of property, plant and equipments outstanding at
each reparting date are disclosed as Capital Advances under "Other non-current asiels”,

Goodwill:

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost established at the date of acquisitian of the business less accumulated impairment loss if any. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's tash generating units (CGU) thal is expected to benafit from the synergies of the
combination. A CGU ta which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, ar more frequently when there is an indication that the CGU may be
impairad. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment losi is allacated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goadwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the units pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent period, On disposal of relevant CGU the attributabfe amount &f goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal,

Leases
Acontract ig, of contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to contrel the use of an identified asset for a periad of time in exchange for consideration.

As aLessee

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract.
A contract is, or cantains, a [ease if the cantract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange lor consideration. To
assess whelher a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i} the contract involves the use of an identified
asset {ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and {iii) the Group has the right to direct the
use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset {"ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which
it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less {short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group
recagnizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liabdity adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to
the ¢commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequenty measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

SDIL"s agreements with the landowners for taking land on lease for construction of Towers thereon, read with the stipulations of the Master Service Agreements
with its customers have been concluded to be short term lease.

Right-of-use assets are deprecisted from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset
Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amourts may not be recoverable, For
the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use} is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for
the Cash Generating Unit [CGU) to which the asset belongs

The lease liability is initially measurad at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease ar, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured
with 2 torresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whather it will exercise an extension or a termination option,

As a Lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees
under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to refleet
a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the leage.

Leases where the Group does not transter substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals
under operating leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term Contingent rents are rec
are earned.

q4

gnized as in the period in which they

Finance Cost

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign ¢urrency borrewings 10 the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the scquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A gualifying
asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time (o get ready for its intended use,

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing casts
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit and lisis as per effective interest rate method in the period in which they are ingurred.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a presant obligatizn (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligaticn and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligatian.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. when discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time s recognised as a finance cost
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U

Asset Retirement Obligation:

The Group uses various leased premises to install its tower assets. A provision is recognised for the cost to be incurred for the restoration of these premises at the
end of the lease period, which is estimated based on actual quotes, which are reasonable and appropriate under these circumstances, It is expected that these
provisions will be utilised at the end of the lease period of the respective sites as per respective leases,

Impalrment of Financial Assets
In accordance with ind AS 109, the Group uses ‘Expected Credit Loss'(ECL) model, for avaluating impairment of Financial Astets other than those measured at Fair
Value Theough Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

The 12-months expected credit losses {expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date}); or

Full lifetime expected credit losses (axpacted eredit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument}.

For Trade Receivables the Group applies’ simplified approach which requires expected life time losses 1o be recognized from initial gnition of the receivabl

For other assets, the Group uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment kss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in
credit risk full lifetime £CL is used.

Taxation
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in the comprehensive income of in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income and equity.

Current tax
Current income-tax assets and liabilities are rmeasured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961, Tha tax rates and lax laws used 10 compuie the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferved tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bates used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are axpected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utifized. Deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enfarceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at banks, cash on hard, short tarm highly liquid investments and short term deposits with an original maturity of 3 months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valug. As pant of Group’s cash management policy to meet short term cash commitments, it parks its
surplus funds in short-term highly liquid ir that are g lly held for a petiod of three months or less from the date of acquisition. These short-term highly
tiquid i its are debt ight funds that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. For the
purpose of the statermant of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, short term highly liquid investments and short term benefits as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts, if any a3 they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management.

of

ial assets - property, plant and equip t

The Group assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any itemn of Property, Plant and Equipment or group of assets, called Cash
Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or CGL is estimated to determine the extent of
impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable ameunt of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Staterment of Profit and Loss 10 the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their presant value
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific 1o the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior atcounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Forelgn Currencies

Transactions and translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are Iranslated at the funetional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary itemns are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except 1o the extent of exchange
differences which are regarded as an adjustment 10 interest costs on foreiga currency borrowings and that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction
of qualifying asiets, are capitalized as cost of agsets.

‘Non-monetary items thal are messured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are transtated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair vatue is determined.
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair
value of the item [i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OC) or Statement of Prafit or Loss
are also recognised in QCI or Statement of Profit or Loss, respectively).

In case of an asset, expense or income where an non-monetary advance is paid/received, the date of transaction is the date on which the advance was initially
recognized. f there were multiple payments or receipts in advance, dates of transactions are de ined far each pay or receipt of advance consideration.
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Revenue recognition

The Group earns revenue i.e. infrastructure provisioning fees {IP Fees), rental charges for the passive infrastructure service provided and related income primarily
framn providing passive infrastructure and related services. Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies the performance obligation by transferring the promised
services to the customers. I Fees are recognized as and when services are rendered on a monthly basis as per the contractual terms prescribed under master
services agreement entered with customer. Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenues from fixed-price and fixed-time frame contracts, where the performance obligations
ara satistied over time and where there is no uncertainty as 1o measurement or collectability of ideration, are recognised to the extent the Group has rendered
the services, as per the contractual arrangements. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in exchange for transferring the
promised services, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Contracts with customers includes certain services received from third-party contractors or vendars, Revenue from such customer contracts is recorded nat of costs
when the Group is not the principal. In doing 5o, the Group evaluates whether it controls the good or service balore it is transferred 10 the customer. In determining
control, the Group considers whether it has the primary cbligation to fulfil the contract, inventory risk, pricing discretion and other factors to determine whether it
controls the goods or service and therefore is acting as a principal,

Unbilled revenue represents revenues recognized after the last invoice raised to customer to the period end. These are billed in subsequent periods based on the
prices specified in the master service agraement with the customers, whereas invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as unearned revenues,

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the Group’s right to receive the paymant is established.

Finantial Instruments

i) Financial Assets

A, Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: amortised cost, financial assets "at fair value through profit and loss’ {FVYTPL), ‘Fair value through
other comprehensive income’ (FUTQCL). The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the cantractual terms of
cash flows.,

B. Inltial recognition and measurement:
All financial assets and lia es are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through prodit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are
recognised using trade date accounting.

€. Subsequent measurement

a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost [AC)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

b) Financdlal assets at falr value through other comprel income (FVTOCT]

A fi ial assat is sub ly measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it 1s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

¢] Finandial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which it not classified in any of the above categories are subsegquently fair valued through profit or loss.

il) Financial liabilitles

A, Classification of debt or equity:

Debt or equity instruments isiued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or a3 equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definiticns of a financial liability and an equity instrumaent.

B. Initial recognition and measurement:
All financial liabilities are recognized i
in profit or loss as finance et

ally at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly attributable cast. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised

C. Subsequent measurement:
financial liabilities are iuvbsequently carried at amartized cait using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables including creditors for capital
expenditure maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts appriximate fair value due t2 the short maturity of these instruments,

D. Derecognition

A financial liabilty is derezognised when the obligatian under the liability is discharged or cancelled ar expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantialty diffarent terms, or the terms of an existing kabity are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the Derecognition of the original habdity and the recognition of a new liability. The dilference between the carrying amount of the financial kability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

prS
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E. Derlvative finandal Instruments and hedge aceounting :

The Group enters inko derivative financial instruments including forward contracts, foreign exchange swaps and options to ge its exp e to foreign exchang:

rate risk. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as
a hedging instrurnent, in which ¢ase the timing of the recognition in Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedged item.

The Group designates certain hedging instr which includes derivatives in respect of foreign currency as gither cash flow hedge or fair value hedge. At the
inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument snd the hedged item, along with its risk management
objectives and its strategy for undertaking the said transactions. Furth , 8t the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether
the hedging ir is highly effective in offsetling changes in fair values or cash fows of the hadged item attributable to the hedged risk. The effectiveness of
hedging instruments to reduce the risk iated with the ¢ being hedged is assessed and measured at inceplion and on an ongoing basis {including its
analysis of the sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how it determines the hadge ratio). The ineffective portion of d d hedges is recognised immediately in
the Staternent of Profit and Loss,

Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

Fair Value Hedge

Changes in the fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attdibutable to the hedged risk The change in the fair value of the designated
portion of hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item attributable to hedged risk are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the line item
relating to the hedged item. When the Group designates only the intrinsic value of the option as the hedging instrument, it accounts for the changes in the time
value in OCI. This amount is removed from OCI and recognised in statement of profit and loss, either over the period of the hedge if the hedge is time related, or
when the hedged transaction affects Statement of Profit and Loss if the hedge is transaction related.

Cash Flow Hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 15 gnised in other prehensive income. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is gnised i diately in 51 of Profit and Loss, A previoushy T ised in other cormprebensive

income and accumulated in equity relating to effective portion as describad above are raclassified 1o Statement of profit and loss in the periods when the hedged
item affects Statement of profit and loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged iterm,

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it ne longer qualifies for hedge accounting. If the
hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss an the hedging instrument recognised in cash flow hedging reserve til

the period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
the cash flow hedging reserve is t ferred to the S of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the underlying transaction. If the farecasted transaction is no
longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

{m] Earnings Per Unit [EPU)
Basic earnings per unit is computed using the net profit for the periad attributable to the unitholders' and
period.
Diluted earnings per uait is computed using the net profit for the period attributable to unitholder' and weighted average number of units and potential units
outstanding during the period including unit options, convertible preference units and debentures, except where the result would be anti-dilutive, Potential units
that are converted during the period are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per unit, from the beginning of the period or date of issuance of such
potential units, to the date of conversion.

ighted average number of units outstanding during the

[n) Classification of Unitholders' fund
Under the provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations, Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net distributable cash flows of
Trust for each financial period. Accordingly, a portion of the unitholders' funds contains a contractual obligation of the Trust to pay to its Unitholders cash
distributions. The Unitholders' funds could therefore have been classified as © d fi ial instrument which contain both equity and liability components in
aceordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Master Circular issued under the SEBI laviT Regulations, the
unithelders' funds have been classified as equity in order to comply with the mandatory requirements of SEBI Master Circular dealing with the minimum disclosures
for key financial statements. In line with the above, the distribution payable to unitholders is recognised as liability when the same is approved by the Investment
Manager.

{0} Net distributable cash flows to unit holders
The Trust recognises a liability 1o make cash distributions to Unit Holders when the distribution is authorised and a legal abligation has been created. As per the SEBI
InvIT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Di of the | Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity.

{p} Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits [ loss before tax is adjusted far the effects of transactions of a non-¢ash nature and any deferrals
or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
regular revenue generating [operating activities), investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

{4) Contingent Liabillties

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is 3 possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the oecurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whaolly within the control of the Graup or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
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{r] Fair Valus Measurement
Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordedly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfar the lability takes place either:
- in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous markel for the asset or liability,
The principal market or the most advantageous market must be accessible
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
Valuation techniques used are those that are appropriate in the circumstarces and for which sulficient data are available to measure fair value
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in tha fi ial st $ are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
Level 1: Quoted [unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
1evel 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Leve! 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement (s unobservable.

{s]

Retirement Benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the peried in which the
employess rendered the related sarvices are recognized in respect of employees® services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amaunts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Defined Cantribution Plan
A defined bution plan is a post-employ benefit plan under which the Group pays specified contributions to a sep entity. The Group makesi specified
manthly contributions towards Provident Fund. The Group's contribution is ised as an inthe § 1t of Profit and Loss during the periad in which

the employeea renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. The gratuity plans provides lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirerent, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount base on the respective employees base salary and the tenure of employmem. A
provision for gratuity lability to the employee is made on the basis of actuarial valuation determined using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are
discounted using the discount rates for Government Securities at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability are recognized immediately
in the balance sheet with a correspending debit or ¢radit 10 retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they accur.

Remeasurement as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial

ptions are gnized in the stat t of profit and loss

{t} Business Combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of Ind A5 103, Business Combinations. The purchase price in an
acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets transferred and liabilities incurred & assumed at the date of acquisition, which is the date an which control is

transferred to the Group. The purchase price also includes the fair value of any contingent iel ion. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition. Contingent consideration is remeasured at fair value
at each reporting date and changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are ized in the C lidated St t of Profit and Loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is incompleta. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognized, to reflect new infermation abiained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognized as of that date, The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date Group obtains complete information
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. The measurement period is subject to a maximum of one year subsequeant to the acquisition
date. Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. At the end of subsequent reporting
periads, such contingent liabilities are measurad at the higher of the amount that would be recognized in accordance with Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the smount initially recognized.

[ Critical accounting judgements and key sources of astimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
3 assats, liabilities and contingent liabilities and the ing discl es. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Depreciation and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant and Equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful life which is based on technical evaluation, actual usage period and operations and maintenance
arrangements with a vendor, after taking into account estimated residual value, Manag: t revi the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets
periodically in order to determine the amount of degreciation 10 be recorded during any reporting period.

{b} Asset Retirement Obligation
Asset retirement obligation created for the cost to dismantle equipment and restore sites at the rented premises upoan vasation thersof, which is estimated based on
actual quotes, which are reasonable and appropriate under these circumstances,

{«]

Revenue from operations
The Group constructs towers on parcels of land taken on lease to provide lower infrasiructure and related operations and maintenance services to multiple parties
inter-alia engaged in rendering telecommunication services, The Group's business is predominantly of rendering of services and not providing a right of use of part or
whole of the asset to its customers.
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Notes forming part of the Consolldated Financlal Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

[d] Recoverabillty of trade recelvable

()

In,

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those receivables is required.
Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the contractual terms, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible
actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of nen-payment.

Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events
and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated, The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement to
existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change, Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions
and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adj d to take & 1 of changing facts and circumstances.

impairment of Non-Financlal Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Groyp #itimates the agset’s
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amaunt is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units {CGU's) fait value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It
is determined for an individual asset, unfess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are lagely independent of those from other assets or 2 groups of assets
Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Mows are discounted 10 their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an snnual basis and whenever there is an indication that the r ble amount of a cash generating unit. The recaoverable
amount of cash generating units is determined based on fair value less cost to sell. The goodwill impairment tast is performed at the level of the cash-generating
unit. Key assumptians on which management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost
of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past ience and repi r g ‘s best estimate about future
developments. In estimating the future cash Aows / fair value less cost of disposal, the Trust has made certain assumnptions relating to the future customer base,
future revenues, operating par capital di and terminal growth rate which the Trust believes reasonably reflects the future expectation of these
items. H L if these P change q 10 change in future conditions, there could be further favorable / adverse effect on the recoverable
amount of the assets. The assumptions will be monitored on periodic basis by the Trust and adjustments will be made if canditions relating to the assumptions
indicate that such adjustments are appropriate.

Leases

As 3 lessee - Oetermination of lease term

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, 1ogether with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Group is
reasonably certain 1o exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the |ease if the Group is reasonsbly certain not to exercise that aption. In
determining the lease term and assessing the fength of the non-cancellable period of a lease, an entity shall apply the defimition of & contract and determine the
period for which the contract is enforceable. A lease is no longer enforceable when the lessee and the lessor each has the right to terminate the lease without
permission from the other party with no more than an insignificant penalty. Further, in assessing whether the Group i bly cartain to an optian to
extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a leasa, it considers all relevant facts and gircurnstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to
exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease, The Group uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term,
including anticipated renewals and the arrangements as per the contract with its custamers.

Recognition of Deferced Tax Assets and Liabillvies

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which there is probability of utilisation against the
future taxable profit. The Group uses judgement to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits and business developments.

bination - & gent |derat
Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 requires the identifiable intangible assets and contingent consideration
to be fair valued in arder to ascertain the net fair value of identifiable assets, labilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree Estimates are required to be made in
determuning the value of conting: wderation and i ible assets, These measurements are based on information available at the acquisiticin date and are
based on expectations and assumptions that have been deemed reasanable by the Group.

D
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Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

NOTE 3. Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets, Capital work in progress {CWiP) and Intangible Assets under Development

{Rs. in Million)

Intangible Assets Right to Software Intangible Other Goodwill on Total
Access For and assets - intangible acquisition
Customer Software Customer Assets (refer note 36
(a) Licences |Contracts (refer| {a+b+c) and iv)
b) note 36}
(<)

Gross carrying value as at April 01, 2022 7 13 5,569 5,589 7,976 13,565
Addition during the year - 56 56 - 56
Adjustment on account of Business Combination 0] 0 (227) {234) 14 {220)
{refer note (i) below)
Deletion during the year - (1) (1) - (1)
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2023 - 69 5,342 5411 7,990 13,401
Addition during the year - 12 12 - 12
Deletion during the year - - . - -
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2024 - 81 5,342 5,423 7,990 13,413
Accumulated Depreciation as at April 01, 2022 6 6 32 44 - a5
Amortisation during the year - 9 533 542 - 542
{refer note (i) below) (6 (2) (8) - (8)
Deletion during the year - (o) {0) - (0)
Accumulated Depreciation as at March 31, 2023 0 13 565 578 - 579
Amortisation during the year - 15 538 552 g 552
Deletion during the year - - - - - -
Accumulated Depreciation as at March 31, 2024 0 28 1,103 1,130 - 1,131
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2023 | 0] 56 | 4,777 | 4,833 | 7,930 | 12,822
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2024 i 0| 53 | 4,240 | 4,293 | 7,990 | 12,282
Notes

(i} For properties mortgaged / hypothecated {Refer note 15).

{ii} Addition / Adjustment on account of Business Combination pertains to acquisition of Crest Digitel Private Limited with effect from March 10, 2022.
Refer note 36 for further details.

(iii) Mone of the ongoing projects cost has exceeded its original plan or is overdue as on the reporting date for both CWIP and Intangible assets under
development. Further, no project under CWIP has been suspended.

{iv) The carrying amount of goodwill is tested annually for impairment. Goodwil! is allocated to the Crest Digitel Private Limited {COPL} business which
represent a separate CGU. The recoverable amount of this CGU was based on fair value less costs of disposal, estimated using discounted cash flows.
The fair value measurement was recagnised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs in the valuaticn technique used.

The cash flow projections include specific estimates for seven years and a terminal growth rate thereafter. The specific estimates made by the
management in the cash flow projection cash flow projections consider the past experience and future trends expected. A terminal growth rate 4% is
estimated. The cash flows have been present valued using 13.30% discount rate.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than it’s carrying value as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

4  Right of use {ROU) assets and lease liabilities
4A  Right of use assets (ROU)

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2024:

{Rs. in Million}
Particulars Vehicles Buildings Land Total
Balance as on April 01, 2022 964 185 1,149
Additions during the year . 640 640
Adjustment on account of Business Combination {refer note 36} . (462) - [462)
Amortisation during the year - (142) {12) [154)
Disposals
Balance as on March 31, 2023 - 1,000 173 1,173
Additions during the year 23 748 771
Amortisation during the year {2) {249} (12} {263)
Disposal {net of amortisation) {16) {16}
Balance as on March 31, 2024 21 1,483 161 1,665

The aggregate amortisation on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit and Loss.

48 Lease Liabilities
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:
(Rs. in Million)
As at March  As at March
31,2024 31,2023

Particulars

Current lease liabilities 266 216
Non-current lease liabilities 1,357 850
Tetal 1,623 1,066
The following is the movement in lease liabilities:
(Rs. in Million}

. As at March  As at March
L 31,2024 31,2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,066 1,086
Additions during the year 771 640
{Adjustment)/ Addition during the year due to Business combination (refer note 36} . (555)
Finance cost accrued during the year 107 60
Payment of lease liabilities {305) {165)
Termination of lease (16) -
Balance as at the end of the year 1,623 1,066

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease Habilities as at the reporting date on an undiscounted basis:
S {Rs. in Million)
As at March  As at March

Ll 31,2024 31,2023

Less than gne year 386 240
One to five years 1,313 852
More than five years 333 242
Total 2,032 1,334
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss {Rs. in Million)
. As at March  As at March
e 31,2024 31,2023
Interest on lease liabilities 107 61
Expense relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 19,467 16,489
Amortisation for the year 263 154
19,837 16,704
Amounts recognised in Statement of Cash Flow {Rs. in Million)
. As at March  As at March
Particulars 31,2024 31,2023
Cash outflow for leases 305 165
305 165

pHs
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Notes forming part of the C idated Financial ts for year ended March 31, 2024

S  Other financial assets - non current {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
{Unsecured and considered good} March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Security depaosits 7.940 7.062
Bank deposits with mare than 12 manths maturity 165 52
Total 8,105 7,114

5.1 1) Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity of Rs. 85 million (previous yaar Rs. 42 million) have been marked as lien or pledged against bank

guarantees issued to State Governments and other regulatory autharities

il) Bank deposits with more than 12 manths maturity of Rs. 8 million {previous year Rs. 8 miilion} is restricted for withdrawal, as it is lien against bank
guarantee given by the bank on behall of COPL or overdraft / loar facility from bank.

iii} Bank deposits with mare than 1Z months maturity of Rs. 68 million |Previous year Rs Nil] is lien for Interest Servicing as per barrawing
agreements with lenders. Further, depaiits with bank of Rs. 0.32 rvllion (previous year nil} have been marked as lien for bank guaranteas.

6  Deferred tax {Rs. in Millign})
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax asset {refer note below) 15 1
Total 15 1

{Rs. in Million})
6.1 Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current tax:

In respect of current year 74 118
Adjustments of tax relating to earlier years {23} (7}
Total {A} 51 111
——
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax in respect of current year {149) {150)
Adjustments of tax relating to eadier years - -
Total [B) (149) [150)
Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss {A+B) {98) {39)
{Rs. in Million)
6.2 Reconciliation of income tax expenses for the year to the accounting profit: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Prafit before tax 11,094 7,928
Tax at the rates applicable te the respective entities 10,279 9,177

Tax eHects of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable} in ;

Effect of Income from SPV not taxable {17,718) (17,374}
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets is recognised 7,645 8,031
Effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit 371 125
Gain on settlement of contingent consideration {667) -
Others 1 [+
Adjustments of tax relating to earlier years {9} 2
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss |98} 39)

The rate of income tax for a domestic company as per the Section 1158AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 {"the Act"] is 25.168%. The same is applicable
to SOIL, COPL, RDIPL and CVNPLi.e. SPV for the assessment year 2024-25 {FY 2023-24) and 2023-24 {FY 2022-23]. The total income of a Business Trust
is taxed at the rate of 42.74% i.e. maximum marginal rate (MMR] as per the section 115UA(2) of the Act.

{Rs. in Million)
6.3 Significant component of deferred tax asset / {llabilities): March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:
Written down value of property, plant and equipment {44,595) {36,762}
Intangible assels acquired in a business combination (refer note 36) {1,068} [1,202)
Right to use asset {419} {295)
Deferred tax asset in refation to:
Cash Flow hedges and fair value hedges 429 334
Unrealised foreign exchange loss 183 922
Lease liabilities 409 268
Others 70 44
Carried forward business losses and unabsorbed depreciation 773480 61,468
Total 32,348 24,777
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Notes forming part of the Conse d Financial Stat ts for year ended March 31, 2024

Deferred taxes are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profiti will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry farward of unused losses can be utilized. Considering the accumulated tax losses carried forward, the net deferred tax asset
aggregating 1o Rs. 33,400 million (previous year Rs, 25,978 million} is not accounted for. However, the same will be reassessed at subsequent
Balance 5heet date and will be recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered,

6.4 The in gross d tax assets and liabilitles for the year:

{Rs. in Million)

Opening  Changes dusing the period Carrying value as at

liabilities) in velat
Deferred tax assets / [liabilities) in relation to Deferved Tax  through profit and loss 31 March 2024

Deferred tax assets:

Property, plant and aquipment and intangible assets {35,762) {7.839) {44,595
Carried forward butiness lasses and unabsorbed 61,468 15,872 77,340

depreciation

Right to uie asiets {295) {124) {419)
Lease Liabilitiex 268 140 408

Cash flow hedges and fair value hedges 334 95 429

Unreahsed foreign exchange loss 922 |739) 183

Others 44 26 70

Less: Restricted to the extent of deferred tax bability {25.978) {7,422} {33,400}
Totat 1 14 15

Deferred tax [fabilities:
Intangible assets acquired in a Business Combination (refer

1,202 135 1,067
note 36} { ) | )
Total {1,202} 135 {1,067)
[Rs. in Million}
Carrying value Changes during the
Opening Carrying value as at
I f od thi h
Deferred tax assets / (Habllites) in relation to Deferred Tax {on account of business period througl 31 March 2023
combination) profit and loss
Deferred tax assets:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (28.622) {25) (8,115} {36,762)
Carried forward business lasses and unabsorbed 46,873 B 14,595 61,468
depreciation
Right to use assets {194} 116 {217) {295)
Lease Liabilities 223 (1400 185 268
Cash Flow hedges and Fair Value hedges 269 - 65 334
unrealised foreign exchange loss - - 922 912
Others (¥)] [4) 55 44
Less: Restricted to the extent of deferred tax liability {18,496} . {7,482) 125,978)
Total 46 [53) 8 1
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets acquired in a Business Combination [refer 11.462) =) a2 (1202}
nole 36)
Total {1,402) 57 142 [1,202)
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Notes forming part of the C lidated Financial $

for year ended March 31, 2024

6.5 The amount of unused tax losses for which no deferred tau is recognised:

a) Tax Loss carried Forward {Rs. in Million)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unabsarbed depreciation (carried forward indefinitely) 132,709 98,447

b) The amount of unused tax losses for which deferred tax is recognised:

Tax loss carried forward {Rs. in Million)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Business loss (can be ¢/f till FY 2026-2027) 2 2
Business loss [can be ¢/f till FY 2027-2028) 2,110 2,110
Business loss [can be c/f till FY 2028-2029) 3,482 3,482
Business loss {can be c/f till FY 2029-2030) 17,950 17,950
Business loss {can be ¢/f till FY 2030-2031) 17,088 14,803
Business loss (can be ¢/f till FY 2031-2032) 14,393 -
Unabsorbed Depreciation [carried farward indefinitely} 119,561 107,437
174,586 145,784
Deferred tax assets on {a) and {b) above 77,340 61,468
7 Other non-current assets {Rs. in Million}
Particulars Asat As at
{Unsecured and cansidered good) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Capital advances [refer note i} 35 58,000
Unamortised contract cost (refer note iv) 140 5
Advance income tax / TDS (net of provisions Rs. 235 million {previous year: Rs. 10 million} SB4 181
{refer note below) {refer note iii)
Amount paid under protest - GST {refer note i} 9,366 8,772
Prepaid expenses 9 54
Total 10,134 67,007
Note:

i) On account of the ongoing litigations, the Group expects to recover these amounts over a period of more than 12 months.

i1} In the previous year, the Group had given interest bearing capital advances aggregating Rs. 57,992 millicn towards purchase of telecom towsrs.

The capital advance is settled against capitalisation of telecom towers during the current year.

lii) Advance Income Tax {refer note above} and Current Tax Liability {refer note 16):

Balance at the start of the year

Current tax expense

Income tax Paid [including tax deducked at source)
Income tax refund

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier year

Batance at the end of the year

(Rs. in Million)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
181 344
(74} {118)
637 262
{184} 314}
23 7
58_3 181

[iv) The unamortised contract cost comprises of service charges paid to obtain contracts, COPL amortises the contrack cost over period of contract.

2 Trade receivables

(Rs. in Million}

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables - secured, considered good 388 294
Trade receivables - unsecured, considered good 625 1,489
Trade receivables- unsecured, considered doubtfu 14 12

1,027 1,785
tess: Allowances for doubtful trade receivables {14) {12}
Total 1,013 1,783




Data infrastructure Trust

Notes forming part of the C

9.1

Ageing of Trade Recelvables :

d Financial § for year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in Million)

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Undisputed trade receivables considered goad

- Not due 338 145
- Less than 6 manths 441 1,448
+ 6 months to 1 year 43 22
- 1yearto 2 years 35 10
-2-3years 1 2
- More than 3 years* 155 156
1,013 1,783
Trade receivables: unsecured, considered doubtiul
- Not due o 1
- Less than 6 months o 2
-6 months to 1 year - 1
-1 year to 2 years 2 2
-2-3years & F
- More than 3 years 6 4
14 12
Total 1,027 1,795
*Rs. 153 million is backed by a party through separate arrangement and hence have been considered good.
Following customers represent more than 10% of total trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Customer X 4%% T76%
Customer ¥ 15% o%
Customer Z 25% 11%
Cash and cash equivalents {Rs. in Million}
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks in current account 944 825
Fixed deposits with banks 730 S
Investments in avernight mutual funds measured at FYTPL {refer note 4,784 4935
below]
Total 6,458 5,760
Less: Bank overdraft [Refer note 1B} - (6}
Cash and cash equival as per § of Cash flow 6,458 5,754
Detalls of investments in igh 1 funds ed at FVTPL: {Rs. in Million)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
220,932.15 {March 31, 2023: 2,38,294.75) units in 3B Overnight fund + 861 870
Direct Plan - Growth
2,155,865.15 {March 31, 2023: 12,927,118.76) units in Nippon India 217 1,556
Overnight fund - Direct Growth Plan
234,122.23 (March 31, 2023: 183,962.60} units in Axis Overnight fund - 297 218
Girect Growth
211,964.21 (March 31, 2023: 749,879.61) units in Aditya Birla Sun Life 275 a9
Overnight fund - Growth - Direct Plan
203,924.55 [March 31, 2023: 112,543.63] units in HDFC Overnight fund - 725 375
Direct Plan - Growth Option
610,853.27 [(Mafch 31, 2023: 833,486.59) units in ICICI Prudential 788 1,007
Overnight fund - Direct Plan - Growth
507,609.79 (March 31, 2023: Nil} units in Kotak Overnight Fund Direct - 548 -
Grawth
278,820.73 {(March 31, 2023: Nilj units in UTI Overnight Fund - Direct Plan 913 -
Total 4384

pHS
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10 Bank balances other than covered in cash and cash equivalents {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fixed deposits with banks having maturnity of mare than 3 months but less than 1 year 130 208
Total 130 208

11

12

i) Fixed deposits with bank of Rs. 104 million [Previous year Rs, 169 million} is restricted for withdrawal, as it is lien against bank guarantee given by
the bank on behalf of the company.

i) Fixed deposits with bank of Rs. 26 million (Previous year Rs. 39 million) have been pledged against bank guarantees issued to state governments,
ather regulatory authorities and others.

Other financial assets - current {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at Asat
{Unsecured and considered good) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Security deposits 10 -4
Derivatives - Coupon only swaps 20 51
Deposits with Bank having maturity for more than 12 months (refer note below) B6 69
Unbilled revenue 9,879 3,896
Other receivables {includes unbilled of Rs 807 million (previous year Rs 809 million}) 1,070 1,691

Total 11,065 5,713

Note:

{i} Rs. 86 millions {Previous year Rs. 69 millions) is restricted for withdrawal, as it is lien against bank guarantee given by the bank on behalf of COPL

or averdraft /loan facility availed from bank.

Other current assets {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured and considered good
Balance with government authorities 843 2,593
Prepaid expenses 992 981
Advance to vendors 525 593
Unamertised contract cost |refer note below) 42 S
Others 2 =
Total 2,404 4,167
Nate:

{i} The unamortised contract cost comprises of service charges paid to secure contracts, CDPL amortises the cantract cost over period of contract
Further, other expenses includes Rs 34 million towards amaortisation of contract cost.
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13 Unit capital {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Issued, subscribed and fully pald up unit capital
2,603,000,000 units (March 31, 2023; 2,603,000,000 units) 2,61,017 2,61,152
Tatal 2,61,017 2,61,152

Note: - Refer note 2 (B) (n}

13.1 Rights and Restrictions to Unitholders

The Trust has only one class of units. Each unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of unit is entitled to one vote per unit. The
Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in each financial year in accordance with the SEBI
InvIT Regulations, The Investment Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in propertion te the number of units held by the unitholders. The Trust
declares and pays distributions in Indian rupees. The distributions can be in the form of return of capital, return on capital and miscellaneous income.

A Unitholder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the Trust Assets and is not entitled to transfer Trust Assets (or any part thereof). A Unitholder's right is
limited to the right to require due administration of Trust in accordance with the provision of the Trust Deed and the Investment Management Agreement,

The unitholder{s) shall not have any personal liability or obligation with respect to the trust.

13.2 The details of unit holders holding mare than 5% of unit capital:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Name of the Unitholders Retationship No of Units held Percentage No of Units held Percentage
BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd. Sponsor 1,51,92,00,000 58.36 2,28,96,00,000 87.96
Anahera Investment Pte. Lid. Unitholder 61,60,00,000 23.67 18,10,00,000 6.95
BCI IRR India Holdings Inc. Unithalder 24,14,00,000 9.27 - -
13.3 Reconciliation of the units outstanding at the end of reporting period:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{No. of units) Amount (No. of units) Amount

{Rs. in million) {Rs. In millian)
Units at the beginning of the year 2,60,30,00,000 2,61,152 2,60,30,00,000 2,61,152
Issued during the year - . . .
Distribution to unitholders - Return of capital - {135} - -
Units at the end of the year 2,6(,30,00,000 2,61,017 2,60,30,00,000 2,61,152

On August 31, 2020, the Trust issued 2,521,500,000 units at an Issue Price of Rs. 100 per unit to the subscribers. BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd. subscribed 89.79% of the

units and is the immediate parent company.

During the year 2021-2022, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares in CDPL. The acquisition was funded through issuance of 28,700,000 units of the Trust at an Issue
Price of Rs. 110.46 per unit by way of rights issue and issuance of 52,800,000 units of the Trust to the seller of COPL at an issue Price of Rs. 110.46 per unit on a

preferential basis.

13A

{Rs. in Million}
Contribution As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 240 240
Changesin contribution during the year - -
240 240

Total
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14 Other Equity

{Rs. in Million)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Reserves and Surplus
Retained eamings
At the beginning of the year (90,387) {67,799)
Profit for the year 11,192 7,967
Distribution to unitholders - Return on capital” (46,660) (30,568}
Provision for unit issuance cost written back . 13
0OCl impact on remeasurement of defined benefit plans [0) {0}
Balance at the end of the year (3) {125,854) (90,387)
*Return on capital distribution during the year as per NDCF duly approved by investment manager. Refer note 42.
Other Comprehensive Income
Cash Flow hedge reserve
At the beginning of the year 47 {113)
Fair value (gain)/ loss arising on hedging instrument during the year {37) 94
Amounts reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss {49] 66
Balance at end of the year (b} {39) 47
Cost of hedging
At the beginning of the year (1,193) {818)
Changes in the fair value in relation to time-period/ forward elemeants related hedged items (814} (757)
Amounts reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss 340 382
Balance at end of the year {c] {1,667) {1,193)
Total [bec) {1,706) {1,146)
TOTAL {a+b+c) (127,560) {91,533)
Notes:

{i) Debenture Redemption Reserve {DRR) is not required to be created due to absence of profits available for payment of dividend during the current year in SDIL,

SDIL has accumulated losses as at March 31, 2024,

(ii} Mature and purpose of other reserves

a) Cash flow hedging reserve -

The cash flow hedging reserve is used to recognise the effective portion of gains or losses on derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges.
Amounts are subsequently either transferred to the initial cost of borrowings or reclassified to profit or loss, as appropriate.

b} Costs of hedging reserve -

The Group defers the changes in the forward element of forward contracts and the time value element of option contracts in the costs of hedging reserve. These
deferred costs of hedging are included in the initial cost of the related borrowings when it is recognised or reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item

affects profit or loss, as appropriate.

tiii) During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Group had recorded Net current liability of Rs. 8,505 Million towards the working capital adjustment payable to
Reliance Jio Infocom Limited {"RIIL") under Amended and Restated Master Service Agreement ("MSA") with a corresponding impact 1o 'other equity’ as this relates

to acquisition transaction. As at March 31, 2024, net current hability of Rs. 68 Million [As at March 31, 2023 - Rs. 208 Million) was payable to RIL.

These adjustments are in the nature of transaction with owners and will not impact distributions / dividends.




Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes forming part of the Cc lidated Financial Stat ts for year ended March 31, 2024

15

m
(a}

()

{v)

v

—

1i)

Borrowings {Rs. in Million}
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Term Loans
Secured:
{i} From banks 154,042 170,281
Less: Unamortised finance cost {1,084) {1,204}
152,958 169,077

{ii) From others 22,250 14,550
Less: Unamortised finance cost {41) {61)

22,209 14,489
Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures (Secured) 65,250 53,500
Less: Unamortised finance cost {97) (114}

65,153 53,386
Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures {Unsecured) 3,200
Less: Unamortised finance cost [21)

3,179

Senior Secured Notes (Secured) 39,386 38,740
Less: Unamortised finance cost {541} {626)

38,845 38,114
Liability companent of compound financial instrument
- Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference shares 159 147
Total 282,503 275,213

Year ended March 31, 2024

Secured L.oans from Banks and Financial Institutions consist of:

1. Rs. 1,668 million of loan is secured by exclusive charge on present and future receivable, current assets and moveable plant and equipment of CDPL. The tranche 1 of loan
{6 month marginal cost of funds based lending rate {"MCLR")} is repayable by way of 60 monthly instalments starting from the month following the month of first
disbursement of loan ending on October S, 2026, Tranche 2 {6 manth MCLR) is repayable by way of 22 quarterly instalments ending on December 29, 2028 and Tranche 3 {6
month MCLR) is repayable by way of 20 quarterly instalments ending on October 10, 2029.

2. Rs. 42,500 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1¥ MCLR + 40bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
December 2022.

Rs. 8,500 million of loan, Carrying fixed interest rate of 7.69% for 3 years and 3 months from the date of drawdown thereafter the interest rate of 6M MCLR + 70 bps pa
repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive guarterly instalments starting from December 2022,

Rs. 8,500 million of loan, Carrying fixed interest rate of 7.84% for 3 years and 3 months from the date of drawdown thereafter the interest rate of 8M MCLR + 70 bps pa
repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from December 2022.

{n addition to the security disclosed in note (v) below, secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation on the Designated Accounts of the Group for receipt of Receivables.

3. (a) Rs. 11,561 rnillion of loan, carrying interest rate of 1Y MCLR repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from December
2022,

(b} Rs. 4,214 million of loan, carrying fixed interest rate of 6.30 % p.a. for three years from date of first disbursement or June 30, 2024. From July 01, 2024 interest rate will
be 1¥ MCLR + 45 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from December 2022,

{c} Rs. 2,795 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1¥ MCLR + 5 bps p.a repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
December 2022.

{d) Rs. 20,501 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 3M Repo rate + 220 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 38 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting
from June 2023.

(e} Rs. 1,803 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 3M Repo rate + 220 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 37 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting
from September 23.

4. {a) Rs. 15,746 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1Y MCLR repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from December
2022,

{b) Rs. 4,503 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1Y MCLR repayable till September 01, 2032 in 38 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from June 2023,
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(iia)

{iib}

Liii}

{iv)

S {a) Rs. 10,200 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 75 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
December 2022,

{b} Rs. 8,500 milion of loan, carrying interest rate of Repo rate (Quarterly reset) + 225 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly
instalments starting from Decemnber 2022,

{c) Rs. 5,950 million of loan, carrying fixed interest rate of 6.15% p.a. for next 3 years from the date of drawdown and floating interest rate of 1¥ MCLR + 75 bps p.a. thereafter
until maturity repayable till September 01, 2032. The loan is repayable in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from December 2022.

{d) Rs. 6,375 million of loan, carrying fixed interest rate of 7.5% p.a. for 3 years and one month from the date of drawdown thereafter as per rutual agreed rate until maturity
repayable till September 01, 2032. The loan is repayable in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from December 2022,

{e) Rs. 2,975 million of foan, carrying 3M HDFC MCLR + 25 bps repayable till September 01, 2032, The loan is repayable in 38 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting
from June 2023.

{f Rs. 2,550 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1imonth MCLR + 10 bps p.2. repavable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
Decemnber 2022.

In addition to the security disclosed in note {v} below, a first ranking charge by way of hypothecation on the designated bank accountis) of the Group for receipt of all
payments under the Master Service Agreement including, without limitation, the Designated Accounts and all preceeds lying to the credit thereof from time to time; and a
first ranking charge by way of hypothecation on the Permitted investment.

During the current year w.e.f, July 1, 2023, HDFC Limited is merged into HDFC Bank Limited on account of which the loan taken from HDFC Limited is disclosed under Secured
term loan from banks in the current year . For the year ended March 31, 2023, the same was disclosed under Secured term loan from athers.

6.{a} Rs. 5,100 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1Y MCLR repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from December 2022
{b} Rs. 1,744 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1Y MCLR repayable till September 01, 2032 in 39 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from Mareh 2022,
{c) Rs. 7,968 million of Ioan, carrying interest rate of 1Y MCLR repayable till September 01, 2032 in 38 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from June 2023.

7. {a) Rs. 12,000 million of INR External Commercial Borrowing, carrying interest rate of 8.35% p.a. repayable at single instalment on November 09, 2029.
[b} Rs. 5,100 million of INR External Commercial Borrowing, carrying interest rate of 8.22% p.a. repayable at single instalment on May 12, 2030
{t) Rs. 5,150 Million of INR External Commercial Borrowing, carrying interest rate of 8.69% p.a. repayable at single instalment on August 8, 2030.

Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of SDIL consist below:

1. 6.59 % p.a., 15,000 secured, redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,000,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
lJune 16, 2026.

2. 7.40% p.a., 6,500 secured, redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,000,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
September 28, 2028.

3. 7.62% p.a., 10,000 secured, redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,000,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
November 22, 2030,

4. 8.05% p.a., 10,000 secured, redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,000,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
May 31, 2027.

$. 8.44% p.a., 12,000 secured, redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,000,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
November 02, 2032,

6. 8.19% p.a., 52,500 secured, redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,00,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
October 31, 2026.

7. B.06% p.a., 65,000 secured, redeemabie, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a neminal value of Rs. 1,00,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
January 31, 2029,

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of Trust consist below:
8.40% payable quarterly, 32,000 redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 100,000 each aggregating Rs. 3,200 million redeemable at

single instalment at par on December 18, 2026. Further, there is a putfcall option exercisable by either party by giving a 60 day prior notice wherein debentures may be
redeemed at par on June 19, 2026.

SDIL has issued offshore USD 500 milion Senior Secured Notes listed on Singapore stock exchange with amount of Rs. 37,110 million. The notes are repayable on August 12,
2031 in single instalment. At any time prior to August 12, 2030, the Group has the option to redeem up to 40% of the aggregate principal amaount of the notes with proceeds
from equity offerings at a redemption price of 102.875% of the principal amount of the notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date August 12,
2031. During the previous year, the Group had bought back the notes aggregating face value of USD 27.37 million at discounted value of USD 20.12 million post which the
outstanding balance of face value of Notes aggregates USD 472.63 million (Rs. 39,386 millicn). These notes carries nterest rate of 2.875% p.a. payable every six months in
August and February.

SDIL had outstanding 50,000,000 Cumaulative, Participating, Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/ each aggregaung 1o Rs. 500,000,000 as on April 1, 2020. With
effect fram August 21, 2020, the terms of the Cumulatve, Participating, Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each were amended to Redeemable, Non-
Participating, Non-Cumulative, Non-Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The preference shares are mandatorily redeemable at par for an amount equal to the
aggregate par value at the end of 20 years from the date of ssuance i.e. March 31, 2039, Accordingly, the Preference Shares have been classified as a liability and have been
recagnised at the present value of redemption amounting to Rs. 159 million as on March 31, 2024 (Rs. 147 million as on March 31, 2023).
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{v} All the term loans from banks and financial institutions, Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures, INR External Commercial Barrowings and Senior Secured Notes are

0

secured by first ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on the following assets:
{a} All movable fixed assets [present and future) of the berrower;

[b) Al current assets (present and future) of the borrower; and

(c) Al rights of the borrower under the Material Documents.

Year ended March 31, 2023

Secured Loans from Banks and Financial Institutions consist of:

1. Rs. 1,151 million of loan is secured by exclusive charge on present and future receivable, current assets and moveable fixed assets of the Company. The tranche 1 of loan is
repayable by way of 60 monthly instalments starting from the month following the month of first disbursement of loan ending on 5th October, 2026, Tranche 2 have
maratorium of 12 months from the date of first dissbursement and repayable by way of 22 quarterly instalments ending on December 29, 2028.

2. Rs. 47,500 million of foan, carrying interest rate of 1¥ MCLR + 40bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
December 2022,

Rs. 9,500 Million of loan, Carrying fixed interest rate of 7.69% for 3 years and 3 months from the date of drawdown thereafter the interest rate of 6M MCLR + 70 bps p.a
repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive guarterly instalments starting from December 2022

Rs. 9,500 Million of loan, Carrying fixed interest rate of 7.84% for 3 years and 3 months from the date of drawdown thereafter the interest rate of 6M MCLR + 70 bps p.a
repayable till September 011, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from December 2022

In addition to the security disclosed in note (v) below, secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation on the Designated Accounts of SDIL for receipt of Receivables and all
proceeds lying to the credit thereof from time to time and deposits maintained utilising funds from the Designated Accounts.

3. (a) Rs. 14,589 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 5 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
December 2022.

(b) Rs. 4,750 million of loan, carrying fixed interest rate of 6.30 % p.a. for three years from date of first disbursement or June 30, 2024, From July 01, 2024 interest rate will
be 1¥ MCLR + 45 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from December 2022,

{c) Rs. 3,124 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1¥ MCLR + 10 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal conseculive quarterly instalments starting from
December 2022,

{d} Rs. 22,000 million of loan, carrying interast rate of 3M Repo rate + 220 bps p.a. repayable til! September 01, 2032 in 38 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting
from June 2023.
In addition to the security disclosed in note (v) below, secured by way of hypothecation {to the extent it can be hypothecated) of all rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and
demands whatsoever of SDIL under all the Major Contracts / licenses entered into (which do not require a no objection certificate /consent/approval from Department of
Telecommunications/ Telecom Regulatory Authority of india).

4. {a) Rs. 18,716 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1¥ MCLR + 20 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
Decernber 2022.

{b) Rs. 5,033 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1¥ MCLR + 20 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 38 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
June 2023,

5 {a) Rs. 11,400 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1¥ MCLR + 75 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
December 2022.

{b) Rs. 9,500 million of loan, carrying interest rate of Repo rate [Quarterly reset) + 225 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly
instalments starting from December 2022.

{c) Rs. 6,650 million of loan, carrying fixed interest rate of 6.15% p.a. for next 3 years and floating interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 75 bps p.a. thereafter until matunity repayable ti#
September 01, 2032. The loan is repayable in 40 equal consecutive guarterly instalments stanting from December 2022,

(d) Rs. 7,125 million of loan, carrying fixed interest rate of 7.5% p.a. for 3 years and one month from the date of drawdown thereafter as per mutual agreed rate untll maturity
repayable till September 01, 2032. The loan is repayable in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from December 2022,

{e) Rs. 3,325 million of loan, carrying 3M HDFC MCLR + 25 bps repayable till September 01, 2032. The loan is repayable in 38 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting
from June 2023,

6. Rs. 2,850 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1¥ BPLR - 365 bps p.a. repayable till September 1, 2032 in 40 egual consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
December 2022,

In addition to the security disclosed in note {v) below, a first ranking charge by way of hypothecation on the designated bank account(s) of SDIL for receipt of all payments
under the Master Service Agreement including, without limitation, the Designated Accounts and all proceeds tying to the credit thereof from time to time; and a first ranking
charge by way of hypothecation on the Permitted Investment.

7. |a) Rs. 5,697 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1Y MCLR + 20 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 40 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting fram
December 2022.

(b} Rs. 1,949 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1¥ MCLR + 20 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 39 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
March 2022,

(<) Rs. 8,905 million of loan, carrying interest rate of 1¥ MCLR + 20 bps p.a. repayable till September 01, 2032 in 38 equal consecutive quarterly instalments starting from
June 2023.

8. Rs. 12,000 millicn of INR External Commercial Borrowing, carrying interest rate of 8.35% p.a. repayable at single instalment on November 09, 2029
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i)

i)

fiv)

{vi
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Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of SDIL consist below:

1. 118,360 {SBI 1Y MCLR + 0.97% p.a.) Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (Series PPD 5) ("NCDs") of face value of Rs.1,000,000 each redeemable at par, on or
before August 31, 2032, The NCDs are redeemable at par in 40 equal quarterly consecutive instalments of Rs, 2,959 million.

With respect to the listed NCDs, the holders have the ability in certain circumstances to opt for early redemption of all or part of the NCDs at par. This option is available 2
years after the date of allotment but 6 months before expiry. The terms of the NCD also give an option to the SDIL for early redemption on maximum 20,000 NCDs at par and
before expiry of &6 months from date of allotment either in full or in part after the expiry of six months from the date of allotment,

During the year, 53,360 NCDs were redeemed by refinancing option from issuance of other NCDs and term loan drawdown. As at March 31,2023, none of the above NCDs are
outstanding.

In addition to the security distlosed in note {v) below, Secured by first ranking charge pari-passu with all exsting and future secured debt of the SDIL on all [a) Receivables and
rights appurtenant thereto; (b) the designated accounts of SDIL for receipt of all payments under the Master Services Agreement entered into with Reliance lio Infocomm
Limited by SDIL and all proceeds lying to the credit thereof from time to time; over which the security interest is created under hypothecation in favour of / for the benefit of
the Debenture Holder(s).

2.6.59 % p.a., 15,000 secured, redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,000,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
June 16, 2026.

3. 7.40% p.a., 6,500 secured, redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of 3 nominal value of Rs, 1,800,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
September 28, 2028.

4.7.62% p.a., 10,000 secured, redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,000,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
November 22, 2030.

5. 8.05% p.a., 10,000 secured, redeemable, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,000,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
May 31, 2027.

6. 8.44% p 2., 12,000 secured, redeemabdle, listed and rated non-convertible debentures of a nominal value of Rs. 1,000,000 each redeemable at single instalment at par on
November 02, 2032.

SDIL has issued offshore USD 500 million Senior Secured Motes listed on Singapore stock exchange with amount of Rs. 37,110 million. The notes are repayable on August 12,
2031 in single instalment. At any time prior to August 12, 2030, the Group has the option to redeem up to 40% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes with proceeds
from equity offerings at a redemption price of 102,875% of the principal amount of the notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date August 12,
2031. bwring the year, the Group has bought back the notes aggregating face value of USD 27.37 million at discounted value of USD 20.12 million post which the outstanding
balance of face value of Notes aggregates USD 472 63 rillion (Rs. 38,740 million). This buyback at discounted value has resulted in a gain of Rs 590 million. These notes carries
interest rate of 2.875% p.a. payable every six months in August and February.

5D had outstanding 50,000,000 Cumulative, Participating, Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 500,000,000 as on April 1, 2020 held
by Reliance Industries Limited. With effect from August 21, 2020, the terms of the Cumulative, Participating, Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each were
armended to Redeemable, Non-Participating, Non-Cumulative, Non-Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The preference shares are mandatorily redeemable at par
for an amount equal to the aggregate par value at the end of 20 years from the date of issvance i.e. March 31, 2039. Accordingly, the Preference Shares have been reclassified
as a hability and have been recognised at the preient value of redemption amounting to Rs. 147 Million as on March 31, 2023 (Rs. 137 million as in March 31, 2022).

All the term loans from banks and financial institutions, Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures, INR External Commercial Borrowings and Senior Secured MNotes are
secured by first ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on the following assets:
{a) All movable fixed assets (present and future) of the borrower;
(b) All current assets [present and future) of the borrower; and
{c) All rights of the borrawer under the Material Documents.
Current Tax liabilities (net} {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for tax {net of advan<e tax R. 1 millian [previcus year: Rs. Nil) 1 B
Total 1 -
Provisions (Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Nen-Current Current Non-Current Current

Provisions for gratuity and leave encashment (refer note 33) m 9 62 5
Asset retirement obligation (refer note 32} 15,571 - 13,654 -
Total 15,649 9 13,716 5
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Sheort - term borrowings {Rs. in Million}
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Commercial Paper {unsecured) {refer note (i} below) 9,500 -
Less: Unamortised finance cost {301)

9,199 -

Current maturities of long term debt (secured) (refer note 15) 20,342 20,156
Bank Overdraft {refer note (i) below) - [
Total 29,541 20,162

(i) The Trust has raised money through issue of listed Commercial Papers carrying fate value of Rs. 9,500 million with an issue price aggregating Rs. 8,800 million at 7.95%
payable on September 30, 2024.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2022, COPL has taken overdraft facility from Kotak Bank which is secured by exclusive charge on present and future receivable, current
assets and moveahble fixed assets of CDPL. The interest rate on bank overdraft is 6 Month {marginal cost of funds based lending rate).

Trade payables {Rs. in Millipn)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total autstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) (refer note 31) 26 1
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 7,468 4,638
Totat 7,494 4,639
Ageing of undisputed Trade Payables:

As at March 31, 2024 {Rs. in Million})

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Particulars Accruals Less than 1 year 1-2years 2 -3 years More than 3 Total
years
(i) MSME 2 5 18 0 1 26
{ii) Others 6,388 644 131 103 202 7,468
Total 6,390 6549 149 103 203 7,494
As at March 31, 2023 {Rs. in Million)
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Particulars Accruals Less than 1 year 1-2years 2 -3vyears More than 3 Total
years

(i} MSME - 1 - . - 1
{ii} Others 3,713 601 100 127 97 4,638
Total 3,713 602 100 127 97 4,639




Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes forming part of the C lidated Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024
20 Other financial liabilities {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Derivatives - Call options 765 307 911 449
Call option written for shares of SDIL {refer note 37 and note (i) below} 3,397 - 2,954 -
Derivatives - swaps 161 410 - -
Interest accrued but not due - 1,228 - 1,124
Security deposit 15,700 170 13,650 50
Capital creditors - 232 S 2,257
Payable on acquisition of COPL [refer note 36 and note (i) below) - - - 3,962
Others 188 51 - .
Total 20,211 2,399 17,575 7.842
Note:
{i) On March 10, 2022, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares in CDPL, a company engaged in business of building, maintaining, leasing, renting and otherwise dealing in
infrastructure for telecom sector for total purchase price of Rs. 12,829 million. The Trust entered into a Share Purchase Ag t ("SPA"} providing the Trust the right to

21

direct the relevant activities of CDPL, thereby providing the Trust with full control. Accordingly, effective March 10, 2022, CDPL became Subsidiary {5PV) of the Trust

The aggregate carrying value of contingent cansideration liability of Rs. 3,741 million and deferred working capital refunds of Rs. 221 million was Rs. 3,962 million payable to
the sellers of COPL as at March 31, 2023 on account of the purchase price for the acquisition of COPL. In December 2023, the payable due to the sellers of COPL was finalised
at an amount of Rs. 2,401 million which was paid in lanuary 2024. The settlement of the contingent consideration has resulted in a gain of Rs, 1,561 million which has been
disclosed as Other Income.

(i} On August 31, 2020, the Trust acquired balance 49% of the equity shares of SDIL from Reliance Industries Limited ("RIL"} by entering into a Shareholder and Option
Agreement (“SHOA"} (entered as part of the aforesaid acquisition by Trust). As per the SHOA,, RIL shall be entitled {but not obligated) to require the Trust to sell to RIL (or RIL
nominee, if applicable), the shares of SDIL at lower of Rs. 2,150 million or fair market value of shares. This call option liability was recognised on the date of acquisition by Trust
amounting to Rs. 2,020 million with a corresponding debit to Retained earnings.

Other liabilities (Rs. in Millign)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current

Statutory liabilities 1,465 - 234
Deferred Income (discount on security deposit received) 129 39 103 31
Advances from customer 97 593 319 1,136
Other liabilities {refer note 14(iii}) 68 - 210
Total 226 2,165 422 1,611

o
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Revenue from operations {Rs. in Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of services (refer note 40} 128,775 110,998
Total 128,775 110,998
23 Interest Income {Rs. in Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

24

25

26

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Interest income on:

Fixed deposits 194 238
Income tax refund 27 28
Security deposits 38 30
Capital advance 2,275 69
Total 2,534 415
Other income {Rs. in Million}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Gain on settlement of contingent consideration {refer note: 20{i}) 1,561 -
Income from capital expenditure sharing 3
Liabilities / Provision no longer required written back - 32
Gain on buyback of senior secured notes 590
Ineffectiveness on derivatives designated as cashflow hedge - 9
Other income 4 20
Total 1,565 654
Network operating expenses {Rs. in Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Power and fuel 46,105 40,195
Rent 20,114 16,958
Repairs and maintenance 10,971 9,020
Other network related expense 56 65
Total 77,246 66,238
Employee benefits expense {Rs. in Million}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries and wages 1,248 1,092
Coentribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 33} 36 27
Staff welfare expenses 37 28
Gratuity (refer note 33) 14 9
Total 1,335 1,156

Vi
oW




Data infrastructure Trust

Notes forming part of the Consclidated Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

27

28
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Finance Costs (Rs. in Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest on:
Borrowings 23,391 16,579
Lease liabilities 107 61
Security Deposit 33 25
Mobilisation Advance 32 52
Others 7 1
Exchange loss {attributable to finance cost} 571 3,087
Loss on modification of derivative contracts - 7
Other borrowing cost 860 1,009
Total 25,001 20,821
Depreciation and amortisation expense {Rs. in Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 16,232 14,364
Amortisation of right to use assets 263 154
Amortisation of intangibles assets 552 542
Total 17,047 15,058
Other expenses {Rs. in Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rates and taxes 13 7
Ineffectiveness on derivatives designated as cashflow hedge 2
Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment and 10 16
capital work in progress
Rent expenses 24 23
Travelling expenses 98 66
Business promotion expenses 31 22
Fair value loss on call option 443 394
Fair value loss on contingent consideration 131
Site dismantle charges 22 12
Provision for doubtful debts 2 S
Exchange loss (net) - 1
Miscellaneous expenses 225 185
Total 870 861
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for year ended March 31, 2024

Earning Per Unit [EPU):

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Net profit alter Tax as per Statement of Profit and Lodd attribulable to Unithelders 11,192 7,967 5,469
{Rs in Million)
Units outstanding {nos.} 2,60,30,00,000 2,60,30,00,000 2,60,30,00,000
Weighted average number of units used as denaminator far calculating EPU 2,60,30,00,000 2,60,30,00,000 2,52,72,52,055
Earnings per unit
- Far Basic {Rs.} 4,30 106 216
- For Diluted (Rs.} 4.30 306 216
Dues to micro, small and medi prises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006:
Below is the Group outstanding dues to the micro, small and medium enterprites as defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
{"MSMED Act, 2006"). The identification of micro and small enterpriies s based on information ilable with the g

{Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2022
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 57 11
Interest due on above 1
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act .
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year,
The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment o
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but withaut
adding the interest specilied under the MSMED Act 2006
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 1

accounling year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually pard to the
small enterprise lor the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.

Note: Rs. 32 millions {March 31, 2023. 10 millions } v micro and small enterprizes included In other finandcial liabilities.

Assets retlrement obligation {ARQ):

Asset retirement obligation ¢reated for the cost 10 dismantle equipment and resiore sites at the rented premises upon vacation thereof. The provision
represents the Group's best estimate of the amount that may be required 10 settle the ehligation. The provisions are expected to be settled at the end of the

respective contact terms. No recoveries are expected in respect of the same

Mavement In assets reticement Obligation [ARO) {Rs. in Million}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

At beginning of the year 13,654 13,236
Provided during the year 1,917 418
At end of the year 15,571 13,654

202 b
As per indian Ac ing Standard 19 "Employee benefits” the disclosures as defined are given below :
Cefined contribution plans:
Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

(Rs. in Ao}

Partlculars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Employer’s contribution 1o Provident Fund 38 F1
Defined benefit plan:- The plan is unfunded hence there are no planned assets
1} Reconciliation of apening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation {Rs. i Maillioa)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Defined benelit obligation at beginning of the year 24 16
Current service cost 13 B
Interest cost 2 1
Liability translerred out/paid {1} {a)
Actuarial [gain) 1 boss 0 {1}
Defined benefit obligation at year end 39 24
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Il Recondiliation of falr value of assets and obligations {Ai in Mitan)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2023
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of obligation 39 24
Armount reo_ognised In Balance Sheet 39 24
1) Exp recognised during the year: {Rs. in Million]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
In Statement of Profitand Loss
Current service cost 13 2
Interest cest 2 1
Total 15 9
in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial {gain) f logs 0 {1
Net sast 15 2
1V} The actuarial liabiity for compensated absenced ai at March 31, 3034 4 Ri. 48 milkars {(March 31, 2023: Rs, 38 million}
V) Actuarlal assumptions {&3. in Millizn}
Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023
Mortality table 1ALM {2012-14} Ultimate |ALM [2012-14) Ultimate
Withdrawal rate 311% 0 12% 2% to 10%
Retirement age (vearil 65 62 and 6%
Discaurt fate [per anfum) 7.2 t07.22% 7.36% to 7.45%
Rate of escalation in salary {per annum) 7% 10 8% 5% to 8%
Vi) Maturity profile {Ri. in Million)
Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023
Average expacted future working life {years) 7501 2621 869 10 13.82
Expected future cashilows
Yearl 074 %53
Year 2 3N 167
Year 3 357 2.30
Year 4 4.83 2.20
Year 5 372 2.20
Yeat 610 year 10 15.82 11.39
Above 10 years 30.72 1359
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Vil) Sensitivity analysis

{Rs. in Million}

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Discount rate

a. Discount rate - 100 basis points

a. Discount rate - 100 basis points impact (%)
b. Discount rate + 100 basis points

b. Discount rate + 100 basis points impact {%)

Salary increase rate

rate - 100 basis points

a. rate - 100 basis points impact (%)
b.
b. rate + 100 basis points impact {%)

rate + 100 basis points

40 -]
2.70% 4.97%
34 22
{13.73%) {11.02%)
33 22
{13.80%) [11.19%)
40 25
2.59% 5.04%

The estimates of rate of lation in salary
including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

d in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, serwority, promotion and other relevant factors

These plans typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as: market risk {interest rate risk), salary risk and fongavity risk.

Market risk {Interest rate risk)

Salary risk

Longevity Risk

34 Related Party Disclosures :

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial
markets. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease
in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends an the yields on
the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the vields
as at the valuation date.

Actual salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation, will result in increase to the
obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after
Typically for the benefits paid on or before the retirement age, the longevity risk is not very material.

| List of Related Parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures”
List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships :

Name of Related Party
Entity which exer ntrok T
Brookfield Corporation (Formerly known as Brookfield Asset Management Inc.) Uitimate Patent

BIF IV India Holdings Pte. L1d,
BIF W Jarvis India Pte, Ltd,, Singapore

Members of same group

Equinox Business Parks Private Limited
Kairos Properties Private Limited (farmerly knawn as Vrihis Properties Private Limited}
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

Schloss Chennai Private Limited

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

Schloss Chanakya #rivate Limited

Pipeline Infrastructure Linited

JPFL Filrms Private Limited

Kinetic Holding 1 Pte Limited

Aerobode One Private Limited

Arliga Ecoworld Infrastructure Private Limited

Good Time Real Estate Development Private Limited

Intermediate Parant
Immediate Parent
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il Listof Additional Related Parties as per regul 1 he SEBI InviT Regulation:
A Parties to Data Infrastructure Trust with whom transactions haw | ng relatipnghl
BIF IV Jarvis India Pte Ltd., Singapore Immediate Parent / Co-Sponsor
Brookfield India infrastructure Manager Private Limitad Investment Manager {till Decamber 11, 2023}
{"Erstwhile Investment Manager™) {refer note 1}
BIP india Infra Projects Management Servicas Private Limited Investment Manager {w.e.f Dacember 12, 2023)
(refer note 1}
Axis Trustes Services Limited Trustee
Jo Infrastructure Management Services Limited Project Manager (SDIL}
Jarvis Data-Infra Project Manager Private Limited Project Manager {(CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL]
Reliance tndustrial Investments and Holdings Limited Co-Sponsor
B Promotersto the Part 50 Jak 3 st
Reliance Industries Limited Promator of Co-Sponsar [till March 31, 2023
{"Erstwhile Promotor of Co-Sponsor”]
Axis Bank Limited Promator of Trustee®*

* Axis Bank Limited, being a promaoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited [“Trustee™), trustee to Data
Infrastructure Trust, is considerad as a related party of the Trust in line with the SEB! InvIT Ragufations
based on recent directions from SEBI.

Director of the Parties specified in I[A} abovs

Directors of BIF IV Jarvis India Pte Ltd., Singapore

Liew Yee Foong

Ho Yeh Hwa

Velden Neo Jun Xiong {appointed w.e.f. August 13, 2021 and resigned w.e.f April 29, 2022)
Tang Qichen {resigned w.e f. October 12, 2022)

Tan Alk Thye Derek {w.e.f. April 29, 2022)

Maurice Robert Hendrick Barnes [w.a.f, Qctober 5, 2022)

Tay Zhi Yun (w.e.f, October 12, 2022}

Talisa Poh Pei Lynn (w.e.f. October 12, 2022)

Directors of Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited (till December 11, 2023)
Sridhar Rengan

Chetan R. hehandra Desai (resigned w.e.f. May 31, 2023}

Narendra Aneja [resigned w.e.t, May 31, 2023)

Poojs Aggarwal (appointed w.e b, September 30, 2021 and resigned w.e.f. April 6, 2022}
Swati Mandava [w.ef. June 28, 2022 and resigned w.e f. May 25, 2023 }

Prateek Shroff (w.e.f. May 26, 2023)

Radhika Vijay Haribhakti (w.e.f. June 1, 2023)

Jagdish Ganapathi Kini {w.e.f. June 1, 2023}

Rinki Ganguli {w.e.f. June 1, 2023}

Arun Balakrishnan {w.e.f. June 1, 2023)

Directors of BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited [w.e.f. December 12, 2023)
Dhananjay Joshi

Pooja Aggarwal

Prateek Shroff

Sunit Srivastay

Jagdish Ganapathi Kini

Radhika Haribhakti

Directors of Axis Trustee Services Limited

Deepa Rath

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya [resigned w.e.f. January 15, 2024)
Ganesh Sankaran {resigned w.e.i. fanuary 15, 2024)
Prashant Joshi {w.e 1. lanuary 16, 2024}

Sumit Bali (w.e.f. Janvary 16, 2024}
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Director of Jio Infrastructure Management Services Limited
Damodaran Satish Kumar (appointed w.e.f November 6, 2023}
Nikhil Chakrapani Suryanarayana Kavipurapu

Hariharan Mahadevan {upto August S, 2022}

Rahut Mukherjee {w.e.i. August 5, 1022}

Sudhakar S lafr d w.e.f. Novernber 10, 2023}

Director of Jarvis Data-Infra Project Manager Private Limited
Darshan Bhupendra Vaora
Gaurav Manof Chowdhary

Director of Rels: Industriat h
Hital Rasiklal Meswani [resigned w.e.f. August 26,2023}
Vinod Mansukhlal Ambani {resigned w.e.l. August 26, 2023}
Mahendra Nath Bajpai {resigned w.e.f. August 26, 2023])
Savithri Parekh {resigned w.e.F. August 26, 2023)

Dhiren Vrajlal Dalal {resigned w.e.f. March 30, 2023}

Balasubrmanian Chandrasekaran {fesigned w.e f March 30, 2023)

Sethuraman Kandasamy (w.e.f August 25, 2023]
¥ Mohana {w.e.f. August 25, 2023}
Bimal Manu Tanna (w.e.f. August 25, 2023)

Li Addltional Rel ([ lation 1

Digital Fibre Infrastructure Trust
India Infrastructure Trust (till December 11, 2023}

and Holdings Limited

he InviT Regul

for year ended March 31, 2024

Common Sponsor
Common Investment Manager

W Transactlons during the year with related parties (Rs. in Million}
Sr No. |Particulars Relationship Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1{Trustee Fee
Axis Trustee Services Limited Trustee z 2
2[Investment Management Feas
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited Erstwhile 19 28
Investment
Manager
BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited Investment ] -
Manager
3| Reimbursement of Expenses
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited Erstwhile 6 5
Investment
Manager
BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited {nvestment 14 -
Manager
4|Project Manager Fees
Jio Infrastructure Management Services Limited Project Manager 24 24
{50IL)
Jarvis Data-Infra Project Manager Private Limited Project Manager 2 2
[COPLRDIPL and
CVNPL}
5 |Distribution to Unitholders
BIF IV Jarvis India Pte Ltd. Co-Sponsor 24,720 26,888
Axis Bank Limited Promater of 23 o
Trustee
6|0eposit paid
Equinox Business Parks Private Limited Members of same - 10
group
7| Depoiit received
‘Good Time Real Estate Development Private Limited Members of same - 2
group
8|Reliance Industries Limited Erstwhile Promotor|
of
Interest on Non-Convertible Debenture Co-Sponser - 1,678
Repayment of Non-Convertible Debentures . 53,360
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{Rs. in Million)
S No. |Particulars Relationship Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
9|Loans Taken
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of 2875 25,288
Trustes
10|Loans Repaid
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of 5,463 1,182
Trustee
11|Interest Expense
Axis Bank Limited Promater of 4,099 2,110
Trustee
12|Arranger Fees
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of o 58
Trustee
13|NCD Allotment
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of - 15,000
Trustee
14 |Fixed Deposit Placed
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of 22,670 28,031
Trustee
15|Fixed Deposit Matured
Axis Bank Limited Promaoter of 22,207 28,031
Trustee
16 |Interest Income on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of 54 89
Trustee
17|Bank Charges
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of o ]
Trustee
18{Other Income
Good Time Real Estate Development Private Limited Members of same 2 -
group
BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited Investment 0 .
Manager
19|Expenses Incurred
Equinox Business Parks Private Limited 54 ]
Kairos Properties Private Limited {formerly known as Vrihis Properties Private 5 9
Limited}
Aerobode One Private Limited MEmbersICraa e 0 -
Schioss Bangalore Private Limited group 1 1
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 1 1
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 1 1
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 1 1
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited 2 12
JPFL Films Private Limited o -
Arliga Ecoworld Infrastructure Private Limited 1 -
20|Prepaid Expense
Kairos Properties Private Limited {formerly known as Vrihis Properties Private Members of same 3 -
Limited} group
Aerobode One Private Limited 2 -
Fil lon (Refer note a, band c]
Dhananjay Joshi Diractor of kL3 -
Investmant
Manager jw.e.f
December 12,
2023)
22|DIrector Sitting Fees [Refer note a, b and ]
Jagdish Ganapathi Kini Ditector of 2 -
Investment
Manager {w.e f.
Sunil Srivastav December 12, 2 =
2023)
22|Purchase of Equity shares in CVNPL
Kinetic Holding 1 Pte Limited Members of same 1 -

group
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|a) Does not include provision towards gratuity and leave encashment which is provided based on actuarial valuation on an averall SPV basis.
{b} Rermuneration includes gross salary and performance incentive paid in respective year which is related to the performance of preceding year.

s for year ended March 31, 2024

{c} BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited (BIP India} has been appointed as Investment Manager of the Trust w.e f. December 12, 2023. Mr.
Dhananjay Joshi is appointed as a Director in BIP India w.e.f. December 12, 2023 with NIL remuneration, however, he is also a Key Managerial Personnel in SDIL and

getting remuneration as part of contract of employment and accordingly remuneration for the year April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 is disclosed.

[ii} Balance as at end of year:

{Rs. in Million}
5r No. |Particulars Relationship As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1|Units Capltal of Data Infrastructure Trust
BIF WV Jarvis India Pte Ltd. Co-Sponsor 152,018 229,227
2{Contribution to Corpus
Reli Industeial Investrmants and Heldings Limited Co-Sponsor 240 240
3(Term Loan
Axis Bank Limited Promotar of 40,874 44,462
Trustee
4|Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited Promuoter of 462 2
Trustes
5|8ank Balance
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of -] 4
Trustee
6| interest accrued on Fixed Deposit
| Axis Bank Limited Promoter of 1 0
Trustee
7|Arranger Fees payable
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of 0 O
Trustee
B|Borrowing - NCD's
Axis Bank Limited Promoter of - 7,900
Trustee
%|Deposit Recaivable
Equingx Busingss Parks Private Limited Members of same 24 24
egroup
Schioss Chennai Private Limited Members of same 0 [+]
group
10|Receivable
Good Time Real Estate Development Private Limited Members of same 3
group
BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited Investment 1]
Manager
11|Securlty Deposit Refundable
‘Good Time Real Estate Development Private Limited Members of same 2 2
group
12| Deferred Income
Good Time Real Estate Developmant Private Limited Members of same 2 2

group
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{Rs. in Million)
Sr No. [Particulars Relationship As at Agat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
13|Other Payable
Kairas Properties Private Limited {formerly known as Vrihis Properties Private BMembers of same 1 1
Limited} group
Equinox Business Parks Private Limited Members of same 1 1
group
Schioss Chenrai Private Limited Members of same 0 0
group
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited Members of same 1] 0
group
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited Members of same - o
group
Pipeline Infrastructure Limited Members of same 10 9
group
Aerobode One Private Limited Members of same 0 5
group
JPFL Films Private Limited Members of same 0 -
Broup
Arliga Ecoworld Infrastructure Private Limited Members of same 1 -
group
Brookfield India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited Erstwhile - 3
Investment
Manager
BIP Indis Infra Projects Managemant Services Private Limited (net of advances} Investment 4 -
Manager
14|Prepaid expense
Kairos Properties Private Limited (formerly known as Vrihis Properties Private Members of same 3 .
Lirnited} group
Aerobode One Private Limited Members of same 2 o
group
15| Rellance Industries Limited [till March 31, 2023)
0% Non- Convertible Preference Shares Erstwhile . 147
Promotor of
Ca-Sponsar
Compensation of Director of Investment Manager (w.e.f. December 12, 2023):
{Rs. in Million}
Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2024 2023
i} Short term benefits 43 -
ii] Post employment benefits (Refer Note ii below] g g

Notes:
i. This includes provision towards short-term benefit employee expense.
ii. Past employment benefits are actuarially determined on overall basis and hence not separately provided.

34A  Details in respect of related party transactions Involving acquisition of InviT assets as required by SEBI Master Clreular:
For the year ended March 31, 2024:
A)  Summary of the valuation reports {Issued by the independent valuer):
{Rs. In Miltion)

Particulars Crgst Virtual Netwark Private Limlted
Enterprise Value -
Method of valuation Net Asset Value method

B)  Materlal conditions or obligations In relation to the transactions:
Acquisition of Crest Virtual Network Private Limited:
Crest Digitel Private Limited [ "CDPL") acquired 100% of paid -up equity share capital of Crest Virtual Network Private Limited {"CVNPL"} with effect from
Septemnber 21, 2023 through Share Purchase Agreement dated September 08, 2023 {“SPA") as per below details

:: Name of the transferor MNarme of the transferee Number of equity shares to be transferred
1 Kinatic Holdings 1 Pre Ltd, Crest Digitel Private Limited 99,000
2 BIF 1l India Road Holdings Pte Ltd. Jarvis Data-Infra Project 1

Alse , the Crest Digitel has acquired entire stake in CVNPL, post approval from Trust, The Trust has 100% equity shares of Crest Digitel Private Limited {
“COPL"}. Therefore, Trust has control over CVNPL and CDPL,

Based on the contractual terms of the agreement, the Trust has following rights:

+ Right to nominate all directors on the board of directors of the CVNPL,

+ Right to direct the selling shareholders to vote according to its instructions in the AGM/EGM or any other meeting of shareholders of CVNPL,
In view of the above, the Trust has concluded that it cantrols CYNPL
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Contingent liabilities and Commitments:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

Contingent labllities:

a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt: 7526 6,078
Goods and Service Tax [(GST} [refer note below)

Note: During the pravious year, the Group received demand orders for financial year 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 of Rs. 1,057 million and Rs. 1,073 million
respectivaly from Bihar GST Authority disallowing the input tax credits utilised by the Group. The Group had disputed the aforesaid disallewance, Against the
demand far the year 2019-2020, the Group had filed a writ petition before the Patna High zourt and the same was dismissad in the current year, During the
current year, the Graup has filed Special Leave Petivion (“SLP") before Supreme court. Against the demand for the year financial year 2020-2021, the Group
had filed an appeal before the Appellate authority which was rejected in the current year. The Group will file appeal before second appellate authority once
the same is constituted.

During the current year, the Group has received demand order of Rs 616 miSon and $33 million for financial year 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 respectively
from Bihar GST autharities disallowing the input tax credit utilised by the Group. The Group has filed appeal bafore lirst appellate authority for both the years
on January 30, 2024 and January 27, 2024 respectively.

Further the Group has also received demand orders of Rs. 1,694 million and Rs. 2,253 million for the financial year 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 respectively
from Uttar Pradesh GST Authority disallowing the input tax credit utilised by the Group. The Group has filed an appeal before the first Appellate authority for
both the years on August 11, 2023,

During the current year, the Group has received order from Tami Nadu GST authorities lor financial year 2019.2020, 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 disallowing
the input tax credit utilised by the Group, The tolal demand is Rs 288 million. The company has filed an appeal before the first appellate authority on August
29, 2023

The Group has reviewed the aforesaid orders and does not foresee any proviston required in this respect at this stage. The Group is indemnified by 3 party for
these demands except for Rs. 1,134 milfon {previous year Rs 107 million).

b) Munigipal Tax :

The Group based on its assessment of the applicability and tenability of certain municipal taxes, which is an industry wide phenomencon, does not consider
the impact of such levies to be material.
Further, in the event these tevies are confirmed by the respective authorities, the Group would recaver these amounts from its customers in accordance with
the terms of Master Service Agreement.

c) The Trust does not have any tontingent liabiliues as on Mareh 31, 2024. In respect of March 31, 2023, refer note 20{i) for contingent consideration in
relation to acquisition of COPL.

Commitments [Rs. in Million)
Partlculars Asat As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account not 145 204

provided for (net of capital advance)
Other Commitments related to bank guarantee 370 356

Additionally, Board of Directors of BIP India, acting in its capacity as Investment Manager of Data InvIT, at its mesting held on lanuary 4, 2024 has approved
the acquisition of 100% interest in American Tower Corporation’s Indian tower business entity i.e ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limitad {"ATC India“}
for an enterprise value of INR 165 billion {~USD 2 billion) {subject to pre-closing terms). Trust has signed a binding agreement on lanuary 4, 2024 and the
completion of the acquisition will be subject to approval of unithalders, various regulatory approvals and other pra tlosing terms.

The Group's netwerk operating expenses include repairs and maintenance for which the Group has d into an op ions and maint ] it
far 30 years, Costs are recognised as services are rendered by service provider.
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36 Business Combination
{a) Summary of acquisition - RDIPL and CYNPL
On Septernber 8, 2023, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares of RDIPL for 3 total consideration of Rs. 0.1 millian. On September 21, 2023, COPL acquired
100% equity shares of CYNPL for a total consideration of Rs. 0.7 million.

{b) Summary of acquisition - COPL

On March 10, 2022, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares in CDPL, a company engaged in business of building, maintaining, feasing, renting and otherwise
dealing in infrastructure for telecom sector for 10tal purchase price of Rs. 12,829 million, The Trust entered into a Share Purchase Agreement [“SPA")
providing the Trust the right to direct the relevant activities of COPL, thereby providing the Trust with full control. Accordingly, effective March 10, 2022,
CDPL bacame Subsidiary {SPV) of the Trust.

Total purchase price includes upfront consideration paid in cash Rs.3,166 million, 52,800,000 units of the Trust aggregating Rs. 5,832 million issued on a
preferential basis to the sellers of CDPL, deferred working capital refunds Rs. 221 million and a contingent consideration linked to achievement of revenues
for eligible contracts as specified in the SPA. The fair value of the contingent consideration recorded at Rs 3,610 million as at the date of acquisitian has been
settled during the year through purchase of OCRPS from the seilers of COPL by the Trust [refer note 20{i)).

In March 2023, the Group had finalised the purchase price allocation and the fair value of assets and Habilities acquired on
acquisition are as follows:

Particulars {Rs. in Million}

Assets:
(a) Property, plant and equipment {net of accumulated depreciation) 1,454
{3} Capital work-in-progress 343
ic) Right to use assets 343
(d) Intangible assets and Intangible Assets under development 5351
3] Other assets 965
in Deferred tax asset {net) -10
{g)  Trade receivables 228
{h)  Cashand cash equivalents b}

Total Assets (i} 2,675

Lisbilities:
() Borrowings 442
{b)  Lease liabilities a1
T3] Other liabilities 1,387
{d}  Trade payables 284
(e) Provisians EE
if Deferred tax liability 1,349

Total Liabilitles {1} 3,836
Net Identifiable assets acquired {{i) - (Il]} 4839
Calculation of goodwill:

Total Consideration 12,829

Less: Net identifiable assett acquired (a4 per above] 4,839

Total Goodwill 7,950

37 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

A Capltal Management:
The Group adheres to a disciplined capital management framewcrk, the pillars of which are as follows:

a} Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to minimize liquidity risk. Ensure financial flexibility and
diversify sources of financing and their maturities to min‘mize liquidity risk while meeting investment requirements.

bl The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise unitholder value.

¢ Manage linancial market risks ariging from forsign exchange and interest rates, and minimise the impact of market volatility on sarnings, Leverage optimalty
in order to maximize unit holder return while maintaining strength and flexitility of the Balance Sheet.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The Group's policy is 10 keep the gearing ratio eplimum after
taking into aczount SEBI inwviT Regulations. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the distribution to unitholders (subject to the
provisions of InviT regulations which require distribution of at least 90% of the net distributable cash flows of the Trust to unit holders], return capital to
unitholders or issue new units. The Graoup includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Net Gearing Ratio
The net gearing ratia at the end of the year was as follows:

{Rz. in Million)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Debt {refer note (i} 312,044 295,375
Cash and cath equivalents (refar nate 10} (6,458) {5,760)
Net deht (A} 305,586 289,615
Total equity {B} 133,697 169,859
Net gearing ratlo [A/B]* 229% 171%

Note

(i) Debt is defined as lang - term and thort - term borrowings as described in note 15 and 18

DY\SVJ
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8. Categories of financlal instruments and falr value measurement hierarchy:
The financial instruments are categorized into two levelt based @n inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described below:
Level 1 Quoted prices [unadjuited) in active markets for identical assets or labdities,
Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly or indirectly; and
Leve! 3: Inputs which are significantly from unobservable market data.
The Group considers that the caerying amount recognised in the financal statements for financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
approximates their fair value

{Rs. in Million})
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Carrying Fair value hierarchy Carrying Fair value hierarchy
amount Level of input used in amount Level of input used in
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets:
At Amortised Cost:
Trade receivables 1013 o . 1,783 . - -
Cash and cash equivalents 5,458 - - - 5,760 - - -
Other bank balanzes 130 - - 208 . -
Qther financial assets 15,150 - - - 12,277 - - -
fexeluding derivat
instruments)
Derivatives designed as
hedges:
Derivative instruments - 20 B 201 o 51 - 51 -
Coupan only Swaps
Financial Uabllities
Derivatives designed as
hedges:
Derivative instruments - 14072 - L0972 - 1,380 - 1,380 -
Call optiens
Derivative instruments 571 . 571 - - o - -
Swaps
At Fair Value through
profit and loss (FVTPL):
Call Option 3,397 3,397 2,954 . - 2,954
Payable on acquisition of . . - - 3,741 - - 3741
COPL
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings 312,044 - 295,375 . . .
Trade payables 7,494 . . . 4,639 - - -
Lease hiabilities 1,623 - - - 1,066 - - -
Other financial liabilities 17,570 - - . 17,562 - - -
[excluding derivative
instruments)

Valuation methodology:
The following methods and ptions were used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments.

a] The fair value of investment in overnight mutual funds is measured at Met Asset Value as at the reporting date.

b) The fair value of Principle Only Swap, Coupon only Swaps and Option contracts is determined using most frequently applied valuation technigues using present
value calculations. The madels incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and future rates and interest rate
curves of the underlying as at the balance sheat date.

4

The fair value of call option written to sell the shares of subsidiary is measured using Black Scholes Madel. Key inputs used in the measurement are:

(i) Stock Price: It is estimated based on the stock price as of the date of the transaction August 31,2020 of INR 2,150 million, a5 increased for the interim peried
between August 31,2020 and March 31,2024 by the Cost of Equity as this would be expected return on the investment for the acquirer,

{ii} Exercise Price: Rs, 2,150 mill.on

{iii) Option Maturity: 30 years fram August 31,20204.¢., August 31,2050

{iv} Risk free rate &3 on date of valuation : 7.1% (March 31, 2023 : 7.4%) and cost of equity : 15.3%,

{v} The fair value =n the date of acquisition of Rs. 2,020 million was recognised as a liability with a correspanding debit 10 equity as this is part of the acquisition
transaction described in Corporate Information.
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The following table presents the changes in level 3 itemns: {Rz. i Millian)
Particulars Contingent consideration Call aption written
Balance at the beginning of the year i.e, April 1, 2022 3,610 2,559
Fair value changes recagnised in Statement of Profit and Loss 131 394
Balance at the end of the year i.e. March 31, 2023 3,741 2,954
Balance at the beginming of the year i.e. April 1, 2023 3,741 1,954
Fair value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss {1,561) 443
Paid during the year (2,180)

Balance at the end of the year i.e. March 31, 2024 - 3‘397

C. Financial risk management

b

The different types of risks the Group is exposed to are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group takes measures to judicously mitigate the abmive
mentioned risks.

Market risk

Forelgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of chang#i in foreign currency rates, Exposures can
afise on account of the various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as Option and Coupon only Swaps contracts to minimise any adveri# effect on its financial performance. All
such activities are undertaken within an appi d rigk g t policy fr k.

The fellowing table shows foreign currency exposures in US$ on financial instruments at the end of the reparting period.

{Rs. in Million)
Particulars Foreign Currency Exposure
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
us$
Qther assets 1 (4
Trade Payables 13 O
Other liabilities e 68
Other Financial Liabilities - Derivatives - Call Options 1,072 1,380
Other Financial assets - Derivatives - Swaps {200 {51)
Other Financial Liabilities - Derivatives - Swaps 571 -
Borrowings - Senior Secured Nates 39,386 38,740
Net Exposure 41,023 40,133

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease against the relevant foreign currency. 1% represents management’s assessment
of a reasonable possible change in foreign exchange rate.

{Rs. in Million}
Particulars Foreign Currency Sensitivity
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
1% Oepreciation in INR {285} 1a02)
impact on Other Comprehensive Income (16} {14)
impact on Profit and Loss (269) {388)
1% Appreciation in INR 285 402
Impact on Other Comprehensive Income 16 14
Impact on Profit and Loss 269 388
Interest Rate Risk
The Group's exposure ta the risk of changes in market interest rate relates to the floating rate debt ehligations.
The expasure of the Group's borrowings at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
{Rs. in Million)
Particulars. Interest Rate Exposure

March 31, 2024 { March 31, 2023

Borrowings
Neon-Current - Floating (includes Current Maturities)® 173,420 191,890
Total 173,420 191,890

*Includes Rs. 1,230 million {March 31, 2023: 1,380 million} as prepaid financa charges and fts 33,539 million {March 31, 2023 Rs.37,525 million) pertaining to
term toan with a fixed interest rate far initiat 3 years from the date of drawdown.

Note: The above table excludes net borrowings of Rs. 126,241 million (previous year - Rs, 103,485 million) having fixed rate of interest as the Group is not
exposed to any interesk rate risk on such borrowings.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate borrowings:
The Group does not account for any fixed-rate borrowings at fair value theough profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interast rates at the reperting date would
not affect profit or loss.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity analysis to 1% {floating rate borrowings) change in Int t rate. 1% repi ST
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate.

£ 1t's assessment of a
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{Rs. in Million)

Particulars Interest Rate Sensitivity as at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Up Move Down Move Up Move Down Move
Total Impact {1,734) 1,734 {1,919) 1.919
tmpact on Other Comprehensive Income - - - -
tmpact on Profit and Loss (1,734) 1,734 {1.919) 1,919
li} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to perfarm or pay amounts due causing financiak loss to the Group. Credit
risk arises from Group's activities in investments, outstanding receivables from customers and and balances at bank.
The Group has a prudent and conservative process for managing its credit risk arising in the course of its business activities. Credit risk is actively managed by
continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers.
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses “Expected Credit Loss'(ECL) model, for measurement and recognition of impairment loss of financial assets other
than those measured at fair value through profit and loss {FVTPL) towards expected risk of delays and default in collection. Movement of ECL as at year end is as
follows:

{Rs. in Million)
Particutars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Exposure at default 599 458

[Rs. in Million)
Particulars March 31, 2024 | march 31, 2023
Opening balance 12 10
Provision created during the year 2 5
Reversed f written off during the year 31 {3)
Closing balance 14 12

ill) Uquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group’s inability to meet its cash flow commitrments on the due date. The Group accesses global and locat financial markets to meet
its lkiquidity requirements. It uses a range of products and a mix of currencies to ensure efficient funding from across well-diversified markets and investor peols.
Treasury monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's cash flow position and ensures that the Group is able to meet its financial obligation at all times including
contingencies.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabllities as at march 31, 2024
{Rs. in Million}

Particulars 0-1Years 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Above § years Total

Trade payable {Refer Note 19} 7.494 - - - 7,494
Creditors for capital expenditure 232 - - - 232
Lease liabilities 386 709 605 333 2,033
Other non current financial liabilities - 1,234 169 18,980 20,383
Other current financial liabilities 2173 - - 2,173
Borrowings” {Refer Note 15 and 18} 29,842 64,295 63,651 154,603 312,391
Total 40,127 66,238 64,425 173,916 344,706

*Includes Rs.2,029 million as prepaid finance charges.
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financlal liabilities as at March 31, 2023
{Rs. in Million)

Particulars 0-1Years 1-3 Years 3.5 Years Above 5 years Total

Trade payable (Refer Note 19) 4,639 - - - 4,639
Creditors for capital expenditure 2,257 - - - 2,257
Lease liabilities 240 476 376 242 1,334
Other non current financial liabilities - 1,067 193 16,455 17,7115
‘Other current financial liabilities 5,585 - - g 5,585
Borrowings® (Refer Note 15 and 18) 20,254 40,541 65,338 159,518 295,651
Tatal 32,975 42,084 65,907 186,215 327,181

*Includes Rs.2,282 million as prepaid finance charges.

3

a) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financlal position -
The impact of the hedging instruments on the financial position as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Change in the
falr value of
Nominal Carrying amgunt Weighted designated Line item in the
of hedging average strike portion of
ey instrument - Maturity rate for hedging LI
Type of hedge and risks Assets [ Hedge ratia that includes
Assets / date cutstanding  |instrument used
{Uiabilitles) (Uabdlities) hedging to determine the hedging
Rs in Milllon instrument
fis in Million instruments hedge
{neffectiveness
since inception
Cash flow hedge:
{i} Foreign currency 3,502 45| 08-Aug-31 11 usD 1: - Other financial
options [excluding INR 111 liabilities
premium payable)
(i) Coupon only swaps 2,282 20 12.-Aug-26 1:1 ush1: 69 | Other Financial
INR BS assets
{iii) Coupon only swaps {1,980) 132)] 12-Aug-31 1:1 uso1: {19}] Other financial
INR 96 liabilities
{iv} Principal only swaps. {12,425) (540)| 12-Aug-31 1:1 usD1: 46 | Other financial
INR 83 iabrities
Fair value hedge:
(i) Fereign currency 23,537 432 08-Aug-31 1:1 usD 1: - Other financial
options {excluding INR 125 habilities
premium payable)
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The impact of the hedging instruments on the financial position as on March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Change in the
fair value of
Nominal Carrying amount Weighted designated Line item in the
of hedging average strike portion of
oL instrument - Maturity rate for hedging LT
Type of hedge and risks Assets | Hedge ratio that includes
(Liabilities) Assets [ date outstanding |Instrument used the hedging
Rs in Million [Liabillties) hedging to determine v ——
s in Million instruments hedge
Ineffectiveness
since inception
Cash flow hedge:
{i} Foreign currency 5,041 121 0B-Aug-31 11 usD1: Oither financial
options (excluding INR 11% liabilities
premium payable}
{1) Coupon only swaps 3,392 51 12-Aug-26 1:1 uspl: 104 | Other financial
INR 85 assets
Falr value hedge:
(i} Foreign currency 35,070 950 | 08-Aug-31 11 usD1: Cther financial
options INR 125 liabilities
fexcluding premium
|payable)

The impact of hedged items on the financial position as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:
{Rs. in Million)

Change in the
value of Line item in the
Cash flow Cost of hedged item | balance sheet

Type of hedge and risks Carrying a":::: of hedged hedge hedging used to that includes
reserve reserve determb the hedged
hedge item
ineffectiveness
Assets Liabilities

Cash flow hedge

(i) Foreign currency NA NA e 1203} g

options

{ii) Coupon only swaps NA NA {39) {585) (37)

and Principal only swaps

Fair value hedge

{i) Foreign currency S 26,886 - {879) - Non-current

options Borrowings

The impact of hedged items an the financial position as on March 31, 2023 is as follows:
{Rs. im Millign}

Change in the
value of Line item In the
Cash flow Cost of hedged item | balance sheet

Type of hedge and risks Carrying an':lo:r:t of hedged hedge hedging used to that includes

reserve reserve determine the hedged
hedge item
ineHectiveness
Assets Liabllities

Cash flow hedge

(i) Foreign currency NA NA - 184

options

(it} Coupan only swaps MNA NA {47} 96

Falr value hedge

{i} Foreign currency . 38,740 1,009 Non-current

options Borrowings
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{b} Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. in Million)

Type of hedge Change in  |[Changeinfalr  [Hedge Difference A t Uneitem tine item in the
the value of |value of hedging |ineffectiven [in fair value [reclassified reclassified {affected in profit and loss
the hedging |instrument ess movements |from cash flow |from cost of statement of  [that
instrument |recognised in vecognised |of aligned |[hedging hedging reserve|profit and loss  |includes the
recognised |cost of hedging |in profitor |forward reserve to to prafit or loss |because of the |recognised
in other reserve (OCI} loss element profit or foss reclassification |hedge
comprehens and actual fneffectiveness
Ive Income [forward

elerment
recognised
in profit or
loss

Cash flow hedge:

{i) Foreign exchange risk 37 749 7 {9) az {135)| Finance Cost Other Expense

Falr value hedge:

{i) Foreign exchange risk - 75 - - - {205)| Finance Cost NA

Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2023:

{Rs. in Million}
Change In Cifference
the value of
In fair valve

the hedging

instrument movements Line item in the
Change in fair  |Hedge of aligned |Amount tine item

recagnised Amount profit and loss
value of hedging |ineffectiven |forward reclassified affected in

in other reclassified that
instrument ass element from cash flow statement of

Type of hedge comprehens . L from cost of inctudes the

recog in recog and actual |hedging profit and loss
ive income {hedging reserve recognised
cost of hedging |in profitor  |forward reserve to because of the
to profit or loss hedge
reserve {OCI) loss element profit or loss reclassification
ineffectiveness

recognised

in profit or

less

Cash flow hedge

{i) Foreign exchange risk {94} 51 9 - {66) {18}{ Finance Cost Other income

Fair value hedge

[Li) Foreign exchange risk - &96 - - - {364} |Finance Cost NA

The Group had undertaken USD/INR call options with various counterparties to hedge the currency risk in respect of its USD foreign currency borrowing and
future foreign currency interest payments, The pringipal repay ¢ of this b ing was ¢ d in a fair value hedge ralationship and future interest
Py is considered in a hedge relationship. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Group has altered certain terms of its derivative contracts
with the respective counterparties with the effect that call options on principal amount of borrowings aggregating to USD 150 million have been converted into
principal only swaps. Further, call options on related interest payments on USD 100 million have been converted into coupon only swaps. These principal only
swaps and coupon only swaps have been designated in cash flow hedging relationships since their inception during the year. The hedged items creates variability
of fair values and cash flows arising from the future changes in USD exchange rates. An appreciation in USD in the future would put the Group at a risk of making
higher IN& payments {both future interest payments and repayment of loan at the end of the tenure). The call option undertaken mitigates the underlying risk by
fixing the price at which the Group will buy USD, without giving up the upside of benefitting from an appreciation in INR vis-a-vis USD {one-sided risk]. As the
hedged exposure is exactly matched by the USD leg of the option (that is, they both have the same USD notional amounts and the same tenure), an economic
relationship exists. The principal only swap undertaken mitigates the underlying risk by fixing the price at which the Group will buy USD, irrespective of any
appreciation/depreciation in INR vis-a-vis USD. As the hedged exposure is exactly matched by the USD leg of the principal anly swap {that is, they both have the
same USD national amounts and the same teaure}, an economic relationship exists,

i

Kt

Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception of the hedge, at each reporting date and upon a significant change in the circumstances affacting the hedge
effectiveness requirements to ensure (hat an ecohamic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument. In respect of hedge using USG/INR
call options, the following potential sources of ineffectiveness are identified:

* A change in the credit risk of Group or the counterparty to the option contract;

= Changes in the contractual terms or timing of the payments on the hedged items.

There was no recognised ineffectiveness during financial year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023 in relation to the USD/INR call option
contracts.

The Group has also undertaken USD/INR Principal Only Swap and Coupon Only Swap with various counterparties to hedge the currency risk in respect of USD
foreign currency borrowing and its future interest payments. As per “the cash flow hedge on foreign currency exposure policy’, critical terms shall be applied to
assess qualitatively the economic relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item. The hedged item creates an exposure to settle foreign
currency d ted interest ts in local currency terms. As the hedged exposure is exactly matched by the USD leg of the swap {that is, they both have
the same USD amounts} and similar payment dates, an economic relationship exists.

The Group has designated only the spot element of the principal only swaps in the cash flow hedging relationship and the forward element has been accounted
using cost of hedging approach,
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Hedge ineffectiveness for USD/INR Principal Only Swaps and Coupon Orily swaps is assessed using the same principles as for hedges of foreign currency
repayment of borrowings and future foreign currency interest using USD/INR Evropean aptions contract. It may occur due to

* The fair va'ue of the hedging instrumant on the hedge relationship designation date [if not zero},
« thanges in the contractual terms or timing of the payments on the hedged item; and
= A change in the credit fisk of Group or the counterparty to the Principal Only Swap and Coupon only swap.

The ineffectiveness recognised during financial year ended March 31, 2024 was Rs. 2 million (refer note 28} (March 31, 2023: Rs. 9 million} {refer note 24)} in
relation to the Swaps.

To comply with the risk managernent policy, the hedge ratio is based on a hedging instrument with the same national amount as the underlying exposure. This
results in @ hedge rat'o of 1:1 or 100%.

Movements in cash flow hedging reserve and costs of hedging reserve -
[Rs. in Miltign]

Risk category Foretgn currency risk
Principal
Forelgn
Derivative Instruments currency only and Total
Coupon only|
options
swaps

i) Cash flow hedging reserve:

As at April 01, 2022 113 113
Less: Changes in fair value of coupon anly swaps. o {94) (24
Less: A reclassified to it of Profit or Loss - {66} {66]
As at March 31, 2023 - (47) (a7}
Less: Changes in fair value of coupon only swaps. . 37 37
Less: Amounts reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss o 49 49
As at March 31, 2024 - 39 19

{ii) Costs of hedging reserve

As at April 01, 2022 818 - 818

Add: Change in fair value of time value of foreign currency 757
. 757 .

option contracts

Less: Amounts reclassified ti Statement of Profit or Loss {382) - {382}

As at 31 March 2023 1,193 - 1,193

Add: Changes in the fair value in relation to time-period/ 93 721 814

forward elements related hedged items

Less: Amounts reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss {205} {135) {340}

As at 31 March 2024 1,081 586 1,667

{c} The following tables detail varlous infarmation regarding option contracts, prinicipal onty swaps and coupon only swap contracts cutstanding at the end
of the reporting peried:

As at March 31, 2024

{Rs. in Mlilian)

Particulars Maturity
Less than 1 year | 1to 2 years | 2 to 5 years 5 years + Total

Fareign currency options
- Notional amounts - - 1,751 25,688 27,439
- Average strike price - - 193 124 NA
Caupon only swap
- Notianal smounts 1,013 1,019 1,368 13,231 16,687
- Average strike price 86 86 92 84 NA
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As at March 31, 2023
(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Maturity
Less than 1year | 1to2years | 2 to 5 years 5 years + Totat

Foreign currency options.
+ Notional amounts - - 1,512 38,599 43,111
- Average strike price - - 100 124 NA
Coupon only swap
- Notional amounts 1,008 2,017 367 - 3,392
- Average strike price 85 85 85 - NA

Financial risk management objectives and policies-

The Group’s risk gement is predominantly controlled by a treasury department under policies approved by the Board of directori. Treasury identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the operating units. The board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of desivative financial instruments and non-dervative financia
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Where all relevant criteria are met, hedge accounting is applied to remove the accounting mi h bety the hedging instrument and the hedged item. This
will effectively result in reducing the foreign currency risk in respect of its foreign currency borrawings including future foreign currency interest payments (e an
acceptable level.

The Group had issued 2.875 basis point semi-annual USD 500 million 10-year Senior Secured Notes. During the previous year, the Grzup had bought back the
notes at discounted value worth USD 27.37 million and the outstanding value of Senior Secured Notes is USD 472.63 Milion (previous year -USD 472.63 millian}.
This exposes the Group to foreign exchange risk arising from variability in the foreign exchange rates, thereby increasing the Profit and fass volatility. As per the
risk management policy of the Group, the Group has entered into USD/INR call option contracts and Principal only Swaps for principal bullet repayment at the
end of loan tenure along with coupon only swaps and multiple call eption strip of coupon repayment,

Segment Reporting:

The Group is primarily engaged in setting up, opesating and maintaining passive tower infrastructure and related assets and providing passive tower
infrastructure related services. Accordingly, Group has the single segment as per the requirements of Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments. AN assets are located in
India and revenue of the Group is earned in India hence, there is single geographic segment. Substantially all of the revenues of the Group are from a single
customer.

Subsequent events:

Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2024, SDIL, has issued 60,000 NCD's in the denomination of Rs. 1,00,000 each aggregating Rs. 6,000 million. These NCD's
carry a coupon rate of 7.89% payable quarterly and are listed on Debt Segment of National Stock Exchange of India Limited w.e.f. May 03, 2024. Further, the
Board of Directors of BIP India have declared a distribution [return on capital) of Rs, 2.3826 per unit on May 15, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers:

The Group has recognised following amounts relating to revenue in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Revenue by nature {Rs. in Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Infrastructure Provisioning Fees {Including reimbursement of power and fue! and site rent)® 128,775 110,938
Total 128,775 110,998
Note: The Group derives its revenue from the transfer of services over time.

* SDIL has entered into a 30 year master service agreement with one of its customer pursuant to which SDIL provides the Passive Infrastructure and refated
services, Revenue related 10 the same will be accrued as services are provided.

. Reconclliation of revenue recognised - (R4 in Millian)

Partlculars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contracted price 128,775 110,998
Less: Discounts to customers 5 -
Net Revenue recognised 128,775 110,958
. Transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as at 31 March 2024 - Rs. Nil {Previous year Nil).
. Contract balances {Rs. in Million)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unbilled Revenue 9,879 3,896

. During the previous year, SDAL has agreed with one of its customer {"anchor tenant”) that the anchor tenant will directly procure fuel from vendors for

consumnption at the Company's tower sites with effect from Octolber 01, 2022, Accordingly, previpus year revenue from aperations and corresponding network
operating expenses include fuel recavery and cost respectively uptil September 30, 2022
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42, Calculation of Net Distributable Cash Flows:

A, Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs} of it Digitel Inf cture Limited {'SDIL')
{Rs. in Million)
M,
Description Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2024 2023

Loss after tax as per profit and loss account {standalone) {A) {30,377} (31,909)
Add: Depreciation and armortisation as per profit and loss account, In case of impairment reversal, same 15,951 14,161
needs te be deducted from profit and loss,
Add: Interest on loan to the SPV from the Trust as per the profit and loss account 41,435 40,600
Add / less: Loss / gain on sale of infrastructure assets - -
Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes] from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: - -
« related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; - -
» directly attributable transaction costs; - -
« praceeds reinvested or planned te be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)a) of the SEBI InvIT Regulations - -
Add: Net proceeds [after applicable taxes) fram sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an - -
earlier plan to re-invast, if such proceeds are notintended to be invested subsequently, net of any profit /
{lerss} recognised in profit and loss account
Less: Capital expenditure, if any (2,057) {70,648}
Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any 123) 1,351
Add / less: Any other item of non-—cash expense / non—cash income charged / ¢redited to profit and loss - B
accaunt, including but not limited to
= any decreasefincrease in carrying amaunt of an asset or a liabity recognised in profit and loss account en {1} {14}
measurement of the asset or the hability at fair value,
* provisions; . -
s deferred taxes; - .
+ any other ngn-<ash item, lease rents recognised on a straight-line basis, etc. 571 2,471
add / less: Working capital changes 10,428 1,592
Add / less: Provisions made in earlier period and expensed in the current period - -
Less: Any cash paid to the lease owners not accounted for in the working capital changes or the profit and {73} (54}
loss account
Add: Additional barrowings (including debentures / other securities) (external as well as borrowings from 33676 138,173
Trust)
Less: Repayment of external debt {principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc. (Excluding {22,006) {65,239)
refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with reserve requirements (including but not limited to DSRA])
under loan agresments.
Less: Cash reserved to make due payments ta secured lender: and any other transferrable debentures - -
issued by SDIL
Add [ less: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of preference shares / redemption of any preference shares - -
Add- Proceeds fram any fresh sssuance of equity shares - -
Add/ less: Amounts added o retained to make the distributable cash flows in accordance with the {459) -
Transaction Documents or the loan agreements
Total Adjustments {8} 77,430 62,395
Net Distributable Cash Flows [C) = (A+B} * 47,053 30,486

* The differente betwesn 5PV NOCF and the cash flows/ Proceeds received by Trust from SPV is primarily on account of utilisation of apening funds at the SPV

level.
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B. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {[NDCFs) of Crest Digitel Private Limited [w.e.f. March 10, 2022) {"COPL")

{Rs. in Million})

Description

Year ended March 31,
2024

Year ended March 31,
2023

Profit / (loss) akter tax as per profit and loss account {standalone} (A)

Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per profit and loss account. In case of impairment reversal, same
needs to be deducted from profit and loss.

Add: Interest on loan to the 5PV / HoldCo from the Trust as per the profit and loss account

Add [ less: Loss / gain on sale of infrastructure assets

Add: Net proceeds [after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following

e related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds;
« directly attributable transaction costs;
« proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18{7}){a} of the SEBI InvIT Regulations

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an
earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently, net of any profit /
{loss) recognised in profit and loss account

Less: Capital expenditure, if any

Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any

Add [ less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non<ash income charged / credited to profit and loss
aceaunt, including but not limited to

» any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on
measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value;

s provisions;

« deferred taxes;

« any other non-tash item, lease rents recognised on a straight-line basis, etc,

Add [ less: Working capital changes

Add / less: Provisions made in earlier period and expensed in the current period

Less: Any cash paid to the lease owners not accounted for in the working capital changes or the profit and
loss account

Add: Additional barrowings (including debentures / other securities) {external as well as borrowings from
Trust)

Less: Repayment of external debt {principal} / redeamable preference shares / debentures, ete. (Excluding
refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with reserve requirements (including but not limited 1o DSRAY
under loan agreernents.

Less: Cash reserved to make due payments to secured lenders and any other transferrable debentures
issued by COPL

Add / less: Praceeds trom any fresh issuance of preference shares f redemption of any preference shares

Add: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of equity shares

Add/ less: Amounts added or retained to make the distributable cash flows in accordance with the
Transaction Documents or the loan agreements

Total Adjustments (B}

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C) = {A+8]*

123
558

20

(968)
a5

{14)
{s91)
{232)

1,484

{260}

42
165

276

365

{980)
(s

3

(464)

(111}

921

(96)

(372)
(96)

Note - COPL was acquired on March 10, 2022, Hence refated distribution has been done within 1 year of the acquisition

* The difference between SPV NDCF and the cash flows/ Proceeds received by Trust from SPV is primarily on account of utilisation of opening funds at the SPV

level,
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C. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of ftoam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited (w.e.f. September 08, 2023) ["RDIPL")

PRs. n Million]
Description Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Profit / (toss) after tax as per profit and loss account (standatone) {A) (2)
Add: Depreciation ang amortisation as per profit and Yoss account. In case of impairment reversal, same -
needs to be deducted from profit and loss.
Add: Interest on loan to the SPV from the Trust as per the profit and loss account 1 -
add / less: Loss / gain on sale of infrastructure assets
Add: Net proceeds [after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: -
+ related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; -
= divectly attributable transaction costs;
¢ proceeds reinvested or planned 1o be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the SEBI InvIT Regulations
Add: Net praceeds [after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an
earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently, net of any profig /
Less: Capital axpenditure, if any
Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any - -
Add / less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income charged / credited to profit and loss - -
account, including but not limited to
+ any decreasafincraase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on - -
measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value;
* provisions; =
» deferred taxes;
= any other non-cash item, lease rents recognised on a straight-line basis, etc. -
Add [ less: Working capital changes 1] -
Add [ less: Provisions made in earlier period and expensed in the current period =
Less: Any cash paid to the lease owners not accounted for in the working capital changes or the profit and
loss account
Add: Additional borrowings (including debentures / other securities) (external as well as borrowings from 20
Trust)
Less: Repayment of external debt |principal) / redeemable preference shares f debentures, ete (Excluding
refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with reserve requirements (including but not limited 1o DSRA)
under loan agreements.
Less: Cash reserved to make due payments to secured lenders and any other transferrable debentures -
issued by RDIPL
Add [ less: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of preference shares f redemption of any preference shares -
Add: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of equity shares - -
Add/ less: A ts added or retained to make the distributable cash flows in accordance with the
Transaction Documents or the loan agreements
Total Adjustments (B) 21
Net Distributable Cash Flows {C) = {a+B}* 19 .

*RDIPL is yet to start commercial operations.
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D. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of Crest Virtual Network Private Umited (w.e.f. September 21, 2023) {"CYNPL")

s, in BAillian)
Description Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Profit / (loss) after tax as per profit and loss account [standalone) (a) 1) -
Add: Depreciation and amortisation as per profit and loss account. tn case of impairment reversal, same
neads to be deducted from profit and less.
Add: Interest on loan to the SPV from the Trust as per the profit and loss account .
Add / less: Loss / gain on sale of infrastructure assets -
Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following:
* related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds;
+ directly attributable transaction costs; B
» praceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18{7){a) of the SEBI invIT Regulations -
Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an .
earlier plan ta re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently, net of any profit /
{loss) recognised in profit and loss account
Less: Capital expenditure, if any
Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any
Add [ less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income charged / credited to profit and loss
account, including but not limited to
* any decreasefincrease in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on -
measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value;
* provisions; -
« deferred taxes;
= any other non-cash itam, lease rents recognised on a straight-fine basis, etc. s
Add / less: Working capital changes 0 -
Add / less: Provisions made in earlier period and expensed in the current period .
Less: Any cash paid to the lease owners not accounted far in the working capital changes or the profit and
loss account
Add: Additional borrowings {including debentures [ other securities) {(external as well as borrowings from
Trust)
Less: Repayment of external debt {principal} / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc. {Excluding -
refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with reserve requirements {including but not limited to DSRA)
Less: Cash reserved to make due payments to secured lenders and any other transferrable debentures -
issued by CVNPL
Add [ less: Proceeds from any fresh issuance of preference shares / redemption of any preference shares -
Add: Proceeds from any fresh issuvance of equity shares 3 -
Add/ less: Amounts added or retained to make the distributable cash flows in accordance with the =
Transattion Documents or the [oan agreements
Total Adjustments (8] 3 -
Net Distributable Cash Flows [C) = [A+B)* 2 -

Note - There is no operating income in CYNPL for the current period. CVNPL was scquired on September 21, 2023. Hence related distribution will be done within 1

year of the acquisiton.
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E. Stat t of Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) of Data Infrastructure Trust®

{Ra. o dillian)

Description

Year ended March 31,
2024

Year ended March 31,
2023

Cash flows received from SPV / HoldCo in the form of interest / accrued interest

Cash flows received from SPV / HoldCo in the form of dividend / buy-back of equity shares / capital
reduction of equity shares

Any other income accruing at the Trust level and not captured ahove, including but not limited to)
interest freturn on surplus cash invested by the Trust

Add: Cash flows/ Proceeds from the SPV / HoldCo towards the repayment of the debt issued to the 5PV
by the Trust {refer note 1 and 2)

46,904

153

30,557
50

23

Total cash flow at the Trust level [A)

47,061

30,630

Less: issue expenses payable by Trust including as reimbursements towards expenses of Trust met by|
the Sponsors

Less: annual expenses of the Trust including audit fees, project manager fees, investment management fees,
stock exchange fees, other statutory fees, depository fees, legal expenses, credit rating fees and valuer fees

Less: income tax (if applicable} at the standalone Trust level and payment of other statutory dues

Less: Repayment of external debt (including interest) / redeemable preference shares [ debentures, ete., if
deemed necessary by the Investrnent Manager

Lass: net cash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement under loan agreements, if any

Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following.

- related debis settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds;
- directly attributable transaction costs;
- proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18{7){a) of the InvIT Regulations

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an
earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently

Less: Amount invested in any of the Portfolio Assets for service of debt or interest

Less: Capital expenditure if any (including acquisition of other infrastructure assets / SPVs / HoldCo)
[refer note 1)

Add: Proceeds from fresh issuance of units

Less: Reserve for debentures / loans / capex expenditure in the intervening period till next proposed
distribution if deemed necessary by the investment Manager invested in permitted investments

{274}

{1

(20

{105)

{13

Votal cash outflows/ ion at the Trust level {B)

{295)

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C} = [A+B})

46,766
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1)0uring the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust has given unsecured loan of Rs. 20 million to 5PV (RDIPL) for its operations . Out of this, SV has repaid Rs. 18

million during the year.

2) Additional information in respect of inflow / outflow of funds not inc'uded in the table above:

a.During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust has raised money through issue of listed Commercial Papers carrying face value of Rs. 9,500 million with an issue
price aggregating Rs. 8,800 million. Further, the Trust has utilised these proceeds by giving an unsecured [oan to its SPV (SDIL} amounting to Rs. 8,800 million in

order to enable the SPV to pay the outstanding interest on existing loan given by the Trust to the SPV.

b. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Trust issued 32,000 listed unsecured Non-Conwvertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 100,000 each amounting to Rs.

3,200 million. The Trust has utilised the proceeds of the NCD as follows:

Particulars Amount [Rs. In Million)

Payment of contingent consideration for acquisition of CDPL (Hold Co) {refer note 20{i}} 2,401
Unsecured loan given to COPL {Hold Col# 705
Fixed Deposits placed {marked as lien for Interest Servicing as per borrowing agreement} 68
Transaction expenses of the issue and general corporate purpose 26
Total 3,200

# Out of the loan given to COPL, Rs. 135 million was repaid during the year.

* The current statement of NDCF has been prepared in accordance with the format provided in Paragraph F of Chapter 3 of the SEBI Master Circular No
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 for Infrastructure Investment Trusts dated July 06, 2023. A new format for NDCF has been provided by SEBI via circular :

SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 which will be effactive from April 01, 2024,

Date of distribution payment

Total Distribution

May 30 and 31, 2023 5,750
August 31, 2023 9,430
September 20, 2023 10,000
December 01, 2023 9,500
February 22, 2024 10,980
March 18, 2024 1,135
Total 46,795

(Rs. in Millien)
Description Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
= 2024 2023
Net Distributable cash flows as per above 46,766 30,515
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 28 153
Total Net Distributable Cash Flows 46,794 30,768
The Net Distributable Cash Flows {NDCFs) as above is distributed as follows in the respective manner:
{Rs. in Millign}
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Scheme of Arr

The Board of Directors of SDIL at their meeting held on fanuary 2, 2019 approved a compaosite scheme of arrangement [herein after referred to as “"the
scheme") between RJIL, Jio Digital Fibre Private Limited {JDFPL) and SDIL and their respective sharehalders and ereditors, inter-alia for purchase of the
Tower Infrasteucture undertaking (Transferred undertaking} of RJIL for a lumpsum consideration, with effect from the appointed date March 31, 2019

Consequent to the scheme, SDIL is in the process of transferring the Freehald Land with carrying value aggregating Rs 120 mallion {March 31, 2023 - Rs
120 million) and land reflected in Right of Use Assets with carrying value aggregating Rs 161 million {March 31, 2023 - Rs 173 million]) in its name

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 11k

Key Financial Ratios and analysis:

Year ended March 31, 2024

Sr. No Ratio Numerator Denominator | As on March 31, | Ason March |% Change Explanation for change In
2024 31, 2023 the ratio by more than)
25%
1) |Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.50 051 -2%|NA
i) |Debt Equity Ratio Tatal Oebt including|Unitholder's 2.35 175 34%| Refer note (i)
lease liabilities Equity
lil} |Debt Service Coverage Earnings available for|Debt Service 2.13 2.09 2%|NA

Ratio

Debt service

Earning for Debt Service = Net Prafit after ta

xes + depreciation

and other amortizations + Finance cost. Debt service =
Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments. Principal repayments excludes repayments in nature of refinancing as
these are not repaid out of the profits for the year.

W) |Return on Equity Net profit f{loss) sfterfAverage % 4% 68%|Refer note (ii)
laxes Unitholder's
Equity
v) |Inventory Turnover Cost of Goods Sold Average Not applicable
Inventory
vl) |Trade recelvable Turnover |[Net Credit Sales {Gross|Average  Trade 92.11 9435 -2%{NA
{in times) Credit Sales - Sale|Receivables
Returns)
vii) |Trade payable Turnover (in |Purchases of services|Average  Trade 13.37 17.44 -24%|Refer note {iii)
times) and other expenses Payables
viil) |Net Capital Turnover Met Sales (Total Sales -[Working  Capital {6.19) (6.59) -6%|Refer note [iv)
Sale Return} {Current Assets -
Current
Liabilities)
ix) [Net Profit Net Profit Net Sales 9% 7% -21%| Refer note {ii)
x} |Return on capital employed [Earning before interest|Capital Employed| 8% 6% 31%|Refer note {ii}
and taxes (Tangible Net|
Worth + Total
Debt)
xi} |Return on Investment Income generated on|Average 4% 14%) -75%|Refer note (v}
investments investments
xil) |Asset Coverage Wet Assets (Total Assets-|Total Debt 2 2 -8%|Refer note (vi)
Intangible  Assets} -
{current habilities - short
term debts)
xill) |Interest Service Coverage |{(PBIT + MNon Cash|interest 213 210 1%[NA
Expenses)
xiv} [Net Worth Profit after tax Shareholder’s 8% 5%, 78%Refer nate {ii)

fund + Retained
Earnings

pné




Data Infrastructure Trust
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024
Notes:

li) Theincrease is on aecount of higher berrowings as on reporting date.

{it} Theincrease is on account of profit reported during the current year,

{ili) The change is on account of increase in trade payables as on Mareh 31, 2024,

{lv) The change is on account of decrease in working capital in the current year,
v} The return on investment ks lower during the year due to lower investments made in current year

{vi) The decrease is on account of higher borrowings as on reporting date.

Year ended March 31, 2023

St. No Ratio Numerator Denominator | As on March 31,| Ason March |% Change Explanation for change in
2023 31,2022 the ratio by more than
25%
I} |Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities .51 018 -32%|Refer note {i)
il) |Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt includingfUnitholder's 1.75 114 S3%|Refer note (i)
tease liabilities Equity
{il} |Oebt Service Coverage Earnings available for|Debt Service 2.09 216 «3%[NA
Ratlo Debt service

Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + depreciation and other amortizations + Finance cost. Debt service =
Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments. Principal repayments excludes repayments in nature of refinancing as
these are not repaid out of the profits for the year.

v} |Return on Equity Met profit /(loss) after|Average 4% 3% -58%|Refer note {jii)
taxes Unitholder's
Equity
v) |Inventory Turnover Cost of Goods Sold Average Not applicable
Inventory
vi) |Trade receivable Turnover |Net Credit Sales [Gross|Aversge  Trade 94.35 270.87 -SS%IRefer note [iv)
fin times) Credit Sales - Sale|Receivables
Returns)
vii) |Trade payable Tumover (in |Purchases of services|Average  Trade 17.58 24.26 -28%|Refer note {v)
days) and other expenses Payables
viil) |Net Capital Turnover Net Sales {Total Sales -|Working Capital| {6.59} {17.85) -63%|Refer note (vi)
Sale Return) {Current Assets -
Current
Liabilities)
ix) [ivet Profit Net Profit Net Sales 7% 6% -28%| Refer note {iii)
x} |Return on capital employed |Earning before interest|Capital Employed 6% 5% 18%| Refer note {iii)
and taxes {Tangible Net
Worth + Total
Debt}
xi) [Return on Investment Income generated on|Average 14% 4% 220%|Refer note {vii)
investments investments
xil} |Asset Coverage Net Assets (Total Assets-]Total Debt 1.65] 1 96| -16%|Refer nate (viii)
Intangible  Assets) -
{eurrent liabilities - short
terrn debts)
wif) |interest Service Coverage |{PBIT + MNon  Cash|interest .10 2.17] -3%|NA
niv) |Net Worth Profit after tax Shareholder's 5% 3% 65%|Refer note {iii)
fund + Retained|
Notes:
{i] The ratio decreased during the year mainly on account of increase in the current maturities of non current barrowing for instalments due during the next
year.

i} The increase is on account of higher borrowings as on reperting date,

{ili} The increase is on account of profit reported during the current year.

liv) The change is on account of increase in trade receivables as on the March 31, 2023,
{w}) The change is on account of increase in trade payables as on March 31, 2023.

{wl}) The change is on account of increase in revenue from operations in the current year.

{vil} The return on investrnent is higher during the year mainly on aceount of change ininvestment compasition.




Data Infrastructure Trust
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024
[vill} The decrease is on actount of higher borrawings 33 on reporting date.

I Group does not have any benami properties. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Group for halding benami property under
the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988} and Rules made thereunder.

Il The Group is not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority at any time during the
IV Relaticnship with struck off companies - The Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956
other than those disclosed below -

Nature of Transactions Balance
Name of the struck off Company tions with t for the ding as | Relationship with the struck off
struck off year ended at March 31, Company
Company March 31, 2024 2024
Overarching Solutions Private Limited Advance paid - 0 |Not a related party
Kalyan Singh Technology Private Limited Payables 1] - |Not a related party
Paresh Buildcon Private Limited Payables - 0 |Not a related party
Jay Mataji Constructions Private Limited Payables - 0 |Not a related party
Year ended March 31, 2023 {Rs in Million)
Nature of Transactions Balance
transactions with | amount for the | cutstanding as | Relationship with the struck off
Name of the struck off Company
struck off year ended at March 31, Company
Company March 31, 2024 2024
Overarching Solutions Private Limited Advance paid 0 0 |Not a related party
Kalyan Singh Technotogy Private Limited Payables 1 - [Not a related party
Punia Constructions Private Limited Payables 0 0 |Not a related party
Paresh Buildean Private Limited Payables - 0 |Not a related party
Jay Mataji Constructions Private Limited Payables 0 O |Not a related party
V  The Group does not have any transactions recorded in the baoks of accaunt that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
assessments undér Inceme Tax Act, 1961.
V1 The Group has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virtual currency.

Year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs in Million)

VIl Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment, intangible asset and investment property - The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equpment
{including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

Vill There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies.

IX  Utilisation of borrowings availed fram banks and financial institutions - The borrowings obtained by SDIL {SPV) from banks and financial institutions have
been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken.
During the year, SDIL had raised a term loan of Rs. 1,800 million carrying interest of 8.70% repayable till September 2032 for the purpose of Capital
expenditure. SDIL has utilised Rs. 1,341 million amount out of these proceeds for the purpose as specified abave and as on March 31, 2024, the unutilised
amaunt of Rs. 459 million has been temporarily invested in short term depasits till the time of utilisation. The amounts raised, utilised till date and
pending utilisation, is detailed below:

Nature of security Purpose for Total amount of

which funds were|proceeds [Rs. in

Utilised upte  |Unutilised upto
March 31, 2024 |March 31, 2024

raised million) {Rs. in milllon) |(Rs. in million)
a) All movable fixed assets {present and future) of Capital 1,800 1,341 459
SDIL; Expenditure

b} All current assets (present and future) of SDIL;
c] All rights of the Company under the Material
Documents




Data Infrastructure Trust

Notes forming part of the Consolldated Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

45 "0” represents the amount below the denomination threshold,

46 Previous year figures are regrouped wherever necessary to correspand with the current year classification/ disclosure.

47 The financial statements have been approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager of the Trust at their

respactive meetings held an May 16, 2024,

For and on the behalf of the Board of Director of
BIP india Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited
{acting in the capacity of Investment Manager of Data Infrastructure Trust)

Sonel

Dhananjay loshl Inder Mehta
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 09096270

Date: May 16, 2024 Date: May 16, 2024
Place: Mumbai Place: California

HFior’

Farah Irani
CTampliance Officar

Drate: May 16, 2024
Mace: Mumbai




A. Statement of utilization of issue proceeds:

Name of the Issuer ISIN Mode of Fund [Type of Date of Amount Funds Any If 8 is Yes, Remarks, if

Raising (Public |instrument raising funds [Raised Utilised Deviati |then specify |any

issues/ Private on the purpose

placement) (Yes/N |of for which

o) the funds
were utilized
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Data Infrastructure Trust INEOBWS08019 Private Non-Convertible January 8, 320 crores | 320 crores No NA -
Placement Debentures 2024

B. Statement of deviation/ variation in use of Issue proceeds:

Particulars Remarks

Name of listed entity NA
Mode of Fund Raising

Type of instrument
Date of Raising Funds

Amount raised
Report filed for quarter ended

Is there a Deviation / Variation in use of funds raised ?
Whether any approval is required to vary the objects of the issue stated in the prospectus/ offer document?

If yes, details of the approval so required?

Date of approval
Explanation for the Deviation / Variation

Comments of the audit committee after review
Comments of the auditors, if any

Objects for which funds have been raised and where there has been a deviation, in the following table
Original Object Modified Object, |Original Modified allocation, if any Funds Amount of Deviation/Variation for [Remarks, if
if any Allocation Utilised the half year according to any
applicable object (INR Crores and
in %)

Not Applicable

Deviation could mean:

(a) Deviation in the objects or purposes for which the funds have been raised

(b) Deviation in the amount of funds actually utilized as against what was originally disclosed.
FARAH Digitally signed by
TEHMTON (ool
IRANI

Farah Irani

Compliance Officer
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Valuation Report

Data Infrastructure Trust (“Trust”)
(Acting through the Trustee - Axis Trustee Services Limited)

And

BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited
(Acting in its capacity as the Investment Manager of the Trust)

Valuation of Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL as per Securities

and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts)
Regulations, 2014

May 2024




Tel: +91 22 6228 0817 HO
The Ruby, Level 9, North West Wing,

Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (W),
Mumbai 400028, INDIA

Ref: LM/May16-20/2024 Date: May 16, 2024

To,

Data Infrastructure Trust (the “Trust”)

Acting through its Trustee - Axis Trustee Services Limited
Unit 1, 9th Floor, Tower 4, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg
Kurla (W), Mumbai - 400070, India

To,

BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited (“BIP India” or “Investment
Manager”)

Acting in its capacity as the Investment Manager of the Trust (“IM”)

Unit 703, 7™ Floor, Tower 3, Equinox Business Park, LBS Marg

Kurla (W), Mumbai - 400070, India

Dear Sir(s)/Madam(s),

Sub: Valuation of Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL as per Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended

We refer to engagement letter appointing BDO Valuation Advisory LLP (hereinafter referred to as
“BDO VAL”, or “Valuer” or “We” or “Our” or “Us”), to provide professional services to the Data
Infrastructure Trust (“Trust”) with respect to determination of Enterprise Value of Summit Digitel
Infrastructure Limited (“Tower Co.” or “SDIL”), Crest Digitel Private Limited (“CDPL”), Roam Digitel
Infrastructure Private Limited (“RDIPL”) and Crest Virtual Network Private Limited (formerly known
as Kinetic Road Assets Private Limited) ("CVNPL") as per the requirements of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 and amendments thereto
including any circulars and guidelines issued thereunder (“SEBI InvIT Regulations”). Reliance
Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited (“RIIHL”/ “Reliance Sponsor”) and BIF IV Jarvis India
Pte. Limited (“Jarvis”/ “Brookfield Sponsor”) are the sponsor of the Trust. The Reliance Sponsor

and the Brookfield Sponsor are together being referred to as the “Sponsors”.

We thereby, enclose our independent valuation report dated May 16, 2024 (“the Report” or “this
Report”) providing our opinion on the fair enterprise value of Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL on
a going concern basis under the SEBI InvIT regulations considering the data as stated in “Sources of
Information” of the Report as well as discussions with the relevant personnel of the Trust, Sponsors,
Tower Co., CDPL, and the Investment Manager (“Management”). We have considered the cut-off
date for the current valuation exercise to be March 31, 2024 (“Valuation Date”) and market factors,

have been considered up to March 31, 2024.

BDO Valuation Advisory LLP, an Indian limited liability partnership firm, with LLP Identity No. AAN 9463, is a member of BDO International
Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.

Head Office: The Ruby, Level 9, North-West Wing, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (W), Mumbai 400028, INDIA | Tel: +91 22 6228 0817
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This valuation report has been prepared as per the requirements of the SEBI InvIT Regulations as well
as for submission to Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) or any other regulatory or
statutory authority as may be required and made in accordance with the SEBI InvIT Regulations
guidelines requiring an independent valuation. This Report should not be used or relied upon for any

other purpose.
In terms of the SEBI InvIT Regulations, we hereby confirm and declare that:

*  We are competent to undertake the Valuation;
*  We are independent and have prepared this Report on a fair and unbiased basis;

» This Report is prepared in compliance with regulation 13(1) and regulation 21 of the SEBI InvIT
Regulations; and

*  We comply with the responsibilities as stated in regulation 13(1) and regulation 21 of the SEBI
InvIT Regulations.

We further confirm that the valuation of Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL is carried out as per
internationally accepted valuation methodologies and in cognizance of international valuation
standards and ICAI Valuation Standards 2018 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have no present or planned future interest in InvIT Assets, the Sponsors or the Investment Manager

or the Trustee, except to the extent of our appointment as an independent valuer for this Report.

A summary of the analysis is presented in the accompanying Report, as well as description of the
methodology and procedure used, and the factors considered in formulating our opinion. The Report
is subject to the attached exclusions and limitations and to all terms and conditions provided in the

engagement letter for this assignment.

This valuation report is based on the information provided to us by the Management. The projections
provided by the Management are only the best estimates of growth and sustainability of revenue and
cash flows. We have reviewed the financial forecast for consistency and reasonableness; however,

we have not independently verified the data provided.

Regards,

BDO Valuation Advisory LLP
IBBI No.: IBBI/RV-E/02/2019/103

M {\Jo g

Lata Gujar More

Partner

IBBI No.: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10488

VRN No: IOVRVF/BD0O/2024-2025/3458
Encl: As above
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1

Definitions, Abbreviations & Glossary of Terms

The amended and restated master services agreement executed
between Tower Co., RJIL and Reliance Industries Limited (the
project division of RPPMSL is merged into RIL as per NCLT order),
setting out the terms of provision of Passive Infrastructure and
Services by Tower Co. to RJIL

Amended and Restated O&M Agreement executed by Tower Co., Jio
Infrastructure Management Services Limited (“JIMSL” or the
“Project Manager”) and RIL (“the Operator”), the scope of which
includes the operations, maintenance, and management of the
Passive Infrastructure and provision of Services to Tower Co.

Amended and Restated Project Execution Agreement executed by
Tower Co., the Project Manager, RIL (“the Contractor”) and RJIL
the scope of which includes establishment of Passive Infrastructure
for Tower Co.

Amended and Restated
MSA

Amended and Restated
O&M Agreement

Amended and Restated
Project Execution
Agreement

BDO Val

BDO Valuation Advisory LLP

Brookfield Sponsor / Jarvis

BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd

BSE

BSE Limited

BV Breakup Value

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

CDPL Crest Digitel Private Limited

Closing Listing of the units and the consummation of Share Purchase

Agreement - ||

Contractor / Operator / RIL

Reliance Industries Limited

COW Site

Means a ‘cell on wheels’ portable or movable site at which Passive
Infrastructure is located

Cr Crore

CTM Comparable Transaction Multiple

CVNPL Crest Virtual Network Private Limited (formerly known as Kinetic
Road Assets Private Limited)

DCF Discounted Cash Flow

D/E Debt-Equity

FCFE Free Cash Flow to Equity

FCFF Free Cash Flow to Firm

FY Financial Year

GBM Site Means a ground-based mast or pole at which Passive Infrastructure
is located on land

GBT Site Means a ground-based tower at which Passive Infrastructure is
located on land

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

INR Indian Rupees

Investment Amount

INR 26,115.2 Cr

Investment Manager

Effective December 12, 2023, BIP India Infra Projects Management
Services Private Limited ("BIP India” or “Investment Manager") has
been appointed as the Investment Manager of the Trust basis the
approval from SEBI vide letter dated December 11, 2023. Brookfield
India Infrastructure Manager Private Limited ("BIIMPL” or
“Erstwhile Investment Manager") is the erstwhile Investment
Manager of the Trust. BIIMPL had resigned as the Investment Manager

Strictly Confidential

Page 5 of 51
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of the Trust vide letter dated September 29, 2023, but continued in
its capacity till close of business hours on December 11, 2023.

Initial Tower Sites

1,74,451 Macro Towers of Tower Co. as of March 31, 2024. CDPL has
5,271 sites and 6,020 colocations as of March 31, 2024.

Right Issue

The subsequent offer of units by the Trust by way of right issue to
existing shareholders in accordance with the SEBI InvIT Regulations
and circulars issued thereunder. The allotment of 28,700,000 units
were made on March 3, 2022.

InvIT Assets

Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL, and CVNPL.

Macro Towers

Means ground-based towers, ground-based mast or pole or roof-top
towers, roof-top poles, cell on wheels.

Monthly Site Premium

The monthly site premium payable by RJIL to Tower Co. in terms of
the Amended and Restated MSA.

Monthly Site The monthly site reimbursement payable by RJIL to Tower Co. in
Reimbursement terms of the Amended and Restated MSA

Mn Million

NAV Net Asset Value

NCLT National Company Law Tribunal

Passive Infrastructure

Means at any Site, the passive telecommunication infrastructure
located at such Site, including the tower, room/shelter, diesel
generator sets and electrical and civil works, DC power system and
battery bank and any other passive telecom infrastructure (viz. air
conditioners) installed at the Site.

PM

Placement Memorandum dated August 31, 2020

Project Agreement

Together the Amended and Restated MSA, the Amended and
Restated O&M Agreement and the Amended and Restated Project
Execution Agreement.

Project Manager or JIMSL

Jio Infrastructure Management Services Limited.

RDIPL

Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited.

Reliance Sponsor/RIIHL

Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited.

RJIL

Reliance Jio Infocomm Limited.

RIL Reliance Industries Limited.

RTP Site Means a roof-top pole site at which Passive Infrastructure is located
on a building or a structure.

RTT Site Means a roof-top tower site at which Passive Infrastructure is located

on a building or a structure.

Shareholder
Agreement

and Option

Shareholder and Option Agreement entered into between the Trust,
the Investment Manager, Reliance Industries Limited (“RIL”), RIIHL,
Tower Co., RJIL and Jarvis.

SEBI InvIT Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 and amendments thereto including any
circulars and guidelines issued thereunder.

Services

Means the operations and maintenance services set out in the
Amended and Restated O&M Agreement.

Sites or Tower Sites

Site means a GBT Site, GBM Site, RTT Site, RTP Site or COW Site or
any other passive telecom tower infrastructure site.

Share Purchase Agreement
- Il or SPA - I

The share purchase agreement between the Trust, the Investment
Manager, RIIHL, Tower Co., Jarvis and RIL, setting out the terms and
conditions on basis of which the Trust acquired and RIL sold its entire
equity shareholding in the Tower Co. to the Trust.

Sponsors Together the Reliance Sponsor and the Brookfield Sponsor.
Tower Co./SDIL/the Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited (formerly known as Summit
Company Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited)

Strictly Confidential
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Tower Infrastructure
Business

The business of setting up and maintaining passive tower
infrastructure and related assets and providing passive tower
infrastructure services.

Transaction Documents

“Transaction Documents” means and includes:
i. Share Purchase Agreement - II;
ii. Amended and Restated MSA;
iii. Amended and Restated Project Execution Agreement;
iv. Amended and Restated O&M Agreement;
v. Shareholders and Option Agreement;
vi. Trust Loan agreement for loan provided by the Trust to the
Tower Co.;
vii. Loan Agreements / sanction letters for debt raised/to be
raised at the Tower Co. level;

All the above agreements have been executed before the closing
date i.e. 315 August 2020.

Trust Data Infrastructure Trust

Trust Deed Indenture of Trust dated January 31, 2019, executed between RIIHL
as the settlor and sponsor of the Trust and Axis Trustee Services
Limited as the Trustee

Trust Loan Loan extended by the Trust to Tower Co. aggregating INR 25,000.0
crore pursuant to a “Trust Loan Agreement”

Trustee Axis Trustee Services Limited

Valuation Date

March 31, 2024

WACC

Weighted Average Cost of Capital

Strictly Confidential
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2 Executive Summary

2.1

2.1.

2.1.

2.1.

2.1.

2.1.

2.1.

2.1.

2.1.
2.1.

2.1

1

.10

Brief Background and Purpose

The Data Infrastructure Trust (“Trust”) was settled vide Trust Deed dated January 31, 2019,
with Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited (“RIIHL”) as the sponsor and Axis
Trustee Services Limited as the Trustee. The Trust was subsequently registered as an
infrastructure investment trust under the SEBI InvIT Regulations vide registration dated March
19, 2019.

The main object of the Trust is to carry on the activity of an infrastructure investment trust,
as permissible under the SEBI InvIT Regulations, namely, to raise resources and to make
investments in accordance with the SEBI InvIT Regulations and such other incidental and
ancillary matters thereto.

The Trust holds entire equity share capital in Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited (formerly
known as Summit Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited) (“Tower Co.”), Crest Digitel Private
Limited (formerly known as Space Teleinfra Infrastructure Private Limited) (“CDPL”), Roam
Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited (“RDIPL”) and Crest Virtual Network Private Limited
(formerly known as Kinetic Road Assets Private Limited) ("CVNPL").

Tower Co. is in the business of setting up and maintaining passive tower infrastructure and
related assets and providing passive tower infrastructure services to telecommunication
service providers (“Tower Infrastructure Business”).

CDPL was incorporated in 2011 and is based in Gurugram, India. It is a neutral host provider
(IP-1), owns and operates shared in-building communications infrastructure that provides
2G/3G/4G network through a common shared infrastructure used by wireless carriers,
broadcasters, and other communication companies to provide services to end users in India.
CDPL offers built-to-suit solutions specializing in passive DAS (distributed antenna system),
outdoor connectivity, and small cells infrastructure for institutional, commercial and
residential buildings.

CVNPL was incorporated on March 08, 2019 and is engaged in deploying active and passive
equipment and support in accelerating the expansion plans for the platform.

RDIPL was incorporated on September 10, 2021 and is actively engaged in building new towers
or products in line with the prevailing market requirements and help the platform in further
expanding the suite of telecommunication infrastructure services for its customers.

Currently there are no major business operations in CVNPL and RDIPL.

Effective December 12, 2023, BIP India Infra Projects Management Services Private Limited
("BIP India” or “Investment Manager”) has been appointed as the Investment Manager of the
Trust basis the approval from SEBI vide letter dated December 11, 2023. Brookfield India
Infrastructure Manager Private Limited ("BIIMPL” or “Erstwhile Investment Manager”) is the
erstwhile Investment Manager of the Trust. BIIMPL had resigned as the Investment Manager of
the Trust vide letter dated September 29, 2023, but continued in its capacity till close of
business hours on December 11, 2023.

Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited (“RIIHL” / “Reliance Sponsor”) and BIF
IV Jarvis India Pte. Limited (“Jarvis” / “Brookfield Sponsor”) are the sponsors of the Trust.

Strictly Confidential Page 8 of 51
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2.1.11

2.1.12

2.1.13

2.1.14

2.1.15

The Reliance Sponsor and the Brookfield Sponsor are together being referred to as the
“Sponsors”.

BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd (“Jarvis” or “Brookfield Sponsor”) is an entity forming part of the
Brookfield Group (i.e., the entities which are directly or indirectly controlled by Brookfield
Asset Management, Inc.). Brookfield Asset Management Inc. is a global alternative asset
manager, currently listed on the New York Stock Exchange, Toronto Stock Exchange and the
Euronext Stock Exchange.

Jio Infrastructure Management Services Limited (“JIMSL” or “Project Manager”), a subsidiary
of RIIHL is the Project Manager and has entered into a Project Implementation and Management
Agreement with Tower Co. and the Trustee in accordance with the SEBI InvIT Regulations.

Reliance Industries Limited (“RIL” or “Contractor” or “Operator”) is engaged in the business
of petroleum refining and marketing, petrochemicals, textiles, exploration and production of
oil and gas, retail, media and entertainment, financial services and telecommunication and
digital services, is the (“Contractor”) in terms of the Amended and Restated Project Execution
Agreement and as the (“Operator”) in terms of the Amended and Restated O&M Agreement
pursuant to merger of project division of RPPMSL with RIL.

The following structure illustrates the relationship amongst the Parties to the Trust (being the
Trust, Trustee, the Sponsors, the Investment Manager, and the Project Manager), the
Contractor / Operator, Tower Co. and the Unitholders as of the Valuation Date:

Data Infrastructure Trust - Structure

BIF IV Jarvis India Other Co-investors
Pte. Ltd. (58.36%4") (41.64%)

BIP India Infra Projects Investment Monager Trustee
Management Services Stoctos ol Data U : ml‘rm&d e Services
Private Limited Infrastructure
Trust
o 1003
.
Crest Digitel 2
R Jarvis Data-infra
100% ’ +  Project Manager
Jio Infrastructure Roam Digitel Private Limited
Management Infrastructure
Services Limited Private Limited
OpUAGHCOINEIOr - @ 3 RecsiscersescovhavemevassreapemrenS Tne vy b e e e
Refiance
Industries Limited

Note 1 Co-Sponsors

« nsor 1: BIF IV Jarvis India Pte. Ltd

ndustriol investments and Holdings Limited is a Sponsor to Data Infrastructure Tust by being sponsor at the inception
stage. However, neither it holds a: ights, nor it ho ny units of the Tust

Note 2 : As per the NCLT order, the Project Division of RPPMSL (Reliance entity) is now merged with Reflance industries Limited

The units of the Trust are listed on the BSE Limited (“BSE”). The Trust raised INR 25,215.0
crore from the initial issue of units and INR 317.0 crore from rights issue. The proceeds of
initial issue were used to acquire the remaining 49.0% of the outstanding equity shares of Tower
Co. held by RIL (INR 105.35 crore), repayment of loan taken by the Trust (INR 109.65 crore)
and to extend loan to Tower Co. of INR 25,000 crore to enable Tower Co. to repay/pre-pay in
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2.1.16

2.1.17

2.1.18

2.1.19

part or in full certain of its existing borrowings and interest obligations. The proceeds of right
issue excluding issue related expenses were used to partly fund the acquisition of CDPL.

The Trust also issued 52,800,000.0 units on a preferential basis to the erstwhile
promoters/shareholders of CDPL at INR 110.46 per unit to complete the acquisition of CDPL.

On September 8, 2023, the Trust acquired 100.0% equity shares of Roam Digitel Infrastructure
Private Limited (“RDIPL”) for a total consideration of INR 0.1 million. Accordingly, RDIPL
became Subsidiary (“SPV”) of the Trust.

On September 21, 2023, CDPL acquired 100.0% equity shares of Crest Virtual Network Private
Limited (formerly known as Kinetic Road Assets Private Limited ("CVNPL") for a total
consideration of INR 0.7 million. Accordingly, CYNPL has become a SPV of the Trust.

The Investment Manager has appointed BDO VAL to undertake the valuation of Tower Co.,
CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL as per SEBI InvIT Regulations as well as for submission to Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) or any other regulatory or statutory authority as may be
required.

2.2 Valuation Methodology Adopted
2.2.1 Considering the nature of business, facts of the assignment, the terms of the Transaction
Documents and the capital structure, Tower Co. and CDPL have been valued using Discounted
Cash Flow (“DCF”) Method under Income Approach. Free Cash Flow to Firm (“FCFF”) model
under the DCF Method has been used to arrive at the enterprise value of SDIL and CDPL. CVNPL
and RDIPL have been recently acquired on September 21, 2023 and September 08, 2023
respectively and currently there is no business plan for RDIPL and CVNPL and hence the same
have been valued considering the Summation method under the Cost Approach.
2.3 Valuation Conclusion
2.3.1  The enterprise value of SDIL, CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL as on March 31, 2024 is arrived as follows:
InvIT Assets Enterprise Value (INR Cr)
Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited 61,808.2
Crest Digitel Private Limited 1,811.4
Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited NIL
Crest Virtual Network Private Limited NIL

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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3

3.1
3.1.1

3.1.2

3.2
3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.2.4

3.2.5

3.2.6

3.2.7

Introduction

Terms of Engagement

We, BDO Valuation Advisory LLP, Registered Valuer vide Registration Number IBBI/RV-
E/02/2019/103, have been appointed by the erstwhile Investment Manager of the Trust to
determine the enterprise value of Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL on a going concern basis
as on March 31, 2024, as per SEBI InvIT Regulations.

This Report has been prepared by us pursuant to the terms of engagement letter between BDO
Val and the Investment Manager including the terms and conditions set out therein.

Background and Purpose of Valuation

The Data Infrastructure Trust (“Trust”) was settled vide Trust Deed dated January 31, 2019,
with Reliance Industrial Investments and Holdings Limited (“RIIHL”) as the sponsor and Axis
Trustee Services Limited as the Trustee. The Trust was subsequently registered as an
infrastructure investment trust under the SEBI InvIT Regulations vide registration dated March
19, 2019.

The main object of the Trust is to carry on the activity of an infrastructure investment trust,
as permissible under the SEBI InvIT Regulations, namely, to raise resources and to make
investments in accordance with the SEBI InvIT Regulations and such other incidental and
ancillary matters thereto.

The Trust holds entire equity share capital in Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited (formerly
known as Summit Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited) (“Tower Co.”) and Crest Digitel
Private Limited (formerly known as Space Telelnfra Private Limited) (“CDPL”).

On September 8, 2023, the Trust acquired 100% equity shares of Roam Digitel Infrastructure
Private Limited (“RDIPL”) for a total consideration of INR 0.1 million. Accordingly, RDIPL
became a Subsidiary (“SPV”) of the Trust. On September 21, 2023, CDPL acquired 100.0%
equity shares of CVNPL for a total consideration of INR 0.7 million. Accordingly, CVNPL has
become a SPV of the Trust.

The Trust has 2,603.0 million units outstanding as on March 31, 2024. The units of the Trust
are listed on BSE.

The Investment Manager has appointed us to undertake the valuation of Tower Co., CDPL,
RDIPL and CVNPL to comply with the SEBI InvIT Regulations for determination of the enterprise
value of Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL for submission to SEBI or any other regulatory or
statutory authority as may be required and made in accordance with the SEBI InvIT Regulations
guidelines requiring an independent valuation (“Purpose”).

This Report should not be used or relied upon for any other purpose. The suitability or
applicability of this Report for any purpose other than that mentioned above has not been
verified by us.

(this space has been left blank intentionally)

Strictly Confidential Page 11 of 51



IBDO

3.3
3.3.1

vi.
vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVvi.

XVii.

Xviii.

Sources of Information

For the purpose of this valuation exercise, we have relied on the following sources of
information:

Background of the Tower Infrastructure Business;
Background of Crest Digitel Private Limited;

Background of Crest Virtual Network Private Limited and Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private
Limited;

Background of the Telecom industry;

Audited Financial Statements of Tower Co. for the Financial Year (“FY”’) 2020, 2021, 2022, and
2023;

Provisional Financial Statement of Tower Co. for the year ended as on March 31, 2024;
Audited Financial Statements of CDPL for FY 2023;

Provisional Financial Statement of CDPL for the year ended as on March 31, 2024;
Provisional Financial Statement of RDIPL for the year ended as on March 31, 2024;
Provisional Financial Statement of CYNPL for the year ended as on March 31, 2024;
Computation of Income Tax for Tower Co. and CDPL for FY 2024;

Projections of Tower Co. from April 01, 2024 to August 31, 2050, with the underlying
assumptions;

Projections of CDPL from April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2032;

Summary of Towers as on March 31, 2024 vide Infra Availability - Site Count Reco Statement in
excel;

Summary of sites operated by CDPL as on March 31, 2024 vide Infra Availability - Site Count
Reco Statement in excel;

Other relevant data and information provided to us by the Management whether in oral or
physical form or in soft copy, and discussions with the Management;

Information available in public domain and provided by leading database sources; and

Management Representation Letter.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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4 Exclusions and Limitations

4.1
4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

Restricted Audience

This Report and the information contained herein are absolutely confidential and are intended
for the use of the Investment Manager, Sponsors and the Trust in connection with the Purpose
set out in the Report.

It should not be copied, disclosed, circulated, quoted or referred to, either in whole or in part,
in correspondence or in discussion with any other person except to whom it is issued without
our written consent. It can however be relied upon and disclosed in connection with
presentation to the investors without any consent. In the event the Investment Manager,
Sponsors or the Trust extend the use of the Report beyond the purpose mentioned earlier in
the Report, with or without our consent, we will not accept any responsibility to any other
party (including but not limited to the investors, if any) to whom this Report may be shown or
who may acquire a copy of the Report.

It is clarified that this Report is not a fairness opinion under any of the stock exchange/listing
regulations. In case of any third-party having access to this Report, please note that this Report
is not a substitute for the third party’s own due diligence/appraisal/enquiries/independent
advice that the third party should undertake for its purpose.

Limitation Clause

The Report is subject to the limitations detailed hereinafter. This Report is to be read in
totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant documents referred to therein.

The scope of the assignment did not include performing audit tests for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any financial or analytical information that
was used during the course of the work. Accordingly, we express no audit opinion or any other
form of assurance on this information on behalf of the Company. The assighment did not involve
us to conduct the financial or technical feasibility study. We have not done any independent
technical valuation or appraisal or due diligence or legal title search of the assets or liabilities
of the Company and have considered them at the value as disclosed by the Company in their
regulatory filings or in submissions, oral or written, made to us.

During the course of work, we have relied upon assumptions and projections as provided by
Management. These assumptions require exercise of judgment and are subject to
uncertainties.

Further, this Report is based on the extant regulatory environment and the financial,
economic, monetary, and business/market conditions, and the information made available to
us or used by us up to, the date hereof, which are dynamic in nature and may change in future,
thereby impacting the valuation of Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL. Subsequent
developments in the aforementioned conditions may affect this Report and the assumptions
made in preparing this Report and we shall not be obliged to update, review or reaffirm this
Report if the information provided to us changes. The information presented in this valuation
Report does not reflect the outcome of any due diligence procedures, which may change the
information contained herein and, therefore, the valuation Report materially.

Valuation is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in many cases will of necessity
be subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgment as the valuation analysis
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4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.2.9

4.2.10

4.2.11

4.2.12
4.2.13

4.2.14

is governed by the concept of materiality. There is therefore no indisputable single value.
While we have provided an assessment of the value based on an analysis of information
available to us and within the scope of our engagement, others may place a different value on
the business.

Valuation is based on estimates of future financial performance or opinions, which represent
reasonable expectations at a particular point in time, but such information, estimates or
opinions are not offered as predictions or as assurances that a particular level of income or
profit will be achieved, a particular event will occur or that a particular price will be offered
or accepted. Actual results achieved during the period covered by the prospective financial
analysis will vary from these estimates and the variations may be material.

The realization of these projections is dependent on the continuing validity of the assumptions
on which they are based. Since the projections relate to the future, actual results are likely to
be different from the projected results in case of events and circumstances not occurring as
projected and the differences may be material. Our work did not constitute a validation of the
financial projections of the Company under consideration and accordingly, we do not express
any opinion on the same. Although, we have reviewed the financial projections provided by
Management for consistency and reasonableness our reliance on the financial projections for
the purpose of valuation should not be construed as an assurance about the accuracy of the
assumptions or the achievability of the financial projections.

This Report is based on information received from sources mentioned herein and discussions
with the Management. We have assumed that the parties involved have furnished to us all
information, which they are aware of concerning the financial statements and respective
liabilities, which may have an impact on Report. We have ignored some data provided to us
which we believe may not be material for the purpose of assignment.

We have not done any independent technical valuation or appraisal or due diligence of the
assets or liabilities of the Trust or Tower Co. or CDPL or any of other entity mentioned in this
Report and have considered them at the value as disclosed by the Trust in their regulatory
filings or in submissions, oral or written, made to us. Nothing has come to our knowledge to
indicate that the material provided to us was misstated or incorrect or would not afford
reasonable grounds upon which to base our Report.

We have not made any independent verification with respect to the Tower Co.’s / CDPL’s claim
to title of assets or property for the purpose of this valuation. With respect to claim to title of
assets or property we have solely relied on representations, whether verbal or otherwise, made
by the Management to us for the purpose of this Report.

Except to the extent required under the SEBI InvIT Regulations, we are not responsible for
matters of legal nature including issues of legal title and compliance with local laws in respect
of Tower Co./ CDPL and also no consideration has been given to litigation and other contingent
liabilities that are not recorded in the financial of Tower Co./CDPL.

The fee for the Report is not contingent upon the outcome of the Report.

It may be noted that a draft of this Report (without valuation numbers) was provided to the
Management to review the factual information in the Report as part of our standard practice
to make sure that factual inaccuracies/omissions are avoided in our final Report.

This Report does not look into the business/commercial reasons behind the Transaction or the
Issue nor the likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly, it does not address the relative
merits of investing in InvIT as compared with any other alternative business transaction, or
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4.2.15

4.2.16

4.2.17

4.2.18

other alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could be achieved or are available. The
assessment of commercial and investment merits of the Trust are sole responsibility of the
investors of the Trust and we do not express any opinion on the suitability or otherwise of
entering into any financial or other transactions with the Investment Manager, the Trust or
Tower Co./CDPL.

In rendering this Report, we have not provided any legal, regulatory, tax, accounting, actuarial
advice and accordingly we do not assume any responsibility or liability in respect thereof.

For the present valuation exercise, we have also relied upon information available in the public
domain, however, the accuracy and timeliness of the same has not been independently verified
by us.

In the particular circumstances of this case, we shall be liable only to the Investment Manager,
Sponsor and the Trust. We will not be liable for any losses, claims, damages or liabilities arising
out of the actions taken, omissions of or advice given by any other party to the Company. In
no event shall we be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from
fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or willful default on part of the Company, their directors,
employees or agents. In the particular circumstances of this case, our liability, if any (in
contract or under statute or otherwise) for any economic loss or damage arising out of or in
connection with this engagement, howsoever the loss or damage caused, shall be limited to
the amount of fees actually received by us from the Client as laid out in the engagement letter,
for such valuation work.

Whilst, all reasonable care has been taken to ensure that facts stated in the Report are
accurate and opinions given are fair and reasonable, neither us, nor any of professional
associates who worked as team member shall in any way be liable or responsible either directly
or indirectly for the contents stated herein. Accordingly, we make no representation or
warranty, express or implied, in respect of the completeness, authenticity or accuracy of such
factual statements. We expressly disclaim any and all liabilities, which may arise based upon
the information used in this Report.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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5 Assignment Approach

The overall approach followed to arrive at value of Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL is summarized

below:

i

iii.

iv.

vi.

Submission of detailed information checklist for valuation of Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and
CVNPL.

Review of information provided as per the checklist for initial understanding of the business
followed by a preliminary discussion with the Management to gain insight on the business
operations and brief background of the Tower Infrastructure Business.

The site visits were conducted as below:

Sr. Location Company Date of Visit
No. Name
Summit Digital
1 Bangalore Crest Digital May 09, 2024
. Summit Digital
2 Mumbai Crest Digital May 09, 2024
3 Pune Summit Digital May 10, 2024

Crest Digital

Analysis of additional information received post preliminary discussions. Valuer and its
professional associates had various meetings/virtual meetings with the Management to discuss
business model, assumptions considered and future business outlook.

Obtained various disclosures from the Management pertaining to approvals and litigations of
Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL as required under the SEBI InvIT Regulations.

Carried out the valuation based on internationally accepted valuation methodologies and in
cognizance of international valuation standards and Valuation Standards 2018 issued by ICAI
Registered Valuers Organization.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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6 Business Overview

6.1
6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.1.4

6.2

6.2.1

Tower Infrastructure Business

The Tower Infrastructure Business includes network of ground-based towers (“GBT”), ground
based masts (“GBM”), roof-top towers (“RTT”), roof-top poles (“RTP”) and cell-on-wheels
((‘COW”)‘

Tower Co. has entered into the Amended and Restated MSA with RJIL to provide Passive
Infrastructure and Services to RJIL which came into effect from Closing.

As of March 31, 2024, the Initial Tower Sites consisted of 1,74,451 telecommunications towers
across India. More than 75% of Tower Co.’s Tower Sites are ground-based. All Tower Sites are
connected to the electricity board with lithium-ion battery back-up.

As of March 31, 2024, more than 60% of Tower Co.’s Tower Sites are fiberized i.e., they use
fiber for backhaul and have access to a fiber network, which is critical for telecom service
providers whose revenue growth is increasingly being led by data services and products
offering.

Location of the Towers

Source: As provided by the Management

The table below sets forth operational Tower Sites by type as of March 31, 2024:

Tower Type
State Name Total
GBM GBT RTP /RTT cow
Andhra Pradesh 358 4,342 1,476 46 6,222
Arunachal Pradesh 0 314 29 0 343
Assam 1 4,048 562 10 4,621
Bihar 94 7,663 1,308 12 9,077
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Chhattisgarh 278 4,001 270 47 4,596
Delhi 791 331 4,152 277 5,551
Goa 155 51 81 2 289
Gujarat 5,158 5,901 1,538 24 12,621
Haryana 103 2,725 562 69 3,459
Himachal Pradesh 21 2,012 114 7 2,154
Jammu 34 819 165 19 1,037
Jharkhand 282 4,229 704 34 5,249
Karnataka 343 6,099 2,223 37 8,702
Kashmir 42 1,376 106 33 1,557
Kerala 33 2,720 713 61 3,527
Kolkata 119 1,154 2,944 14 4,231
Madhya Pradesh 1,565 9,005 885 29 11,484
Maharashtra 690 8,648 3,033 32 12,403
Manipur 0 472 48 0 520
Meghalaya 0 744 12 3 759
Mizoram 0 262 28 1 291
Mumbai 699 448 2,578 35 3,760
Nagaland 0 346 34 1 381
Odisha 140 5,209 577 43 5,969
Punjab 866 1,961 1,498 81 4,406
Rajasthan 2,234 7,496 914 77 10,721
Tamil Nadu 996 6,294 2,949 31 10,270
Telangana 523 3,194 2,131 100 5,948
Tripura 0 594 48 0 642
Uttar Pradesh (East) 1,707 11,343 1,644 67 14,761
Uttar Pradesh (West) 399 5,888 1,288 26 7,601
Uttarakhand 70 1,994 471 25 2,560
West Bengal 65 7,809 824 41 8,739
Grand Total 17,766 1,19,492 35,909 1,284 1,74,451

6.3 Tower Infrastructure

6.3.1 Asof March 31, 2024, Tower Co.’s Initial Tower Sites consisted of 1,74,451 Macro Towers across
India.

6.3.2 The following diagram illustrates the standard facilities located on Sites:

(this space has been left blank intentionally)
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The tower sites comprise of various types of structure, deployed based on the network
requirement to provide a required coverage to enhance customer experience.

Ground-based towers (“GBT”): GBTs are erected on the ground with a height of 30 meters
to 60 meters As per discussions with the management, GBTs have been designed in a
manner that allows for utilities to be placed inside the towers, leading to the reduction
of additional costs for foundational work relating to DGs and/or cabinets, the elimination
of fencing work around the plot and the enhancement of security of DGs and cabinets
within SDIL’s tower sites.

Ground-based mast (“GBM”): GBMs address difficulties of erecting GBTs in urban areas
arising from space requirements. GBMs require less space for tower sites compared to
GBTs. GBMs require very low rents, use natural cooling mechanism with no air-conditioning
or fans and therefore, result in lower capital expenditures.

Rooftop structures: Rooftop structures are placed on the terrace of high-rise buildings and
have varying heights of 3, 6, 9, 12, 15 and 18 meters. There are two types of rooftop
structures, rooftop poles (“RTP”) and rooftop towers (“RTT”).

Cell-On-Wheel (“COW”): Cell-On-Wheel sites provide a coverage for places where
permanent sites are not allowed, or for network restoration in case of natural disasters or
temporary electricity outages.

The following table sets forth design and execution requirements of towers by tower type as
of March 31, 2024:

Type| Height | Space | Access Factors/ |Antenna|Electrical| Vertical | High -
required| tosite |requirements| loading | utilities |clearance| tension

location| for civil required electrical

foundation lines

GBT |Upto 10m x 10m | 24x7 Soil-bearing Yes Standardized | No vertical No high-
60m capacity, wind AC/DC obstacle tension

Speed electrical

lines nearby
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Type| Height| Space | Access Factors/ |Antenna|Electrical| Vertical | High -
required| tosite |requirements| loading | utilities |clearance| tension
location| for civil |required electrical
foundation lines
GBM | 20m, 3m x 3m 24x7 Standard Yes Standardized | No vertical No high-
25m, 30m penetration test, AC/DC obstacle tension
wind speed electrical
lines nearby
RTP |3m,6m, |<420sq.ft |24x7 Structural stability Yes Standardized | No vertical No high-
9m, 12m, report of buildings AC/DC obstacle tension
15m, 18m by certified electrical
structural lines nearby
consultants, wind
speed
RTT |Upto <420sq. ft |24x7 Structural stability Yes Standardized | No vertical No high-
12m/more report of buildings AC/DC obstacle tension
than 12m by certified electrical
structural lines nearby
consultants, wind
speed
COW |Upto N/A Not No civil Yes Direct DG | No vertical | Not required
30m required foundation set obstacle

6.4
6.4.1

Crest Digitel Private Limited

CDPL owns and operates shared in-building communications infrastructure that provides

2G/3G/4G network through a common shared infrastructure used by wireless carriers,
broadcasters, and other communication companies to provide services to end users in India.

6.4.2

RJIO etc. in areas of low network connectivity to enhance network for end users.

6.4.3

CDPL deploys passive telecom infrastructure for telecom operators such as Airtel, Vodafone,

CDPL offers built-to-suit solutions specializing in passive DAS (distributed antenna system),

outdoor connectivity, and small cells infrastructure for institutional, commercial and
residential buildings. CDPL offers following solutions:

a)

IBS - Inbuilding Solutions:

IBS means In-Building solutions.

As the name indicates, this technology is deployed to provide network within Buildings.
Generally large commercial complexes like Malls, Offices, Hospitals, Airports, Metro
stations, etc don't get enough network coverage.

Antennas and cables are installed within the building. These antennas are connected to
Operator's BTS.

This provides network coverage within the building or complex.

Small Cell Solutions:

Small cells are used to provide/enhance network coverage in areas where a Macro site is
not feasible.

Small cells could be wall-mounted, pole mounted (roof-top) or installed indoor at densely
populated indoor areas.

Small cell technology deploys a smaller setup as compared to IBS.
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6.4.4 The table below sets forth operational Sites of CDPL by type as of March 31, 2024:

IBS Small Cell Total
Site Site Site

State Count Tenancy Count Tenancy Count Tenancy
Andhra Pradesh 24 47 81 81 105 128
Assam 12 14 1 1 13 15
Bihar 4 6 162 162 166 168
Chandigarh 4 8 8 8 12 16
Chattisgarh 6 11 0 0 6 11
Delhi 99 258 314 314 413 572
GOA 13 22 1 1 14 23
Guijarat 119 182 352 352 471 534
Haryana 54 83 138 138 192 221
Himachal

Pradesh 9 16 0 0 9 16
Jammu & Kashmir 1 3 10 10 11 13
Jharkhand 0 0 36 36 36 36
Karnataka 45 57 328 336 373 393
Kerala 16 24 0 0 16 24
Madhya Pradesh 12 21 18 18 30 39
Maharashtra 209 349 1,014 1,042 1,223 1,391
Manipur 1 2 0 0 1 2
Odisha 1 1 17 17 18 18
Pondicherry 5 7 1 1 6 8
Punjab 16 25 56 56 72 81
Rajasthan 29 36 242 242 271 278
Tamil Nadu 76 163 243 243 319 406
Telangana 22 34 205 206 227 240
Uttar Pradesh 72 117 757 763 829 880
Uttarakhand 7 15 78 78 85 93
West Bengal 45 98 308 316 353 414
Grand Total 901 1,599 4,370 4,421 5,271 6,020

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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6.5 Visit Details

6.5.1 Our team has visited the Macro Towers in case of Tower Co. and the small cell and other sites
of CDPL located near Mumbai, Navi Mumbai, Pune and Bangalore in May 2024 for undertaking
physical inspection of the towers as required under the SEBI InvIT Regulations. We have not
been able to visit tower control room located at Reliance Corporate Park in Navi Mumbai,
Maharashtra due to access controls being a sensitive site.

6.6  Other disclosures as required under the SEBI InvIT Regulations have been
provided in Annexure IV of the Report.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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7

7.1.1

7.1.2

7.1.3

7.1.4

Industry Overview

India is the fastest growing economy in the world and the third largest economy when its gross
domestic product (“GDP”) is compared in terms of purchasing power parity (“PPP”). India’s
total GDP size was USD 3.5 trillion in 2022 according to the World Bank. India’s GDP per capita
has consistently grown between 5% and 7% between year 2013 and 2018, according to the World
Bank. Although GDP growth at constant prices in the year 2021 was -6.6% due to pandemic
effect, it has again risen back to 8.7% in 2021 as per the Economic Survey of India 2022-23.The
following diagram sets forth India’s GDP per capita growth for the periods indicated:

10% 8.70%*
B 7.00%+

2020 2071 2022 2023 2024

6. 405

e

-§. 6%

© o &

* Provisional Estimates  ** 1st Advance Estimates

*** Projected

(Source: PIB, Government of India, accessed on November 15, 2023 at
https://pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=1894932)

India’s per capita income has also risen in recent years. According to the International
Monetary Fund (“the IMF”), India’s GDP per capita at current prices in 2024 was estimated to
be USD 2,730.0 (Source: International Monetary Fund, accessed on April 30, 2024
at:https:/ /www.imf.org/external/datamapper/ NGDPDPC@WEO/OEMDC/ADVEC/WEOWORLD
/IND

India is becoming increasingly urbanized. In 2022, India’s urban population increased to
approximately 508.2 million representing 35.9% of India’s population. (Source: World Bank,
accessed on April 30, 2024 at
https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/SP.URB.TOTL.IN.ZS?view=map).

The CEIC expects that India’s economy will continue to grow rapidly. India’s GDP per capita on
PPP basis is forecasted to be USD 12,887.8 in 2029. This records an increase from the last
reported number of USD 8,329.3 in 2023.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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7.2

7.21

7.2.2

7.2.3

7.2.4
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(Source: CEIC Data, accessed on April 30, 2024)

Indian Telecommunication Industry
Indian mobile telecommunications services sector

The mobile telecommunications industry is an integral part of the Indian economy. The industry
has contributed to the economic growth and the GDP of the country by generating revenue for
the Government and creating new jobs, directly and indirectly.

India is currently the world’s second-largest telecommunications market by subscribers and
strong customer demand has led to a rapid growth in this sector. As of July 31, 2023, India had
a total reported subscriber base (including wireless and wireline subscribers) of 1,176.85
million, according to TRAI.

Mobile telecommunications operators offer two basic subscription methods, pre-paid and post-
paid. The pre-paid subscription model is currently the most widely used subscription method
in the mobile telecommunications industry in India.

(In millions) Wireless Wireline  Total

Total Telephone Subscribers as of February 29, 2024 1,164.64 33.1|1,197.75
Urban Telephone Subscribers as of February 29, 2024 636.11 30.29 666.4
Rural Telephone Subscribers as of February 29, 2024 528.53 2.81| 531.35
Broadband Subscribers as of February 29, 2024 877.31 39.46| 916.77

(Source : - Telecom Regulatory Authority of India (TRAI)

The mobile telecommunications industry in India is divided into 22 service areas - three metro
service areas (Delhi, Mumbai, and Kolkata) and 19 other service areas. These other service
areas are categorized as Circle ‘A’, Circle ‘B’ and Circle ‘C’, in descending order on the basis
of the degree of affluence, infrastructure development and revenue potential across each
service area. The licensed service areas of the various cellular service providers as of April 30,
2024 are provided below:

Service Provider Licensed Service Area
Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (“BSNL”) All India (except Delhi & Mumbai)
Bharti Airtel Limited (“Bharti Airtel”) All India

Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited (“MTNL”) | Delhi & Mumbai

Reliance Jio Infocom Limited (“Reliance Jio”) |All India

Reliance Communications Limited All India (except Assam & NE)
Vodafone Idea Limited (“Vodafone Idea”) All India
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7.2.5 The following table sets forth the wireless subscriber base for the key access service providers
for each service area:

Subscribers as of April 30, 2024 Bharti Airtel Reliance Jio  Vodafone Idea

Circle (In millions)

Andhra Pradesh 0.51 1.18 0.06
Assam 0.02 0.16 0.00
Bihar 0.08 0.48 0.00
Delhi 2.00 0.91 0.08
Gujarat 0.23 0.60 0.05
Haryana 0.12 0.11 0.00
Himachal Pradesh 0.00 0.05 0.00
Jammu & Kashmir 0.09 0.19 0.00
Karnataka 1.12 0.88 0.14
Kerala 0.09 0.26 0.00
Kolkata 0.19 0.47 0.01
Madhya Pradesh 0.47 0.64 0.03
Maharashtra 0.41 0.25 0.02
Mumbai 0.56 0.82 0.16
North East 0.15 0.00
Orissa 0.01 0.23 0.00
Punjab 0.24 0.31 0.00
Rajasthan 0.21 0.36 0.01
Tamil Nadu (incl. Chennai) 0.85 0.76 0.03
Uttar Pradesh (East) 0.19 0.47 0.01
Uttar Pradesh (West) 0.12 0.52 0.00
West Bengal 0.03 0.23 0.00
Total 7.66 10.14 0.67

(Source: TRAI)

7.2.6 As of July 31, 2023, according to TRAI, private access service providers held an 91.3% market
share in terms of wireless subscribers, whereas BSNL and MTNL, the two public service
undertaking access service providers, held a combined market share of 8.7%. Among private
access service providers, notable companies include Vodafone Idea (with a market share of
19.9%), Bharti Airtel (with a market share of 32.7%) and RJIL (with a market share of 38.6%).

As per TRAI, the following diagrams show the graphical representation of access service
provider-wise market share based on wireless subscribers as of July 31, 2023:

Access Service Provider-wise Market Shares in term of Wireless
Subscribers as on 315t July, 2023

Vodafone Idea,
19. BSIL,‘ 8.57% MTNL, 0.17%
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7.2.7 On the other hand, within the subset of broadband service providers, RJIL holds the largest
market share with 52.0% as of July 31, 2023 based on the number of subscribers. This is
followed by Bharti Airtel with 28.9% and Vodafone Idea with 14.3% of market share.

Service Provider-wise Market Share of Broadband
(wired + wireless) Services as on 315t July, 2023

Idea, 14.31%

BSNL, 2.83% _ ONVETEEnte
\ 0.25%
Bharti Airtel, ~_ Dthers, 1.6

28.92%

(Source: TRAI)

7.2.8 The Union Cabinet approved INR 12,195 crore (USS$ 1.65 billion) production-linked incentive
(PLI) scheme for telecom & networking products under the Department of Telecom. On
December 2022, 42 companies have committed an investment USS 502.95 million (INR 4,115
crore) comprising 28 MSMEs and 14 Non-MSMEs (eight domestic and seven global companies)
have been approved under the PLI Scheme. To drive the development of 6G technology, the
Department of Telecommunications (DoT) has developed a sixth-generation (6G) innovation
group.

7.2.9 Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched 5G services on October 1, 2022. India's 5G
subscriptions is expected to reach 350 million by 2026 accounting for 27% of all mobile
subscriptions. After launch, India’s telecom sector is witnessing a surge in reforms as it has
successfully connected people with 5G services and managed to decrease the cost of
operations.

7.2.10 Mr. Mukesh Ambani, Chairman of Reliance Industries has committed an investment of US$ 24
billion (INR 2 trillion) for rolling out a 5G network across the country by the end of 2023,
whereas the Adani Group is still yet to unveil its plan for the telecom business. Reliance
Industries has also committed US$ 10.6 billion (INR 87,946.9 crores) to pay over a period of 20
years. On the other hand, Bharti Airtel is expected to invest in the range of USS$ 3.26 billion -
USS 3.38 billion (INR 27,000-28,000 crores) and BSNL around USS 1.93 billion (INR 16,000 crores)
in 2022 for rolling out a developed 4G network by Tata Consultancy Services, which later would
be upgraded to 5G. Hence, altogether investments worth more than USS$ 18.0 billion (INR 1.5
trillion in 2023) are expected.

7.2.11 The telecom operators on an average are installing 2,500 base stations per week for providing
5G services in the country and around 20,980 mobile base stations were installed as on
November 26, 2022.

7.2.12 In October 2021, the government notified 100% foreign direct investment (FDI) via the
automatic route from previous 49% in the telecommunications sector. FDI inflow in the telecom
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sector stood at USS 39.02 billion between April 2000-September 2022. In January 2022, Google
made a USS 1 billion investment in Airtel through the India Digitization Fund.

7.2.13 There are 1bn SIMs in the country which are expected to grow at CAGR 3% with 5G expected
to become the mainstream technology followed by 4G by 2032

Split of active SIMs by technology (FY2022-FY2032, millions)

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031 FY 2032

M 26 sivs [0 36 sivs [ 4G sims I 56G SiMs
Source : Analysys Mason*
7.2.14 Jio and Airtel are expected to achieve more dominant position in the market, with Vodafone’s
share expected to reduce from 22% in FY22 to 13% by FY32.

Overall market share by operator (%)

43% _ _ Py - -&
- P >
&
ar%
T L L i 4 4 r o 4
& 3r% 37%
35%
22%
\ 15%
+ - " R 13%
¢ + * . . .
+ + -+
6% 5% a5
—a— o - +—s—a8——8—8—=~
FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Fy 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031 FY 2032

—d— Airtel —#= VIL =@ Jio ~¥- BSNL

Source : Analysys Mason*

7.2.15 The Tower market in India has moved from operator-dominated to tower company dominated,
with Indus towers, Summit Digitel and ATC being the leading tower companies.

(this space has been left blank intentionally)

Strictly Confidential Page 27 of 51



IBDO

Telecom tower market landscape, FY2022 (‘000 towers)

Operator owned
independent towercos

Operators owned

Independent towercos
Al

Total Indus Towers BSNLY Summit Digitel RTEL2 ATC Others

Tenancy ratio 181 120 1.02 111 154 1.40

Source : Analysys Mason*

7.2.16 From tower company demand perspective, in the base case, it is estimated all MNOs to add
326K total base transceiver station (“BTSs”) till FY2032, of which ~76% will come from Jio and
Bharti Airtel.

Total tenancy BTS by MNO (FY22-FY32), ‘000s

BSNL/MTNL
Vodafone
anet
~8k new BTSs in Q1 FY23
Jio 300 I 310 I 321 I 331

FY2022 FY2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031 FY 2032
Source : Analysys Mason*
Crest Digitel Private Limited

7.2.17 On the small cells front, it is expected that the NHPs addressable market will grow to 239 K by
FY2032.

(this space has been left blank intentionally)
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Forecasted demand for small cells (‘000)

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY2027 FY2032

- Deployments by NHP - Deployments by MNO

Source : Analysys Mason*

7.2.18 Crest Digitel’s current market share is 10% of incremental demand, and it is expected to
increase slightly to ~15-16% given their increasing focus, and remain stable over the long run.
(Source : Analysys Mason*)

*This extract is from a wider report and has not been reviewed by Analysys Mason.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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iii.

8.1
8.1.1

8.2
8.2.1

Valuation Approach

The present valuation exercise is being undertaken to arrive at enterprise value of Tower Co.
and CDPL for the Purpose. Considering internationally accepted valuation methodologies and
in cognizance of international valuation standards and ICAl Valuation Standards 2018 issued by
ICAlI Registered Valuers Organisation, there are three generally accepted approaches to
valuation:

“Cost” Approach
“Income” Approach
“Market” Approach

Within these three basic approaches, several methods may be used to estimate the value. A
brief overview of these approaches is as follows:

Cost Approach

The cost approach values the underlying assets of the business to determine the business value
of Tower Co. and CDPL. This valuation method carries more weight with respect to holding
companies than operating companies. Also, asset value approaches are more relevant to the
extent that a significant portion of the assets are of a nature that could be liquidated readily
if so desired.

Summation Method

The summation method, also referred to as the underlying asset method, is typically used
for investment companies or other types of assets or entities for which value is primarily a
factor of the values of their holdings.

Income Approach

The Income approach focuses on the income prospects of a company.

Discounted Cash Flow Method

¢ Under the Discounted Cash Flow (“DCF”) method, the value of the undertaking is based on
expected ‘'cash flows for future, discounted at a rate, which reflects the expected returns
and the risks associated with the cash flows as against its accounting profits. The value of
the undertaking is determined as the present value of its future free cash flows.

¢ Free cash flows are discounted for the explicit forecast period and the perpetuity value
thereafter. Free cash flows represent the cash available for distribution to both, the owners
and lenders to the business.

¢ Discount rate is the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (“WACC”), based on an optimal vis-
a-vis actual capital structure. It is appropriate rate of discount to calculate the present
value of future cash flows as it considers equity-debt risk and also debt-equity ratio of the
firm.

e The perpetuity (terminal) value is calculated based on the business’s potential for further
growth beyond the explicit forecast period. The “constant growth model” is applied, which
implies an expected constant level of growth (for perpetuity) in the cash flows over the
last year of the forecast period.
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8.3

ii.

jii.

The discounting factor (rate of discounting the future cash flows) reflects not only the time
value of money, but also the risk associated with the business’s future operations.

The Business/Enterprise Value so derived, is further reduced by value of debt, if any, (net
of cash and cash equivalents) to arrive at value to the owners of business. The surplus assets
/ non-operating assets are also adjusted.

In case of free cash flows to equity, the cash available for distribution to owners of the
business is discounted at the Cost of Equity and the value so arrived is the Equity Value
before surplus/ non-operating assets. The surplus assets / non-operating assets are further
added to arrive at the Equity Value.

Market Approach

Market Price Method

Under this approach, the market price of an equity shares as quoted on a recognized stock
exchange is normally considered as the fair value of the equity shares of that company
where such quotations are arising from the shares being regularly and freely traded. The
market value generally reflects the investors’ perception about the true worth of the
company.

Comparable Companies Multiple Method

Under the Comparable Companies Multiple (“CCM”) method, the value is determined on
the basis of multiples derived from valuations of comparable companies, as manifest
through stock market valuations of listed companies. This valuation is based on the principle
that market valuations, taking place between informed buyers and informed sellers,
incorporate all factors relevant to valuation. Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully
and adjusted for differences between the circumstances.

To the value of the business so arrived, adjustments need to be made for the value of
contingent assets/liabilities, surplus Asset and dues payable to preference shareholders, if
any, in order to arrive at the value for equity shareholders.

Comparable Transactions Multiple Method

Under the Comparable Transactions Multiple (“CTM”) method, the value of a company can
be estimated by analysing the prices paid by purchasers of similar companies under similar
circumstances. This is a valuation method where one will be comparing recent market
transactions in order to gauge current valuation of target company.

(this space has been left blank intentionally)
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8.4  Conclusion on Valuation Approach

Sr.  Valuation

No. Approach
I Cost

Approach

Il Income
Approach

Il Market
Approach

Valuation
Methodology
- Summation
Method

- Discounted Cash
Flow

- Market Price

- Comparable
Companies

- Comparable
Transactions

Used

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

Explanation

Summation Method does not capture the
future earning potential of the business.
RDIPL and CVNPL are newly acquired
companies and as per discussion with
management there is no business plan in
these companies as on date of valuation
and hence we have considered
Summation Method under Cost Approach
for valuation of these companies.

Tower Co and CDPL derives its true value
from the potential to earn income in the
future. Hence, we have considered DCF
method under Income Approach for
Valuation.

Tower Co and CDPL is not listed on any
stock exchange; therefore, we have not
considered market price method of
valuation.

There are no listed companies directly
comparable to the business of Tower Co.
and CDPL considering the distinct nature
of asset and capital structure. Hence, we
have not considered CCM method.

Due to unavailability of transactions in
the public domain with business and
characteristics similar to Tower Co. and
CDPL, we have not considered CTM
method.

e Accordingly, in the instant case, the Discounted Cash Flow Method was considered as the
most appropriate method for valuation of Tower Co. and CDPL. Under the DCF method, we
have used Free Cash Flow to Firm (“FCFF”) model for valuation. Further we have
considered Summation Method under the Cost Approach for the valuation of RDIPL and

CVNPL.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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9 Valuation of Tower Co., CDPL, RDIPL and CYNPL

9.1 Valuation of Tower Co.

9.1.1 The provisional balance sheet position of Tower Co. as on March 31, 2024, has been considered

as the opening balance sheet of Tower Co. for the purpose of valuation.

9.1.2 Tower Co. and RJIL have entered into the Amended and Restated MSA in terms of which Tower
Co. shall provide Passive Infrastructure and Services to RJIL for a period of 30 years from the
Closing i.e. September 1, 2020. Hence, the financial projections, as provided by the
Management, are for a period of approx. 26 years starting from April 01, 2024 till August 31,
2050 which has been considered for valuation. The financial forecast provided by the
Management were reviewed by us for consistency and reasonableness, however we have not

independently verified the data provided.

9.1.3 Following are the key assumptions considered in the financial projections while determining

the operating cash flows of Tower Co.:

i. Volumes:

The number of Tower Sites are expected to increase from 174,451 as of March 31, 2024 to
199,452 by August 31, 2025. Currently, RJIL is the anchor tenant of operational Tower Sites,
and it will be the anchor tenant on all of the current and the proposed Tower Sites. Tower Co.
has other tenants as on March 31, 2024 on sharer basis. Further, other tenants are estimated
to increase in the projected period. The tenancy ratio is estimated to increase to 1.50 in August

2030 gradually from 1.0 in FY23 in the projected period considering the same.

ii. Monthly Site Premium:

We have considered the Monthly Site Premium (being the site premium payable by RJIL to Tower
Co.) for the provision of Passive Infrastructure and Services as specified in the Amendment and
Restated MSA together with applicable escalations specified therein to forecast the revenues of

Tower Co.

Monthly Site Reimbursement and the Power & Fuel (“P&F”) costs as stated in the Amendment and
Restated MSA are considered. The Monthly Site Reimbursement with respect to a Site, refers to the
payment to be made by Tower Co. under relevant landlord contracts for use of such Site such as
license fee / lease or rental amount. P&F costs refers to the power and fuel costs to be charged

based on actuals by Tower Co. to RJIL.

Similar assumptions of monthly site premium have been taken with respect to other tenants. The
other tenants are charged monthly site premium for the provision of Passive Infrastructure and

Services at market rate which is estimated to escalate at 2.5% p.a.

iii. O&M Contract Price

The fees to be paid by Tower Co. to the Operator including the escalations thereon in terms of
the Restated and Amended Operations and Maintenance Agreement to determine the

forecasted O&M expenses are considered for O&M Contract Price.

iv. Other Expenses

The manpower head count of 267 with an average salary p.a. of INR 3.0 million with escalation
of 5.0% p.a. has been assumed. Additionally, fixed administration expenses of INR 700.0 million

with escalation of 3.0% p.a. are considered.
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vi.

vii.

Capital Expenditure

Tower Co. projects a total capex of INR 8,383.1 Crore from Valuation Date till August 31, 2025
exclusive of Goods and Service Tax. The capex is majorly towards acquisition/construction of
additional Tower Sites. Further growth capex is considered in projected period till August 31,
2033 on account of other tenants.

Discounted Cash Flow

The explicit period has been considered from April 01, 2024, to August 31, 2050.

Working capital requirement and expected capital expenditure are considered as provided by
the Management during forecast period.

FCFF method under DCF is used to calculate enterprise value of Tower Co.

In FCFF, the free cash flows available to the company are discounted by WACC to derive the
net present value. WACC of 10.4% is considered.

The projected net cash flows are discounted back to their present value using mid-year
discounting convention. The use of mid-year discounting factors better reflects the assumption
that net cash flows will be generated throughout the year, rather than at the beginning or at
the end of the year.

Given the fixed term of the Project Agreements, terminal cash flow discounting is not
considered. Recoupment of all working capital at the end of the forecast period is considered.

Tax rate of 25.2% being the tax rate prevailing in India is considered.

The enterprise value (“Enterprise Value”) of Tower Co. is arrived at INR 61,808.2 Cr,
determined as an aggregate of the present value of forecast period.

Further, we have carried out the sensitivity of WACC on Enterprise value by adjusting risk
premium in the range of 2.0% to 3.0% with WACC as follows:

WACC 10.1% 10.6% 11.1%

Enterprise Value (INR Cr) 63,256.8 60,409.9 57,756.0

Discounting Factor

o Free Cash Flows to Firm (“FCFF”) model under DCF method is used to estimate the
Enterprise Value of Tower Co. In FCFF, the free cash flows available are discounted by
Weighted Average Cost of Capital (“WACC”) to arrive the net present value.

o The WACC is arrived at after considering the cost of equity and the post-tax cost of debt
and the post-tax cost of the Trust Loan and their respective weights in the capital structure
of Tower Co.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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The break-up of the debt (excluding any interest due thereon) as of March 31, 2024, is

provided below:

Particulars As of March 31, As of March 31, 2024,
2024, in INR Crore adjusted for additional

External Loan (including
repayment) in INR Crore

Long term loans (including 29,799.8 39,170.8

current maturity of long-

term borrowings) - External

Trust Loan 25,880.0 25,880.0

0% Redeemable Non- 0.0 0.0

Cumulative, Non-

Participating, Non-

Convertible Preference

Shares

Total 55,679.8 65,050.8

The Tower Co. is proposing to raise additional loan of INR 9,371.0 Cr to fund construction/
inorganic acquisition of additional towers and to re-finance existing loans.

While the Trust Loan is in the nature of debt at the level of Tower Co., at the consolidated
Trust level, the same would be considered as equity. For the purpose of this valuation
exercise, we have considered the following to determine the WACC.

WACC = (Cost of External Debt * (1-tax rate) * External Debt as of March 31, 2024 (including
additional loan for additional towers) + Cost of Trust Loan * (1-tax rate) * Trust Loan + Cost of
Equity * Equity Share Capital) / (External Debt as of March 31, 2024 (including additional loan for
additional towers) + Trust Loan + Equity Share Capital + Preference Share Capital)

The cost of equity (“CoE”) has been calculated as per the Capital Asset Pricing Model based

on the following parameters:

- Cost of equity = Risk Free Rate + [Beta X Equity Risk Premium]

- Risk free rate of return of 7.0% is based on yields of 10-year zero coupon bond yield as
on March 31, 2024 having and as listed on www.ccillndia.com.

- Expected market premium of 8.0% has been calculated on the expected market return
of 15.0% as prevalent in India based on historical market returns and our analysis.

- Beta is a measure of systematic risk of the company’s stock as compared to the market
risk. Since there are no listed companies directly comparable to the business of SDIL
considering the distinct nature of asset and capital structure, we have considered a
market beta of 1.0 for determination of CoE.

Based on above, the base cost of equity is arrived at 15.0%.
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« Further, we have considered post tax cost of external debt of 6.0% and post-tax cost of trust
loan of 11.2% to arrive at WACC of 8.1%.

« We have considered the risk premium given the construction or inorganic acquisition of
additional towers by August 31, 2025 and to account for risk involved in getting other
tenants onboard in projected period and the estimated revenues therefrom. We have
considered an additional risk premium of 2.3%.

» We have hence considered a WACC of 10.4% after rounding off for the current valuation.
viii. Note:

e Security deposits of INR 1,532.8 Cr is considered as current liability in working capital which
was earlier treated as debt like item. The security deposit consists of land lease deposits,
GST input credit and GST on foundation. The security deposits are expected to due at the
end of August 2050 except GST on foundation. This has reduced the enterprise value and may
have positive impact on equity value.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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9.2
9.21

9.2.2

9.2.3

jii.

Valuation of Crest Digitel Private Limited (“CDPL”)

The unaudited balance sheet position of CDPL as on March 31, 2024, has been considered as
the opening balance sheet for the purpose of valuation.

The financial projections, as provided by the Management, from April 01, 2024 to March 31,
2032 has been considered for valuation. The financial forecast provided by the Management
were reviewed by us for consistency and reasonableness, however we have not independently
verified the data provided.

Following are the key assumptions considered in the financial projections while determining
the operating cash flows of CDPL:

Revenue

CDPL charges IP fee for providing passive telecom infrastructure services to Telecom Operators
and other customers. In addition to IP Fees, CDPL charges land rent and electricity charges
from the customers on actual basis.

o |P Fee from Retail are estimated to grow at CAGR of approx. 13.9% from INR 55.5 Cr in FY24
to INR 137.9 Cr in FY31. CDPL will enter into contracts with property developers and
authorities to advance the process of deployment of IBS in premises.

e |P Fee from Metro stations are estimated to grow at CAGR of approx. 9.6% from INR 124.6
Cr in FY24 to INR 236.2 Cr in FY31 on account of increase in number of metro stations
considering CDPL’s substantial market share in this segment.

e |P Fee from Airports are estimated to grow at CAGR of approx. 9.3% from INR 7.9 Cr in FY24
to INR 14.8 Cr in FY31.

e |P Fees from Small Cells are estimated to grow at CAGR of approx. 35.3% from INR 35.9 Cr
to 298.6 Cr in FY31 on account of increase in overall Small Cells market and market share
of CDPL.

Expenses
The expenses consist of rent, electricity charges, employee expenses, business promotion and

consultancy, site repair and maintenance charges and other administrative expenses. Rent and
electricity charges are reimbursable on actual basis from Telecom operators and other
customers. Employee expenses are fixed in nature and are estimated to decline from 18.1% of
revenue in FY24 to 15.6% of revenue in FY31. Business Promotion and Consultancy expenses
are estimated to increase from INR 4.8 Crore in FY25 to INR 7.2 Crore in FY31 and are estimated
in the range of 1.1% to 0.7% of revenue going forward in the explicit period. Site repair and
Maintenance expenses are estimated to increase from 1.3 Crore in FY24 to INR 5.6 Crore in
FY31 which is approx. 0.5% of revenue. Other expenses are semi-fixed and are estimated to
increase from INR 25.5 Crore in FY25 to INR 63.0 Crore in FY31.

Capital Expenditure
CDPL projects a total capex of INR912.6 Crore excluding GST in the projected period as follows:

The capex is majorly towards additional bool sites to provide passive telecom infrastructure
services. The capex will be funded through additional borrowings. Capital expenditure
forecasts have been revised in response to the observed gradual increase in the speed of 5G
technology deployment and past experience of the Management.
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iv. Working Capital

The working capital assumptions have been considered as provided by the Management.

V. Discounted Cash Flow

The explicit period has been considered from April 01, 2024, to March 31, 2032.

Working capital requirement and expected capital expenditure are considered as provided
by the Management during forecast period.

FCFF method under DCF is used to calculate enterprise value of CDPL.

In FCFF, the free cash flows available to the company are discounted by WACC to derive the
net present value. WACC of 13.3% is considered.

The projected net cash flows are discounted back to their present value using mid-year
discounting convention. The use of mid-year discounting factors better reflects the
assumption that net cash flows will be generated throughout the year, rather than at the
beginning or at the end of the year.

The terminal year growth is considered at 4.0% to calculate cash flows arising post explicit
period.

Tax rate of 25.2% being the tax rate prevailing in India is considered.

The enterprise value (“Enterprise Value”) of CDPL is arrived at INR 1,811.4 Crore,
determined as an aggregate of the present value of forecast period and terminal year.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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vi.

9.3
9.3.1

9.3.2

9.4

9.4.1

9.4.2

Discounting Factor

o The WACC is arrived at after considering the cost of equity and the post-tax cost of debt
and their respective weights in the capital structure of CDPL.

WACC = (Cost of External Debt * (1-tax rate) * Target Debt to Equity ratio + Cost of Equity * (1-
* Target Debt to Equity ratio).

o The cost of equity (“CoE”) has been calculated as per the Capital Asset Pricing Model based
on the following parameters:

- Cost of equity = Risk Free Rate + [Beta X Equity Risk Premium]

- Risk free rate of return of 7.0% is based on yields of 10-year zero coupon bond yield as
on March 31, 2024 having and as listed on www.ccillndia.com.

- Expected market premium of 8.0% has been calculated on the expected market return
of 15.0% as prevalent in India based on historical market returns and our analysis.

- Beta is a measure of systematic risk of the company’s stock as compared to the market
risk. Since there are no listed companies directly comparable to the business of CDPL,
we have considered a market beta of 1.0 for determination of CoE.

o Based on above, the base cost of equity is arrived at 15.0%. We have considered risk
premium of 3.0% to account for factors inter-alia, risk of achieving projections, growth in
turnover and margins. The revised cost of equity is arrived at 18.0%.

o Further, as discussed with the Management of the Trust and as per the audited financial
statements of CDPL for FY24, there is debt of INR 225.9 Crore and the capex in future will
be funded through external debt only. Therefore, we have considered target debt-equity
ratio of approx. 72.4% on basis of discussion with the Management and analysis of projected
financial statements. The pre-tax cost of debt is considered at 9.0% on market participant
basis and the post-tax cost of debt is arrived at 6.7%.

o Based on the above, the WACC is arrived at 13.3%.
Valuation of Roam Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited (“RDIPL”)

The provisional balance sheet position of RDIPL as on March 31, 2024, has been considered as
the balance sheet for the purpose of valuation.

Given that RDIPL has been recently acquired and as per discussions with the Management,
there is no business plan for RDIPL as on the date of valuation and hence, we have considered
the Summation Method under Cost Approach for the valuation of RDIPL. The enterprise value
of RDIPL is arrived at INR (0.004) Crore. Given that there is no business operation in RDIPL and
the value is not materially negative we have considered the enterprise value to be NIL.

Valuation of Crest Virtual Network Private Limited (“CVNPL”)

The provisional balance sheet position of CVNPL as on March 31, 2024, has been considered as
the balance sheet for the purpose of valuation.

Given that CVNPL has been recently acquired and as per discussions with the Management,
there is no business plan for CYNPL as on the date of valuation and hence, we have considered
the Summation Method under Cost Approach for the valuation of CVNPL. The enterprise value
of CVNPL is arrived at INR (0.01) Crore. Given that there is no business operation in CYNPL and
the value is not materially negative we have considered the enterprise value to be NIL.
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10 Valuation Summary

10.1. The current valuation has been carried out based on the valuation methodology explained
herein earlier. Further, various qualitative factors, the business dynamics and growth potential
of the business, having regard to information base, management perceptions, key underlying
assumptions and limitations, were given due consideration.

10.2. We would like to highlight that in the ultimate analysis, valuation will have to be tempered by
the exercise of judicious discretion and judgment taking into account all the relevant factors.
There will always be several factors, e.g., quality of the management, present and prospective
competition, yield on comparable securities and market sentiment, etc. which are not evident
from the face of the balance sheets, but which will strongly influence the worth of an entity
or business.

10.3. The enterprise values of Tower Co. CDPL, RDIPL and CVNPL as on March 31, 2024 are as follows:

InvIT Assets Enterprise Value (INR
Cr)

Tower Co. (corresponding to asset base of 174,451 towers as on March 61,808.2

31, 2024)

CDPL 1,811.4

RDIPL NIL

CVNPL NIL

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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11 Annexures

11.1
A.

Annexure |

as per Summation Method

Summit Digitel Infrastructure Limited

Valuation as per Discounted Cash Flow Method as on March 31, 2024 (INR Cr)

Valuation of Tower Co., CDPL as per DCF Method and of RDIPL and CVNPL

WACC 10.4%

Year Ending 31 August, 2024 31 August, 2025 31 August, 2026 31 August, 2027 31 August, 2028 31 August, 2029 31 August, 2030
Revenue 4,820.0 9,637.4 10,965.0 11,474.8 11,967.9 12,475.9 12,986.3
EBITDA 2,317.5 5,922.9 6,866.0 7,230.4 7,719.0 8,096.7 8,475.4
EBITDA Margins 48.1% 61.5% 62.6% 63.0% 64.5% 64.9% 65.3%
Less : Outflows

(Less): Capital Expenditure (25.1) (8,358.0) (210.0) (210.8) (215.5) (190.3) (190.3)
Add/(Less): Change in GST block 65.3 - 485.0 452.0 - - -
Add/(Less): Incremental Working Capital 229.1 (21.0) (47.9) (489.7) (36.8) (37.9) (37.5)
Less: Taxation - - - (655.3) (1,142.2) (1,349.7) (1,541.0)
Free Cash Flows (FCF) 2,586.8 (2,456.0) 7,093.1 6,326.6 6,324.5 6,518.8 6,706.6
Present Value Factor 0.98 0.91 0.83 0.75 0.68 0.62 0.56
Present Value of Cash Flows 2,534.2 (2,243.8) 5,871.9 4,745.7 4,298.8 4,014.9 3,742.8
NPV of Explicit Period 61,808.2

Enterprise Value (EV) 61,808.2

31 August, 2031

31 August, 2032

31 August, 2033

13,511.1

14,053.8

31 August, 2034

31 August, 2035

31 August, 2036

31 August, 2037

31 August, 2038 31 August, 2039

14,615.1 15,088.9 15,467.9 15,856.6 16,255.0 16,663.5 17,082.4 17,511.9
EBITDA 8,865.4 9,269.8 9,689.2 10,032.8 10,293.4 10,560.2 10,833.4 11,113.0 11,399.4 11,692.5
EBITDA Margins 65.6% 66.0% 66.3% 66.5% 66.5% 66.6% 66.6% 66.7% 66.7% 66.8%
Less : Outflows
(Less): Capital Expenditure (190.3) (190.3) (190.3)

Add/(Less): Change in GST block - - - - - - - - - -
Add/(Less): Incremental Working (39.0) (40.8) (42.6) (27.2) (10.4) (10.7) (11.0) (11.2) (11.5) (11.8)
Less: Taxation (1,720.8) (1,891.9) (2,056.5) (2,196.7) (2311.5) (2,420.5) (2,524.9) (2,625.5) (2,723.3) (2,818.9)
Free Cash Flows (FCF) 6,915.3 7,146.8 7,399.8 7,809.0 7,971.5 8,129.0 8,297.6 8,476.3 8,664.6 8,861.8
Present Value Factor 0.51 0.46 0.42 0.38 0.34 031 0.28 0.25 023 0.21
Present Value of Cash Flows 3,497.0 3,274.8 3,072.4 2,938.0 2,717.5 2,511.1 2,322.6 2,149.9 1,991.3 1,845.4

31 August, 2041

31 August, 2042

31 August, 2043

31 August, 2044

Revenue 17,952.3

18,403.8

18,866.7

19,341.4

31 August, 2045

31 August, 2046

31 August, 2047

31 August, 2048 31 August, 2049 31 August, 2050

19,828.2 20,327.3 20,839.0 21,363.7 21,901.8 22,453.5
EBITDA 11,992.5 12,299.7 12,614.1 12,935.9 13,265.3 13,602.5 13,947.5 14,300.7 14,662.2 15,032.0
EBITDA Margins 66.8% 66.8% 66.9% 66.9% 66.9% 66.9% 66.9% 66.9% 66.9% 66.9%
Less : Outflows
(Less): Capital Expenditure
Add/(Less): Change in GST block - - - - - - - - - -
Add/(Less): Incremental Working (12.1) (12.4) (12.7) (13.0) (13.4) (13.7) (14.0) (14.4) (14.8) 209.3
Less: Taxation (2,913.0) (3,006.1) (3,098.6) (3,191.0) (3,283.6) (3,376.7) (3,470.6) (3,565.4) (3,661.5) (3,758.9)
Free Cash Flows (FCF) 9,067.4 9,281.2 9,502.7 9,731.8 9,968.3 10,212.0 10,462.9 10,720.9 10,985.9 11,482.5
Present Value Factor 0.19 0.17 0.15 0.14 0.13 0.12 0.10 0.09 0.09 0.08
Present Value of Cash Flows 1,711.0 1,586.9 1,472.3 1,366.2 1,268.1 11771 1,092.8 1,014.7 942.1 892.3

Crest Digitel Private Limited

Valuation as per Discounted Cash Flow Method as on March 31, 2024 (INR Cr)

WACC
Terminal Growth Rate

13.3%
4.0%

Year Endi FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31

Revenue 437.5 534.4 635.7 771.3 907.0 1,013.0 1,073.0 1,116.0
EBITDA 135.2  181.1 223.9 285.4 344.4 415.8 439.9 457.5
EBITDA Margins 30.9% 33.9% 35.2% 37.0% 38.0% 41.0% 41.0%  41.0%
Less : Outflows

Capital Expenditure (111.8) (100.0) (154.7) (183.3) (194.7) (113.6) (54.5)  (49.8)
Incremental Working Capital (36.4) (1.9) (20.2) (0.8) (0.8) 3.4 0.9 (1.8)
GST Block 14.1  (0.1) (1.4 (1.2) (0.9) 1.1 0.9 0.9
Taxation (21.4) (31.0) (38.6) (50.1) (61.0) (77.8) (85.3) (102.6)
Free Cash Flows (FCF) (20.3) 48.1 9.0 49.9 87.0 228.9 301.9 304.2
Terminal Value 3,271.1
Present Value Factor 094 0.83 0.73 0.65 0.57 0.50 0.44 0.44
Present Value of Cash Flows (19.1) 39.9 6.6 32.3 49.6 115.2 134.1 1,452.8
NPV of Explicit Period 358.6

Present Value of TV 1,452.8

Enterprise Value (EV) 1,811.4

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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11.2

ROAM DIGITEL INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED Crest Virtual Network Private Limited

Valuation as per Summation Method (INR Cr) Valuation as per Summation Method (INR Cr)
Assets Assets

Cash 0.1 Cash 0.3
Other Current assets - Non-Current 0.001 Other Assets - Current 0.002
Total Assets (A) 0.1

Liabilities Total Assets (A) 0.3
Sundry Creditors 0.002 Liabilities

Other Liabilities - Current 0.003 Sundry Creditors 0.01
Unsecured Borrowings 0.3 Other Liabilities - Current 0.0001
Interest accrued but not due 0.001 Total Liabilities (B) 0.01
Total Liabilities (B) 0.3 Equity Value (A-B) 0.3
Equity Value (A-B) (0.2) .

Add: Debt 0.3 Less: Cah (0.3)
Less: Cash ©.1)

Annexure Il - Details of all Permissions

Tower Co. is registered with the Government of India, Ministry of Communications, Department
of Telecommunications as an Infrastructure Provider Category | (IP-I) to establish and maintain
the assets such as dark fibers, right of way, duct space and tower for the purpose to grant to
lease, rent or sale basis to the licensees to telecom services licensed under Section 4 of the
Indian Telegraph Act, 1885 on mutually agreed terms and conditions.

Certain other key permissions and approvals required to be obtained by the Tower Co. for its
present business are set out below:

= Approvals from local authorities, as applicable, such as municipal authorities and gram
panchayats for setting up of towers;

= Consents or intimations from pollution control boards, as applicable, for operation of DG
sets; and

= Permissions from state electricity boards or power distribution companies, as applicable,
for electrical connections.

Certain approvals may have expired in their normal course and the Tower Co. has either made
an application to the appropriate authorities for renewal of such approvals or is in the process
of making such applications. Tower Co. undertakes to obtain, either through itself or its
contractors, all approvals, licenses, registrations, and permissions required to operate its
business. Certain approvals and permissions in relation to the business of the Tower Co. are in
the name of RJIL. Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, the tower infrastructure
undertaking of RJIL, comprising the business of setting up and maintaining passive tower
infrastructure and related assets and providing passive tower infrastructure services was
transferred and vested in Tower Co. as of, and with effect from the close of business of March
31, 2019. The Scheme of Arrangement was approved by the National Company Law Board,
Ahmedabad (“NCLT”), through its order dated March 20, 2019. The Scheme of Arrangement
became effective from the close of business on March 31, 2019.

Annexure lll - Litigations Details

Tower co. received demand orders for financial year 2019-20 and 2020-21 of INR 1,057.0 million
and INR 1,073.0 million respectively from Bihar GST Authority disallowing the input tax credits
utilized by the Tower co. The Tower co. has disputed the aforesaid disallowance. Against the
demand for the year 2019-20, the Tower co. has filed a writ petition before the Patna High
court and the same is dismissed. Tower Co. has filed a Special Leave Petition (“SLP”) before
the Supreme Court. Against the demand for the year FY 2020-21, the Tower co. has filed an
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appeal before the Appellate authority which has been rejected. Tower Co. will file an appeal
before the second appellate authority once the same is constituted.

e Tower Co. has received demand orders for FY 2021-2022 and FY 2022-2023 from Bihar GST
authorities. The total demand is INR 616.0 million and INR 533.0 million respectively. The
Tower Co. has filed appeals before 1t appellate authority for both the years.

e Further, subsequently Tower Co. has received demand orders of INR 1,694.0 million and INR
2,253.0 million for the financial year 2019-20 and 2020-21 respectively from Uttar Pradesh GST
Authority disallowing the input tax credit utilised by the Tower Co. and has filed an appeal
before the first Appellate authority and hearing for both the years is in progress.

¢ In May 2023, Tower Co. has received a demand order from Tamil Nadu GST authorities for FY
2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22. The total demand is INR 288.0 million. Tower Co. has filed an
appeal before the appellate authority.

e Tower co. has reviewed the aforesaid orders and does not foresee any provision required in
this respect at this stage. Tower co. is indemnified by a party for these demands except for
INR 1,133.72 million.

e As confirmed by the Management, other than the above, there are no material litigations
involving the Tower Co. or regulatory actions pending against the Tower Company requiring a
disclosure under this section.

11.4 Annexure IV - Other Disclosures as required under SEBI InvIT Regulations

Statement of Assets

The InvIT holds entire outstanding equity share capital in Tower Co. Tower Co. is in the business
of setting up and maintaining passive tower infrastructure and related assets and providing
passive tower infrastructure services in India to telecommunication service providers The
Tower Infrastructure Business was transferred by way of a slump sale on a going concern basis
by RJIL to Tower Co. under a scheme of arrangement that was approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad with effect from close of business hours March 31, 2019.
As per the audited financial statements of Tower Co. as of March 31, 2024, Tower Co. has a
gross block of fixed assets consisting of assets related to Tower Infrastructure Business
aggregating INR 52,065.1 Crore.

As per the audited financial statements of Crest Digitel Private Limited, as of March 31, 2024,
it has a gross block of fixed assets of INR 386.1 crore.

INR Cr

Particulars Net Tangible Intangible ROU Asset Capital Work Other
Assets Assets in Progress Assets

SDIL 44,026.8 3.7 39.8 0.9 3,688.5
CDPL 256.8 1.7 126.8 59.8 185.5

Summary of Enterprise Value Changes over Valuation Dates

INR Cr
Particulars March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 September 30, 2021 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
SDIL 61,808.2 62,030.7 62,293.2 50,904.0 48,268.7 44,005.5 43,655.5
CDPL 1,811.4 2,023.1 1,541.5 1,322.8
RDIPL NIL
CVNPL NIL

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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Details of Major Repairs - Past and Proposed

e As per discussions with Management and given the relatively newer portfolio of assets, we
understand that no major repairs have been done in the past to the operational Tower
Assets

e Going forward, the maintenance (including any major maintenance) costs are to be borne
by RIL in terms of the Amended and Restated O&M Agreement and accordingly We
understand that there is no major repair costs that Tower Co. would need to incur.

Revenue pendency including local authority taxes associated with the InvIT
Asset and compounding charges.

e The Management has confirmed to us that there are no revenue pendencies including local
authority taxes associated with the InvIT Assets and compounding charges

Vulnerability to natural or induced hazards that may not have been covered
in town planning / building control.

e The Management has confirmed to us that there is no vulnerability to natural or induced
hazards that may not have been covered in town planning / building control.

11.5 Annexure V - Items not considered for adjustments to Enterprise Value
The following items have not been considered for adjustments to Enterprise Value:
o Debt.
e Cash and cash equivalents.
¢ Investments.
e Asset retirement obligation.
e Income tax assets.

e Lease liabilities of SDIL.

(this space has been left blank intentionally)
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11.6 Annexure VI - Photographs

Visit Photos - Summit Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited

Banashankari, Bengaluru

ShreedharD P, 53 J P Nagar, Bengaluru ShreedharD P, 53 J P Nagar, Bengaluru
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Sec. 35, Kamothe, Navi Mumbai
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Crest Digitel Private Limited

Ittamadu village, Bengaluru
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